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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

GROUP REVENUE

£10.6bn ***

GROUP PRCOFIT BEFORE TAX

GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND
ADJUSTED ITEMS

£176.4m™"

INTERIM AND FINAL DIVIGEND

£613.8m™™

6.8p + 11.9p =

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

1 8 .7p Level

ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

7. 2p -70.7%

30.41) -12.6%

Read more on p08-09

ABOUT OUR REPORTING

NAVIGATING THE REPORT

REPCRTING PERIOD

PLAN A

Throughout this document a ser es of cang
demonsirate how we've megrated mformat an
about our bus ness model w th detals of our
strategy andr sk

PLAN A

RISK

STRATEGY ~ REMUNERATION LINK

READ MORE

Th s vear we are reperting onthe hz-weeksto ist
Aprit 2017 corrpared to last year when we reported
onab3-week bas 3, as every siX years an addit onal
week s ncluded o ensure thal the year-end date
elays nline wththe end of March To prowde a
rrearingful cormparisorw.th this year, all fnanc al
rmoverments are reported ona b2-waek bass,
andexcludng the S3rdhweek last year, uniess
otherwsenoted

Details of the 53-week comparisons ¢an be
found in the Financial Review p26.

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Ths report provides allernative performance
rmeasures (APMs) wh ch are not defined or

spec fied under the requirerments of International
Financ al Reporting $tandards We beligve these
APMs provide readers with mportant adoiionai
infarrrar.on on our busness, New for th g year,

we have included & glossary onpage 133 which
provides a cormprehensive bist of the APMs that
we uge, ncluding an explanation of how they are
calculated, why we use them and how they can be
reconciled to 3 statutory measure where relevant

Plan A s mtegrated throughout this report,

derronsiraung how tis ermbedded in every part

of aur business Ths makes it eas.er for

shareholders to see how our sustainability

pregramme is creat'ng value m our different

drisions, More delaled nforrmation s avalsble n

our onlne 2017 Plan A Repart at

marksandspencercom/plana2Q17 ,

ONLINE INFORMATION

We have carnprehensive fnancal and company
nformaton on our webs1e Toregister for
not.f.cat ans, o to marksandspencercom/
investors and follow the Electronic Shareholder
Communication link.
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INTRODUCTION

M&S 1S ONE OF THE
UK'S LEADING RETAILERS.
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OUR BUSINESS

AT A GLANCE

FOOD

Making every food moment specialis the
aim of our Food business, which accounts
for 60% of our UK turnover. Through the
innovation, quality and cholice that we offer,
customers know they can come to us for
every occasion, whether it is healthy cooking
ideas, delicious meals from around the world
or convenient food on-the-go. We sell food
through 942 UK stores, including 253 owned
and 383 franchise Simply Food stores.

Read more oh p23

FOOD REVENUE

£5.6bn™

NUMBER OF NEW LINES NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

CLOTHING & HOME

We sell beautifully designed, high quality,
own-brand clothing and homeware through
343 full-line stores, Qutlets and our
M&S.com website. Cur Womenswear,
Menswear, Kidswear, Lingerie, Beauty and
Home products account for 40% of cur UK
turnover. With our focus on contemporary
style and wardrobe essentials, we are the
UK's biggest clothing retailer by value.

We are also the market leader in Womenswear,
Lingerie and Menswear.

L Read more on p23 —1

CLOTHING & HOME REVENUE

£3.8bn™

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

FULL-PRICE SALES

1,600

24% of range

20.5m

+{(Lim

24.6m

-0.im

+2.7%
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INTERNATIONAL
PR e

We export the best of M&S Clothing &
Home and Food around the world, with stores
across Europe, Asia and the Middle East.
We also have a growing international online
business. Following a strategic review of
our International business, we are focusing
on our established joint venture and
franchise partnerships and operating fewer
wholly-owned markets

I: Read more on p24 |

INTERNATIONAL REVENUE

PLAN A

In January 2007, we launched Plan A to
address the key environmental, social and
ethical challenges facing M&S. After ten years
and two further updates, Plan A continues
tc lead the sustainable business agenda.
This year we are launching a new set of
commitments which have been developed
to transition Plan A into a new way of working
and engaging with our customers.

[ marksandspencercom/planaz017 |

TOTAL PLAN A 2020 COMMITMENTS

£1.2bn™"

INTERNATIONAL STCORES

107

COMMITMENTS ACHIEVED COMMITMENTS NOT ACHIEVED

454 -14 net

new stores
TERRITORIES

64 6

COMMITMENTS ON PLAN COMMITMENTS BEHIND PLAN

55"

25 11

COMMITMENTS CANCELLED

1
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OUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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OUR BUSINESS

CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

This year Steve has set out clear and decisive plans. | will leave an
M&S that is well equipped for the digital age and totally focused
on its customers. This more relevant M&S is underpinned by effective
succession planning, good governance and active shareholder
engagement which have been my focus during my time as Chairman.

INTERIM

ROBERT SWANNELL CHAIRMAN

FINAL

TOTAL DIVIDEND FOR 2016/17

6.8p 11.9p 18.7p

PAID ON 13 JANUARY 2017

TOBEPAID ON 14 HULY 2017

OVERVIEW

PERFORMANCE

This is my last Annual Report as Chairman
alter more than six years at M&S. It has
beenanextraordinary honour Lo serve
this company

Since Steve Rowe became Chief Executive,
he has set out clear plans to accelerate the
pace of change acress M&S By simplifying
the way we do things and by focusing on the
customer, we have laid solid foundations
for growlh. We repositioned our Clothing &
Home business, made important decisions
about the future shape of our UK and
Internationat store estates, and put inplace
farer pay and benefits for our employees

It has been a year of great change outside
M&S as well. Last summer’s vote Lo leave
the Eurcpean Union has caused inevitable
unrcertanty. Nobady yet knows what the
long-term effect of Brexit willbe Like many
businesses we have beenimpactedby the
doeprecialion of sterting, bul it is our job Lo
seize the opportuniies eshead and prepare
forall eventualities

We have made somce hard decisions, Some
have led to significant adjustments to our
profits this year and also, N the casc of
repositioning our Clothing & Home business,
to some short-termreductionin our
adiusted profits. However, these changes
needed to be made for the tong-term
health of the business. Decisive action and
strong execudion have never beenmore
important tocompele in afast-changing
retail environment. These actions allow us
toembrace the futurefrom a position of
strength, well equipped for a digital age
and with a sustamable business model

I believe our foodis, without exaggeration,
among the best in the world, Once again,
we delivered a good perfermanceina
tough market. Sales grew as customers
responded Lo the guality of our foedand
the convenience of our slores We are very
pleascd with the overall performance of
the Simply Food stores opened during

the year The return on capitalfrem the
format remains compelling. With product
innovaticnremaning the backkone of our
Food business and a strong, but measured,
store opening programme, we have a clear
pathlogrowth,

We ropositioned our Clothing & Home
business for sustainable growth by ending
a damaging cycle of promotions and
discounts We also refocused our ranges on
stylish, wearable, great-quality essentials.
By implementing a sensible, compctitive
pricing architecture for our custorners,

we have seen encouraging improvernent s
n full-price sales As expectled, fewer
promaotions and less discounting resulted
inlower salos, Thereis much work still to

do but we are beginning Lo see signs of
recovery Steve made it clear a yearago
that this repositioning would have a short-
termnegativeimpact en profits bul would
set us up for sustainable performance and
a stronger business inthe long term Ayear
on, we are evonclearer that this was the
nght thing te do.

Chur International business had a
challenging year However, we announced
aciear strategy Lo focus on our strong
franchise partnerships and our established
joint ventures, and operatein fewer owned
markets, by exiting ten owned, loss-making
markets and 53 stores,

Owverall,adjusted profit before tax was

£613 8m, down 10 3% on last year However,
duetocharges of £437.4m, Croup profits
fellto £176.4mM. The main elements of the
charges retate to the cost of implementing
the new pay and pensions arrangements,
and the cost of the Internalicnal store
closures {was Chairman when about hatf of
Lthese 53 stores opened and so must accept
my full share of the responsibility for this
disappointing result. However, consumer
behaviour has changed in the intervening
years We had already significantly scaled
back our ambitions in ownedmarkels
before we announced these closure plans,
and just as there was a rationale for opening
the stores then, there s one for closing
them now. It isessential that we adapt to our
customers changing needs and recognise
the current realities of the marketsin which
we operate, despite the short-terrn cost.

Having the right stores in the right places

is also why we are reshaping our UK store
portfolic, as we focus on having less, more
inspiring Clothing & Horne space and
growing our Food space. At the end of this
five-year programme we will have increased
our space cveralland ernployed more
poople Our stores willbe more relevant

to the changing needs and habils of our
custemersin adigital world




HICHLICGHTS OF THIS YEAR'S
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Governance report provides:

- Aclearand hanest rev-ew of the year,

= Aclear mapillustrating our stakeholder
consideranions andengagement;

= The outcore of our iIndependent

Board Evaluat on,

- Creater disclosure around Board
discussions and associated act ons, and

—» Ourapproachtorskand nsk appet te

As a Board we regularly discuss!

—» Strategy and
performance

- Culture and
behaviour

-2 Succession
plannng

-3 Ecomrrerce

= CyberandIT
- The M&S brand
-2 Internat onal
= Supply chain
=2 Rsk

- Property

= PlanA

Read more on p24-83

INTRODUCTION

ARCHIE NORMAN
CHAIRMAN DES CNATE

InMay, we announced that Archie
Norman will join M&S as Chairman on

1 September 2017 Archie has significant
retal experience and a long-term track
record of value creation in several

major British companies He has led
transformations of major businesses
inthe UK and abroad, and served onthe
boards of several others, most recently
asChairman of ITV pic.
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A VALUES AND PLAN A

Curvalues of Inspiration, Innovation,
Integrity and in Touch run through
everything we do at M&S This1sabusiness
that tries to do theright thingand thisis
demonstratedin many ways, from our Leng
Service Awards tohelping disadvantaged
peopleintc work, Lo the charity support
delivered through Plan A.

Thisisn't new; it is part of what has defined
us for over a certury.in 1964 Lord Sieff,

our then Deputy Chairman, spoke about
our values “The mairnt purpose of building
up a great business should net be
merely {0 make money,”Lord Sieff said

A company has its responsibitities, not only
to shareholders but also to the staff the
customers and the whole community n
which it trades Unless it gives satisfaction
and even happiness to all concernad,

it wilt fanl in its aums in the long term ™

His comments are as pertinent as ever
andthis philosophy continues to guide

the way we do business at M&S,

This year marks the tenth anniversary of
Plan A lam extremaely proud of the work
we have done. From becoming a zero

waste tolandfill business and sourcing

raw materials moreresponsibly, to our
ambitious programrmes to support workers
throughout our global supply chain, we
have soughttelead the way on truly
sustainable change We recently relaunched
Plan A and the latest versionis amed al
being oven more relevant to customers
and the communities in which we trade.

BOARD CHANGES

Since tbecame Chairmanin 2011 | have
consistently focused on succession
planning as one of Lthe mostimportant
tasks forthe Board. Last year, aftera
rigorous process, we appointed Steve as
Chigf Executive, the first internat appointee
for many years Sieve's strategyis firmly in
place sathis is now the ngnt time for a now
Chairmantoiake overasplans for growth
inthe longer term are developed.

Afteran cqually rigorous process led

by Vindi Banga and our Nomination
Committee, Iwillbe replacedas Chairman
by Archie Normanin September Archie
brings a breadth and depth of relevant
experience to M&Sand an extonsive track
recordinretailand brands |am delighted
with Archie’s appointment and Twish him
greal successinthisrole.

SHAREHOLDER RETURNS
AND DIVIDENDS

We know how important our dividend

15 Lo shareholders. Our policy remains
progressive, with dividends broadly covered
twice by earnings. Despite a reduction

of 10.3% in our adjusted profits, we have
decided to maintain the totaldividend per
share forthe year at the same lovelas last
year wilh the proposed payment of afinat
dividend of 11 9p per share; this dvidend

remains well covered onacash basis,
Civen the cash costs associated with our
strategic change and the uncertzin market
conditions, we consider it is prudent,

not to make additional returns of cash

te shareholders under our enhanced
return programme,

A STRONGER COMPANY

fwillleave M&S a stronger company We ara
row set up to compete, with amodern
distnibution and logistics backbone and
excellent digital, design and sourcing
capabilities. Ibave been committedto
strong governance throughout my tenure
and your Board today has a balanced
preadth of talent, both among the
executives and the non-executives.

We have worked to increase engagement
with ourshareholders and employees
Crver the last six years, we have engaged
our majorinstitutional shareholders in
depth inour business to ensure asmuch
transparency as possiole, Now, through
our Shareholder Panel, we are engaging
with our private shareholdersinan
unprecedented way Inaddition, through
chanrels such as my regular meetings
with the Chair of cur Business Involvernent
Croups (BIC), M&S's network of elected
employees, and his attendance at our
Board, we are engaging with our people
as never before.

Having focused on these three pillars -
governance, succession and engagement
~| believe MBS is now better prepared

far the further changes ahead.

There is no business | would have been
prouder to chair than M&S | will rniss being
part of it its values and the place it holds
incustomers’ hearts My colleagues at

M&S are the most dedicated | have ever
worked with and I never fail to be impressed
by their commitment to the business,

They want M&S to succeed and they know
what ‘dongtheright thing' means.

The tast six years have seen profound
changesinretailand at M&S, technology
has transformed the way Lhat peopte shop.
Under Steve, change will continue unabated
-1t must To mect the challenges ahead,
M&S must be bold, ambitious and decisive

It rmust thwnk big and execute effoctively
And, as Lord Sieff said, it must also give
salisfaction and happiness to its customers,
its employees and its communities.

Finally, [ would like ta thank cur customers,
our ermnployees and our shareholders for
their support. It has been anunforgettable
privilege to be Chairman of M&S and

l'wish the business every success inthe
years ahead.

ROBERT SWANNELL CHAIRMAN

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MARKET & CUSTOMER

INSICHTS

Qur actions are driven by listening to our customers and
analysing the market to build a rich ana robust picture of our
customers’ shopping habits and outlooks. Everything we do as
a company is filtered through the lens of what we know about
our customers and every decision starts with them,

UNDERSTANDING QUR CUSTOMERS

Qur Customer Ingight Unit (CIU) gathers
feedbac« through a number of different
channels, ncluding store exit surveys,
online surveys andreviews, till surveys,

the Customer Contact Centre and focus
groups, to build 2 comprehensive picture

of what our customers want from M&S This
year we carried out over 700,000 customer
interviews, either in person or through
online surveys Within CiU, we have created a
centralised data analytics team to ensure we
have a single accurate view of our customars
Through anonymised data analysis, we can
better understand how cur custormers are
shopping with us by examining purchasing
behaviours and patterns bothin our stores
and online. By understanding how our
customers choose to spend their money
and time at M&S, we can ensure we are
always working to deliver the products

and shopping experience they want

Cur Consumer Barometer gives us aregutar
snapshot of how consumers are feeling
about theirhousehold finances and the
econcmy ingeneral Every month we talk

to 70,000 ME&S customers across our key
customer groups, as well as those who
don't shop with us regutarly, to take the
natior's pulse

We overlay this insight with external market
data, such as weather patterns, travel tirme
to our stores, local feotfalldataand the
competitor environment, to build a solid
understanding of our customers and our
positioninthe overall retaltllandscape

But gathering this crucial data is only half
of the eqguation -it's how we use it to put our
customers centre stage that's important.
By carefuily analysing all the information that
we have, we can ensure we are in touch with
consumer attitudes and lifestyles. The data
allows us to identify patterns and groups of
customers By understanding these groups
in detail, we can buitd our strategies from
the customer upwards rather than from

the boardroom downwards.

Inshort, the information allows usto
doabetter job for our most important
stakeholders - the people who shop with
us - 5o that we are more relevant, more
often. By understanding and knowing our
customners through carefut and detailed
data analysis, we can pul customers rnght
at the heart of everything we do.

WHAT CUSTOMERS ARE TELLING US

After holding up reasonably well over
Christmas, consumer confidence in
general dippedinthe early months of 2017,
People started to feel a little less certain
about the wider economic cutlook due
toconcernaround 1ssues suchasrising
inflation, the fallng pound and uncertainty
as aresult of the UK's decision to leave

the European Union

When asked about their future spending
intentions, all consurmers —rather than

M&S customers in particular - said they
were ikely to trim back their discretionary
spendingin the months ahead dueto these
economic concerns They atso saidthey
were more likely than before to put their
money INto experignces and events, such
as trips to the cinema, gyrm membership
or meals out, rather than into buying
consumer goods on the high streat

Net optimism,a measure of how positive
peaple are feeling, mcreased by 5% over
the year.Interms of their biggest concerns
N the imrnediate future, people cited rising
food prices, worries about the Brexit
negotiations and geopelitical uncertainty
following the American presidentiatl
election last November.

But despite all this, consumer confidence is
still relatively high compared with the period
between 2008 and 2013, when it suffered
aprolonged sturnp due to the credit crisis

More of our food shoppers say that they
wauld recarmmend us to farmily and friends.
Qur Net Promoter Score (NPS), which
measures customers willingness to
recommend M&S, in Food is up four points.
InClothing & Homa, white overallNPS was

broadly level, we saw an improvement in
ratings from our most frequent custamers
andin our larger stores, so we know
custarners are noticing the difference.
Although our Clothing & Home business

15 still recoverning, custormers can sec we
are doing the right things. Customars lind
M&S.com easy to navigate and customer
satisfaction has significantly improved
over the last year.

HOW WE USE OUR INSICHTS

The mformation we gather gives us

a crucial insight into the context in which
we're trading. Ourinsights mean nothing
unless we act on them We share the
information with all our business units
anduse the results to help usinforrn our
business decisions

From product development and design, to
the content we put on our website, to our
online delivery proposition -they are alt
guided by what our customers tell us.

This year there were many examples of

how we took insights from our ClU and used
therm ta improve our customers’ experience,
forexample.

- We changed the layout of our clothing
departments because of customer
feedback that our stores were sometimes
confusing to shop in Until this year, we
organised Womenswear by sub-brand,
such &s peruna or Limited Edition, But this
led to a fragmented shopping experience
and product duplication where sub-
brands had simitar garments. Qur stores
now have clear product departments, with
the key products for the season brought
together at the front of the store, leading
ta a more intuitive shopping experience.

- We have used cur insights to Increase
levels of personalisation for our 5.6m
Sparks members whao now receive tailored
offers based on theirinterests and shopping
habits. We invite thern to special Sparks
events and experiences, such as wing
tastings or fashion shows, depending on



how many Sparks they have and what we
know they are passionate about. We are
alsobeing more targetedin our ermail
communications by sending customers
updates specifically related to therr local
store andarea sothey only get the
information that is most relevant to them,

= We used guantitative data from 7000
customers to guide cur investment in
improving service n our stores. Thisresearch
told us customers wanted to see more
Customer Assistantsin our stores
We responded by putting over 3,000
more colleaguesinto the departments
where our customers told us they value
service most, including Fitting Rooms,
BraFit, Men's Suits and Footwear

-» We showcase our clothing collections to
the fashion press bwice a year — Autumn/
Winter in May and Spring/Summerin
Naovember - 50 our customers get to
sec some of what's coming next season
This year, we responded Lo feedback Lhat
custormers increasingly want to buy into
new season trends as soon as they see
thermn with 'See Now Buy Now' capsule
collections, enabling customers to
shop key pieces from the new season
straight away.

->» The Clothing & Home rosearch panel
we use {or product development has
a custormer nteraction every five seconds
through our dedicated panel of around
231,000 customers Withthis we gain
invaluable feedback onnew products
during design development, sowe can
increase the buys on custormer favourites
and eliminate products that scoreless
well al the concept stage, ensuring we
are shaping collections that most
resonate with our customers

= Forthis years Christmas campaign, we
listened to thousands of customers
to understand what they want to see
from M&S at Christmas The feedback
we gathered said they wanted us to own
Christmas in the traditional sense, but In
a way that was surprising and different.
Sowe created the Christmas with Love
campaign starnng the oftenunsung hero
of Christrnas, Mrs Claus, who epitomised
the huge efforts our customers put into
making the festive season special

Thus 1s Just the beginning The next few years
present exciting opportunities, For exarnple,
since Lhetaunch of Sparks in 2015, nearly
1.5m pecple have downloaded our M&S app.
This combination of technology and loyalty
is powerful It brings us closer to our customers
and will allow us to further ennch our
proposition. it will allow us to increase
customer engagement. And it wilt allow

us to drive frequency of purchase across
channels and categaories.

Smart usc of data canboost salesand
therefore create valuc for everyone. cur
custormers, our employees and, ultimately,
our shareholders,

07

ANMNUAL RECORT AND F NANCAL STATEMENTS 2017

M&S TODAY

m

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

CLOTHING & HOME CUSTOMERS

8.9m

WEBSITE v MTS

PERWEFK
38%  62% 40%
0 0 0
OFOURCUSTOMERS  OF QURCUSTOMERS EOOD CUSTOMERS SHOP
AREMALE ARCFEMALE ‘FOR TONIGHT

40%

OF CLSTOMERS SHOP
FORBOTHCLOTHING &
FOME AND FOOD

52%

OF ONLINE ORDERS ARE MADE
TAROUCHTABLET AND MORILE

23%

OF CUSTOMERS UNDER 35

UK FOOD MARKETPLACE

We face stiff compelition across the UK food sector withrising inflation, recovery
among the main four supermarkets and the continued growth of the ciscounters.
Foodretailers and supplers also face cost headwinds due tarising raw rmaterial prices
and the depreciation of sterling. However, through listening to our customers and
maonilering the market, we keep on top of changing shopoing habits. Consumers remain
as savvy as ever andrelish innovalion They are alsc deing smaller ‘convenience shops.
These trends play to our strengths,

UK CLOTHING MARKETPLACE

The market remains highly competitive, with retailers facing cost pressures due to
Increasing commodity prices and the impact of the fallin sterling. At the same time,
households are managing their finances carefully due to fears of Inflation and political
uncertainty. Customers still love treating themselves, but consumer confidence dipped
in the early months of 2017 Spending on clothing 1s also cornimg under pressure as
consumers spend more on experiences and retailers are vying with cinermas and
restaurants for spend However, we believe we canattract consumers by focusing

on offering high quality, stylish products that are competitively priced.

Source Of<

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
SITRATECIC UPDATE

By listening to our customers and simplifying how we do things,
believe we have the right strategy in ptace to make M&S a relevant,
profitable and truly sustainable retailer.

STEVE ROWE CHIEF EXTCUTIVE

OVERVIEW

Avyearago,lstarted inmy role as Chief
Executive by posing a series of questions
that Il hoped would help unlock the future of
ME&S, giving us aplatform from which to first
recover andthentogrow 2016/17 has been
ayesr of change as we started to answer
thesa questions, which | address below,

The steps we are taking are making a
ufference and we are making progress.
However,as we said when we set out our
plan, it has resultedin some short-term
pain. Some of the action needed has been
costly and profits are down, Clothing &
Home sales were down year-on-year as we

reduced promotions and markdown activity.

We expected this and we still believe we are
doing the nght thing for the future of our
business. We have seen encouraging signs
from the increase in full-price Clothing &
Home sales andin the sales growth during
the key Christrnas trading period Andin
Food, we continuad to grow ahead of the
market with new stores outperforming
expectations

MAKING EVERY MOMENT SPECIAL

The business has adapted wellas we start to
build a sustainable foundation for the future.
We have laid a lot of the groundwork for

our recovery, however, we are not there yet.
lwant to see consistent delivery over time
and twant to see us move out of recovery
Evenas our performance improves, we
can't stand still. While we are still focused
onrecovernngour business andwe havea
lot more todo, tam also starting to look

to future growth opportunities, some of
whichloutline at the end of this update.

QOUR CUSTOMERS

We asked how we could put customers at
the heart of everything we do. Dugto the
changes we've made, we are now a more
data-driven organisation where decisions
are made based on what we know about
our customers, not what we think we know.
We conduct mare customer listening
groups than ever before;all trading
rmeetings now begin with insight intc our
customers,and, as we celebrate tenyears
of leading the socialand environmental
agenda, we have repurposed Plan A to
make it more customer-focused

Our customer-focused changas are most
keerly felt in our stores We invested in
customer service by recruiting additional
colleagues into the areas we know are most
important to our customers We also rolled
out our Making Every Moment Speciat
In-store service initiative,

Read more about Making Every Moment
Special below

Our new Spend It Well marketing campaign
- like our Mrs Claus Christras campaign
before it - focuses squarely on our
customers’ Ufestyles, It Laps into peopte’s
emotional connection with M&S and 1s
aimed at driving a reappraisal of our brand.
Life is short so we should Spend It Well. The
campaign encourages customers to rmake
the most of what's relevant for them today.

CLOTHINC & HOME

We asked how we could recover and grow
our Clothing & Homie business. The answer
lay in making a series of commmon sense,
custormer-focused changes to the way we
do things. Ina tough market, | arm pleased
with the progress we are making

Qur Making Every Moment Special
employee engagement prograrmme has
been transiormational for cur customers
and our people atike, Through it, we believe
we've taken customer service to new levels
Last summer, we gave over 70,000 store
colleaguesinteractive training with the
objective of putting custormers at the heart
of what we do We encouraged themtomake
real-time decisions based on individual
customers needs and we removed non-
customer-facing tasks from their daily
routines, giving Lhern more time to spend
with customers, The response from

colleagues has been phenomenaland as
positive as anything 've kaown inmy 28
years al M&S, Qur 'Customer at the Hearl’
site on Yammer, our internal social media
notwork, contains thousands of examples
of great service by our colleagues.
Throughout our 133-year history, we have
learnt that better service leads to better
sales Making Every Moment Special shows
this principle inaction. It has becomoe our
mantra across the business. By ecrmpowering
our pecple to make customer-focused
decisions, our sales floors are buzzing
with arenawed sense of purpose.
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OUR STRATECY
]

CUSTOMERS AND BRAND

RECOVER AND GROW

CLOTHING & HOME
e

CONTINUE TO GROW

FOOD
)

STYLE

QUALITY

Focus on product

Style, wardrobe
essentials ard fit

AUTHORITY

Drive execution
Prce, availability

NEWNESS

and serv.ce and capability

Focus on product

innovation, healih

CONVENIENCE

QUALITY

Drive execution

Pr ce, availabrlily
and conven ence

UK STORE ESTATE

INTERNATIONAL

ORGANISATION & COSTS

= Crow Food space

- .60 fewer, rnore inspiral onal
Clothing & Homre stares

- Rebatance .50 siores
to growth areas

= Focus on partnership
modeland online
- Drive execut on -
price,avalabilty and service

- Create alean, effecthive
Htead Office

- Continue to develop
cost culture

We made shopping simpler for customers
by reducing the number of times we launch
new Lnes from 14 £o nine times a year

We cut the number of garment options

by 10%. We are phasing out the Indigo,
Collezione and North Coast sub-brands
These measures enabled us toimprove
availability across ourranges Previously,
we acted too much like a fast fashior’
comparny, prioritising frequency over guatity
and taking too many cues from catwalk
fashions Sowe improved our fits, fabrics
and finishes, we increased avaitability and
we refocused on delivering contemporary
wearable style and wardrobe essentials
Our ranges are now more relevant to what
customers want from M&S.

We started offering better value than ever
before by reducing prices on 2,400 Clothing
& Homelines. We simultaneously reduced
our promotional activity This putanend to
confusing pricing which meant our products
were either too expensive or too heavily
discounted. Not only have these changes
givenclarity to customers, but they made
our sales more profitable and boosted our
full-price market share

We also made our stores far easier to shop
in by merchandising more of our ctothes

by product category rather than by brand
This change inemphasis reflected the
changes we made last year to the way our
teams design and buy products. Our shops
are now simpler and more intuitive. They are
based around customers needs.

We are stillintherecovery phase of our plan
and getting it right is absclutely crucial to
our success InMay this year we announced
anewrole to lead this work. JitMcDonald
will join as Managing Director, Clothing,
Home & Beauty and will have overall profit
and loss accountability for all aspects of
our Clothing & Home business, from design
and sourcing through te supply chain and
logstics. The scope of this role highlights
the importance we are placing on
centinuing to recover and starting to

grow Clothing & Horne. We are making
encouraging progress and | believe we

are on the right path to growth

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STRATEGIC UPDATE CONTINUED

QUR OPERATING MODEL

Simplicity and accountability are key
to running an agile and successful
business. We are therefore changing cur
operating modelto give us twa clear profit
and loss accountabilitics -one for our
Clothing & Home business unit and one
for our Food business unit. Both sides of
the business are now responsible for thejr
own end-to-end profit & loss. As part of
the change, M&S com has rmoved from
beng a separate business unit to being
asales channel, along with Stores and
Internationatl. AllLhree channels now
feed into our two business units, with our
customers at the centre, Underpinming
these changes is the engoing drive for
simplicity inthe way we do things.

FOOD

Converient. Special Different. These are
the reasons why customers love our food,
These are alsothe reasons why our Food
business is on a clear path to sustainable
growlh. We know that selling quality food
from convenient lecalionsis a winning
formula sales from the 30 owned Simply
Food stores we opened this year arc ahead
of plan. Wc'll continue to grow our Foed
business by cpening 250 further Food
stores by 2020, Wea're succeedingin

our aim of making every food moment
special Customers love our high levels of
innovation —we renew around a quarter
of cur range every year - and thoy love
the high quality of our products. We won't
accept second-rate ingrodients Inaworld
where you get what you pay for it shows
Thus year we exlended Collection, our

top Lier range for customers who want
scmething extra special And customers
know they can Lrust us onheallh It s thor
nurber one concern when it comes to
buying foed, so we launched 200 now
products aimed at helping our customers
to eal well, and extended our Made Without,
Balanced for You and Eat Well ranges.

The grocery market continues to be very
competitive but we will continue to set
oursetves apart with supenior quality,
innovationand convenient foodin
convenient locations As we grow our
Food store presence, our food willbe even
more accessible Lo more customers,

QUR PEOPLE

By thinking, working andbehaving with

a truly customer-centric mindset, | believe
our people are ntegral Lo cur SUCCESS.

Last year tasked what our right cost base,
shape and structure was, and how this
woudd affect our people. In Apnit 2017, we
finalised the pay and pensions changes
that | cutlined last year and we now reward
our people in afairer, more consistent way
{amimmensely proud that we now have
pay and benefit parity across the business
Following detailed consultation with cur
National Business Involverment Croup of
elected employee representatives, we now
offer one of the best reward packages in
UK retail.

in November, we outlined further plans to
simplify the business and lower our costs.
This resultedin a reduction of roles at our
Head Office and the decision to reduce our
central _ondon office space as we maove
to more efficient ways of working Some
of these decisions had a direct impact on
anumber of our employees. But | believe
our peoplerecognise that we made them
for tne nght reasons and that they were
necessary for our sustanable growth.

lwould like to thank allour people for ther
dedication and professionalismina year
of significant but necessary change.

STORE ESTATE AND INTERNATIONAL

Our customoers' shopping habits are
changing, so l asked whether our UKand
Intermational store estate s the right shape
Torthe future. It is not. Customers' behaviour
is ovolving, and the pace of changeis
accelerating. Rather than doing one big
food shop a week, there is a growing trend
of customers pickingup food fornow or for
tonight. Lock at how people use technology
They'll browse or buy online and collect in
store. Or they'ilbuy on their smartphone
for home delivery. Sales on M&S comnow
account for 17% of Clothing & Home sales.

At the sarne time, customers want to shopin
modern stores that offer a great experience
Qur store pertfolio needs to reflect how
people live their lives today.

So we announced plans to rebalance our
UK space to meet changing customer
needs The transformation will enatile us
tagrow Clothing &Home sales through
fawer, better stores Over five years, we will
change the use of around 25% of our space,
with more of it being deployed te Feed and
other growthareas Clothing & Home space
will reduce by around 10%. Appreximately
30 full-line stores will close, and 45 wittbe
converted to Simply Food

To be clear, this is neither a withdrawal nor a
retrenchment Due to our ambitious Food
expansion we willhave more storesinthe
future, not fewer But our estate willbe the
shape which meets how our customers
want to shop at M&S,

Our Internationat operations have also
changed While our franchise business with
our knowledgeable partnersis profitable,
our owned estateis not. This is unsustainable,
so we are focusing onour jont venture and
franchise partnerships and our growing
online business, and exiting ten of our loss-
making owned markets. The programme is
ontrack We have now closedalltenof our
stores in China and completed employee
consultations in the remaining markets,

We rernain a significant player on the global
stage with a store or online presencein

55 markets. | believe in aninternationsl
business for M&S and remain committed
toit

These changes show that we're wiling to
adapt to ensure we're Inthe bast shape for
our customers.
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QUR CHAIRMAN

Cost controlremains a top prionity

Qur cperating costs were up 38%1his

year as we put more colleagues into stores
andabsorbed the costs of our Food store
opening programme. We funded some of
this through our Crunch Costs imtiative,
which challenged all of cur people to tackle
unnecessary costs, and from simplifying
our Head Office structure Betterbuying
nitiatives, such as direct designand food
packaging optimisalion, mitigated the
currency headwinds we saw on both sides
of the business. The steps we've taken to
transform M&S led to charges of £437.4m
this year These were largely driven by
charges for International store closures
and forthe changes to payand pensions

While profits were significantly down,
Icontinue to believe in good cash
management, a robust balance sheet and
aprogressive dividend policy We know how
important our dividend is to shareholders
bigand small.

Read more in the Financial Review on p26-29

Our Chairman, Robert Swannell has
announced that he will step down in
September. Onbehalf of allof us at M&S, |
wish Robert well. He has overseen significant
change at M&S, Cur infrastructure now
provides a strong platform for growth, and
Robert has been instrurmentalin driving
shareholder engagement, good governance
and succession planning He has alsc been

a tremendous support to me personally
over the last year. On behalf of the whole
business, L would ke (o welcome Robert's
successer, Archie Norman.

LOOKING AHEAD

My pricrities for the year aheadare to
continue torecover and grow Clothing &
Home and to grow our Food business [ will
also establish the foundations for new
paths to growth Inthe UK, these will focus
onareas of market share cpportunityin
Kidswear, Footwear, Home and Beauty
Internationally, we will explore new territories
with our franchise partners, And hwill continue
to develop talent within the organisation.

It continues to be a privilege to lead this
fantastic company. Qur job as aretaileris
quite simple we must offer customers great
products at the right price in physical or
digital environments that they enjoy, with
great service If we do this, they willcome
back to us formere

OPERATING COMMITTEE

But to dothis year-in, year-out, we rmust
constantly adapt We must adapt bothtostay
in tune with our customers needs and in the
way we sell our products. Shopping habits
won't stop changing, so neither must we.

As Chief Executive, | want to make ME&S agile
andflexible enoughto change with our
customers [ want to see the end of big
transformation pregrammes followed by
years of standing still, followed by yet more
transformaticn. Remaining relevant should
be a comtinuous procoss.

By simplif ying how we do things and really
listening to our customers, we've already
become more agiie this year By rationalising
our Clothing ranges and reshaping our store
portfolio, we've started to put this agility
into practice. Indoing this, we've built a solid
foundation for growth, We must never stop
adapling our business for our customers

Nothing makes me prouder of the work our
teams do than hearing from our customers
andwhat they love about ME&S. Those
customersare the reasonwere hore They
will remain at the heart of everything we do.

STEVE ROWECH EFFXZCUTIVE

Steve Rowe
Chuef Execulive

Helen Weir
Cr ef Finance Officer

Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne
Execurive Direcror, Custorrer,

Marketing & M&S com

Andy Adcock
Food Director

Sacha Berendji
Retal Director

Paul Friston
Internat:onal Direcor

Dominic Fry

Relations Directar

Jo Jenkins
Womenswear, Lingerie &
Beauty Director

Amanda Mellor
Croup Secrelary and Head
of Corporate Covernance

Communications & Investor

David Guise
Hurman Rescurces D rector

OUR BUSINESS

QUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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QUR BUSINESS

VALUE

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

We create long-term value through
the effective use of our resources and
relationships. We manage these in line
with our core values of Inspiration,
Innovation, integrity and in Touch,

These values influence how we behave
and they run through everything we

do - they make the M&S difference:;
making every moment special through
the products and services we offer our
customers in the UK and internationally.

OUR RESOURCES & RELATIONSHIPS

FINANCIAL

Cenerating returns for our stakeholders
through cffective management
of our financial resources

OUR PRODUCTS & CHANNELS

Maintaining our channels and supply
chamn infrastructure to meet
custormer demand

QUR INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL

Strengthenmmg our brand through
creation and protectionof our

THE M&S DIFFERENCE

intellectual property

1 LISTEN & RESPOND

Activities: Our customers are al the heart
of everything we do,and our strategy
todayis more customer-focused than ever
before, By understanding what drives their
behaviour, both within M&S and externally,
we can ensure we work to deliver the
product s and experiences that customers
want This yoar we strengthened the data
and analytics team wathin cur Customer
Insight Unit (CiU), which gathers and
interprets custorner data, aswellas a
wealth of external sources. The ClUthen
ensures that its insights are used across
our business units Through the CIU, we can
understand each customer's needs and
relationship with M&S ~ wherover and
however they shop

Outcome: By listening to customers and
responding towhat they tell us, we can
creale products and shopping expericnces
that arerelevant to them

2 STRATEGY & PLANNING

Activities: Cfficient implementation of our
strateqy is key. This year, changes to our
organisational structure saw us streamline
oursenior rmanagement team and bring
each channel’s merchandising operations
together, increasing efficiency. We alsc
revised our operating model, which will
give our two business units - Clothing &
Home and Food - clear profil and loss
account ability, Through our Smarter
Working programnme, we Crealed a new
technology hub which will rolt-out
signdicant technology improverments
toncrease our digital savviness across
thebusiness

QOutcome: Successfully implementing our
strategy allows us tommprove our inancial
performance throughincreased profits
and strengthened cash flow.

3 DEVELOP & DESIGN

Activities: By fostering talent and
encouraging entrepreneurialism among
our people, we can continue to develop
high quality products for our customers.
Our product developers are expertsintheir
fiolds, whether they are food technologists
or experienced tailors, Our food innovation
sels us apart and with talent ranging from
Michelin-trained chefs to Masters of Wine,
cur Foodteamis among the bestinthe
business We now design 68% of cur
clothing ranges in-house and buy our
clothes by product category rather than
sub-brand,

Qutcome: The talent in our Food team
underpins the innovation that our
customers love By developingand
designing clothing in-house, we have
reduced product protiferation, designed
ranges charactensed by a more consistent
cotour palette and refined our guality
throughimproved fit, upgraded fabric
and betler finishes




4 SOURCE & BUY

Activities: Astrong, ethical supply chainis
crucialin creating sustainable value. We work
with our supptiers to ensure continuous
socialand environmental improverment,
whether it relates to sourcing cotion or
fishing rnore sustainably. We are committed
to being more transparent aboul our supply
chains, and our intcractive Supplier Map
detaits ail the clothing, home, beauty and
food factories that supply M&S. AlL 3,000 of
our suppliers must adhere Lo our Clobal
Sourcing Principtes, which cover working
conditions and workers rights We comply
with the Groceries Supply Code of Praclice
{CSCCP) and help build globat approaches
Lo ethycalsourcing through organisations
such as the Consumer Goods Forum.

Outcome: An effective sourcing strategy
creates sustainable value by driving
efficicncies and margin improvement,
while using our scale to deliver great
quality at cvery price point
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FIND OUT MORE

Read about haow our business model
creates value on p14-15

Read about how our
business model works on p16-17

OUR BUSINESS

QUR RESOURCES & RELATIONSHIPS

QUR PEOPLE

Developing our employees
and their knowledge

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Building and nurturingrelationships with
our customers and suppliers, andinthe
communities in which we operate

NATURAL RESQURCES

Sourcngresponsibly and using
naturalresources efficiently

S BRAND & SELL

Activities: We constantly evolve how we sell
our products to suit customers' changing
lifestyles. Custorners today are increasingly
leoking for deeper engagement with brands,
they wanl richer and more meaningfut
experiences. They want moments that matter.
We thorefore work across departments
andchannelstocreate great customer
experiences. For example, our stores are now
laid out in product areas, more aligned with
M&S com,and M&S.comisevolving froma
purely transactionat experenceloaplace of
inspiration and persenalisation Our Spend

It Wellcampaign reflectsthe unique feelng
that our custormers have about M&S and our
highqualily own-brand product s. Were also
rnaking ‘doing the nght thing' synonymous
wilh the M&S brand by committing Lo all our

products havingaPlan Astory to tell by 2020,

Outcome: Our own brand creates value by
distinguishing us from our competitors and
our Plan A ambitions rmake sustainability
accessible toall.

_

6 SERVE & ENGAGE

Activities: We build on our privileged position
of trust among customers with high levels
of service This year our Making Every Moment
Special employee engagement initiative
saw 70,000 store colleagues rocaive training
in giving better customer service and
rmaking the shooping experience efforiless
for customers. Inunderstanding our
customers better, we can become more
relevant more often. We also serve and
engage with our customers via our Sparks
loyalty scherme Through Sparks, they share
their passions and preforences with us,
sowe canintroduce new services, products
and channels that we know will interest
them We also serve and engage with the
communitics in which we operate.

Outcome: Cood service and engaging with
our customers ina way thatis relevant to
them drives higher sales and custlomer
lovally. This creates long-term sustainable
value across the business.

OUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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OUR BUSINESS

CONNECTED VALUE

INPUTS

CORE OBJECTIVES
I

BUSINESS MODEL THE M&S DIFFERENCE

Our resources and relationships
ACross our business, we depend
upon key resources and
relauonships Lo create financ al,
non-financial and strategic value

FINANCIAL

OUR PRODUCTS
& CHANNELS

OUR INTELLECTUAL
CAPITAL

OUR PEOPLE

QUR
STAKEHOLDERS

NATURAL
RESCURCES

Group financial
objectives

Crow Croup revenue

Increasc earnings
andreturns

Strong cash gencration

See KPIs p18

How our activities deliver financial value

Listen & Respond

Source & Buy

We use comprehensive data to
understand what custorrers want
re buy and how they want o shop

Strategy & Planning

Robust financial management
ensures we are able to continue
to nves: in our business and
delver profirable growth for
our sharehotders

Develop & Design

New iceas fuel future perfarmance,
which .5 why attracting and
developing talent is central to

the future of our business

We cap.tal se on the strong,
long-term relationships we have
with

aur sappliers to doliver efficiencies,
improve margins and drive
profizabil ty wirthout comprormr sing
on the qualily of our products.

Brand & Sell

Qur brand 15 at the heart of the M&S
difference and we create unique
products that drive fnancial value

Serve & Engage

We build and maintain customer
loyalty by priont sing customer
service and hink ng 't to our

Non-financial
objectives

Engage, serve and
retaim customers

Fosteor a skilled,
rnotivated and
engaged team

Scurce products
withintegrily

Efficient and
responsible operations

How our activities deliver non-financial value

Listen & Respond

Source & Buy

Our customers trust in the M&S
brand 15 a key coirt of dfference

We retain this competitive advantage
by doing things N the most
responsible way - we do the work

50 our customers don't have Lo.

Strategy & Planning

We improve efficiency and reduce
waste across the business through
the effective use of our resource
and sourcing systems,

Develop & Design

By cultivating talent and
encouraging diversity we have

We are lead'ng the way on saurcing
products with integrity to exceed
customers' expectat.ons on qual.ty,
safety and sustainable sourcing

Brand & Sell

We have built our brand on rebust
standards of responsibly sourced
products and services

Serve & Engage

We bring our brand to life by driving
engagement and participation

r store, ont ne and through
cormmunity support and
volunreering.

See KPls p12 an engaged and autocnNomous
workforce empowered to put
our customers frst
How our activities deliver strategic value
Str_ate_glc Listen & Respond Source & Buy
ObJeCtlves By analys.ng what our customers Qur progress towards a more
want, we ensure our growth plans flexible and direct sourcing
Drive growth are nght for the future of M&S operation s benef.ling our

Reach customers

Improve profitability

See KPIs p20-21

Strategy & Planning

Our UK store estate programme will
drive sales growth by ensuring that
we have an estate that reflects how
our customars want to shop

Develop & Design

By constantly improving product
quality and choice, we drive growrh
by making M&S more relevant to
qur custorners rmore af ten

Clothing & Horme margins
Brand & Selt

we sell our products through our
owh branded channels, empowerng
us with the ability ro grow and
develop therm in the way that 1s nght
for

Our customers

Serve & Engage

The rationale behind every strategic
decision starts with our custemer -
we want 3 wnrng culiure built
around giving therm great producTs
and serv ce




15

ANNUAL REPORT AMNC F NANTZIAL STATEMENTS 2017

We are committed to delivering sustainable value for stakeholders.
Here, we summarise how our business model drives value creation,
how the process is managed, and how we measure the value created.

RELATED RISK FACTORS
I

ACCOUNTABILITY
]

OQUTPUTS
R

Financial performance risks

Financial accountability

Key financial measures

Financial value created

There are a nurmber of risks
related to how we deliver financ al
value,

I Clothing & Home recovery

8 Margn

11 Profitable growth

12. Third party maragement

See Risk p32-33

BOARD

/T\

OPERATING COMMITTEE

See Governance p34-84
See Remuneration p66-78

Croup revenue

Group profit before 1ax
and adjusted terns

Adjusted earrrngs per share

O widend per share

Return on capial employed

Free cash l.ow (pre-shareholder
returns)

See KPIs p18

Strong profits build
strong cash position

Returns to shareholders

Taxes to government

Increased investment
opportunities

Employee rewards

Neon-financial performance risks

Non-financial accountability

Key non-financial measures

Non-financial value created

There are a nurnber of risks
related Lo how we deliver
non-financial value:

1 Clothing & Home recovery

2 Food safety and mtegnity

3 Corparate responsibility

4 Information secunty
{nctuding cyber)

& Custorner proposinon &
experence

7 Talent & succession
9 Brand

See Risk p32-33

BOARD

/T\

OPERATING COMMITTEE
ADVISORY PLAN A COMMITTEE

/F\

CPERATIONAL PLAN A COMMITTEE

See Plan A Report

Total Food custormers and
average nurmber of shops
per customear

Total Clothing & Home customers
and average number of shops
per custorrer

Employee engagement score

Percentage of products with
aPlan A quality

Creenhouse gas emissions
(tonnes)

Creenhouse gas emissions
(per sq ft)

See KPIs p19

Mamintained and
improved reputation
with consumers

Better trained and fully
committed employees

Stronger relationships with
suppliors and communities

Culture whereinnovation
and agility thrive

Strategic performance risks

Strategic accountability

Key strategic measures

Strategic value created

There are a number of nsks
related to how we del'ver
strategic value,

I Cloth ng & Herre recovery

5 Technology

8 Margn

10 UK store estate

. Prof rable grow:h

See Risk p32-33

BOARD

T

OPERATING COMMITTEE

See GCovernance on p34-84

See Remuneration p66-78

Food UK revenue

Food gross margn

Food like-for-L ke revenue growth

UK space growth - Food

Clothing & Home UK revenue

Clothing & Hor~e gross margin

Clothing & Home UK Like-for-1 ke
revernue growth

International reveriue

Crowthin sales, product
range and presence

Supply chain efficiency

Increased customer base
with broadening appeal

Amore dynamic,
flexible and agile business

International operal.ng pro‘

Incernationsl space growth

ME&S camn sales

MES com weekly s te wisils

See KPIs p20-21

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



1 LISTEN & RESPOND

We have seen a big change in how our
customers shop for healthy food. As
interests have shifted away from dieting,
consumers are looking for ways to live
healthierlifestyles every day and 81% of our
customers tellus that healthis their number
ane concernwhenbuying food. We have atso
seenanincrease ininterestinwheat-free and
plant-based eating, with vegan products
being cne of the biggest product requests
we receive from our customers Thisism't just
vegetarians and vegans —industry data
suggests there s a growing number of
peopleinthe UKwhodentify as flexitarian in
that they eat a largely plant-based diet with
the occasional addition of meat andfish

4 SOURCE & BUY

Qur buying teams worked with our
suppliers to source unusual grains and
on-trend ingredients, such as buckwheat
and cauliflower couscous, to bring
something new and different to our
customers. The Avocado & Egg Nourish
Bowlis the first product onthe UK high
street touse sorghum, a protein and fibre
rich wholegrain similar to pearl barley,
while the Edamame & Black Rice and the
Sweet Potato Nourish Bowds are our first
vegan Food onthe Move salads.
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VALUE CREATION IN ACTION:

FOOD

2 STRATEGY & PLANNING

With a 4.5% market share in the on-the-
go lunchtime food market, we saw an
opportunity for us to add to our Food on
the Move range by bringing these trends
to our customers. We also noliced there
wasagap in the market for vegan-friendly
lunchtime options. Our product development
teamwent onaresearch trip to California,
the home of healthy eating, to getdeas and
inspiration. The big trend in San Francisco was
for noursh bowls - colourful, wholesome
salad bowls compesed of vegetables, healthy
grans and protein.

5 BRAND & SELL

We launched the new range in January,
when consumers are typically looking
for new ways to eat healthily. Our TV and
print campaign, Adventures in Wonderfood,
showcased products from the new ranges
inavibrant and exciting way, and this was
supported by a coordinated campaign

in our stores and editoriat features on
M&Scom, Withits range of new flavours, we
introduced the Nourish Bowls to customers
as part of our lunch meal deal, and rana
special promotion for Sparks memibers with
10% off all Fat Well products, which included
the new Food onthe Move products,

3 DEVELOP & DESICGN

Taking the customer insight, market trend
clata and inspiration from their trip, the
team developed a new range of Nourish
Bowls, featuring hearty, wholesome and
fresh ingredients including edamame,
black rice, avocado and sweet potato.
They also developed our first ever vegan
sandwiches and arange of vegetable wraps,
made with bectroot, pumpkin or spinach,
which all containa porticn of vegetables

6 SERVE & ENGAGE

The January edition of our Adventures in
Food customer newspaper was all about
the new ranges, with information on some
of the more unusual ingredients, tips for
ways to eat more healthily and recipe
ideas for creating healthy meals at home.
Communications went to all stores to
educate colleagues on the new ranges and
we hosted tasting events in 50 stores, giving
customers the chance to try the Nournsh
Bowls and the new wraps and sandwiches
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VALUE CREATION IN ACTION:

CLOTHING & HOME

1 LISTEN & RESPOND

The pea coat is a consistently popular
style and it has joined garments such
as the trench and the camel coat as

a timeless classic.lt’salso astyle thatis
consistently pepular with our customers -
our Winter 15 cotlection featured a classic
peacoatintwo colours that was aninstant
hit and sold out early inthe season As the
market leaderin coats, we know thisis a
style we need to getright

4 SOURCE & BUY

With confidence in the style, we bought
our classic £55 pea coat in greater depth
and more colours. For the more trend-led
£99 version, we boughl 4 inthe two key
colours of the season —navy and khaki.
Leveraging our direct sourcing capabilities,
wa have consoudated seme of our supply
ase, which has enabled us to work more
closety with our key suppliers to source
better quality fabrics and focus on styling
and fit

2 STRATEGY & PLANNING

We have set out a clear strategy to focus
on style over fashion trends, and we know
our customers want a consistent fit that
flatters with good quality fabrics. We also
know we are at cur best when we focus on
what we are farmous for In order to maxirmise
the opportunity, our Womenswear team set
out to create a collection of pea coals Lhat
used quabity fabrics and styling to delivera
range suilable for our broad customer base

5 BRAND & SELL

The £99 M&S Collection wool-mix pea
coat was the star of our Autumn/Winter
marketing campaign, and was available
tocustomersinatl our stores Inline with
our prang strategy to offer consistently
good prices, from our £55 cpening price
point pea coat Lo the £199 100% lambswool
version, we offered great valuc and quatity
at every price point.

3 DEVELOP & DESIGN

Following the changes to the structure

of our Womenswear team, our products
are now designed and bought by category
rather than by brand. Our Cuterwear design
team created a collection which took that
classic shape a~d updated it with different
colours and interesting fabrics. Using our
sub-brands, the learm created distinct
products for our customers. This gave

the range a c.ear point of difference across
M&S Collectionand the sub-brands, from
the coats length, fabric and colour Lo styling
details such as pockets, trims or collar shape
Al E£55, our M&S Collection opening price
point pea coat gave customers a wardrobe
classic at a great price, while the peruna

pea coat featured gold military buttons

and a faux fur collar, as we know per una
customers Like a touch of elegance.

6 SERVE & ENGAGE

We know coats are one of the most
important product categories for our
customers when it comes to determining
their view of M&S. Coatsarequicktotry
on during a shopping trip and customers
want to be able to easity compare the look
andfeelof eachitern For Auturmn/Winter 16,
we made our coats casier Lo shopwitha
Coats destination area at the front of our
stores. The area featured an evert zone
which showcased the key coats of the
seasor, with unstructured coatsinearly
autumn switching to Lthe warmer pea coats
as the weather got colder.

QOUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OUR PERFORMANCE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

GROUP FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES

OBJECTIVE KPI 2016/17 PERFORMANCE /52 weeks Lo 1 Apnl 2017)

Grow Group GROUP REVENUE Croup revenues were up this year,
reventie Total Group revenue, including retail l';la;g%d;:zzsbgg\zz groe:g;w;g\:r
sales for ownedbusinesses and storn und nimOroy Eﬁem in
wholesale sales to franchise partners, ores anda prove
International revenues
Increase GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX (PBT) Croup PBT before adjusted iterns was
earnings AND ADJUSTED ITEMS down on last year argely due to the

and returns

Adjusted profit provides additional
inforrmation on performance, adjusting
foritems consideredto be significant
innature and/or value,

reductionin Clothing & Home gross
profit and the increase in operating
costs in the year,

RETURN ON CAPITAL
EMPLOYED (ROCE)

Returnon capiatemployedis
arelalive profd measure of the
relurns fromnet operating assets

The decrease in ROCE primarily reflects
the decrease in earnings before interest,
tax and adjusted items,

ADJUSTED EARNINGS
PER SHARE (EPS)

Adjusted carnings per share {EPS} s the
profit before the impact of adjusted
items divided by the weighted average
numier of ordinary shares inissue

Basic adjusted EPS decreased primarily
duc to the lower profit generated in the
year. The weighted average number of
shares in issue during Lhe period was
1623.1m (last year 1,6359m}.

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

Dividend per share declaredinrespect
of the year

The Boardis recommending afinal
dividend of 11 9p per share, resulting
inatotaldividend of 18 7p

Strong
cash
generation

FREE CASH FLOW
(PRE SHAREHOLDER
RETURNS)

Free cashflow s the net cash generated
by the business in Lhe period before
returns Lo shareholders excluding the
impact of exchange rates on translation
of foreign currency denominated

cash balances.

We delivered free cash flow up 8.5%
on last year mainly duc to the impact
of reduced capital expenditure,
which was partally offset by weaker
business performance,

1 Toprovige a meaningful compar son wiin [ast year the revenue ang profit KPls are reative to the 52 week period ta 26 Marc 2006
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KEY TO RESOURCES & RELATIONSHIPS AFFECTED
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Read moare in the glossary of alternative performance measures on p133-134

NON-FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES

OBJECTIVE KPI 2016/17 PERFORMANCE
Engage, serve FOOD lcl.)JT”f‘\(EJMFR‘? QEEjé\g:OF Qur conveniert, specal and different
::E gﬁ:?clanmers Total number of UK Food customers SHOPS PERYEAR ;?grdcaonigi continued S\mplthood
peryear and average number of shops 6 ¢ 4 o drawpcusi.l.c?n?é?gifmme continue
percustomer resulting in a purchase 20.51'[1 22.() -
across allUK shopping channels. +U4m Level
TOTAL AVERAZE il >
CLOTRHING & HOME o MERS T e We are stillin the recovery phase

Totalnumber of UK Clothing & Home
customers per year and average
number of shops per customer
resulting ina purchase across alt

UK shopping channels.

24.6m

-0.lm

SHIOPS SFRYCAR

7.2

~5.5%

of our plan for Clothing & Horne

We grew the number of customers
shopping through M&S com but this
was more tnan offset by adecline
N customers in our stores

Foster

a skitled,
motivated and
engaged team

EMPLOYEE ENGACEMENT

Engagementis akey driver of
performance. Our Your Say survey
looks at the key drivers of employee
engagement suchas pride in M&S
and our products, feelings about
M&S as an employer and the role

of ine managers.

81%™

The annual survey was completed
by 80% of employees. Employee
engagement results were positive
and up on last year.

Source
products
with integrity

PRODUCTS WITH A
PLAN A QUALITY

This is a quality or feature regarded
as a characteristic orinherent part of
aproduct which has a demonstrable
positive or significantly lower
environmentat and/or socialimpact
duringits scurcing, production,
supply, use and/or disposal.

This represents animprovement
of 6% Curtarget is to have at
least one Plan A quality in ail
M&S products by 2020

Efficient and
responsible
operations

GROSS GREENHOUSE
GAS EMISSIONS

Total gross CO.eemissions
resulting from MRS operated
activities worldwide

526,000 co.

We achieved a 7% reduction,
mainky through lower carbon

UK grid cloctricily We also
maintained our position of carbon
neutrality (zero net emissions)

by sourcing renewable energy
and carbon offsets.

CROSS GREENHOUSE CAS
EMISSIONS PER 1,000 SQ FT

Total gross CO.e emissions
per 1,000 sq ft resulting from
M&S operated activities worldwide

26 1COe/

1,000sq ft

-10%

We achieved a 10% per sg ft
impraovement, manty through
lower carbon UK grid electricity.
This has contricuted towards the 7%
reduction in total gross emissions.

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS CONTINUED

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

OBJECTIVE KPI FOOD CLOTHING & HOME
Drive REVENUE UK REVENUE UK REVENUE
growth fu -b +H1,2% b “2.8%
£5.6bn £3.8bn
2015/16. £5.4bn 2015/16 £39bn
Definition UK Focd sales including sales Definition UK Clothing & Home sates
frorm our owned business and sales to frorn cur owned business.
our Uk franchisees. Performance As expected, Clothing &
Performance Crowth was driven by Hame revenues declined as aresult of
new space. Qur strategic objectives our strategy to reduce promations and
N Food reman consistent supertor markdown activily However, we are
quality, innovation and convenient cncouraged by some early evidence that
foodin convericent locations. our strategy is working, with full-price
sales up.
Reach REVENUE GROWTH/  UKLF SEVENUF GROWTH UK LT REVENUT CROWT-
customers SPACE GROWTH/ 0 0
ONLINE VISITS ‘0.8/0 ‘3.4/0
Definition Sales growih from stores open Definition Sales growth from stores open
at least 52 weeks and with no significant at least 52 weeks and with no significant
changein foctage. change infootage.
Performance Sales were down slightly Performance As expected, Clothing &
in 2 competitive market Bome revenues declined 3.4% as a result
UK FOOD SPACE GROWTH of gur sthéLegy te r_e_duce promotions
and markdown activily,
0)
+5.1%
Definition Increase in absolute Food
selling space
Performance We increased the reach and
convenience of cur offer by opening 68
new Food stores, of which 38 were franchise.
Franchise accounted for ¢ 10% of new space
growth
Improve GROSS MARGIN/ UK CROSS ARG N UK CROSS MARCIN
profitability OPERATING PROFIT 0/ -105bps
56.1%

32.5%™

Definition Cross marginis the percentage
of revenue retained after costs for
producing and transporting goods.

Performance Cross margin was below
expectations, owing to input cost Inflation
and tugher than anticipated waste in the
second half of the year.

Definition Cross margin is the percentage
of revenue retained after costs for
producing and transporting goods.

Performance Crass margin was ahead

of expectations. This was driven by the
improvement in the buying margin

whuch offset currency headwinds as

we continued to deliver benefits from
leveraging our direct scurcing capabitities
Gross margin also benefited from
reduced discounting




Read about cur Strategy on p08-11
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Read more on Remuneration on p54

Read about our Resources and relationships on p12-15

LOOKING AHEAD

MES.COM INTERNATIONAL
TOTA. ONUNE REVENUE REVENUE - In Clothing & Hormne we oxpect a space
i - decline of 1-2%, weighted towards the
-5.6% +10.7 ;s weignte
£836.3m £1 .2bn end of the year. We anticipate gross
marginto be +25 to -25 basis points
2015/16 £7915m 2015/16.£1.1bn as wo sock 1o mitigate currency

Definition Total revenue from the Group's
online platforms including International
online sales.

Performance We grow sales, although
these were adversely affected by the
reduction in promotional activity, Full-price
sales performance improved over the
course of the year as we improved
operat:onaleffectivencss as well as
reduced discounting

Definition Sales from the International
business including sales frem owned
business and sales to franchisees.

Performance International revenues
rose driven by currency translation
benefits. On a constant currency basis,
revenues declined by 0.1%.

WEEK Y SITEV &ITS

8.3m™

SPACE CROWTH

-3.3%

Definition Weckiy visits to our UK
desktop, tablet, mobile sites and app.

We have continued {0 make improvements
to our website over the year end now more
customers than ever are shopping with us
on M&S.com.

Definition Yoar-on-year change
in absolute selling space.

Performance We are re-establishing
our Internaticnal business as a more
sustainable and profiLtable cperation
with our focus on a partnership model.
While we remain committed to our joint
ventures in india and Greece and our
ownad businesses in sorme key markets,
we are exiting owned stores in ten [05s-
making rmarkets We have closed all our

stores in China and we are on track for the

further planncd closures Lo be largely
completed by the end of the first half
of the year

OPERATNG PROFIT BEFORF ACUUSTED TEMS

£64 .4mf13.-l%

Definition Adjusted operating profit
provides agditional inforration on
performance adjusting for items that

are considered te be significant in nature

and/or vaiue

Performance The improvement was due
to a reduction inlosses in owned markets
This followed our decision to exit ten

headwinds with better buying and
afurther reduction in discounting

-» In Food, we expect space growth of
7%, weighted towards the end of the
year as we open ¢ 90 new Simply Food
stores. We anticipate input costinflation
will slightly outweigh operational
efficiencies with a resulting decrease
N gross margin of between 0and -50
basis points largely weighted towards
the first half.

-» We expect UK cost growth of ¢ 25
10 3.5% as a result of new space, cost
inflation and the annualisation of
investment in customer service, partly
offset by Head Office restructuring
efficicncies. Cost growth will be
weighted towards the first half of
the year.

= The 2017/18 effoctive tax rate on
adjusted profit before tax is expected
to be around 21% as a result of the
Scottish Lirnited Partnership structure

= Capital expenditure 1s expected to
be c £400m as we increase the rate
of Simply Food store opanings.

markets and the adjusted charges we took
at the point of that decaision Profits from our
franchise markets were down due to lower
shiprments to our partrners in the Middle East

1 Based on<esiaten FY 16 figure of /4 due toimprovements in data captare and analytics

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERMANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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OUR PERFORMANCE

OUR PEOPLE

QUR PEQPLE

Wo took action this year to simplfy and
modernise our businessnbne with our sirategy
10 put our customers at the heart of
everythingwe do, keep things simple and
work as one team, We reduced the numbor
of roles in cur UK Head Office by 590
alongside moving 400 1T and Logistics roles
outof central London. We also put In place
afairer, simpler and more consistent
approach topay The changes, which took
effect in April this year, saw usincrease basic
pay for our Custorner Assistants to alevel
woll above the National Living Wage and
maove toa single approach for premium
payrments We also movedicamare
consistent and sustainable approachio
pensions for all M&S employees and closed
the UK defined benefit pension scheme to
future accrual. These changes were made
following an exlensive consuttation process
with all employees through cur National
Business Invelverment Group (BIC),

M&S's notwork of clected employee
reprosentatives, and through town hall
rmeetings and listening groups in our stores.
The feedback gatheredin these sessions
directly nfluenced the outcome, which
demonstrates theimportance of BIC

We now have a pay and benefits package
that is among the bestin UK retail, which
moeans we can both reward cur store

MAKING EVERY MOMENT SPECIAL
IN OUR COMMUNITIES

Our people believe indoing the nght
thing, not just saying st. Spark Something
Coodis M&S's way of helping custormers
and colleagues make a real d fference
This year, we took Spark Something Good
to another seven cities, with over 4000
customers and employees volunteering
onmore than 240 projects We're also
sparking something good by working

to beat cancer - our colleagues and
custormers raised £3.2m for Macmillan
Cancer Support through a series of
activities such as our invelvement in

the World's Biggest Coffee Morning in
stores across the country and £2.8m

for Breast Cancer Now

employees appropriately and continue
toaltract the best people to sorve our
custemers. While nc changeis casy, these
wore necessary actons to build arobust
platform for future growth, We ar¢ amore
relevant and agile company as aresult.

Weimplerented customer-facing changes
too By increasing the number of employecs
N our SLOTES, 'we Can better serve our
customers, Having more people onthe
shop floor has had a discernible impact
oncustomer satisfactionlevels and our
poople’s engagement ievels, creating

2 virbuous circle of improvernent, Our

Your Say survey showed thal ernployee
engagement increased again to 81%.1t also
highlighted areas where employees want
to see an improvernent — we learnt we
needto domore to demonstrate the
opportunities for development and this
willbe a focus inthe year ahead.

In November, we outlined a reshaping of
cur UK store estate. Although this programme
isintts early stages, over the next five years
it willlead to change for some of our people.
Ouramis toredeploy as many affected
colleagues as pessible and Lo create more
Jobs as we continue with our Food store
opening programme, Through constant
dialogue we willkeep our people informed
every siep of the way - they will be the first
toknow of any changes that are planned

Our 85,000 colleagues are the heart and

soul of M&S, and we have put inplace aclear
strategy for our People that undergins

our business stralogy. We want 1o develop
andatlract greattalent at alllevels of our
business. We want a winning culture, a diverse
and inclusive workforce, and we want afit and
flexible organisation that altows our people
to flourish By fostering talent in a structured
way at everytevelof M&S—be that onthe
shop floor, in our school leaver or graduate
programmes or at more senior levels,

our people canrealise their full potential.

Qur new Retail Apprenticeship programemc
is a prime exarnple of fostering talent
Launched in May, we will take on 400 retail

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY * =1 '~ ™

BE YOURSELF

M&S has always taken ernployee
wellbeing seriously. We have an
established wellbeing pregramme,
whichincludes a dedicated online
Mental Weltbeing area on our employee
online portal with tools and materials
from mental health experts designed

to support M&S employees andline
managers alke in both prevention and
support We also had a series of activities
bringing inclusion and wellbeing together
under Dare to Be Yourself, with a series
of events led by our expert diversity
partners representing gender, ethnicity,
LOBT+and wellbeing looking at research,
insight and views on the important link
betweenwellbeingandinclusion

apprentices this year. They witl gain
experience in different parts of the business,
including digital, and will finish the
programme with a recognised qualfication.
The programme will provide the first steps
{oa carcer inretail. A M&S we want toinstit
an ‘anything is possible’ culture and we have
great role models inanumber of our senior
team who started their careers in our stores.

A Qur Marks & Stari programme for people
who face barriers getting into work want from
strength to strength, helping over 2,900
peopie, around half of whom were under

25, take their first steps into work

No business can stend stil, we are focused
on continuous improverment and being

an agile and flexible organisation that is
constantly evolving Our long-Lterm growth
will roly on us having talented, dedicated
paople at our core
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QUR PERFORMANCE

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

FOOD

We have had a good year ma d ff cult
environment Szles wereup 4 2% and

our growth cutpaced the market. Over the
year, our market share rose 20bps to 4.5%.

Our focus this year was onbullding on

our strengths of mnovation, quatity and
convenience We made our food more
accessible by opening 68 new Food-onty
stores, taking the total to 636, including 383
franchise stores. Between our three formats
~Foodhall, Simply Food and Food ToCo —
we deliver conventent food in convenient
locations, with ranges tailored to each
store’s location and size and offering the
most relevant choice for our customers.
We continue to focus onrmaking the
shopping experience as special as our food

Constantly curicus, our development team
is always trying to push the boundares of
innovation. Independent tests prove that
we are maintaining our lead onquality and
nnovation. We mtroduced 1,600 new lines
this year, and from festive Secret Centre
Cheeses to our Texan-tnspired Smokehouse
BBQ collection, newness accounted for
aquarter of ouremtirerange We extended
our premium Collections range to more

HEALTHY CHOICE

We want to lead the market on health

by offering customers healthy ways to
feelgreatand great ways to feel heallhy:
We extended our Eat Wellrange,and
added 41 lines tc our Made Without range,
which has trebled 1n size since 2015~
salesrose 4% and 38% respectively. We
introduced a wholesome store cupboard
range with 37 new products across areas
including dried grains and grain pots. Cur
cxpert chefs travelled to Japanto bring
back the knowledge and skills required

to develop anew cotlection of exceptionat
sushiusing traditional methods and
specialist iIngredients. With specially
selected Japanesa nce, authentic nor
scaweed, fresh wasabi and soy sauce
brewedin Japan, it 15 our mast authentic
sushirange ever and customers love it —
we have already sold 740,000 packs.

products for customers looking for
something extra special. We introduced
shoppers to exciting new fruits and
vegetables, including the biggest avocado
onthe UK high street and biancoli,
acauliflower simiiar in appearance and
texture to Tenderstembroccoll We added
14 dishes frarmMVietnam, Thailand, Singapcre
and Korea to our ever-popular Taste Asia
range and offered customers a delicious
fresh mealin 25 minutes with our
relaunched Cook range. Qur product
developers are constantly working to
translate the theatre of restaurant desserts
Nto something our Customers can enjoy

at home - hits this year included our
Chocolate Melting Dorme and Chocolate

& Passionfruit Star

We know our custormers want great value
every time they shop with us. So we reduced
the number of promaotions we ran and
focused on delivering competitive prices
every day alongside simplified promotions,
We upgraded our popular Dine In offer and
our Indian Takeaway meal deals, and saw
sales increases of 7% and 10%, respectively
A basket of our cpening price point

Simply products, excluding milk for

which we pay a premium to cur farmers,

Is competitor price-matched to ensure

we are offering customers great value on
everyday essentials

At Christrmas, weimproved service for our
customers with a new Chnstmas Food to
Crder site and a better in-store coliection
experience - customer satisfaction
increased by 20% We hosted Taste of
Caristrnas eventsin 600 stores, of fering
our customers inspiration and the chance
to try special and new products to help
therm plan their Christras dining.

R Customers are increasingty concerned
about the origin of their food, so mantaining
the integrity of cur food supply chainis
essential to our success. At M&S we pride
ourselves onour strong relationships with
suppliers, from those with large factories
to smaller craft producers Our Farm Animal
Health & Welfare Policy sets out the high
standards we expect of our suppliers, and
we have 3 dedicated team of agriculture
and fisheries specialists responsible for
implementing our agriculture policies
across our supply base. Qur business s
founded on a long-standing mutual
trust between us, our suppliers and our
customers Soif a trusted supplier makes
amistake, we believe it is right to stick with
them, help thernto rectify the issues and,
inturn, make therm a more robust business

R A TRANSPARENCY

Our sustainability credentials are akey
part of the M&S difference and we need
to ensure cur strong clhical standards
remain at the forefront of everything we
do We published our inaugural Human
Rights Report which outlines the steps
we are Laking Lo support and respect
humannghts and our plans for the future,
We were one of first organisations to
report aganst the UN Guiding Principles
on Business and Human Rights Reporting
Framework and the highest ranked
retailer nthe Corperate Human Rights
Benchmark. We also extended the

reach of ourinteractive supply chain

map toinclude Food, Beauty and

Home suppliers

We know our strategy inFoodisthe rght
one We witl continue to make every food
morment special wth our differentiation,
newness and quality

CLOTHING & HOME

Our prionity in Clothing & Horme is to recover
and grow sales. We have focused on
irnproving guality, lowering prices and
streamlining our ranges. Qur performance
15 On an improving trajectory as a result

Sales over the year fellby 2.8% to £3.8bn as
we reduced our reliance on discounting.
We grew market share in Lingerie and
Kidswear, and stabilised our share in
Menswear We removed a greater proportion
of promctions from Wormenswear which
affected market share Aswe continue our
Jjourney of improvement, one overarching
airm underpins everything we do to get it
right. Right product Right price. Right fit.
Right avadability. Delivered with great
service We believe we are on a solid path
to sustainable growth.

Read more about our Clothing & Home
strategy on pQ8-09

We reduced the number of promotions
and lowered prices Lo focus on full-price
clothing sales. As result full-price sales
were up 2 7% We have towered over 2,400
prices since January 2016, particularly on

QUR BUSINESS

QUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



opening price points, SO we are Now
offering our customers better value cvery
day We ran

89 fewer promotions and reduced the
numboer of sales in the year from ning to six.
In 2017, we will reduce this further to four
At the sarme time, wo mcreased the number
of tailared promotions for Sparks members
so that we continue te reward our loyal
customers. By rermoving the noise of
constant promolional activity and by
cutling prices, we delivered more
consistent value and rostared our price
negrity

ana customers noticed the difference.

For example, when we lowered the price

of jeggings from £19.50 to £15, sales rose
by 35% year-on-year. This resulted inan
improvernent in full-price sales.

We arc working hard to improve the style
and design of our products InWomenswear,
this means creating beautiful, high guality
wardrobe essentials, the area for which M&S
1s famous, In one master colour palette

We know fit is one of the most important
measures of quality for our customers,
sowe reviewed and updaled our block
patterns to ensure that everything from
exactly where we put dartsto the
measurements on a neckline means we

are offering a consistent, goodfit InMen's
formalwear, we reduced the number of fits
from six to four while increasing the range of
styles, colours and sizes This gave clarity to
shoppersand customer feedback measures
onquality, fit and style were allup on the
previous year

Some of our customers told us that M&S
hadbecome toc difficult to shop i, with
too much proeduct duplication leading to
confusion about the sub-brands. So we
arc streamlining our ranges by cutting the
numitser of sub-brands we sell; Indigo in
Womenswear and Collezione and North
CoastinMenswear are being phased out
We alsotrimmed the number of clothing
lines we offer by 12% At the same time, we
have increased the depth of our buys and
improvedavailabiity across all Clothing &
Home departments. The result was more
censistent ranges with better size and
colour availability

His now a year since we changed the
structure of our Womenswear team to
focus onproguct categories rather than
brands. We have also simplified how wo work
in Menswear, with an even greater focus on
product categories that reflects how aur
rmale customers shop Sorme 68% of our
products are now designed in-house and
our simplified structure means our buying
teams across Clothing & Home can work
inamore ccllaborative way Not only does
this remove duplication and allow greater
coordinationin our pricing architociure, but,
it eads to efficiencies In our supply base We
can focus on working with our best supplicrs
and buy bigger volumes and better guality
fabrics through fower factores

R Curimproved margin performance 1s
aresult of betler sourcing and less reliance
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OUR PERFORMANCE CONTINUED

on promaotions Whilst there s ansk that
rising sourcing costs willimpact margin
growth, our efficient buying operation and
strong focus on costs will help mitigate this.

We increased our focus onproduct
categories for which we are best known, such
as Lingernie, Schoolwear, Bedcing and Bath,
which resulledin market share growtlhin

alt these categoeries. We know where our
strengths licand these categories provide
opportunitiecs for growth, From our
credibiityin Food, we will grow our Cooking
& Dining departments, We will capitalise on
our nurmber one market share positionin
Schoolwear to grow our school shoes market
share We also have a great opportunity in
Beauty - we sold 210,000 of our innovative
Beauty Advent Calendar in just two weoks,
highlighting the success of offering
something different tc our customers.

Custormners areresponding positively lo
these changes As we move through
recovery to growth, we will continueto

lsten te our customers and to focus on
contemporary style and wardrobe essentials
withbetler products, prices and availability.

INTERNATIONAL

This year we announced changes toour
International operations that will build a
more sustainable, profitable and custormer-
focused International business for M&S.

International revenues were broadly flat at
-0.1% at constant currency (Up 107% on
areported basis) while adiusted profits grow
15.4% to £64.4m However, performance
varied across different parts of thebusiness.
While our franchise business made aprofit
of £819m, our ownedbusiness was loss-
making ina number of markets. Inour
franchise business, revenues from
shipments ta our partners dectined by 3%,
duetolower shipments to the Middle East
as aresult of the weak retailmarket in
theregion, zlthough there was better
rmornentum in the second half of the

year Shipments to our European partners
increased, driven by new Food stare
openings in France, while shipments to Asia
alsobenefitted from the expansion of our
Food business and new store openings.

Aswe announced in November, our now
strategy willput our International business
onamore sustainable footing by focusing
onour partnershipmodels. Internationat
opportunities for growth remain in markots
where M&S's unigue offer resonates with
customers The action we are taking will
make us more cuslomer- and partner-
focused, driving sustainable profit growth
overseasinacapital-light way.

Qur decision to oxit ownedstores inten
markets witl result inthe closure of 53 stores,
the last of which s expectedto shut this
autumn The affected businesses were loss-
making and in markets where thereis imited
opportunity for growth. These closures
resulted in charges of £130.5m, which
significantly impacted profits this ycar.

We also simnplified our oversess

OVERSEAS GROWTH

In April we opened our now flagship store
in Doha with curlargest franchise partner,
Al-Futtaim. The 46,000 5q fL storeinthe
Doha Festival City Mall sells fresh food for
the first timein Qatar It also fealures our
largest international Lingerie department,
an in-store bakery and a table-waited M&S
Café, which serves British classics like fish
and chips and afterncon tea The storeis
the 28th M&S store in the Culfand the
thirdinthecity.

multichannel strategy, closing websites
invery small markets and shiftingmore
focus on leveraging our M&S com platform
and e-commerce distribution centre to
fulfilinternational orders.

We've simplfied our International business
and remain committed to cur international
ambitions We still sell our products from
Dublin to Dubkai and from Sydney to San
Francisco. After the reorganisation, we will
trade in 50 markets with over 400 stores and
anontine presence In 25 markets We are just
as focused on our customers internationally
asweareinthe UK-international customer
satisfaction levels have risen significantly
year-on-year. The changes will allow us to
play to our strengths in markets where

we have strong brand awarcress, an
established store estate and aloyal
customer base. Coing forward, we will
continue to expand with our trusted
franchise partners, enabling us to leverage
their scale, infrastructure andlecal
expertise. We will focus on our succassful
joint ventures in India, where like-for-Uke
clothing sales grew 9%, and Crecce, where
sales were up 3% on a constant currency
basis. We alsoremain committed to our
established owned business in the Republic
of Ireland, which thig year was affected by
our strategy Lo reduce promotions and
discounting We will expand our popular
franchised Food business in France,
Inaddition, we witl continue to reach
customers through fully localised owned
and operated websites, via established
marketplaces such as Myntrainindia

and Zalando in Europe and with our
franchise partners.

REACHING OUR CUSTOMERS

I November we outlned plans to reshape
our UK slore estate to ensure it remains
relevant and convenient for our custormers
The changing shape of retaitand the growth
in online has inevitably had animpact onour
space requirements This year alone, online
sales rose by 5.6% onareported basis to
£836.3m (up 49% at constant currency).




We willreduce our Clothing & Horme space
by around 10% over the next five years while
continuing to grow sales through fewer
stores inbetter locations and through M&S,
com. We are alscimproving the customer
experience in store. As part of the
transformation, we willimprove arcund 25%
of our Clothing &Home space. More space
will be deployedio Foodand to growth areas
such as Kidswear and Homea Approximately
30full-line stores willclose, At the same time,
we willopen 250 new Simply Food stores

Lo take our Food business to even more
customers. This will result in us having more
storesin more convenient locations withan
estate that reflects how our customers want
to shop with us.

Qur commitment to putting our customers
at the heart of everything we do has been
brought talife this year through our Making
Every Moment Specialinitiative. It's about
knowing our custormers and listening Lo
what they want. The resulls have seen
customer service satisfactionratings
Improve, and our peopie are energised -
Making Every Moment Special has evolved
intoa moverment within M&S We also made
changesin slore that furtherenabled our
colleagues to spend more tima with our
customers We put over 3,000 extra
employees inkoy areas, we removed cortam
tasks that were taking colleagues off the
shop floor; we introduced hosts in some of
our bigger stores to grecl customers,and
we introduced handheld devices to improve
the shopping experience This technotogy
gives our store colleagues accesstoa
wealth of information that enables them to
spend more time helping cusiomers, from
up-ta-date stock information to letting
themassist with activating Sparks offors

We also rnade our stores casier to shop in

LISTENING TO OUR CUSTOMERS

Qur Easy Dressing Schoot Uniform,
created with customerinsight and help
from thae National Autistic Society, makes
dressing for school easier, quicker and
more comfortable Tor both parents and
children. Popular items include the Boy's
trousers, which arc a2 ‘pull up’style, so no
fiddly zips or buttons, with the care label
inside Lhe side pocket for comfort. After
a customer contacted us about offering
clothing for children like her grandson
who have specialist needs, we worked
closely with her, her grandson and ather
families on adapting and extending some
of our bodysuits and sleepwear upto
age 7-8. The range was very well recewved
and we have since introduced more
products andextendedit uptoage 6.
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Following customer feedback, we reduced
co-ordinated displays and the space given
to sub-brands. Meanwhile we increased
space for destination areas, such as Coats
and Knitwear, and put these to the front

of the store. We reviewed our ranging to
ensure better availability and more choice
Customners rightly want a similar experience
of M&S however they shop with us and Lhis
new approach means the shopping journey
in storeis more alignedto that on M&S com.

Qur drive to improve availability was as
relevant to M&S corn as it was for our stores
and there was a significant improverment
over the year This omnichannel approach
means we can be responsive to how and
where our customers are shoppingand
rmake best use of stock to ensure customers
get what they want.

We have irmproved the shopping experience
across alldevices over the year as we made
them easicr Lo use through a series of small
upgrades and page developments We know
cur customers like the reliable service that
shopping onM&S.com offers — our post-
purchase net promoter scores are at an
all-time high

Ontine shopping often starts with a specific
itern rather than a specificretailer sowe
made changes to our pages to make them
casier for search engines to readand list
This helps attract more onling shoppers

to M&S.com - inthe Lwo weeks leading up
to Easter, non-paid revenue from search
engines was up 29%. We are abgning our
chanrels to give customers consistent and
complementary experences online and in
store. For example, promotionat activily on
ME&S com now mirrors what happens inour
stores Our online toolfor bookinga store
brafittingis usedby over 1,500 customers
aday. Shop Your Way rermains a crucial nexus
between our physicaland online stores.
Two-thirds of our online transactions alse
touch astore at some point ~whether
ordering in store or picking up there Cver
half of all Sparks visits are made via mobile,
making il a crucial sales and communication
channelforus. Locking ahead, we will

focus onimproving the speed of our site,
particularly onmobile and offering a
broader range of delivery options.

ENGAGING OUR CUSTOMERS

R Amid fierce competition,itis vital that our
brand remains relovant Lo our customers
Through our marketing activity this year we
have taken a different approach to engaging
with customers it is an approach built on
what they have told us, rather thanwhat we
want totellthem. It's designed to showthat
we understand their lifestyles and what
matters to them It's aimed at reinforcing
anematicnal connection and at sparking
convorsations about M&S and fresh now
Lhinking aboutl our brand.

Our new marketing approach focuses on
the feeling and emotion peopte get when
they shop al M&S. We first useditinour
award-winning Mrs Claus Christmas
campaign, which had over 22 5monling

views and resulted in high customer
cngagement. Where previous ads have
centred onthe things we sell, Mrs Claus -
the tale of Santa's wife as a skilled behind-
the-scenes operalive —was our first ever
non-product-ted campaign. It aimed to tap
nto people's emotional connaction with
ME&S. Through our #lovemrsclaus social
media hashtag and tie-ins with our Make
Every Moment Specialactivity in store,
Mrs Claus was a key ingredient that Lifted
our Christmas perfermance

Onthe back of the campaign’s success,

in May this year we introduced our new
brandproposition More thana tagline,
Spend It Wellis a call to action, designed
toinspire and enable our customers Lo
make every moment special by focusing
on the expericnces, people and Lhings that
roally matter The campaign represents a
commitment to putting customers at the
heart of everythingwe doanditis the first
we have created based on deep customer
insight WiLth its signficant focus on
customer experience onand offing, it aims
to position M8S as an enabler of a life wetl
lived Thisis also the first time we have
united both Food and Clothing & Home
under a single brand philosophy Spend It
Wellwill sit across all digital channels, stores,
marketing communications and Sparks,
gving our customers a clear and consistent
viow of M&S.

Cur Sparks membership club is pivotal
when il comes to giving custorners what
they want and rewarding their loyalty Nearly
1.6m members joined this year, taking Lolal
membershipte 5.6m Sparks analytics

have given us access to a woalth of Insights
that enable usto be more relevant Lo our
customers We aimto create a personal
relationship with themn, allowing us Lo Ltailor
our offers and experiences. By doing this
we have shown that we can enceurage
people to shop more frequently indifferent
categeries and via different channels,

and devices, thereby creating shareholder
value. We are working on making Sparks
even better Over the next year we will
increase levels of personatisation, make the
scheme easler to use at different customer
touchpoints, and continue to drive shopper
behaviour inways that are relevant to thom

A Since we launched Plan An 2007, it has
sparked some fantastic innovations. iLhas
rmade us challenge the way we do Lthings
and to think differently It has also helped us
to have apositiveimpact oncommunities
The new iteration of Plan A comes with a new
ambition to increase levets of engagement
with our custorners by addressinglhe 1ssues
we know they reatly care about. We have
identified three new priorilies around
which all our Plan A activity willbe based
Wellbeing, Cornmunity and Planct
The launch dovetailed with cur Spend It
Wellcarmpaign, after all, looking af ter the
planet and lving life Lo the fullare part
of the same philosophy

Read more about our new Plan A
commitments marksandspencer.com/plana
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QUR PERFORMANCE

SINANCIAL REVIEW

We believe our strategy to recover and
grow M&S, alongside our strengthened approach
to capital management, will deliver profitable,
sustainable growth for our shareholders.

HELEN WEIR CHIFF F NANCE QFFICER

FIND OUT MORE

See our KPls on plg-21

Read about our operating performance on p23-25

See our Strategic Update on p08-11

See how performance links to Remuneration on p56

This year we are reporting on the 52 weeks to 1 April 2017 compared
withlast year's 53-week year. To provide a more meaningful
comparison with last year, all financial movernents in this section
are reportedrelative to the 52 weeks to 26 March 2016, unless
otherwise noted

During the year we set out our new strategy to put M&S ona more
sustainable footing and establish the basis for future growth
Although we are confident that these actions are the right ones to
recover and grow M&S, they have not come without sigrificant cost.
As aresult,on a 53-week reported basis Croup profit before tax was
down 638% to £176.4m (last year £488.8m)and profit before taxand
adjusted items was £613.8m, down 11.0% (last year £689.6m).

QUR OPERATING PERFORMANCE

InFood, we continued to outperform a challenging grocery market,
with revenue up 4.2% Lo £5.6bn (last year £5.4bn). Driving growth
through our store opening programme, we openead 30 new owned
and 38 new franchise Food stores and increased market share by
20bps to 4.5%. Food gross margin was down 25bps year-on-year due
Lo mnput price pressurc as aresull of the fatl in sterling, and rugher
than anticipated waste

Clothing & Home revenue was down 2 8% at £3 8bn {last year £40bny),
as sales were affected by our strategy to reduce our reliance on
promotions and sale aclivity. However, we arc encouraged by the
increasein full-price sales, which werc up 2 7%, and market share
stabilisation and we are conlident that we are taking the right action
for the long-term success of our clothing business Clothing &
Home gross marginincreased by 105bps to 56.1% as a resull of lower
discounting and buying rmargin gains as we continue to leverage
our direct sourcing capabilities and scale. These factors more than
offset the significant headwind as a result of Lthe decline in value

of sterling, which had a significant impact on our cost of goods.

UK operating costs were £3,390rm (last year £3,266m), up 3.8%,

with the primary drivers being the costs asseciated with investment
innew space and [T, as wo continue to upgrade our systems and
infrastructure (o support future growth.

International operating profit before adjusted items was £64.4m,
up 15.4% (last year £55 8m). This improvement was duetoa
significant reguction n losses in owned markets, of this, £7mis
aresult of the provision for certain onerous leases taken as an
adjusted item following our decisionto exit owned stores inten
countries. Profits from our franchise markets were slightly down
due to lower shipmentsto our franchise partners inthe Middle East
in the first half of the year.

Croup profit before tax was down to £176 4milast year £4888mona
53-week basis) as a result of the significant charges associated with
the implementation of ourrevised strategy This included £132.5m
for International store closures and impairrments and £156.0m
relating to the closure of our UK defined benefit pension scheme
and changes to pay and premiums. We also continued to incur
charges inrelation to a provision by M&S Bank for insurance mis-
selling which this year were £44 1m (last year £50.3m). Of the £437.4m
of adjusting items, £80.9m were cashinthe year.

Further details are on p28 and in note 5 on p103-104,

Cash generation in the business remains strong with free cash flow
before shareholder returns of £585.4m (last year £539.3mona
53-week basis). During the year, we further strengthened our capital
management disciplines Capitalinvestrment was significantly down
aswe have completed some of our larger infrastructure projects
and opened fewer full-line stores than last year. Net debt reduced
by £203 6mduring the yearto £1.9bn,

We issued a new £300m bond in December, in advance of a $500m
bond expiry in December 2017 We rernain committed tc a strong
balance sheet and maintainingan:nvestrment grade credit rating.
Our credit rating is EBB minus

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND IMPROVING
SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

Following several years of investment, we now have the
infrastructure needed for sustainable growth. However, some

of these investments have not generated the returns we had
noped for and some have cost more than they should. We arc

also operating ina marketplace undergoing significant changoes.
While we remain committed toinvesting in the growth of M&S,

we need to do this within a tighter investment framework. Under
this approach, we are already placing a greater emphasis on cash
payback when assessing investments to helpimprove the reliability
of returns. We also plan to reduce the average length of our leases,
giving us greater flexibility, and to ensurc we have a better mix
between growthand ‘business as usual' investments. We believe
Lhis approach will enable us to pricritise key investments while
improving returns to our sharchotders

We recognise theimportance of regular dividends and we are
committed to delivering sustainable shareholder returns. During
the year we returned £377.5m to shareholders, which included
£74.5minthe form of a special dividend. Notwithstanding the
decline in profits but after considering the strong cash generation
characteristics of the Group, the Board decided te maintain the
fullyear dividend at 18 7p (last year 18 7p)
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During the first half, we declared a special dividend of 4.6p per
share However, given the potential cash costs associated with

our strategic changes and uncertain market conditions, the Board
took the prudent decision not to make anadditionat return of
cash 1o sharehclders under our enhanced shareholder returns
programme in the second hatf

Despite the fallin profit, we beueve we have the night strategy in
place to recover and grow M&S and this, alongside our strengthened
approach to capital managernent, will deliver profitable, sustainable
growth for our shareholders.

FULL YEAR REVIEW

52 weeks ended

Within other store costs, new space drove the increase, with
occupancy cost inflation largely of“set by efficiencies and
lower depreciation.

Districution and warehousing costsincreased by £44rm A significant
proportion of this increase was driven by ncreased capacity Lo
support growlhin our business, with anew Food depot in Enfield
and Clothing & Home warehouse in Bradford. The balance was
largely attributavle toincreased food volurmes and inftation

Marketing costs declined by £23m This was mostiyaresuitof a
reductionin activity and the more effective use of our marketing
budget, such as cur Christmas campaign where we increased
custormer views while reducing costs, as well as the annuatisation
of the launch of Sparks last vear

1 Aprilr: 2° Ma;f %h,f&g; Central costs increased by £41m. This was largely driven by an
increase nIT related cperating costs including higher depreciation
Croup revenue 10,6226 10,391.0 2.2 from new merchandising systems. A greater proportion of costs
UK revenue 94417 53248 13 arenowbeing exponsed as we transition to increased use of cloud
International revenue 1,803 1066.2 107 based software services As expected, around half of the anticipated
Adijusted Group operating c‘£3.0m cost s_avings from our Head Office restructunng were
profit 690.6 7776 -11.2 delivored dU”ng the year
Adjusted UK operét\ng profit 6262 7218 -13272 BUILDING A SUSTAINABLE, PROFITABLE,
Adjusted International INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS
operatingprofit 644 558 154
Adjusted profit before tax 6138 6841 03 52 wesks ended
- 1 Apr 17 Z0Ma 6 Change
Adiusteditems (4374) {200.8) n/a £m £ oY%
Profit before tax 176.4 483.3 -63.5  Franchise 314.0 324.4 -3.2
GROUP REVENUE Qwned 866.3 7418 168
o A % - R Retained 686.9 5809 182
roug revenues were up 2 2% (up 1 1% on a constant currency basis). -
UK revenues were up 1.3% in total with a like-for-like decrease. Extt 1794 1609 115
International revenues were up 10.7% (-0.1% on a constant Revenue 1,180.3  1,066.2 107
currency basis). Franchise 81.9 873 -6.2
Owned: (17.5) (31.5) 444
GROSS MARGIN ;
Uk - T2 o Clothma b h - Retained 17.2 153 124
gross margin was 42.0%. Clothing & Home gross margin was -
ahead of expectations, up c.105bps year-on-year. Buying margin Exit - - (34.7) {46.38) 259
increased by 100bps despite currency headwinds as we continued Operating Profit 64.4 55.8 15.4

to deliver benefits from leveraging our direct sourcing capabitities

through retendering orders, and by moving business tolower-duty
locations. Reduced discounting benefited margin by ¢ 5bps on

the year withan 110bps improvement in the second half as aresult
of lower stock into sale and better sell throughrates.

Food gross margin declined -25bps year-on-year, which was more
than expected. We generated gains from our angeing value
optimisation programmme of 70bps. However, these were more
than offset by anincrease ininput costs of 80bps, following the
depreciation of sterling and higher than expected waste.

UK OPERATING COSTS
52 weeks ended

1 Apr17 26 Mar '5 Change
£m £m anlY %
Store staffing 1,010.3 9744 37
Other store costs 1,000.7 974.4 27
Distribution and warehousing 519.6 4754 33
Marketing 162.7 186.1 -126
Cenlralcosts 6971 6558 63
UK Operating Costs 3,3904 3,266.1 38

1 Certa nonoryea” costs have heen reclassified toref.ect changesin
UKarganisat onstructure

UK operating costs were up by £124m (3.8%), with higher

depreciation accounting for £26m

Store staff costsincreased by £36m primarily driven by new space
with the cost of the annual pay review and investments i improved
store service largely offset by business efficiencies.

During the year, International revenues rose by 107% driven by
currency translation, with constant currency sales down 0.1%.
Profit before adjusted items increased by 15.4% to £64 4m

In our franchise business, shipments to Asia benefited from new

store cpenings and expansion of our Food business We saw a good
performance frorn Europe, where shipments increased, driven by new
Food store openings in France, Revenues from the Middle East were
affected by de-stocking and weak retail markets, although the trend
improved in the second half of the year, with a similar trendin profits

Inour retained owned business, constant currency revenues
increased by 2% Cur joint venture business in India performed well,
with seven new store openings dunng the year Sales in the Republic
of relard and in Hong Kong were affected by our strategy to
reduce discounting Profit inretained owned markets improved
Lower operating profits in Hong Kong were of fset by animproved
performance inthe Czech Republicand India

Internationat restructuring costs include £7m of lease costs relating
to stores either closed, orin the process of closing This contributed to
the reduction of losses in exit markets The remaiming store closures
will be largely complete by the end of the first half and we now expect
toreduce the losses in exit markets by between £20and £25miinthe
current year Totalclosure costisrelated to the International strategy
are expected to be at the lower end of the previousty indicated range
at c £150m The cash costs assoniated are expected tobe c £135m,
with the vast majority incurred in 2017/18

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

Croup adjustod operating profit was £613 8m (Last year £684.1m).
UK operating profit was £626 2m
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NET FINANCE COSTS
57 weeks ended .
Cnange
1 Apr 17 26Mar 16 an Y
£m Frm £
Interest payable {100.2) Q91 an
Interest income 6.6 58 0.8
Net interest payable {03.6} {93.3} (0.3}
Pensian net finance income 29.3 153 140
Unwind of discount an
partnership lability {12.6) (14.7) 21
Unwind of discounts on financial
nstruments and provisions Q.1 0.8) 09
Net finance cost (76.8) (93.5) 16.7

Net finance cost reduced by £16.7m largely due Lo increased
pension net finance income as a result of a higher UK defined
benefit scheme surplus at the start of the year. Net interest payable
increased marginally to £92.6m. The interest payable onthe new
£300m bond issued in December as we pre-financed an existing
bond expiring in December 2017 was aimaost fully offsct by the
reductionininterest rates year-on-year

GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND ADJUSTED ITEMS

Croup profit before tax and adjusted items was £613.8m, cdown
10.3% on last year (down 11.0% on a 53-week basis) The decrease
was primarily due to the reductionin Clothing & Home gross profit
andtheincrease in cperating costs inthe year

M&S Bank profits were down £97mas a result of the reductionin
interchange fees, and lower interest bearing balances

ADJUSTMENTS TC PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Croup makes certain adjustments to statutory profit
measures inorder Loderive alternative performance reasures
that provide stakeholders with additional helpful information
on the performance of the busingss

52 weeks ended

1 Apr 17 26 Mar 16

Adusten mems im £fm
Strategic programmes’
- changes Lo pay and pensions (156.0) -
- UK organisation (24.0) -
- UK store estate (51.6) (37.0)
- international store Closures

and imparments {132.5) (31.6)
UK store imparments and ocnerous
lease charges (48.8) -
M&S Bank charges incurred in relation
to the insurance mis-selling provision (44.1) (50.3)
UK Logistics 9.8 9.2
Legal settlements 9.8 -
Otherimpairments - (94 5)
1AS 39 farr value movement of
embedded derivative - (20)
Net gain on acqguisition of joint venture
holding Bradford warchouse - 5.4
Adjustments to operating profit
and profit before tax (437.4) (200.8)

During the period, the Croup announced changes to our pay and
pensions arrangernents within the UK business. We closed our UK
defined benegfit pension scheme to future accrual effective from

1 April 2017 resulting in a one-off charge of £1270m.Inrespect of pay,
we announcedanincrease in our base level of pay 1o £8 50 per hour
as well as the rermoval of a nurmber of premium payrments. The Group
hasrecognisedacharge of £23.6min the yosr inrelation to this.

The Group anticipates making transition payments to emptoyees

inrelation to the closure of the defined benefit scheme, of ¢ £25m
{in aggregate) over the next three years. These amounts will be
recogrised withinadjusted items as theyare incurred.

During the period foltowing completion of a detailed review of the
UK organisation, the Group announced proposed changes toits UK
Head Office structure The changes have resultedin anet reduction
of ¢ 580 Head Office roles, with restructuring costs in the year of
£15.4minclusive of fees. The Croup also announced an 18-month
programme to centralise its London Head Office functions into one
building The Group has recognised a nel charge of £8.6m associated
with this rationalisation.

In November, the Group announced a strategic programrme in
relation to the UK store estate As part of this prograrmme, during
the year ten UK stores were approved for closure resulting in
closure costs of £473m relating to dilapidations, sub-let shortfalls,
accelerated depreciation of fixtures and fittings and impairment
of assets. The balance of the charges of £4 3minthe period related
to the ongoing review of assumptions associated with previously
closed stores. We continue to expect total adjusted iterns related
tothis programme of ¢ £350m.,

The Group has announcedits intention to close its cwned storesin
ten international markets resulting in the recognition of a2 cost of
£130.5min the penod The expected closure costs primarily relate
to redundancy, lease exit and property dilapidations. The closure
programmas are ongoing in allmarkets, with the exception of
China where the final slore was closed on 1 Aprit 2017 International
storeimpairment testing during the year identified a number of
stores where current and anticipated future performance does not
support the carrying value of the slores with a resulting impairment
charge of £90m bengincurred Offsettingthese store impairments
are credits of £70m relating to the reversal of historic imparrmaents
against five stores ntreland and the release of unutitised provisions
oncompletion of the exit from the Balkans,

UK storeimpairment testing during Lhe year hasidentfied a nurmber
of stores where the current and anticipated future performance
does not support the carrying value of the stores As aresult,
acharge of £38.4m has been incurred inrespect of the impairment
of assets associaled with these stores Afurther charge of £9.4m has
beenincurredinrespect of onerous lease provisions associated with
some of these stores

The Group continues Lo INcur charges inrelation to M&S Bank
insurance mis-selling provision. The Group's income from M&8S
Bank has beenreduced as a resull of a further £44.1mof charges
in the vear.

A net credit of £9 8m has been recognisedinthe year inretation
toanupdated view of Lthe estimated closure costs of legacy
logistics sites associated with the strategic transitionto a single
tier distribution network.

During the year the Croug has reached vanious legal settlements
resulting inanct credit of £9.8m.

The cash flowimpact of adjusted tems was £809minthe year.

GROQUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Croup profit before tax was £176 4m, down from £483 3m last year
(£488.8m ona 53 week basis) The decrease was largely due to Lhe
impact of the strategic programmes in the year including the
curtailment costs associated with the closure to future accrual of
the UK defined benefit pension scherme, costs associated with the
closure of cur owned stores in Len International markets and the
UK store estate,

TAXATION

The effective tax rate on profit before taxand adjusted items was
199% (last year 17.2%) The effective tax rate was 34.4% (last year
17.3%) due to the impact of disallowable adjustediterms, The 2017/18
effective taxrate on adjusted profit beforo taxis expecled tobe
around 21%as aresult of the Scottish Limited Partnership structure.
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In 2017, our totalcash tax contribution to the UK Exchequer was
£881m {2016 £857m), split between taxes ultimately borne by the
Company of £423m (2016 £419rmy (ie corporation tax, customs
duties, employer's NIC, business rates and sundry taxes) and taxes
attricutabletothe Company's economic activity and which are
collected on behalf of the government of £458m {2016; £438m)
(1. PAYE employees NIC, value added tax, excise dutics and
sundry taxes).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share decreased by 70 7% to 7.2p (decreased

by 71.1% on a 53-week basis) largely as aresult of theimpact of the
adustedtemsin the current year. The weighted average number

of sharesinissue during the period was 1,623 1m (last year 1,6359m).

Basic earnings per share before agdjusteditems decreased by 12.6%
to 304p (decreased by 12 1% ona 53-week basis) due to the lower
adjusted profit generated inthe year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

52 weeks 53 weeks
ended ended
1 Apr 17 2480r 16 Change
£m £m onlY £fm
UK store envirenment 226 369 {14.3)
New UK stores 75.0 106.4 (31.4)
International 13.4 264 (130}
Supply chain and M&S.corm 46.1 891 430)
IT 10.8 1611 (50.3)
Property maintenance 20.3 796 107
Proceeds from propaerty
disposals (27.0) (30.6) 36
Total capital expenditure
excluding acquisition 331.2 468.9 (137.7)
Joint venture cwning
Bradford warehouse - 56.2 (56.2)
Total capital expenditure 331.2 525.1 (193.9)

UK store environment spend included imvestment iningreasing the
flexibility of curin-store layout in Womenswear, new store fascias
and rebranding our Food halls Spend was down year-on-year due
to completion of anumber of in-store schemes Last year, primarily
in Lingerie and Kidswoear.

New UK store spend was down as a result of fewer new full-line
stores opening During the year, we opencd 30 ownoed Simply Food,
three full-line stores and two relocations compared to 25 owned
Simply Food, Tive full-line stores and two retocations in the previous
year Clothing & Home space increascd by Q9%

Internationat spend was sigruficantly lower as aresult of the decision
Lo exit stores in 10 markets, Spendinthe year was largely focused
onnow storesin india and refurbishment projects in Hong Kong.

We continue toinvest inimproving our supply chainand T
infrastructure although the total spend has reduced as we have
completed some of our larger infrastructure projects. During the

year, we opened a new Food depot in Enfield as well as investing
inour warehousac in Bradford Within M&S com the reduchonin
capital expenditure reflects the move towards customer focused
enhancements which are expensed and away from larger
infrastructure projects

Investmentin [T comprised of upgrading our in-store wifi networks
and investing in additional handheld devices whichimprove

eff ciency and customer service in-store. In addition, as we move
towards more cloud based software solutions, a larger proportion
of costsare now being expensed

Maintenance spend has increased pnimarily dug toinvestment in
more energy efficient in-store equiprment such as ighting.

The procaeds from property disposals mamly relate tothe final

instalment of deferred consideration frorm the sale of the White City

warehouse.

CASH FLOW AND NET DEBT

52 weeks 53 weews
ended ended
1 Apr 17 2 Aprig Change
£m £ onLYy im

Adjusted operating profit 690.6 784.9 (94.3)
Depreciation and amortisation
before adjusted items 589.5 576.8 12.7
Non cash pension and
share charges 110.9 1180 7N
Adjusted itermns cash outflow (80.9) (63 2) (177)
Working capital {9.1) 132 (223)
Pension funding {135.3) (118.4) (169)
Capex and disposals {383.2) (519.5) 136.3
Acquisition of joint venture - {56 2) 562
Interest and taxation (202.6) (206.0) 34
Share transactions 5.5 97 42)
Free cash flow pre-
shareholder returns 585.4 539.3 46.1
Dividends paid {377.5) EO17) {758}
Share buy back - (1507) 150.7
Free cash flow 207.9 86.9 121.0
Opening net debt (2,138.3) {2,223.2) 849
Exchange and other
non-cash movements (4.3} 20} {23)
Closing net debt {1,934.7) (2,138.3) 2036

The reductionin capital and acquisition expenditure was partially
offset by weaker business perfarmance, with adjusted operating
profit down £94 3m Working capital was broadly flat on the year

withareductionm Clothing & Home nventory offset by areduction

increditors Pension funding was up £16.9m due to anincrease
to the UK defined benefit contricutions rate following the 2015
triennial valuation. Additionally, cash payments associated with
adjusted items were £177m higher in the year dnven by the
International strategy

The business delivered free cash flow pre-shareholder returns
of £585.4m,anincrease of £46 1m on the prior year.

The Strategic Report, including pages 30 to 33, was approved
by a duly authorised Committee of the Board of Directors on
23 May 2017, and signed on its behalf by

HELEN WEIRC 4 Fi MNANCE O7FICER
23 May 203/
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CUR PERFORMANCE

RISK MANACEMENT

As with any business, we face risks and uncertainties on a daily basis.
Effective risk management is essential to support the achievement
of our strategic and operational objectives.

APPROACH TO RISK MANAGEMENT

KEY AREAS OF FOCUS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Boardis accountable for carrying out
arobust assessment of the principal risks
facing the Company,including those
threatening its customers, people, values,
reputation, business modet, operations,
safety, future performance, solvency or
liguidity. Onbehalf of the Board, the Audit
Committee reviews the effectiveness of
the risk management precess

Eachbusiness area s responsible for
formally identifying and assessingits

risks half-yearly, measuring them against

3 defined set of criteriz, and considering
the likelihood of occurrence and potential
impact to the Croup The Croup Risk
function facilitates a similar exercise with
rmemipers of the Operating Committee,
before combining these perspectives to
create a consolidated view, Incompiling this
complete risk profile, consideration is given
tornsks that are externalto our business,
core to our day-to-day operations, related
to business change and any other that may
impact achievernent of our future strategy

The principal risks identified by this process
form our Group Risk Profile, which is agreed
by the Operating Committee ahead of
final review and approval by the Board

In addition to this periodic review, key areas
of risk are subject to regular oversight and

challenge by the Operating Committee and,

where appropriate, by the Board and Audit
Committee, during the course of the year.

The directors’assessment of the long-term
viability of the Company is also reviewed
annuatly, mindful of the principal risks
faced Further detail on cur approach
toassessng long-term viability can be
found onpage 31

We continue to challenge and improve the
quality of risk nformation generatedacross
thebusiness, while maintaining a simple
and practical approach. Qur ways of
working with the Operating Committee
have evolved during the year. More detailed
discussion regarding the nature and extent
of our principat risks has enhanced our
understanding in the context of the
business’s risk appetite, as well as informing
our consideration of emerging risk areas.
By completing periodic 'deep dives on
targeted, connectedrisks, we can also better
assess the effectiveness of the mitigating
activities in place and strengthen our
approach torisk management.

RISK APPETITE

The UK Corporate Governance Code
requires Cormpanies to determing ther
risk appetite in terms of the nature and
extent of the principal risks faced and
those they are willing to take inachieving
strategic objectives. Inaddition to
assessing whether residual niskis at an
acceptabletevel inthe context of overall
nsk appetite, the Board has established
aset of risk appetite staterments that
address key risk areas and specific
cperations The statements articulate
risk parameters within which the Croup
operates, supported by our policies

and proceduras Inadditionto ensuring
that our risk appetite statements remain
relevant and evolve with the business,
we recognise the impertance of fostering
an environment where innovation can
thrive. Consequently, there are times
when there may be merit in operating
outside agreedrisk parameters,

if appropriate approvals and mitigating
controls arein place.

The details of our principal risks and
uncertainties and the key mitigating activities
inplace to address them can be found on
pages 32 and 33 We disclose those we
believe are likely to have the greatest impact
onour business at this mormentin time

and which have consequently beenthe
subject of debate at recent Board or Audit
Committee meetings, The year 2016/17 has
been one of change and thisisreflectedin
the year-on-year evoluticn of the principat
risks and uncertainties.

The Company is exposed to a wide range
of risks in addition to those listed Theseare
monitored for any increase in likelhood

or impact and toensure that appropriate
mitigations areinplace.

While our capacity toinfluence external
risksis often imited, we recognise the
importance of operating a business model
that has the potential to flex and adapt

toa changing environment. For example,
the consegquences of the UK's decision

to leave the turcpean Union will directly
impact our businessina variety of ways
While we have already been affected by the
depreciation of sterling, otherrisks are not
yet fully quantifiable, Potential risks could
include trade tariffs, higher taxatiorn and
Limits to the free movement of people; all
willdemand a proactive response asthe
implications are better understood, We have
created a working group to monitor the
changing nsk profile. Economic uncertainty
and socio-political unrest also fall unger
this umbrella of external risk.



We recognise that there 1s significant
interdependency between our key risks
This diagram, based on an extract from
our current Group Risk Profile, highlights
how changes to one risk might impact
those connected to it By understanding
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RISK INTERDEPENDENCY

the relationship between our key risks,

we are better placed to ensure we are
managing them appropriately and to
understand our broader risk exposure

This is especially important when assessing
the Company's long-term wviability

Profitable
Growth

/]\

Customer

Technology

Proposition &

Experience

Talent &
Succession

The following is an illustrative
example of a potential scenario:

In order to drive long-term Profitable
Growth, we need Lo ensure that we
proactively manage a number of our
prnincipal nsks and uncertainties. We must
offer and deliver 2 Customer Proposition
& Experience that is competitive and
relisble across all channels, keeping pace
with changing consumcer behaviours

and enabling us to leverage growth
opportuniics as they arise. in addition,
our Brand needs to evolve with consumer
lifestyles and attitudes, ensuring that it
resonates with customers and remains
relevant as Lhey move from one life stage
to the next. To be able to realise growth
opportunities, we nead to identify, keep
pace with and embrrace developments in
Technology This will enable us to both
meet and excecd customer expectations,
while ensuring that our business remains
innovative, resilient and flexible All of these
aims are ultimately underpinned by Lthe
strength of our people. Through effective
management of Talent & Succession,

we can ensure our people arc best set up
for success Lo dcliver business objectives
as they evolve.

OUR APPROACH TO ASSESSING LONG-TERM VIABILITY

The UK Corporate Governance Code requires
us toissue a 'viability statement’ declaring
whether we believe the Company s able to
continue to operate and meet its liabilities,
taking into account its current position

and principal risks. The overriding aim is to
encourage directors to focus on the longer
term and be more actively involved in risk
management andinternal controls

The Boardisrequredtoassessthe
Company's viabilty over a penod greater
than 12months Theincreased levels of
uncertainty within the global economic
and political environment and the macro-
economic challenges being experienced
within the retail sector, mean the Board
continues to believe a three-year period

is appropriate for business planning,
measuring performance and remunerating
at a senior level. Our assessment of viability
therefore continues to align with this
three-year cutlook

The process adopted to assess the viability
of the Company involves cotlaborative
nput from a number of functions across
the business to model severe but plausible
scenarios inwhich a number of the Croup's
principal risks and uncertainties materialise
within the period of the three-year plan.

We have modelled scenarios which group
together principal risks where we believe
Interdependencies exist between the risks,
in addition to scenarios where unconnected
risks occur simultaneously. The scenario
with the most significant adverse impact
was reviewed against the current and
projectedtiguidity position te conclude on
the Company's viability The assessment
also took account of additional potential
ritigations available in the event of further
downside factors, including areductionin
capital expenditure andreducedreturns to
shareholders The Audit Committee reviews
the cutput of the viability assessment in
advance of final evaluation by the Board

In assessing viability, the Board considered
a number of key factors, including our
busirness model see pages 12 and 13, our
strategy see page 9,risk appetite see

page 30 and our principal risks and
uncertainties see pages 32 and 33 These
have been reviewed in the context of our
financial plans, specificatly the annual
budget and three-year plan The directors
also satisfied themselves that they have
the evidence necessary to support the
staternent in terms of the effectiveness of
theinternal controlenvironment inplace to
rmitigate risk.

Inmakingthe statement, the directors
have applied the following assumptions
inprepanng the scenarios:

- Bonds maturing during the assessment
perod will be repaidthrough our
existingbank faciiities

- The actions mciuded inour planto grow
salesare not fulyrealised crare offset
by lower than expected market growth

= The actions included inour plans to
rnitigate input cost Increases that
we expect are not deliveredin fullor
the input costincreases are greater
thanexpected.

-» The UK government’s notification of its
intention to exit the European Unon will
have adverse financial Impacts,including
input costinflation from increased tariffs
and a further weakening in sterling, as
weltas reduced UK consumer spending

Trne Board's assessmentis that M&Sisa
viable business. The viability statement
can be found onpage 83
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RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Our Croup Risk Profile evolves as changaes in circumstances clevate risk, mitigating activities reduce net risk over time, or as now risks emerge.
As aresult of our new strategy, our business has undergone considerable change during the year, affocting our people and operations. This has
significantly influenced the risks reflected in the Croup Risk Profile, which forms the basis of the principal risks and uncertainties disclosed below.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
.|

RISK DESCRIPTION CURRENT CONTEXT MITIGATING ACTIVITIES
CLOTHING & HOME RECOVERY Early signs of mproved =3 Clothing & Home strategy and supporting workstreams
1 Our future performance will be impacted PErforMmance are Leng seen nplace to drve sates, target market share, control costs

nClothing & Horre following
ongong efforts to skrenathen
product style and qual ty.
Irrespective of this, thereis

no room for complacency and
achieving recovery and further
growth af our Clatting & Homeé
business remans a key prionty

if we fail to meet customer expectations.

As we continue to reassert aur Clothing & Home
credentials, we are focused on ensunng that
product relevantce, pricing and guality meet
customer expectations Meetng our customers'
needs in all respacts is key Lo drving mproved
performance inan increasingly competitive market

and drive profitability

- Manthly monitoring and challenge of delivery aganst
sirategy and performance .ndicators

= Cont'nued focus on product quality and style, nclud ng
adherence to our Clathing Qualty Charter

- Ongoing engagerrent through customer panels and our
Customer Insight Urut

standards, the external
pressures facing the food
inclustry are continually
evolving Fraudulent supply
chamn behav.our, supplier cost
pressures, InNovat on demands
and stringent reguiatory
requirements are just spme

of the contributors to this risk

2 FOOD SAFETY AND INTEGRITY While we set our own exact ng

A food safety or integrity related incident
occurs or is not effectively managed. Our brand
15 based on trust and our customers have high
expectations of both the quality and integrity o°
our food 1Lis of paramount impaortance thal we
effectively manage safety and integr.ty, especially
as we continue to grow our global food business

-» Dedicated Food Technology tearm respons:ble far ensuring
products are safe for consumption through ngorous
controls and processes.

- Long-established store, supplier and depot auditing
programime riplace

= Visible response to emerging customer concerns

= Proactive honzan scanning for future issues, ncluding focus
on fraud and adulterazion.

- Crisis management plan in place.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY Our business values and

3 practices are beng nfluenced
by a breader range of factors

than ever before, including
modern slavery and Ruman
rights. it is essent.al that our
commirment 1o our ethicat
standards remains at the
forefront of our behav'ours,
aspecially during a period
of signficant change.

Qur reputation as a sustainable retailer relies
on our ahility to meet our social responsibility
agenda and stakeholder expectations. Cur
sustainabilty credentals have histor cally been

a key differentator in the retal rnarker, As our
peers place greater focus on th.s and the
regulatory environrment continues to develop,

L s essential that we continue 1o evolve aur
airms, mantan strong ethical standards and
meet stakeholder expectarons

-3 Continued cormimutment ta and developmaent of Plan A
objectwves to altow risks to he identfied, mitigated
and moritored

- Overarch ng governance of processes through Plan Aleadersh p.

= Mature suppler erhical auditing programme, inclucing
independent Lhird party aud.tors, across our Clothing & Horre
and Food businesses.

- Policy on supplier selection processes

-> Bus ness-wide hurnan nghts policy and ownership

= Updated Clobal Sourcng Princples to ncorporate
requirerrents of Modern Slavery Act

= Sagnatory 1o United Nations Clobal Compact pr ngiples
covering hurnan nghis, the enwironment and ethical behaviour

-> Merrbership of the Erhical Trading Inttiative

INFORMATION SECURITY (INCLUDINGC CYBER) Experiences acrossthe

4: corporate landscape have
continued to highlght the real

threat of cyber and physical
atracks The external threat
profile s ever changing,
becaming mare sophisticated
and more unpred ctable.
0 additon, regulatory
respons bilities nrelation to
data protect on are hecomng
mereasingly stringent, ncluding
fhe implerentation of the
Ceneral Data Protection
Regularon from 2018

We experience a major information security
breach. Our bus.ness, and soc ety, continues
Lo be subject to external threats to security —
‘ncluding external hackers and viruzes, physical
secur oy artacks or sens:tive data be ng last or
accessed without authorisation

- Established security controls, includ ng pobicies, procedures
and use af security technoaloges

-> Dedicated Head of Data CGoverniance

-> Data Governance Croup In place

-» Dedicated Corporate Secur.ry team with ongong focus
oN IMProving physical security ervirenment,

- Dedicated Head of Cyber Securnty, leading a tearm of
cyber secunty exper:s and analysts, with 24/7 mon toring
and defence tools

- Third party cyler maturity assessment performed

- Ongong mentornng of developraents in cyber secunty
threats, engaging with third party specialisis as appropraie

= Control of sensiLive data through L mited and monitored
access and the roll-out of systems with enhanced security.

= Specific tearm dedicated to managing security reguirements
for M&S com

o technology Inmeeting
customer needs, successfully
growing our business and
supporting our people means
this remains an area of change
and focus

5 TECHNOLOGY The ever-ncreasing Mpartance

To support future profitable growth, we need
to keep pace and develop our technology
capability. Our business needs Lo .dentfy keep pace
with and embrace developments n rechinology
This will encompass a range of technalogy dermands
dr ven by the needs of our customers, deployment
of tools that promore effective and flexible working
and maintaining an overarching {T infrastructure
that enables resilient business delivery

- Dgreallab in place developing new technology-
enabled solutions

- Proactive simptification of IT infrastructure through clearly
defned rechnology roadmaps for all business areas

= Structured deployment of Srrarter Work ng principles
angd enabling technalogies

- Overallreview o future IT strategy under way

Risk key
New risk Fvatved from pnor year Ne rnaternial change torsk
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

RISK DESCRIPTION CURRENT CONTEXT MITIGATING ACTIVITIES
CUSTOMER PROPOSITION & EXPERIENCE Our bus.ness recognises = Appo nted dedicated Head of Customer Experience
6 o o d tati ill b the need to delver arelable —» Omnichannel approach adopted o drive cons stent
ur performance and reputation wil be and competitive customer experiences onl.ne and in store

impacted if we fail to deliver a competitive and
reliable customer proposition and experignce
across all channels. Notwithstanding the

growrh delvered and expected to continue in

our M&S corm bus ness, we need to ensure that

we meet expectations however our customers
choase o shap or have therr order delivered

propositen across all channels
tokeep pace w'th changing
consumer behavours, drve
performance and leverage
growth cpportun tes

- Proaczve monitar ng of socal med.a to observe and
respond to trends in CUSTOer experience

-» Further ntegration of M&S com functions within core
teams [o drive cans stency across all channels,

- Robust bus ness continuity plans. naident reporing and
rmanagerment procedures n place across all channels

=3 Ongong review o future strateg ¢ opportunt esto
meet custormer needs

akey o ltar of our bus.ness
and ensuring that the rght
people are nthe rght rales
's a s.gn ‘icant enabler to
leveraging per‘ormance

7 TALENT & SUCCESSION Cur peopte continue to be

We need to attract, develop, motivate and
retain the right individuals to achieve our
pperational and strategic objectives. Effec five
talent managerrent 's essential to delver current
and future busness requirements We recogn.se

= Comple' on of tap "er talent review

- Review of cross-Croup talent management processes
under way

=» Third pariy review comrpleted to help support
and develop skl set of seniar leadershup group

-» Targeted developmen: programmes in place

S . . and growth. - Clear l_me manager responsibibty for succession
;rlféI?Jg(?er;z?jgﬁ;P:gtragﬁ;eé?(?e‘?r?;?;frg;al ratent Dlanr‘»_‘ng supported by appropriate people forums
= ' - Ongeing focus on enhanc ng recruitment processes
across the business
MARGIN Ongomg sourcing and - Clearly defined margn targets across the business with
8 . . , cost pressures are placng performance manitored and reported Lo management,
Sourcing or cost pressures impact our margin e ocus onourmargn - Comprehens ve sourcing plans n place for key

performance. While our business continues ¢
face challenging foregn currency headwinds,
other faclors place significant pressure on margin
performance. These include the avadabiity of raw
rmaterals and pricing strateg es in the context of
the overallretal market.

performance and the need

ta further evolve our sourcing
strategies and ways o° working
nresponse o this

producs/suppliers
-» Currency slrategy to actively manage foreign exchange
rate Fluctuarons
- Ongong morutorng of priong strategy nthe context
of the wider retall market
-3 Strong engagermrent w th buy ng teams o communicate
fluctuat ons n raw materal pr ces and fore.gn exchange rates
- Enhanced Clorhng & Horme produc: developmen! system
N place, improving efficiency to leverage marg ngrowth

and leverage cpporturit’es,

our brand needs tc stay relevant
and appeal to cuslomers as
they move from one stage of
fe ta the next We recognise
the importance of ensuning that
the M&S brand resonates with
custormers of dfferng Lfestyles
and outlooks

Our brand needs to evolve with consumer
lifestyles and attitudes for us to successfully
attract and retain customers. We need to ensure
that we recruit, engage and retain custorrers
through the ongang relevance of the M&S brand

9 BERAND To drve future performance

- Focus anclearly defined brand purpose (o Make Every
Morrent Special, connecting with custorers through
our Spend It Well campa.gns wih greater ‘ocus on
festyle and outlaok

- Engagerrent with customers through our Custormer
Insight Un't and focus groups, prov ding rich insighits
and guanT flable data

- Strengthened Custorner Insight Unit leadership.

= Continued nvestren:in the developrrent of Sparks

cntical part of our custorer focus
alongside a fully ntegrated
online offer We recogrise the
mpartance of proactvely
mManaging our UK szore estate

to ensure that our space is
relevant to the cuslomer,

while supparting strong

bus ness perforrmance and
prof-rable growth.

10 UK STORE ESTATE Stores are, and will rermran, a

Wa fail to maintain and develop a UK store
estate that is relevant to future customer
preferences and supports business performance.
As consumer behaviours continue to evalve,

our physical store estate planning must align

to our bus.ness strategy, providing better range
aulhoriy in more convenen: locations, while
gererating higher space productivity

= Fult review of aur UK stare porifol.o during 2016/17

- Mult -year programme under way Lo mprove our estate
Lo better meet custormers needs

= Strengthened property capabilises, including appeintrment
of senior external hires

-3 Cross-business Steering Craup and working groups set up
ro rnanage and morutor the store estare change programme

- Property Board approval process and governance
frammework nplace

— Continued expansion of our Sirply Foed business alongs de
improverrents to the UK slore estate

imnovation and diversification
to secure future proftable
growth for our business

1 1 PROFITABLE CROWTH We rrust successfully drive

To drive profitable growth our business needs
to innovate as well as successfully deliver
additional space and strong like-for-like
performance. To generate long-term shareholder
value, we need Lo ident-fy alternative revenue
streams and opportunities to teverage growth,
while also ensuring that we drive the performance
of our existing products and services,

= Custoreer Insght Uit provides honzon scanning of changes
in consurer behav our

= Review 07 NNovation processes underway

=3 New operating model implemerted Lo drive efficiency and
effective decis on-rrak ng

= Bus ness restructure completed to help drive our business
objectives and slrateg.cams

-3 Ongoing focus on establ shing foundations for new paths
to growth

and effort s required to
effectively manage third part es
As our business model evalves,
we need ta maintan focus on
th's area to continue to drve
commercial and cost benefits.

1 2 THIRD PARTY MANAGEMENT A sigrificant level of expertise

To drive value for our business we need to
successfully manage and leverage our third
party relationships and partnerships. Our
business relies on a nurnber of signficant third
party relationships To ensure thal we continue to
drive value for the business, 1t 's essental that we
work collaborat vely, clearly def ne requrrerment s
and proaciively manage our thed parties

-» Ongong Board-tevel review of key relat onshps
and partnerships,

= Dedicaled personrnel managing key coniracts

- Defined serv ce level agreements and key performance
indicator standards in ptace for key contracts.

- Defined contract governance and oversight standards

—» Strong engagement with 'n-house Legal and
Procurement tearns

= Per.od-c, independent rev ew of performance

The risks Lsted annat romp- seallthose assoc alen withiarks & Spencer and e numerical referencing does not denote an order of priority. Additional r.5ks snd uncartanties not
pressniy <NOW. "0 MANIGRIMEnt, O CUT @ity seemed 10 se "ess ratenal ~ayalso “ave ar aaverse efter t onthebus ness Tnese e sz matenisl niss are kent vview i zase thor kel hond
or mpact should show signs of ncreas ng Furtner nformaticnon the Iinancial nsks we “ace and how they are mangged s prov aga o pages 11810123
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CHAIRMAN'S
COVERNANCE OVERVIEW

The importance of considering a company’s responsibilities
to a broad stakeholder group has long been core to the
M&S culture, values and decision making processes.

ROSBERT SWANNELL CHAIRMAN

As highlighted earbicr inthis report, this has
beaena year of considerable change for the
Company. With the appointment of Steve
Rowe as CEQ, the Board undertook a
comprehensive review of all aspects of

the business to ensure clarity around our
customers and our brand positioning, our
strategy and business model, our people,

our store portfohio, our offices and our assets,

This review, and the Board debate
throughout the year, resulted ina number

of significant decisions for the business. The
Board was acutely aware that these would
affect a broad range of our stakeholders
While we sought to ensure that cur decisions
were taken inaway that was fairand
consistent with our values, we recognised
theimportance of balancing these with the
need to support the long-term future of the
business. The Boardrecognised that the
consequences of its decisions would lead

to significant adjustrents to the business
and o our financial positicn this year, but

we believe thal these were essential to
re-establish the foundations of the business
Lo deliver sustainable performance and
build an arganisation that s fit andrelevant
for the longer term. The Board and Audit
Cormmittee’s debate and assoaated
Judgements are covered on pages 40-41
and 48-51 of this report.

BOARD ACTIVITIES AND
CONSIDERATION OF ALL
STAKEHOLDERS

The tenets of Lord Sieff's words about the
importance of considering s company's
responsibilities to a broad stakeholder
group, whichl quoted earler inthereport
and which pre-date by decades the 172

directors duties of the Companies Act 2008,

have long been core to the M&S culture,
values and decision-making

These were particularly evident in our
deliberations around the introduction of an
M&S living wage and the arnbition to deliver
fairer pay for our store colleaguesin a way
that was true andrelevant to M&S This led
us tc go beyond the National Living Wege
and establish ourselves as one of the best
employersin the market We had significant

debate around the closure of the long-
standing defined bencfit pension scheme,
but recogrised that this was critical to
ensure afairer reward framework for

all our colleagues

We spent a lot of time considering the
consaquences of the closures within our
international businesses to ensure we could
establish a structure and format which
would be stronger and more relevant for
our customers and markets, and a more
orofitable business with foundations for
growth. We also reviewed the configuration
of our UK store estate to ensure we could
ostablish a foolprint to meet future
custorner needs, We debated the necessary
changes and restructurmgwithin our cff ces
to support our future plans {neach such
discussion, the Board carefully considered
the impact of its decision on our teams, cur
customers, the commurities inwhich we
trade, our shareholders, our supply base
and our Plan A aspirations,

EMPLOYEE AND RETAIL
SHAREHOLDER VOICE

We are pleased to have establishedregular
Board sessions for employee insight The
feedback provided during our dedicated
Board sessions by the chairs of boththe
Business Involverment Croup (BICY, which
represents the interests of all our 85,000
colleagues across the business, and of our
Defined Benefit Pension Scheme, was
invaluablein ensuring the Board was abte
to fully consider the views of these vital
stakeholders through the pericd of change.
We were grateful for their candid and open
feedback, which enabled the Board to
appreciate fully the potentialimpact on
those affected

We also trialled our first Private Shareholder
Panel The objective was to give cur

private shareholders additional access

and information, as is provided to our major
institutional shareholders. The candowr

and insights provided by these panel
discussions were helpfulin ensuring we
were listening to thisimportant stakeholder
group The success of these trial panels

ted to the format launch of our Private

Shareholder Panel, which will form an active
part of our stakeholder engagement
programme. Details on this and our broader
stakeholder engagerment are provided on
pages 4410 45 This illustrates how we have
considered, listened and engaged with all
thase stakeholders.

RISK AND CONTROLS

The progress made on our risk debate and
understanding of risk appetite in previous
vears helped ensure the Board's decision-
rmaking was supported by the right
discussions and considerations. The
enhancedlevel of risk debate and greater
involvernent of the Operating Committee
was also critical in ensuring that appropriate
moritoring and mitigations were empeddad
to support the proposals under discussion

The Board spent time debating the market
environment and the potentialimpact

of the vote toleave the European Union

it continues to assess theimplications of
Brexit for our customers, communities and
the business,and the impact of currency
movements on the business and our
supply base

We also undertook a thorough review

of our cyber envirgnment tc ensure that
we have appropriate data and information
governance processas and controls,
ecomrmerce defences, proactive security
and strong ncident managermeant
processes across the business While the
Audit Committee will continue to monitor
business processes and provide assurance
over controls, the Board considers data
governance and cyber to be so sigrificant
that it will review this at least twice a year.

TALENT, DEVELOPMENT
AND SUCCESSION

Inaddition to the strategic debate, the
Board and Nomination Committee also
focused onensuring we had the right talent
in aur business Lo support our plans. Senior
succession discussions have long featured
on the Board agenda, but we took this
substantially further this year Lo include
acomprehensive review of our people




capabilities and specific development
necds against the future requirernents

of ourbusiness The Board reviewod
assessments for over 100 of our senior
leaders inthe business and discussed their
leadership gualities, strengths, areas for
development, and medium and long-term
succession plans to ensure that we

have the nght skills, career paths and
understanding of our talent to support
our future business growth.

As highlighted earlier, following the
appointment of Sleve Rowe as CEQ and

the announcement of our plans to build a
simpler and more relevant M&S, | considered
it was the right time to dealwith my own
successionand for the business to appoint
anew Chairman So,in December 2016,
linformedthe Boardthat lintendedto

retire as Chairman during 2017 after six
yearsinthe post.

lam grateful to Vind: Banga, our Senior
Independent Director, for leading such

a ngorous process for the Nomination
Committee Lo appoint My successor We are
delighted that Archie Norman will succeed
mein Septernber 2017 Overviews of the
recruitment process undertaken py the
Normination Committee and the induction
programme being undertaken by Archie
are provided onpage 39. This programme
is extremely comprehensive and will
ensurethat he has anextensive insight
into our business, our colleagues and
stakeholders prior to taking up his
appointrment as Chairman.

Whenljoined M&S as Chairman I made it
clear that | regarded effeclive succession
planning as avital responsicility for both
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me and the Board. | am delighled that with
Steve and Archic's appointments this aspect
has been successfully achievedin arigorous
way |know that successionptanningand the
development of talent at M&S will remain
very high pnierities of the Beard.

BOARD OVERSIGHT AND MONITORING

The Audit Committee played a keyrole
inensuring that there was appropriate
challenge and governance aroundthe
accounting treatment. of the decisions
taken inthe year and ensuring robust risk
management, controls and assurance
processes wereinplace. The Committee
continues to closely monitor the
management of our cyberand data
governance processes, health and safety
and business continuity plans for our

UK andinternational operations. The
Commitiee's activities, considerations
and judgements are set cut on

pages 48to50

Fairness and pay has featured strongty n
the Board's debate this year. To support
leadership and talent within our business,
the Remuneration Committec has reviewed
our remuneration framework, measures and
targets This review was particularly topical
giventhe Business, Encrgy & Industriat
Strategy (BEIS)Creen Paper oncorporate
governance reform earlier inLhe year. The
Committee held a nurmber of discussions
with shareholders on framework design
during the year. it also revicwed and
updated the Remuneration Policy to ensure
it remains bothin bine with best practice

and relevant to our businoss. It witl be put
forward for format shareholder approval

THIS REPORT'S KEY FEATURES

at the ACM in July 2017 The Committec's
activitics andits considerations on
remuneration, along with cur Remuneration
Policy, arc cutlined in detail on pages 54

to 78,

Inline with the requirements of tha
Corporate Covernance Code, the Board
was independently evaluated during the
year Wewercpleased that, overall, the
Board has made significant progress since
the last external review in 2015, especially in
relation to the quality of Board debate and
decision-making, Board papers and process
The findings of the review and the action
plans for the year ahead are set out on
page 42 of thisreport.

We have had to take some bold and tough
decisions to ensure M&S s set upforthe
future. The Board made these changesas
they are the nghl and relevant thing to do.
From a strong core set of well-established
umeless values, we have sought te ensure
fairness, integrity and ngour with cach
decision for all our stakeholders We
recognise Lthat the business has hadto
deliver asignificant scale of change

this year, but the feediback from our
stakeholders and the early progress we are
seeing encouragoes us Lo continue tobe
bold, confident, remain on the front foot,
and embrace Lhe challenges ahead.

ROBERT SWANNELL CHA RMAN

Overthe next few pages we look at the Board its
role, performance and oversight. As niprev ous
years, we provide detalonthe Boardactivities
and discussions durnng the year (pages 41 and 42,
the actions aris ng frorm these and the progress
made aganst them, We also provide insight on
director ndependence, effeciveness and our
Board evaluat on, success.on planning, and
nductionand ongeing development

Covernance at M&81s animportant elermen: of
our Board enw'ronment. To support how we do
business and how we serve our stakeholders it
reeds to be relevant, authentic and mearung ul
In line w th previcus years, we have used the key
thernes of the Code reartculate the Board's
activitres during the year

-» Leadership and effectiveness —-pages 161043
and 46to 47.

-3 Accountability - pages 30te 33 w thin the
Strategic Report and pages 48 Lo 52 in the
Drrectors Report,

-» Our stakeholders: how we listen and engage -
pages 44to 45

- Remuneration - pages 54 to /8

Infermation onthe governance of our Pension
Scheme s provided onpage 53

Theregured governance and regulatory
assurances are provided throughout th'sreporl
reflecting therr relevance 1o the business. We
pravide nsight into how governance supports and
protects the M&S business and our stakeholders
napractical way Where informat.on would
previously have beenlocated within the Directors’

Report, and has now been 'ncorporated nto
the Strategic Repart, al st of page references s
avarlable within the ‘Other Disclosures' section
on page 79

Every year we review and benchmark our
Gaovernance Framework against best practice.
The framework sets out the roles, accountab Ltes
and expectations for curdrectorsand our
structures This “ormat has been adopted widely
across the bus'mess and can be viewed at
marksandspencercom/thecompany.

UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The UK Corporate Governance Code 2016 (the
‘Code} s the standard aga nst which we measured
ourselvesin 2016/17 Acopy of the Code s available
‘romthe F nancial Reportng Council's webste

We are pleased to confirm that we comphied
with alt of the provisions set aut rithe Code
for the perad under review

To keep thisreporinteresting and engaging,
we cont nue to focus on the key insights from
I he business,hawever, Further detail on how
we comply with the Code can be found naur
Carporate Covernance Statement, avalable
at marksandspencercom/fthecompany

GOVERNANCE SUMMARY

Our compliance with key areas o the Code s
summarised as follows

- Independence Over half of our Board
comprses ndependent non-execut.ve
directors and the composiion of all Board
Cormrmittees complieswiththe Code

-> Senior Independent Director Qur Senior
Independent Director sV ndi Bangs

- Accountability and election Clear saparation
a“dubties between Chairran and CEC roles,
all the directors are to stand for annual
re-elgcron

- Evaluation An externally facilitated parforrmrance
evaluat'on of the Board andits Committees
was undertaken dur ngthe year,

- Attendance The drectors have all
attended anacceptable level of Boarg
andCommitiee meelings

-» Experience The Audr Committee chairman
rmet the specificrequrements wthregard
to recentand relevant “nancial experience
thraughout 2016/17

- Auditor tenure We changedour auditor n
2014/15, ‘cllowing a thorough tender process.

- Non-audit policy This s disclosed onour
webs te along with the Lrmited non-audit
work underrakendur ng 2016/17

- Auditor appointment We disclose our external
auditor appontren: polCy on ourwebs te

- Internal Audit Deta ls on the internal Audit
function are provided wishin thisreport

-> Performance-related pay A signif cant part
of performance-relatedpay s delivered
through shares Qur reward frammeworks
sir~ple, transparent and designed to support
and drve our busness srategy
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LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

OUR BOARD

The Beard is responsible for the

stewardship of the Company, overseeing its
conduct and affairs to create sustainable

value for the benefit of its shareholders.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Robert Swannell

Steve Rowe

Helen Weir

Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne

Charman Chief Executive Chuef Finance Officer Executive Director, Custorner,
tarketing & M&S carm

Appointed: Appointed: Appointed: Appointed:

Charmanin January 2011, Chief ExecutiveinApri 2016 Aprizois July 2013

Non-Exacurnive Direcror .n
Qctober 2810

Skills, competence and experience:
Ropert 15 achartered accountant
and aBarrister He has extensive
governrnent and requlatory
expenence and possesses awealth
of knowleage of many d Ferent
businessareas, banking and the

City, acquired over a 33-year Career
N nvestrent bankng He has
sgnificant experience asadrector
and chairman across varous seciors,
and his leadershipin the area of
gavernance promates robust debate
and dr ves aculiure of cpenness n
the boardroom Robert willret're
frormthe Board on | September 2017

Gther roles: Charrman af UK
Covernment Investrments, Director
of the Invesrar Forum, Trustee of
Teach 'rst, Advisory Board Member
o Sutton Trust and Spencer Stuart

INCOMING CHAIRMAN

Skills, competence and experience:
Stevejoined M&S n 1989 and
progressed \hrough a var ety of roles
within store management before
rmoving to Head Office in 1993 He has
worked in sen.or roles acrass vanous
areas of the business, including
Director of Home, Director of

Retall, and Drector of Retall and
Ecommerce He was apponted
tothe Board as Executive Director,
Food in 2012 movng tothe role

of Executive Drector, Ceneral
Merchandisen July 2015 He was
appointed as CECron 2 April 2016
Durnghus first year in the role he

has la d solid foundations for amore
relevan:, custonrer-centric M&S,
ncluding the repositioning of
Clotheng & Home and the continued
growth of Food More informat.on
about Steve's work dur ng the year
canbe foundinthe Chie® Executve's
Strategic Updoate starungonpage 8

Archie Nerman
Chairman Designaze

Proposed appointment date:

1 September 2017 Archiebrngs
abreadth of experience withan
extensive track recard i retad

and brands. He was instrumental n
transforring anumber of major
British businesses ncluding

Kingfisher, Asdaand Energis. Archie 1s
an experencedcha rmanand board
drrector having servedas Chairman
of TV, Larard, and Hobbycraft and
Deputy Chairrran of Coles Lirrited,
In 2016 he was appo nted by the
Department for Business, Energy &
industral Strateqy as ts Lead Non-
Execulive Board member Further
information about Archie's skolls,
experience and sutab bty for the
role of Chairman can be ‘ound under
Succesyon&Induct om onpage 39

Other roles: Adviser fothe Beard

of Wesfarmers L mited Director of
Target Pty bimied, Charrman of
Lazard and Hobbycraft, Deputy
Chairrmanof Celes Lirmited, Lead Non-
Execu! ve Board Member of BEIS

Skills, competence and experience:
Helen s aqualified accountant,
withover 25 years experence in

the finance and retal sectors, She
brings subsrantial strategic fnancial
experience andaweallh of significant
rezal and consurner experience o
the Board Helenhas strong listed
company experience having been
Croup Finance Drector, Executive
Cirector and Non-Executive Directar
onthe Board of anumber of major
companies Helenis a Fellow of the
Chiar terad Insz:tute of Management
Accountants and was awarded s CBE
for seryices to Finance in 2008

Other roles:Trustee of Mane Cune,
Non-Executive Director of the
Rugby FootballUron.

KEY TO COMMITTEES

Skills, competance and experience:
Patrck brings over 25 years of
extensive exper.ence nthe
consurner goods ndustry

His valuable srategie nsight is
supported by hs experence in
developing and rmarketing brands
globally and broad knowledge of
enhancing business performance
and custamer expernence in
amulti-channelenvironment
Patrick played a keyrole increating
the new Masterbrand markel.ng
strategy across Food and Clothing &
Horre,and continuas tolead the
digialtransformation of M&S and
the global growth of M&S com,
Patrick assurmed overallresponsibilily
for Customer Experience, M&S.com
and Plan & in May 2016

Cther roles:Non-Executive Director
of Brown-Forrman ing

FIND QUT MORE

Audit

@ Norminat on

® Remunerauion
Cormmuttee Char

Full iographical detauls of each

drector are avananle on
marksandspencercom/thecontpany

See p43 for Governance
and Board structures

See pa0-41 for
Baard activities in 2016/17

See p43 for Board roles
and responsibilities
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

RETIREMENTS IN 2016/17

R

BE®

A®

Vindi Banga
Senor independent D rector

Miranda Curtis
Non-Executve Director

Andy Halford
Non-Execut.ve Director

Laura Wade-Gery
Executive Direcicr, Mulli-channel

Appointed:

Senorindependent Director n
March 2015, Non-Executve D rector
nSepterrber 201

Appointed:
Februsry 2012

Appointed:
January 2013

Retired:
12 Septerrber 2016

Skills, competence and experience:
Vindihas exrensive consumer brand
knowledge and global business
exper'ence, acqu red over 33 years
nsenorroles wth nthe consumer
goods ndustry His 'n-depth
knowledge of LK and international
trade and ndustry provides valuable
‘nsight intobusiness and enterprize
across the globe He has strong
exper ence as a board memrber of
ather listed companies and s the
recipient of the Padrna Bhushan,

one of India’s highest cwvibanhenours

Skills, competence and experience:
Miranda's substanual expenence

of the mternatonat consurmer and
technology sectors, and ex:ens ve
knowledge of global industry,
provices a valuable contributon
tothe Board Dur ngher 20-year
career with Lberty,Mranda led the
cormpany's nvestments in digital
d'strbut-onand content operations
across continental Europe and
Asia-Pacific, most notabty nJapan
Miranda w lLret:re from the Board on
| February 2018

Skills, competence and experience.
Achartered accountant, Andy has
astrong f nance background and
signeficant recen: and relevant
‘inancal experence ganed from CFO
positions in global | sted companies
H s exienswve knowledge of the UK
and nternational consumer marker
prov-des the Board with valuable
strategc rnsght Andy camerrber
of the Business fForum onTax and
Competitveness anda Fetlow of the
instiute of Chartered Account ant s
nkEngland and Wales

Other roles: Partrer at Clayton
Dubilier & Rice, Drrector of Kedaara
Capitatinvestment Managers Lid,
Kedaara Capitat I Ltd and Kedaara
Holdings L:d, Non-Executive Director
of Thomson Reuters and GSK,

Cha rmano® the Mauser Croup and
the CBI's Economic Crowth Board,
member of the Govern ng Board of
the indian School of Bus ness

@

Other roles: Non-Executive Director
of Liberty Global ple, Lead Non-
Executive Director of the Foregnand
Commanwealth Office, Trusiee of the
Insttute for Government, Deputy
Char of the Royal Shakespeare
Company, Deputy Char of
Garsingion Cpera, Chairof Afrcan
grls’ educationcharity, Camfed.

O®

Other roles: Chief Financia’ Off.cer
of Standard Chartered plc

@O

Laura stepped down fromr the
Board after five years of service
during which she was instrumental
in the Mmprovemen: and
modernisation of our ecommerce
and multi-channel capabilites

CROUP SECRETARY

Alison Brittain
Non-Execut:ve Director

Richard Solomans
Non-Executive Director

Andrew Fisher
Non-Execut ve irector

Amanda Mellor
Croup Secretary and
Head of Corporate Governance

Appointed:
January 2014

Appointed:
April 2015

Appointed:
Decerrber 2015

Skills, competence and experience:
Alsonbrings extens.ve fFnancial
and commercial experience Lo the
Board, combined with considerable
kriowledge of runnuang large-scale
consumer businesses She s Chuef
Executive of hospiial Ty group
Whitbread, and was Group Director
of Lloyds Banking Croup's Retail
Dnvis onunt LJuky 2015 She has held
anurnber of senicr pos:ihons inthe
financial sector, particularly nretai,
and has valuable regulatory nsight
Alisonhasan MBA fror Cambridge
University's Judge Institute

Other roles: Chuel Executive of
Whtbread ple, Trustee of the
Prnce’s Trust Council

Skills, cornpetence and experience:
Richard brings strong commercial,
Financial, consumer, branding and
global experience Lo the Board.

His extens ve international retailand
consumer experence, plus hesrole
as CEOQ of a global business, provide
valuable insight. Richard has held
anumber of seniorroles at IHC and

1s currently Chief Executive Officer,
arole from whichhe willretire on

1 July 2017 Richard was nregral n
shaping and implementing IMG's
asser-light strategy, which has helped
the business grow significantly since
it was formedin 2003, as well as
supporting the returnof $12 8kbn

to shareholders

Other roles: Chef Execubive Officer
af IHG {retirng 1 July 2017), Covernor
of the Aviation, Travel and Tounsm
industry Community of the World
Econormic Forum, Member of the
industry Real Estate Financing
Advisory Counail

Skills, competence and experience:
Andrew has subxstantial expenence
of the nternational consumer and
technology sectors and hasled the
successful growth of a number of
technology-focused enterprises
over [he past 19 vears. He i3 Executive
Chairman of Shazam Enfertainment
Lirmited, having previously served as
Ch.ef Executive Officer since 2005
Prior to that, Andrew was European
Managing Direcor of infospace Inc
(now Blucora)and fourder and
Managing Director of TDLI com

He was a mernber of the Adwisory
Boardto the Secretary of State for
the Rewiew of the BBC Charter and
was awardedan OBE for serv cesto
she Ohgital Economy in 2016

Other roles: Execut ve Charman
of Shazam Enterta nment Limited,
Non-Executive Direclor of
MoneySupermarket.corm Croup plc

Appointed:
July 2009
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OUR BOARD CONTINUED

BOARD COMPOSITION, ROLES AND ATTENDANCE AS AT YEAR END

MAX LINKED TO
CHAIRMAN ATTENDED POSSIBLE  INDEPENDENT  RESPONSIBILITY IN 2016/i7 REMUNERATIGN
Rabert Swanneil ) 9 Board governance and performance, shareholder engagement
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Chief Executive Strategy and Group performance
Sreve Rowe 9 9
Chief Finance QOfficer Croup Financial Performance Proparty,
Helen Wer 9 9 1T and Clothing & Home aistribution
Executive Director Customer,Marketing and M&S com
Parnck Bousquet-Chavanne ] 9
Executive Director Laurawas onmaternity leave from September 2015 and was
LauraWade-Gery N/A N/A rherefore not expectedto attend Board meetings dunng this brre.
She retired from the business in September 2016
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
vind Banga 9 9 Independent nan-executive directors assess, challenge and monitor the executive
directors delivery of strategy within the risk and governance structure agreed by
Alson Brittain g -] the Board. As Board Cormmtiee mermbers they alsoreview the integrity of the
Company's financialinformat on, recormmend appropnate success on plans and
Mranda Curiis 9 g mamtar Board dversity.
Andrew Msher 9 9
Andy Halford 9 9
R.chard Solomons' 8 9

Thistabe proviaes delails of schedued meetings neld rithe 2016/1/ hinannial yeas
! Richara Solomons was unable to attena e meet ng on 20 May dueto nersona, commirments whiennad been baoked pror to the Moot nbeng resc heduted tor th s date

See Board Activities on p40-4)

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board held nine scheduled meetings
during the year, and indvidual attendance
is set out above Sufficient time is provided
atthe start and end of each maeting for
the Chairman to meet privately with the
Senior Independent Director and the
non-executive drectors to discuss any
rmatters ansing.

INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTORS

The Board reviews the independence of
Its non-executive directors as part of its
annual Board Effectiveness Review,

The Chairman s committedto ensunng
the Board cormprises a majority of
independent non-executive direclors
who objectively challenge management,
balanced aganst the needto ensure
continuity on the Board.

None of the non-executive directors
has served more than six full years
onthe Board

BOARD DIVERSITY

GENDER DIVERSITY 1 April 2017 (as at year end)

The Board considers that allof the
non-cxecutive directars bring strong
independeant oversight and continue

to demonstrate independence The Board
recognises the recommendedtermwithin
the UK Corporate Covernance Code.

It s mindful of the need for suitable
succession, and therefore maintains

a clear record of the time each non-
oxeculive has sarved the Company
andthe skill set that each provides.

See details and experience of each director
on p36-37

SECTCR EXPERIENCE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TENURE

INTERNATIONAL EXPERIENCE
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LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

SUCCESSION &
INDUCTION

CHAIRMAN RECRUITMENT

InDecember 2016 we announced that,
after six years intherole, Robert Swannell
intended toretire from the business in 2017
Robert committed to continue in hisrole
untilhis replacerment had beenidentified
and had joined the business

Following this announcement we
commenced the processtorecrut and
appoint anew Chairman. The search was
undertaken by the Nomination Committee
{the 'Committee™) and led by myselfas the
Senior Independent Director Steve Rowe
was fully involvedin the entire process.

The Committee had a2 number of
discussions to scope out the key skills,
experience, characteristics and
reguirernents for the role. We theninvited a
selection of recruitment firrns to participate
ina selection process focusing ona series

of key questions in order to identify

the appropriate executive recruitment
consultants to support our search, We
received very thorough and comprehensive

CHAIRMAN INDUCTION PROCESS

responses from each firmand, following
further discussions, selected JCA Aside
fromassisting with recruitment, JCA has
no other connection te the Company.

Civenthe public profile of M&S the
Committee did not considler it necessary

to use open advertising for this role The
announcement of Robert’s retirerment had
been made to the market in December and
interested parties were able to contact
either myself or other Committee members.

Astructured timetable was adopted for
the process and regular Committee
discussions and updates held throughout
From a detailed understanding of cur
reguirernents and specification of the role,
JCA put together an extensive range of
potential candidates for the Committee’s
consideration. After much debate, this was
narrowed down toa strong short list for
interview Shortlisted candidates met with
the same memibers of the Committeeto
ensure consistency Steve Rowe also spent
significant time with the final candidates

The Cornmittee members and Steve were
unarumous in their final seinction of the
new Chairman.

On 5 May 2017 we were pleased to
announce the appointment of Archie
Norman as Non-Executive Chairman with
effect from 1 Septermber 2017 Archie was
anidealmatch to cur requirements fora
strong retail background and sigrificant
board experience Heisone of the UK's
most respected business leaders, with a
proventrack record inretall and business.
He has been on the board of public
compan ez on and off since 1986, when

he became finance director of Kingfisher
attheageof 32 He went onto gain
experience as both a CEQ and chairman of
anumber of wellknown listed companies
including Asda and, more recently, [TV The
Committee believes heis wellplacedto
support Steve and the team as they deliver
the plan that is already underway

VINDI BANGA SENIOR NDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

STACE STAGE 2 STACE 3
Understand the Understand the Meet the
M&S business M&S environment M&S teams

Stage 1. Company structure and strategy:
including CGroup structure, history, strategy,
vision, key people, success on plans, Board
procedures including governance framewark
and Code of Ethics and Behaviours; Board
Compr Ltees, calendar, minutes, Board
offeciivenessreviews andaction plans, finances
and performance, operating plans, current
KPls andtargets operational overview of all
business areas key relationships including
suppliers and major contracts. Croup Resk
Profite and our approach torisk.

SENIOR SUCCESSION

Stage 2. Industry and competitive enviranment:
including customer trends, consumer and
regulatary environment ‘ncluding governance and
allrelevant consumer and industry bodies, CSR
environment and sustainatility Sentiment and
reputation: ncluding brand postion.ng and rmed-a
profile, rrarketing campaigns;brand values; analys.
and IMvestor O on, rev-ew of INvestor surveys,
shareregister and vot'ng history, key stakehotder
relations ncluding employees, custormers,

suppl ers,service providers opimicn leaders, an
overview of our remuneration policy and pensions

STAGCE 4
Visit the M&S
operations

Stage 3. Arches prograrmme w ilbe supported by
one-cn-gne meenings with management fram
Clothing & Hor~e, Food, M&S com, International,
Retall, Finance, Property, Plan A, Marketing,
Customer Ins ght Unit, Hurman Resources,
Comrmunicat ons and Investor Relations, Internal
Audit & Risk, Pensions, the Company Archive and
the Covernance Group

Stage 4. He will visit a number of our storeswith
the Retailtearn as well as our distribut.on centre
wththe Logistics tearm He wittatsomeet with
key investors and supplers

The Operating Committee recently
underteok a futl talent and succession
review of the top 120 senior roles within
the business, plus the succession planning
in place for these roles. As part of this,

a benchrmarking review was undertaken
by Korn Ferry” for allrelevant individuals.

This supported our talent agenda
by providing'

- Athorcughbenchmarking exercise of
cur talent versus the external market.

- Additional feedback and insights for all
serior individuals which, combined with
our perspectives, are leading Lo robust
developrment plans for all our leaders.

- Acatalyst for the broader M&5S talent
agenda, enabling us to adapt and
simplify ocur tatent processes for
the wider organisation.

This extensive review was discussed by the
Board as part of an ongoing drive Lo provide
greater clarity and achieve a cormnmon
understanding of talent within the business,
andtobaselinc our talent data at a senior
level While it was recognisedthat there s
still sormne room for improverment before
our talent informationis a true reflection

of our overalltalent health, themesare
emerging that enabte us Lo strengthen

our capabilities in the near term.

Ongoing and effective talent management
15 kay to achieving our strategicand
operationalobjectives andthis is clearty
recognised by the Board, as reflected inthe
Risk Management section on page 33,

There s work outstanding to embed some
of the identified core talent processes
decplyinallparts of the organisation, as
the principles of our new way of reviewing
talent reprosent a cultural shaft for M&S
These changes although not always casy
tomake, areimportant if we are to create
a sustainable, winning organisation
Y Ko Fersys armarke: leacding company that as=isrs
organ satonsinattracs ng,engag ng develop ngand
retaring ther peocle
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GOVERNANCE
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SOARD ACTIVITIES

TOPIC ACTIVITIES/DISCUSSION ACTIONS ARISING PROGRESS
Strategy Dj.SCI.'IS.Sed strategic - Agreea new three-year plan focused onrecovery > Three-year siraregic plan agreed.
priorities across and grawth nClothing &Home and growthin Food -» Detaled mplermentation plans established ang
Food and Clothing =2 Focus on simplifying arganisational structure robusl processes In place 1o manage and rronitor
& Home, and processes therdelivery
-2 Delver significantly greater focus on customers -2 Keyrisks and opportunities igentfed,
and drive mpravements in our brand position
Agreed the strategic = Assessthe opt ro sanon of the Clethng & Home ->» Agreed expedited plan for reconfiguration of Clothung
plan for the UK network, based onpractical and delverable actions. & Home space Lo be achieved over the next five years,
store estate, - Deliver mproved sales and profitability through ~> Agreed necessary actions and cast s assooated
enhancing rhe quality of our UK esrate. with delwvery of the proposed strategy
— Continue todrive Food store roll-out prograrmme ~» Roll-out of ¢ 250 new S\mply Food stores by 2019/20.
Reviewed the -» Review performance and awnership structure of ~» Decisiontaken to exit loss-making, wholly-owned
Company's allInternarional operations. retail businesses in spec fic regions, following
International => Retain our posit onas aninternatonal retater and cormpletion of a thorough consultation process
operations and reaffiem our ¢lear commitrrent to continued growth with colleagues m the affected markets
set strategy for ninternational markets - Agreed tha sale of three stores and head office in
the future. > Develop strategy todel ver a sustainable Internationat Rorman’a Lo anex.sl.ng franchise pariner
bus:ness bullt ona partfotio of profitable markets - Agreed restructure of current franchise modal
toincrease competitiveness in our chosen markets,
Discussed the Group's - Assess Lhe medium-term capitaland funding ->» Discussed the balance sheet strateqy,cap-tal
capital structure structure nlght of the three-year pian. efficiercy and leverage posit onof the Group
and financial - Review the Campany’s cash flaw pos tion, dvidend - Continued strong cash generation and diligent
strategy, including cover and enhanced shareholder returns polcy in management of costs.
capital investments, the context of the wider market and our agreed - Mantained a strong balance sheet invesimens
shareholder caprrat allocaton prarites grade credit rating and a progressive dvidend
returns and the > Continue investing in the bus.ness for growth, policy braadly twice coverad by earnings.
dividend policy. underpinned by strong mvestren: disciplines = Fullyear ordnary dwidend of 18 7p, plus an add:tionat
spec aldidend of 4.6p paid in July 2016,
= Shareholder returns prograrmme put on hold
during the year,
Reviewed our - Challenge and develop our current technological = Conducted afull review of the skills, capabilities,
technologieal capablbiesto enable further business growth systems and supplier landscapes needed
capabilities and = Delver solutons tha: build on the strategic Lo deliver Lhe strategy over the next lew years
debated future investments N technology already rmade, with ~» Substantialprogress made through netiatives
requirements greater focus on user experience, simplihcat.on focusing on simplification, costreduct:on and
and areas for and use ot maore cost-effective rechnolagies. the future operating model
development. - Discussed porentialrisks and mitigating actions
Discussed the = Consider the broader future of and anticpated -> Allrajor bulding projects now complete
logistics strategy long-term changes Lo, logstics and distribution - Proporthionof product handled through sindle tier
in Clothing & Home, and how these might fit wth the M&S business logistics network ncreased,
rmadel of the future - D scussed the key mitiatves ncluded inthe three-year
-» Agree plan ‘or the developrrent of the logistics plan, includng operat ng model, systerns upgrades
network and mfrastructure over the next three years, and asset ubilication
> Identfy opportun ties to max mise the potential -» Robust challenge and discusson around the logistics
of the Company's distribution centres, improvng nerwork review, ncluding planmng processes and the
sery'ce and productavity, key risks and assumptions made
Values Discussed continued  ~> 107 total Plan A 2020 comm'tments -» 64 achieved, & not achweved
progress and —» Revew progress made n 2016/17 and set priortes -2 25 anplan, I behind glan,
evolution of Plan A. for 201 /18 -2 1 commitment canceiled
=2 Straregic priornes for 201718 idenufied
identified = Ersure the Company has the optimal organisational —= Undertaok a review of processes, activities, structures
oppartunities structure nplace to suppor! our business strategy and costs
to imprave our anddrive growth - Progress made inimplementation of Smarter Working
organisational culture workstream to optinse use of office space
and ways of working.
Encouraged strong ~» Actively suppor: engagement opportunities -? Strengthened lnks between the busness andits
Shareholder
engagement reta Linvestors through the launchof qur
engagement  uith investors Shareholder Panel.
and other —» Largest shareholders invited to annual Covernance
stakeholders. Event hosted by the Chairman

- Reviewed ndependent report, from Makinson Cowell,
COverng major NVestors views onour management
and performance

Ensured shareholder
feedback was reviewed
and considered in
advance of the ACM.

-r Speaficissues raised by shareholders tobe addressed
‘N e Charmarr's AGM statement

— Key topics raised by shareholders tobe communicated
together with an update an the Company's pragress
ntheseareas
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P

ToPIC ACTIVITIES/DISCUSSION ACTIONS ARISING PROGRESS
G Discussed the -> Review the Company's mternal policies, procedures - Internal systems and processes updared inting
overpance :
N evolving regulatory and controls nrespect of market abuse, market with new requirements,
& risk environment and manipulat.on and nsider deal.ng prior 2o = Training on Lhe new Market Abuse Regulation
the internal impilementation of the Market Abuse Reguiation conducted at Board level and “or erployees across
governance processes —» Assesscontrols over internal financial report ng therelevant bus ness units
underpinning processes toimprove inforrat on f.ows = Ident-fied andmplemented enhancements to contrals
programmes -» Revew key projects on completion and evaluate andprocessesrelatngto nrernal inanciatreporting
and initiatives. the end-to-end del very process - Undertook comprehens ve pasi-ir-plermentat on
reviews of key proects
Reviewed progress = Canduct anexternally faciltated Board evaluation = Discussed the outcorne of the Board evaluation
against the 2016/17 - Cbtanand evaluate director feedback onthe conducted by an external facilitator, Mon Hague
Board Action Plan. processes, offectiveness and working of the of Independen: Board Evaluation
Board and ts committees -» Agreed 201//18 Action Plan with clear pracess for
ongomng mantor ng over the course of the year
Half yearly review = Assess the effectiveness of the Croug nisk process - Agreed arobust set o Croup-levelnsks and mit gat ng
of Group Risk Profile, - Revewcompleteness and arderng of the Group act’v Les, whichareregularly monitored.
covaring core internal Risk Profile, including key riskrmovermen:s, and — Debatedkey changes nnsk severity and the relevan:
and external risks, cons der approgriate mitigating activ: es coniribubing “aclors, redefining as appropriate
risks driven by -» Ongaing robust debate around sk tolerance = Discussed the potential bus nessimpact of Brexit and
business change and and riskappetire rhe possible act ons to rmitigate the associated r sks
areas of emerging risk,
Reviewed the - Review and assess the sirength of the Corpany s = Under ook a comprehensive, externally fac itated
Company's progress cyber secunity capabilties and potentiatr skan assessment of the Carcpany's cyber securty nsks
on data governance light of the perpetually changing nature of = Keyareas of risk dentledand 'ulure prior tes agreed
and cyber security. potentialthreats - Updated prograrme for dr ving respons ble use
of dara throughout the business
c Reviewed progress - Review cusiomer perceptions of Sparks against = Work underway to ensure the customer insight s
ustomer
of Sparks pregramme loyalty schemes offered by peers gatheredthrough Sparks are used to Inform
and discussed future = Assessoverall performance of the scherme and future business dec sions that generate growth
development. rhe extent to which it drives customer behaviour -> Plans in place o “urther develop and mprove
= Determine the averall vision for the future of the the prograrrme,
programme, nctud.ng growth prospects and
potential future applications.
Discussed brand and = Evaluate nsights from customer researchandassess = Key themes emrerging from customer and employee
customer proposition. recommendations inrespect of our brand positioning.  research discussed,
= Continue to refine our customer underslanding -2 Agreed acl ons [0 IMProve Custamer experience,
withermphasis onour brand purpose of Making Every
Morment Special
Leadership Discussed succession, -»Rev ew the Board's corrposition, dvers.tyand = Wormen compr sed 30% of our Board as at close

& employees

tatent development
and diversity across
management.

success.on plans

- Facilitate the srrooth succession o the Chairman

= Deuver effective and sustanable managerment
of talent pipebnes to ensure the nght tatent s in
ther ght place attheright tirre

> Connnue to support and encourage the profess onal
development of Board mer-bers and senor
management 10 provide therm with the sk lls they
need both today and for the future

o the 2016/17 f nanc.al year.

- Robust succession process for the Charman
completed

= Undertook a cornprehensive review of talent and
SUCCESSs 0N among sen or rmanagerment dur ng the
year, wih clear development plans produced.

—» Progress made nadapbng and simplifying processes
for managing our Laten: pipelines

= Ongoing developrment intiatives ‘nclude the
KornFerry Leadersh p Developrrent Revew, and
Developrrent Centres for Rgh potent sl talent

Discussed employee
engagement.

- Prormote stronger engagement between the
Beard and colleagues across the bus ness

- Evaluaze *heresulis of the annual Your Say survey
‘rom colleagues across the business and qen: fy
areas ‘orimprovemen:

- Recewved adetaled updare from the National Busness
Invalverrent Group (BIC), the Company's emnployee
representat ve body, onits activities durningthe year
and d scusted tsrole im providing an independent
colleague vo ce

-» Discussed colleague sentiment across the business,
nctuding key areas of corncern and the employee
perspect ve of M&S's "ulure opportunities and nsks

= Reaular engagerment with our people across
the business.

Discussed employee
reward and pensions.

= Implement the agreed arrangements for pay and
pensions across the business following the full
review ininated dur ng the prev ous financial year
and cenclusion of the consultation period

= Decis on caken tocease future accrualin the Cormpany's
defined beneit pension schere, following a per.od of
consultation with National BIC on behal” of employees
- Determ nedthe Company’s future approach to pay
with ermphass on fairness consisiency and
susTainab L'ty, ‘ollowing a period of consultation
with National BIG
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SOARD

EFFECTIVENESS

Thisis a perod o crudia
zrd profourd change for tre
Dosiross argizis Fearorirg

to see Pow commired tho

Fead s loolooing hange

ROBERT SWANNELL, CrAIRVAN

BOARD EVALUATION

The asgsessment of the Board was
conducted according to the guidance in
the UK Corporate Covernance Code (the
‘Code’and was laclitated by Ffion Hague of
Independent Board Evaluation. Nerther Ffign
Hague or Independent Board Evaluation has
any other connectionwiththe Cornpany.

STACE 1

A comprehensive brief was givento
Independent Board Evatuation by the
Chairmanand Croup Secretary in Decernber
2016, The assessment team observed

the main Board and cornmittee meetings

in Decermber, January and February

Access to Board papers was provided
electronically prior to the meetings via
asecure portal

InJanuary and February, detaited inter views
were conducted with each Board member.
All participants were Interviewed accarding
toa clear agenda, tailored for M&S Tha
team also met with the Group Secretary,
HR Director, Director of Group Finance,
Head of Internal Audit & Risk, Director

of Retail,audit partners from Deloitte,
PwC (reruneration consultant)and
Makinson Cowelt (independentinvestor
relations consultants).

STAGE 2

The report was compiled by the
assessment team based on information
and views supplied by those interviewed,
All recommendations were based on best
practice as descrived inthe Code and
other corporate governance guidelines

STACE 3

Draft conclusions were discussed with the
Chairman and subsequently with the whole
Boardat s meeting in March, with Flion
Hague present. The conclusion of that
discussion was recorded in the minutes of
the meeting. Following the Board meeting,
Ffion Hague gave feedback on the Chairman
to the Senior Independent Cirector (Vindi
Banga), andto the committee chainmenon
the nerformance of each committee. In
addition, the Chairman received a separate
report with feedback onindivigual directors.

STACES OF THE BOARD EVALUATION

STAGE 1 STAGE 2 STAGE3
BRIEFING & DISCUSSION
BOARD WITH
COMMITTEE
OBSERVATION
10 RESULTS CHAIRS ]
COLLATED,
REPORTED & ACTION
EVALUATED A;I;:ED
ONE-TO-ONE BOARD
INTERVIEWS DISCUSSION®
WITH BOARD

Note: The agave activities ware unaertasen Dy Fhon Hague of Independent Boaro Fualuat on

Ffion Hague alsg attended the Boarg discussion.

BOARD REVIEW INSIGHTS 2016/17

The broad message from the directors
was that Board dynamics and the flow of
inforrmation Lo the Board has improved
significantly. The Board rated itself as
satisfactory inits performance onissues
of Board focus, nsk management, Board
culture, the relationship with senior
rmanagement, meeting schedules and the
Beoard support function. Areas for further
progress included consistency of papers
and management information, succession
planning and people development. As a
result, Lthese areas feature in the Board
Action Plan for the year ahead. When the
review was undertaken, Steve Rowe had
beenthe CEG fora pericd of nine months
The business had been through significant
change in that perod and it was clear
fromtherevicw that the openness in
COMMuNication was a very positive
development. The directors felt that the
Board agenda covered the mostimportant
topics. However, they fell areview of the
management information providedto

the Board would improve the pace of

the decision-makmng process. The culture

of the Board 1s secn as positive and
suppoertive. Board merbers described

it as well-balanced respect ful, open,
challenging and committed However, it
agreed that a greater diversity of culture,
gender and experience might enhance
the Board's composition

COMMITTEES

Board committees were alsoreviewed

and were considered highly regarded

in terms of effectiveness and decision
making Senior managers felt significantly
challenged by the Audit Committee and
commented that the Audit Cormmittee
Chairman s very engaged on the key1ssues

The Remuneration Committee was seenas
effective and considered. Createar visibility
around remunerationis welcomed.

CHAIRMAN

The Charrman is much appreciated by staff,
who feet he Lruly embodies the Company's
brand through his employce recognition
work and his many store visits.

BOARD ACTION PLAN
|

THE BOARD ACTION PLAN FOR
2017/18 WILL ALSC INCLUDE:

- Continue tracking of KPIs and
rmanagement information and their
alignrment withlong-termstrategy

- Continue tracking of post-decision
reviews of major capital nvestment
and strategic changes.

- Continue to drive the people agenda
by creating specific KPIs for people
and diversity.

- Increase the levelofinformal contact

betweenthe Board and senior
individuats and the Board and the
broader business beyond Head Office.

- Review the Board education

programme to ensure the induction of
new Board members s tailored to their
individual skills and experience.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, OVERSICHT
& INDEPENDENCE

ROLE OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

The Board 1s responsible for the stewardship
of the Company, overseaing its conduct and
affairs to create sustainable value forthe
benefit of its stakeholders. In performing Lhis
task, the Board recognises thal to promote
success over the long termit must fulfilits
wider duly to care for theinterests of
ernployees, custorners andLthe communities
inwhich the Company cperates,and whose
supportisreguired Lo create sustainablo value,

The Board discharges some of its
responsibilities directly and others through
its Board committees and through
management. The terms of reference

of the Board andits committees are
included in our Covernance Framework.

The Board agrees, and has collective
responsibility for, the strategy of the
Company. For M&S, strategy means the
development of specific actions aimed at
promoting the long-term sustainable
growth of the Company by meeting the
needs of ourtlarget customer groups,
acress all our product categories and
channels Thearticulation of cur strategy
willinclude agreemaent on how our physicat
andintellectual property and the skiils of
our peopte should be used, doveloped

MONITORING AND OVERSIGHT
|

Protecting the business from operational,
financial and reputationalrisk is an essential
part of the Board's role. Both the directors
and senior management focus on not just
the short but also the longer term and
continue to be more actively involvedin
risk management and internal controis,
animportant part of stewardship and

key to ensuring the tong-term viability

of the business.

The Croup Risk Profile and risk appetite are
owned by the Board. Their compilationis
facilitated by Croup Risk, using business area
risk registers and one-on-oneinterviews
with Board members and business unit
directors Oversight and independence are
provided in the process through the Audit
Committee, which ensures that the risks the
Board include in the Croup Risk Profite continue
toreflect the business’s strategic objectives
Anlnternal Audit planis then mapped to
the Croup Risk Profile, demonstrating where
assurance s provided over mitigaling activities,

and enhanced to create compelitive
advantage for the Company.

The Board delegates the execution of the
Company’s strategy and the day-to-day
rmanagemenl and operation of the
Company’s business to the Operating
Committee. The Boardis responsible for
overseeng, guiding and holding te
account managementin carrying out
these responsibilitics.

The Boardis responsible for ensuring that
appropriale values, ethics and behaviours
for the conduct of the Company are agreed
and that approprialc procedures and training
arcinplacetoensure that these are observed
throughout the Company.

The Board has discussedand agreed the
key values of Inspiration, Innovation,
Integrity and In Touch and these underpin
the required values, ethics and behaviours.

Clearterms of reference outline the full
schadule of matters reserved for the Board's
decision and that of its key committoos

The Board s responsible for

= Ensuring leadership through effect ve
oversight and roview. Supporled by its
principal committees —Audt, Remuneration,

and Nomination —-the Board sets the
strategic direction and aims to deliver
sustainable shareholder value over
the longer terrm.

- Overseeing the implementation of
appropriate risk assessment systems
and processes Lo identify, manage
andmitigate the principalrisks of the
Company's business. Much of this work
is delegated to the Audit Committee.

- Effective succession ptanning at Board
level and for assessing the processesin
place toensure that there is appropriate
succession planning among senior
rmanagement. Much of this work is
delegated to the Nomination Committee.

In addition te the other matters referred to
N its Covernance Framework, the Boardhis
responsible for specific matters relating
Lo strategy, finance, risk Management,
internal control and audit, legal, reputation
and public company management.

These, along with the individual roles of
the Board memibers, are coveredby the
Schedule of Matiers Reservedtothe
Board in the Marks and Spencer Group ple
governance frarnework, and canbe found
at marksandspencer.com/thecompany

BOARD COLLABORATION
]

The Group Board and committee structure is provided below and the reports from the
chairs of the principal committees canbe found onthe pages 46, 48 and 54 Following the
appointment of Steve Rowe as CEQ, the business's operational processes were reviewed
and anew framework implemented, with the Operating Committee responsible for
rmonitoring, managing and providing executive Input to support strategic and operational
decisions to create strong executive alignment on business pricrities and actions
Membership of this committee can be found onpage 1) or on our corporate website,

Although the executive directors sit as part of the Operating Committee to debate

and understand opinion frorm key leaders from the business areas, they are ultimately
responsible for all for decisions on strategy and all non-property investments threugh
Lhe Investment Committee, and capital expenditura for the Croup’s UK and Intemational
property portfolo inline with the Croup’s strategic goals and business priorities through

the Property Committee.

The supporting committees provide oversight and regular updates to the Operating
Committee and annual assurance updates to either the Audit Committee or Group Board
Allcommittees have clear terms of reference and approvalthresholds set and approved

by the Croup Board,

I GROQUP BOARD

T
OPERATING
COMMITTEE —

r
INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE —

T 1

PROPERTY
COMMITTEE

PRINCIPAL COMMITTEES

Audit
Remuneratioen
Norination

SUPPORTING COMMITTEES

Fire, Health & Safety

Business Continuity

Plan A
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS!
HOW WE LISTEN & ENCAGE

Qur rich network of stakeholder relationships upholds the values on which
M&S was founded. These remain vital to building a sustainable business.

Webcasts We have been
proveding live webr asts of
Qul AGMS and pretirinary
and .ntenmannouncemants
far over ten years
Annual Report and
Accounts We go beyona
owr obligations o prowde
anoashc and engaging
wiew Of the DUSINess

Annual CGeneral Meeting
(AGM) Cur 2010 ALM was
wellartendedandallour
DrOpULEL resalutions

Ongoing engagement
Memoers of our senior
management and Investor
Reations teams neld 406
Teetrgs wth 245 dfferent

nshitutions dunng 2015 argestnvesiors

Annual Cavernance Event
The Charrnan hosts this
annual day of dialngue

and debate between
directors sndthe Cormpany s

Annual perception study
Each year the Soardrecerves
anindependent report fram
Makinson Cowe,linto our

Mgpor NVEstOrs views onour
management and perforrmance

Business Involvement

Group {BIC) Engagernent witn
auremp.oyeesis facltaten
through BIG, our network

of elected employee
rapresentatives fror pach

Institutional

were passed, with votes N
investors

mntavour rangng from
0 53% Lo 0T 99%

SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholder Panel
Regulard scussions
vetweentheadrectors
and grodps of private
shareholders

Private

Performance Overview
shareholders

Qur anndal business
overview gesigned and
writtenspecificaly for
the private shareholaer

Director breakfasts
Discuss onsbetween dwectors
ang groups of emplayees from
alilovels within tnebus ness

storeand business area

Listening groups |5 early 2017
our colieagues shared ther

VIOWE GNa range of custormer-
facused questions

Your Say survey QOur
Mareh 2017 employee sunvey
showed thar engagement
Wwas up by 3%

Quarterly Skype updates
Qur quarterly CEQ/CFO
trading updates are
broadcast vig Skype ta our
store managemen: teams

Monthly CEO updates
We have mitraduccod @ manitily
CFO updateto¢ 50,000
SMOOYRes via sotial mes.a

“The main purpose of building
up a great business should

not be merely to make maney,
Acompany has its responsibilifies,
not only to shareholders but
also to the staff the customers
and the whole community in
which it trades. Unless it gives
satisfaction, and even happiness
to all concerned, it will failin

its aimsin the long term’”

LORD SIEFF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN OF M&S, 1564

SHAREHOLDERS

We are always looking for ways to develop
our erigagement with shareholders This year
we introduced our regular Shareholder
Panel, where a small group of private
sharcholdersis invited te participate in
face-to-face discussions with members

of the Board and senior management.

For our large Institutional investors and
investor advisory firms, we continue to hold
our Annual Goverpance Event. Gur 2016
evenl was hosted by the Chairmanand
attendod by the Senior independent
Director, the committee chairmen, Group
Secretary, and a senior representative

from our Plan Ateam.

EMPLOYEES

The Board's engagement with the Company’s
85,000 employeesisfaciitated through
our Business involvement Group (BIG),
anetwork of 3 500 clected employee
representatives from across all parts of the
business. l.ocat BIC teams regularly feed
back to National BIC, whese chairmanin
turn represents the collective employee
voice through regular meetings with the
Chairman and CEC, plus attendance

at our Board However,employee
cngagement extends farbeyond BIC: one
example from the year was a collaborative
exercise wherc we asked our store
colleagues what we allnecdedto do
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Spark Something Good
Gverthe asttwoyears,
4000 eme.oyee and
CUStOMmEer vo: N Eers nave
neiped over 240community

Marks & Start Tranung,
work p.acementsand
employment have baen
proviged totnousands of
aisadvantagedpeop.e

4 PLAN A

O poneenng socisl
and enw ronmeantal
susla nabiary arograrmme
£5NT NUEesS O Un3erp:
weds DUSINgss 3T MES

Sparks Card > 6m
C.SIOMers Now recene
tallored offecs plus

the chancetoengage
withaP.anAchar Ly
partner Over £2mnas
beenraisec todate

Marketing We created our
200 6 Chrnistmas wirnl ove

campalgn in arect response
tofeedback from thousanas
of customers

Crunch Costs in 2016 we
asked all cur ernp.oyeesnow
we Coud anve down Costs
ana nefficenc.es Weusedthe
£20msaved to ada over 3,000
Coueaguesto our sToTes

proects across 17 ctes

Global Community
Pragramme We cont n

to mprove the iives of over

40,000 peop.e 3Cross o
aonal sunoy chan

tHe way

Consumer Barometer
Eachmenthwe listen
to . 70000customers
tocreate a snapshot of
consumer sentiment.

Customer [nsight Unit {CIU}
Qur CI gathers feedback
through surveys, reviews and
focus groupstolearn what
custormerswant from Mas

M&s COMPANY
ARCHIVE

Durarchvesafeguards “&Ss

hertage and shares L with the

public throughexhn * ons ana
eventsaswel.as 0l ne

Customer Research
PanelQur dedicated
panelof ¢ 231,000

Making Every Moment
Special We hewd an extensive
programme of iIn-store
events to find out frorm our
employees how we coud
make every mament spec a
for our custorers

CUSIOMErs QIves us
valuableinput on
productsindevelopment.

Business community
engagement \We help shape
our business environment by
responding to government
and industry consultations
and contributing toindustry
discussionsand events.

e

Jr

Exhibitiens and avents
Our Mar«<s51n Time exribtion
andorogramme of events
braught V&8s ner tage

ol fefor 38 000 peame
during 2016417

Schools programme

Our award-winming
programme has reached
12000 pupils snee 2012,
naving recently broagenea
its reach through
videoconferencing.

Partnership with University
of Leeds Nowinits fifth year,
our strategic partnership
delivers collaborative
researchprojects and unique
student work apportunities

s

Reminiscente work

We provide support to
peoplewith dementia and
their carers through drop-in
sessionsand the newly
launched Memary Café.

differently to Make Every Moment Special
for our customers. Through 75 regionat
leadership events and 1,500 events involving
allour store employees, we found new

ways to help empower our people to pul
customers at the heart of the business
{more about this on page 8). Engagemaent
can also startinthe community Through
Marks & Start we offered work placements
toover 2900 disadvantaged peoplein
2016/17 Over 65% of those who completed the

programme went on to find work, cither with

M&S or other emplayers. For further details
about how we engage with our employces,
see Employee Involvernent’ onpages 81-82.

CUSTOMERS

Qur Customer Insight Unit constantly
gathers feedback from our customers to
understand what they want from M&S Key
insights are shared with the directors and
are critical to informing strategy. During
the year, customer feedback resultedina
number of slore improvements including
additional staff on shop floors. We also
engage with our customers to create
marketing campaigns Lhat are relevant lo
them, such as Christmas With Love in 2016
andthe creation of Spendit Well For more
on customerinsight and engagement, sco
‘Market & Customer Insighls on pages 6-7
and 'Engaging Qur Customers on page 25.

COMMUNITY

2017 marks the tenth anniversary of

Plan A our sccial and environmentat
sustainability programme. Central to

Plan Ais our goal of creating a positive
impact insociety and improving people's
lives, be they employees, customers,
workers in our supply chain, charity
partners or local communilies around the
world Find out more at marksandspencer.
com/plana. This year aiso marks the fifth
anrmiversary of the M&S Company Archive,
whosc educationaland social actmilics

have ennched the Lves of thousands of
local poople Visit the Archive's websile at
marksintime.marksandspencer.com.



46
MARKS AND SPENCER CROUPPLC
CIRECTORS REFORT: GOVERNANCE

LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

NOMINATION
COMMITTEE REPORT

We are introducing new initiatives to broaden and develop
the strong talent that exists within the business.

ROBERT SWANNELL CHAIRMAN

INTRODUCTION

During the year the focus of the Nomination
Committee (the "Cormnmittee’) was onthe
search for a new Chairrman to succeed me
and the succession of non-executives and
senior Nndividuals within the business.

As outlined on page 39,the Chairman
searchwas led by Vindi Banga and | did

not participate in the process,

In September, following her maternity leave,
LauraWade-Gery, Executive Director, Mult-
channel, teft the business Her responsibilities
were allocated to the other executive
chirectors and the business now pperates
with a smaller executive Board Laura was
instrurnentalin modernising our ecommerce

and mutti-channaot capabitities, and we wish
her the very best for the future

The Committee maintains a well-defined
specification for each appointment, with

a clear understanding of the attributes
andvalues reguired to help the effective
functioning of the whole Board. it considers
the combination of skitls and experience
required o fulfillhe Board's purpose As
Chairman of the Committee, itake anactive
role in overseeing the progress made
towards improving diversity and women's
representation on both the Operating
Commiltee and amongits direct reports.

The business has a framework with clearly
identified individuals capable of covering
key management roles onaninterimor

permanant basis. Thesc individuals recaive
the necessary coaching to ensure they have
the required skills to provide any critical
support when needed. Development for
direclors and high performing individuals
below Board levelis an essential area of
focus, Coaching and mentoring is provided
to develop and entiance specific skill sets,
and the Committee believes the benefits
of this approach are critical for developing
our own taient for the future.

The Committee continues Lo take amore
active interest intalent management, in
particular ensuring that initiatives are

in place to develop the tatent pipeline
and to promote diversity in Board and
executive appointments,

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE NOCMINATION COMMITTEE

Committee review

The Commitlee's performance was MEMBER ATTENDANCE gz’gg“ Nl;‘“;gﬁ‘gg paaii % OF MEETINGS
externally evaluated during Lhe year ATTENDED MEETINGS

by Flian Hague,

The Cqmrmttee was cgnswdered tc be Robert Swannell 20ct 2010 Y 5 100%
effective and remains independent

Areas of focus identified for the year —

anead are provided below. Y Vindi Banga 3 Sept 201 5 5 100%
Nomination Committee activity Alison Brittain 1 Jan 2014 5 5 100%
During Lhe year, the Cormmittee held a

swgmf‘tcant ndmber of unscheduled Miranda Curtis' 3 Feb 2012 4 5 an%
meetings to support the search and

appointmert of the new Chairman In .

addition, it continued to support the Andrew Fisher | Dec 215 5 > 100%
developrment of the executive directors X

and participated in several employee- Andy Halford 1 Jan 2013 5 5 100%
focused iniliatives, giving increased

access Lo the organisation Richard Solomons 13 Apr 20i5 5 5 100%

Looking ahead

An area of focus for the Committee over
the coming year will be the link between
diversity, strategy and developing the
business More consideration will be given
to the nature, variety and frequency of
interaction between the Board and
aspiring candidates at all levels

1 Miranda Curhis was unabletoattena themeebingon 14 March 2017 due to external business Commiment s

ACTION PLAN 2017/18

3 Continue Lo review succession plans for the Board and key rotes across the business.

= Continue toreview future talent pipeline

- Review developrment initiatives for directors.

-3 Greator input when tailonng the induction of new Board members to iheirindividual
skills and experience

- Continue toidentify opportunities for broader business engagement beyond
Head Office

The Committee will play anactive part
in the induction process for our new
Chairman, Archic Norman, who joins
the business in SepLtember 2017



BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Since the launch of the Board Diversity
Policy in 2032, the Board has made progress
in broadening the diversity of the Board
and senior management. The policy
continues to dnve the benefits of 2 diverse
Board and workiorce across the business,
The ambitions and objectives set out in
the policy remain relevant targets agarnst
which to measure our progress

For further infermation on employee

diversity, including gender, ethnicity

and age, see p24 of our Plan A Report

marksandspencer.com/plana2017,

BOARD DIVERSITY; PROGRESS UPDATE

Maintain a level of at least 30% female
directors on the Board over the short
to medium term.

As highlighted earlier intherepart one
change tothe Board was made during the
year ta 1 April 2017, with the resignation of
Laura Wade-Cery. Despite the reduced size
of the Board, the percentage of women
on the Board remains antarget at 30%

at the time of publication. The charts on
page 38 provide a clearer picture of our
Board diversity.

The Board remains committed to maintaining
at least a 30% fernale representation on the
Board, while ensuring that diversity inits
broadest sense remains a central feature
However, the Nomination Committee will
continue torecommend appointments

to the Board based onmerit, measured
against objective criteria and the skills and
experience the individual offers

The Boardis alse commutted to strengthening
the pipeline of senior fermale executives
within the business and has taken steps to
ensure that there are no barriers to women
succeeding at the highest levels within M&S.

Assist the development of a pipeline of
high-calibre candidates by encouraging
a broad range of senior individuals within
the business to take on additional roles
to gain valuable board experience,
During theyear, the Board continued to focus
on strengthening the pipeline of executive
tatent in the Cornpany. It remains Committed
to building on existing programmes while
introducing new initiatives to broaden and
develop the strongtalent which exists
across the business.

Key initiatives include:

- A comprehensive talent review presented
tothe Board annually, mapping successional
candidates and opportunities across all
senior roles within the business

- Athorough approach to talent
development throughinitiatives including
the Korn Ferry Leadership Development
Review, and Development Centres for
high potential talent.

- The Leadership Development Scrvice has
beeninplace for four years and continues
toidentify and partner kay senior taient
across the business, broadening their
skill sets and experience to prepare them

47
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 20 7

for future opportunities This has been
supported through greater boardroom
exposure, non-executive ana Trustee
roles outsice of M&S, involvernent in
senior pipeline programmes and
particpation in mentoring schemes.

- Access tointernational business
school training.

- Senior managernent mentonng and
coaching schemes and non-executive
director sponsoredlunches and breakfasts.

Consider candidates for appointment

as non-executive directors from a wider
pool, including those with experience
outside traditional listed boards.
Although no new appointmenls were made
during the year, the Nomination Committee
continued to discuss the successional needs
of the Boardin respect of ts non-executive
directors, Lists of potential candidates are
compiled with assistance fromexecutive
scarch agenciesand comprise candidates
from arange of differont industries and
backgrounds. Those subsequently identified
for interview are measured against crtena
scl at the startof the search process The
Chairmanalso meets nformatly with a
range of people introduced by third partios
or through direct approaches Althoughwe
do not currently openly advertise our non-
executive director positions, we appreciatoe
the benefit of this approach and willkeep
this under rovicw.

Ensure tong lists of potential non-executive
directors include 50% female candidates.
The Board remains committed toensuring
that high-performing womean fromwithin the
business and froma variely of backgrounds,
who have the requisite skills,are given greater
exposure to the nomination committees of
FTSE 100 companies. Alllong lsts for patentiat
future non-executive director appointment s
willinclude at least 50% fernale candicates.

Only engage executive search firms who
have signed up to the Voluntary Code
of Conduct for Executive Search Firms
on gender diversity and best practice.
The Board continues to support the ten
principles of the Voluntary Code

of Conduct for Executive Scarch Firms on
gender diversity and best practiceand s
committed to only engaging executive
search firms who arc signatories to this
code. During the year, we worked closely
with Egon Zehnder and JCA and maintained
our focus on the targets and ambitions
around female representation onlhe
Board. The Board confirms thatl nerther
Egon Zehnder nor JCAhas any other
connection with the Company.

Report annually against these objectives
and other initiatives taking place within
the Company which promote gender

and ather forms of diversity.

The Board has made strong progress against
the key policy objectives during the year,

as reported above. In addition the business
has continued to promote diversity through
arange of key initiatives:

- The annual Board evaluation process
includes anassessment of the Board's
diversity including gender, helping to
objectively consider its composition
and effectiveness.

= Rive employee-led diversity netwaorks that
focus on making M&S aninclusive place
to work for wornen and men (Cender
Equality Network), mincrity ethmic groups
(BAME at M&S), lesbian, gay, bisexual
andtransgender peogle (LCBT+ al MRS),
parents {Parents Net), and people
with disabilities and health conditions
(The Buddy Network). These deliver
large-scale awareness-raising events
promoting inctusion and equatily,
as wellas mentoring, coaching,
roundtable discussions with senior
leaders and regular communication
across the business.

- Continued involvement in the government-
hacked 30% Club, an organisation
committed toincreasing female
representation on UK boards.

= Continued involverment running Business
inthe Community (BITCyrmentoring
circles which help us to promote and
develop BAME (Black, Asian and minority
ethnic) talent pipelines

-» Active involvernent in key campaigns
including LGBT+ Pride celebrations,
Internaticnal Women's Day, Black History
Month, National Inclusion Week, and World
Disability Day, raising awareness and our
profile as aninclusive employer

= Anumber of programmes to help people
in our cormmunities, including Marks & Start
andMarks & Start Logistics, are successfully
helping young pecple, the homeless, lone
parents andthose with disabilities to find
work inour stores and distribution centres

Report annually on the outcome of the
Board evaluation, the composition and
structure of the Board as well as any issues
and challenges the Board is facing when
considering the diverse make-up of

the Company.

We continue toregard the Board evaluation
process asanimportant means of monitorng
our progress. Full details of the 2016/17
Board evaluationand the Action Plan are on
page 42 We remain commitled to getting
the right balance of internal versus external
hires and work towards understanding and
managing the chaltenges we face, such as:

= International management experience
reflective of the customers and
communities we serve,

- Any challenges womenface inreaching
regionatmanagement positions and
above within the business

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ACCOUNTABILITY

AUDIT COMMIT TEE

REPORT

The Committee has played a key role in ensuring
appropriate challenge and governance around
accounting treatment, risk management and control

and assurance process.

ANDY HALFORD CHAIRMAN OF THE AURIT COMMITTFE

INTRODUCTION

As Chairrrran of the Audit Committee
(the"Committee'),l am pleased to present
the Committee'sreport for the yeoar ended
1 April 2017,

Through this report taim to share some

of Lthe Committec's discussions from the
boardroorn, offering insight into its essential
rolein protecting the interests of our
shareholders through ensuring the integrity
of the Company's published financial
INnformation and the effectivencss of the
Internal Audit process Cur report will
provide an overview of the significant issues

the Committee has assessed during the year
andwill cffer the Committee's view of the
Annual Report asawhole,including the
methodology behind its assessment of the
narrative reporting as anaccuratarefiection
of the financial statements

The report also shares some of the
executive updates that were presented to
the Comrnittee by different arcas of the
business during the year These updates arc
essertialin teling us how different risks are
managed and mitigated threughout the
business, and assists the Committeein

understanding the progress being made

towards the stralegic plan Theyalso '
provide the Committee members with

an opporturity to share their own extensive

experience with the presenters, utilising

their mdependent perspective to add

value through robust challenge, discussion

and debate,

The report will also update you onour
assessment of the effectivencss of our
statutory auditor, Deloitte, and explain
our policy relating to any non-audit work
it was engaged to complete andthe fees
it received for doing so.

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
L |

The expertise of the Committee members
1s considered as part of the annual review
of the Committee’s effectivenass The
Board is satisfied that the Committee
possesses rolevant sectoral competence
and appropriate levels of independence,
and that its members offer a depth of
financial and commercial oxperience
across various industries. ILis further
satisfied that Andy Halford possesses
recent and relevant financial experience
and the requisiie competence in
accounting.

Audit Committes activities during 2016/17:

- Maintained focus onthe audit, assurance
andrisk processes within the business,
as wellas oversight of financial and other
regulatory requirements

- Reviewed the Group's systems of internal
controland risk management, and any
changes in accounting policies and
impact onits financial staternents.

= Provided oversight of particular business
risks, including those relating to ethical
sourcing and anirmal welfare

-3 Provided increased oversight of the risks
and controls pertaining to cyber security

- Manitored the financiat reporting
process, the statutory audit of the
Group's financial statements and the
independence of the statutory auditor

- Discussed and reviewed adjusted items
that may impact business performance.

- Reviewed the mitigating controls over
the Group's principal risks and assessed
the level of assurance provided

- Continued to supporl assurance
mapping across the Croup, with
particular focus on strategic pricrities.

= Continued to monitor and respond to
the changingregulatory environment,
particutarly n respect of implementation
of the EU Audit Regulation and Directive.

Members of senior management are
nvited to attend Committee mectings
as and when their specialist technical
knowledge s required The Committec

alsomeets privately, without management
present, belore each meeting, Additionally,
separate privale sessions at tended by the
lead audit partner from Deloitte and the
Head of Internal Audit &Risk are held after
each meeting. As Committee Chair, lalso
regularty meet ona one-to-one basis with
the Chief Finance Officer, Director of Group
Finance, Head of Internal Audit &Risk and
other memibers of senior management
jalso meot with the lead audil partneor

in advance of Cormmittec meetings.
Scheduling mectings inthis way enables
me to better undorstand any key issues
and areas of concern, and allows sufficient
time to facilitate meaningful discussion
duringthe subseguent meeting.

MEMBER ATTENDANCE ~ MEMBER NUMBER OF MAXIMUM % OF MEETINGS
SINCE MEETINGS POSSIBLE ATTENDED
ATTENDED MEETINGS
Andy Halferd 1 Jar 2013 5 5 100%
Alison Brittain 11 Mar 2014 5 5 100%
Miranda Curtis' 4iar 2015 4 5 80%
Andrew Fisher 3Feb 2016 5 3 100%

I Mranda Cartis was unableto attendihe meeling on 23 Jaquary 20 7 due toiliness
Nare Detaled nformat on on the expenence, skills ano qualifications of ol directors is avalable on pages 36and 37
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EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

INDEPENDENT REVIEW AND
COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN

The Committee’s performance was
reviewed externally this year by Ffion
Hague. Feedback was postive, particutarly
relating to the open debate encouraged
during meetings. It is regarded as thorough
and effective, and provides the Board with
2 high level of assurance that audit matters
are dealt with appropriatety. Areas in which
it was felt improverments coutd be
achieved were discussed by the
Committee for inclusion in its 2017/18
action plan

The Cormmittee receives detalled updates
from one or more business areas at each
meeting. These updates are planned ona
rolling 12-month basis. Additional matters
identified by Internal Audit asreguinng the
Committee’s attention arcincludedin

the agendas of subsequent meetings. An
overviow of some of the updates presented
during 2016/17 is provided below.

MANAGEMENT OF INTERNAL
CONTROL FAILURES

The Audit Committee receives updates on
inlernal control matters at each meeting.
This regular monitoring of the internal
control frarnewaork allows timely
identification of issues and formal tracking
of remediation plans Instances where the
effectiveness of nternal controls was
considered nsufficient were discussed
during the year, either by the Audit
Committee or the full Board. These

have included controls over markel
updates, third party oversight and IT asset
management. As part of the annualreview
of internal control, the Audit Committee
again considered these matters, ensuring
that the agreed actions were being
implemented to support a programme

of maintaining and improving internal
control, Following its review, the
Committee recommended to the Board
that, although the mattersidentified were
important, they had been addressedat
the time of its review, with suitable controls
now inplace.

FIRE, HEALTH AND SAFETY (FHS)

- Updated on performance acrossall
aspects of trading safely and legally
and the progress made in driving
compliance standards

- Discussed the safety of sales floor
egquiprent, fittings and installations,
including progress made and the
keyactions put inplace.

- Updated on continuing improvements
to International governance and
cornpliance processes inrespect of FHS,

The Committee made good progress on
the 2016/17 action plan by reviewing
controls over and assessing the levels
of assurance provided in respect of the
Croup's principal nsks, supporting risk
assurance mapping across the Group,
increasing its oversight of cyber security
nsks and moenitoring regulatory change

The action ptan for 2017/18

- Review the effectiveness of Internal
Audt inlinewith the Chartered Institute
of Internal Audit requirements and
monitor any key findings.

AUDIT COMMITTEE UPDATES

includingthereports of the third party
facilitated storeinspection plan.

= Noted the reductions inreported accicents
in UK-owned stores as a result of work
undertaken with our Primary Authority
Partner, Birmingham City Council

ETHICAL SOURCING AND
MODERN SLAVERY

- Updated onthccontrols in place to
CNsSUre anuncompromising approach
to maintaining M&S's ethical standards
inan increasingly competitive
international sourcing environment.

- Discussed how rnisks are mitigated through
supplier selection, appraisal criteria
and regionalimprovement programmes
supperted by a strict Internal Audit
andmonitoring approach.

= Updated ontheapproach tosupplier
inspections and the different processes
adopted in Food and Clothing & Horme,
noting the regular ethical audits
undertaken by an accredrted third
party onaltfactories used by M&S.

- Updated onthewaysinwhich the
business proactively supportsthe
hurmanrights of colleagues across all
business operations, ncluding
compliance with the Modern Slavery
Actandthe steps takento prevent
rmodern slavery throughout the
business znd its supply chain.

GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE

- Updated ontherevisions to the auditor
engagement policy, implemented
following the introduction of the
£UJ) Audit Regulation and Directive.

- Discussed and reviewed the Board's
approachinundertakingits assessment
of the long-term viability of the business

-» Updated on the annual circulation of
the M&S Code of Ethics and Behaviours,
including ongoing monitering of
cormpliance,and noting plans forafull
review of the Code during 2017/18

- Continue to oversee the Company-wide
risk and assurance mapping.

- Continue to monitor oversight of data
governance andinformation security
risk ahead of the implementation of
the General Data Protection Regulation
in May 2018

- Qvoersee the refinement of the internat
control environment

BUSINESS CONTINUITY

- Updated on the continued strengthening
of crisis management and business
recovery capability across allretailand
distrnbution operations.

= Discussed national preparedness inthe
context of the UK's current threat level,
crists simulation exercises undertaken
in collaboration withindustry peers,
and the development of new training
tools for Duty Managers aimed at
raising levels of preparedness.

= Updated on preparedness and the
Crisis management processes inplace
nternationalty, regicn-specific threat
assessments and crisis simulations, and
procedures relating to business travet
toareas deemed to be highrisk.

= Updated on the disaster recovery plans
for the distribution centre at Castle
Donington,improvements inresilience
capability and key milestones achieved.

- Discussed the priorities for 2017/18,
including supply chain resilience in
international logistics, International
retall and sourcing, as well as global
terrcrismand cyber security.

FOOQOD SAFETY AND INTEGRITY

- Updated on the governance and control
processes inrespect of food safety, the
assessment of operational nisks in key
areas andthe regular reviews of the
risk modelconductedinresponse to
internal and external issues

- Discussed food safety and the processes
in place for resolution of complaints.

= Updated ontheinternal and external
influences onrisk mitigation strategy,
covering supply base, raw material
sourcing, product targeting and
regulatory developments.

-3 Discussed the food safety andintegrity
risk profile and the greater focus placed
on supply base withinthe audit programme

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES

The Audit Committee has assessed
whether suitable accounting policies
have been adopted and whether
management has made appropriate
judgements and estimates.

Throughoul the year, the Finance team has
worked closcly with Deloitte to ensure that
the business s transparent and provides
the required level of disclosure regarding
significant issues considered by 1he
Commutiee inrelation to the financial
staterments, as wellas how theseissues
were addressed, while being mindful of
matters that may be business-sensitive.

Thus section outlines the rmam arcas of
judgement that have been considered by
the Cormnmitiee Lo ensure that appropriste
rigour has been applied. Allaccounting
policies can be foundinnote 1 tothe
financial staternents Where further
informationis provided in the notes to

the financial statements, we have included
the note reference

Each of the areas of jJudgement to the nght
has beemidentificd asan area of focus

and therefore the Committec hias also
received detaled reporting from Deloitte

PRESENTATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee gave considerationtothe
presentation of the financial statements
andin particular the use of alternative
performance measures and the presentation
of adjusted items in accordance with the
Croup accounting poucy. This policy states
that adjustments are onty made to reported
profit before tax where income and charges
are significant in value and/or nature.

The Committee received detailed reports
from managerent outlining the
judgements appliedinrelation to the
disclosure of adjusted items. inthe current
year,management has included inthis
category the reduction in M&S Bankincome
forthe impact of the M&S Bank provision

for financial product mis-selling, significant
chargesarising inrelation to changes topay
and pensions; net costs associated with the
implernentation of strategic programmes in
relation to UK organisation, UK logistics, UK
store estate and the closure of international
owned businesses, impairments of the
carrying value of UKand International stores
{including associated onerous leases), and
legal settlements This was an area of focus
for the Committee inthe current year due to

the number and value of these items
{£437.4m charge) and the recent guidelines
onthe use of alternative perfarmance
measures issued by the European Securitics
and Markets Authority.

Inaddition, the prior year was a 53-week
stalutory reporting period so consideration
had been giventothe balance of 52-week
and 53-week metrics for Lhe pricr year
reporied throughout the Annual Report
The 52-week measures have been quoted
where relovant to ensure meaningful
comparison with this year's 52-week pericd.
Following detailed review and active
discussion with managaement, the
Cormmittec has concludedthat the
presentation of the financial statement s
isappropriate.

See note 5 on p103

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL, BRANDS,
TANGIBLE AND INTANGSBLE ASSETS

The Committee has considered the
assessments made inrelationto the
impairment of goodwill, brands, tangible
and Intangible fixed assets, including land
and buildings, store assets and software
assets The Committee received detailed

FAIR, BALANCED AND UNDERSTANDABLE

At the request ofthe Board, the Committee
has considered whether,in its opinion,

the 2017 Annual Report and Financial
Statements are fair, balanced and
understandable, and whether they provide
theinformation necessary for shareholders
toassessthe Croup's positionand
performance, business modeland strategy.

The structure of the report continues
tofocus strongly onthe key strategic
messages inthe Strategic Report 1t was
therefore irnportant for the Committee
to ensure that this emphasis did not dilute
the overalltransparency inthe disclosures
rnade throughout the report, which we
know our stakeholders find useful, and that
the messages presented by the business
are both clear and reflective of the
Company as a whole.

Abroadoutline of the structure of the
Annual Report was given to the Comrmittee
early inthe planning process, alongwith a
similarly broad indication of its content.
The Committes received a full draft of

the report two weeks prior to the meeting
at which 1t would be requested to provide
its final opinion. Feedback was provided by
the Cornmittee in advance of that meeting,
hightighting the areas it was felt would
benafit from further clarity. The draft
report was then amended toincorporate
this feedback prior to being tabled at the
May Audit Cornmittee meeting for final
comment and approval.

The Committee was provided with atist of
the key messages included inthe Annual
Repart, highlighting which were positive
andwhich were reflective of the chalienges
fromthe year A supporting docurnent was
alse provided, specifically addressing the
foliowing listed points, hightighting where
these could be evidenced within the report

When formingits opiron, the Committee
reflected onthe information it had received
andits discussions throughout the year
inparticular, the Committee considered.

1S THE REPORT FAIR?

- Isihe whole story presented and has
any sensitive material been omitted
that should have been included?

= isthereporting on the business
performance in the narrative reporting
consistent with those used for the
financial reporting in the financial
statements?

= Are the key massagesin the narrative
reflectedin the financial reporting?

-3 Are the KPIs disclosed al an appropriate
level based on the financial reporting?

15 THE REPORT BALANCED?

- (s there agoodtevelof consistency
between the narrative reportingin
the front and the financial reportingin
the back of the report, and does the
messaging presented within each
rernain consistent when oneisread
independently of the other?

- Is the Annual Report properly
adocument for shareholders?

- Arethe statutory and adjusted
measures explained clearly with
appropriate prominence?

-3 Are the key judgements referred tain the
narrative reporting and the significant
issues reported in this Audit Commitiee
Report consistent with the disclosures
of key estimation uncertainties and
critical judgements set outinthe
financial staternents?

- How do the significant issues identified
compare with therisks that Deloitte
plans to nclude inits report?

1S THE REPORT UNDERSTANDABLE?

= Isthere a clear and understandable
frarnework tothereport?

- Are the important messages highlighted
appropnately throughout the docurnent?

- lIs the layout clear with good linkage
throughout inamanner that reflects
the whaole story?

CONCLUSION

Following its review, the Committee
was of the opinion that the 2017 Annual
Report and Financial Statements are
representative of the year and present
a fair, balanced and understandable
overview, providing the necessary
information for shareholders to assess
the Croup's position, performance,
business model and strategy.
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SIGNIFICANT ISSUES CONTINUED

reports from management outlining the
treatment of impairments, valuation
methodotogy, the basis for key assumptions
(discount rate andlong-term growthrate)
andthekey drivers of the cash flow forecasts
Tne Committee has challenged management
and s satisfied that these are approprate
The Committee has alsc understood the
sensitivity analysis used by management
inits review of impairments. In addition,

the business plans detailng management’s
expectations of future performance of

the businesses are Board approved The
Committeeis satisfied that appropriate
impairment of tangible and intangible
assets has becn recognised

See notes 5, 14 & 15 on p103-104 & 114-116

INVENTORY VALUATION AND
PROVISIONING

Inventory provisions include obsolete
stock, net realisable value below cost and
stock loss provisions. The Committee has
examined management papers outlining the
judgements made regarding provisioning

for inventory balances andis satisfred that

a sufficiently rebust process was followed
to confirm guantities of nventory and that
net realisable value of inventory exceeds

its cost at yearend

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Committee has reviewed the actuarial
assumptions such as discount rate, inflation
rate, expected return of scheme assets and
maortality which determine the pension cost
and the UK def ned benefit scheme valuation,
and has concluded that they are appropriate.
The assumptions have been disclosed inthe
financial statements,

See note 11 on p108-111

REVENUE RECOGNITION IN
RELATION TO REFUNDS, GIFT CARDS
AND LOYALTY SCHEMES

Revenue accruals for sales returns and deferred
income in relation to loyalty scheme
recdlernptions and gift card and credit vouchar
redemptions are estimatedbasedonfustonical
returns and redemptions. The Committee
has considered the basis of these accruals,
along with analysis of historical returnsand
redemption rates and has agreed with the
udgerments reached by management.

SUPPLIER INCOME

This continues te be monitored closely by
management and robust controls arc inplace
toensure appropriate recognitionin the

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

correct period The Committecis satisfied
with management’s conclusion that there
is minirmalrisk of matenal rmisstaterment,
Enhanced disclosure has been made again
inthe current year through publication of
the accounting paolicy and disclosing the
effects of supplier income on certain
balance sheet accounts.

CLOSURE COSTS FOR INTERNATIONAL
QOPERATIONS (NEW DISCLOSURE)

The Committee has considered the
assessments made inrelation to the estirnation
of closure costs and associated provisions
for the exit from certain International owned
markets The Committeereceived detailed
reports from management outlining the
accounting treatment of the costs, the

basis for the key assumptions usedinthe
estimation of the costs {most nctably
inrelationto property exit costs and
redundancy) and the assessment of

assets tobe impaired. The Committee has
challenged management and is satisfied
that these are appropriate The Committee
15 satisfied that appropriate costs and
associated provisions have been

recogrised

See notes 1, 5, 15 and 22 on p96, 103, 115
and 124

TENURE

Deloitte was appointed by shareholders
as the Group’s statutory auditor in 2014
following a formal tender process. The
lead audit partner, lan Waller, has held
the position for three years. The external
audit contract will be put out to tender
at least every ten years.

The Committee recommends that Deloitte
be reappointedas the Company’s statutory
auditor for the 2017/18 financial year. We
believe the independence and objectivity of
the external auditor and the effectiveness
of the audit process are safeguarded and
remain strong The Company has compled
with the Statutery Audit Services Order for
the financial year under review.

EFFECTIVENESS

The effectiveness of our external audidor
15 assessedin accordance with a process
agreed by the Audit Committee, which s
drvided into ten structured components
setting cut the key areas of the audit
process for the Committee to consider

Thus framework also recognises the
contribution of management inbeing fully
engaged with, and thereby enhancing the
effectiveness of, the external audil process.
It enables the Audit Committee to form
aview of management'srole inan effective
audit process by considering whether

it believesina cutture of right first Lima),
produces high quatity papers, ensures
robust internal systerns and controls are
maintained, respects and values the

independent audit process and examines
any audit adjustments proposed by the
external auditor with appropriate rigour.

This framework provides arobust process
for monitoring auditor effectiveness and
canbe measured against the findings of
future externalauditor effectiveness
surveys The approach ta the assessment
is tailored to enabie senior management Lo
answer detailed questions on the Compainy-
wida audit process,and provide the

Audit Committee with sufficient detail to
establish an informed view onthe overall
efficiercy, integrity andeffocliveness
afthe external audit.

Questionnaires were tailored to the
following target groups:

1. Chief Finance Officer and Director

of Group Finance: Afullquesticnnarre
was completed, covering allareas of the
audit process, while taking account of Lhe
guestionnaires completed by the Directors
of Finance for Food and Clothing & Horme
and Head of Finance, international

2. Directors of Finance: Food, Clothing

& Home and Head of Finance,
International: Shorler questionnaire,
focusing onthe audit tearn, planning,
challenge andinteraction with the business

3. Audit Committee: A high-lovelset of
questions with specific focus onthe
planning, exaecution, value, communication
and challenge of the audit and audit partner
The Committee had access to copies of the

compleled management questionnaires
(sections 1 and 2 albove)to assist with its
own considerations.

WHAT WAS THE OUTCOME?

Feedbackfrom each of the target groups
was positive overall, particularly inrespect
of the technicalinsight and challenge
provided by the audit team, its level of
interaction with the business; its strong
understanding of M&S's culture and values,
and the valuable guidance provided for the
Company's strategic initiatives. It was felt
that areasidentified during the 2015/16
review had improved during the vear,
specifically the communication between
the business and Deloitte during the audit
process, however, it was felt that further
improvernents could stillbe achieved

Areas for development identified in this
yEar's review wore encouraginga more
Jjoined-upapproeach during the audit and
ensuring the timely provision of accurate
informaticn by M&S to the auditor.
Additionally, it was felt that further work by
both M&S and Deloitte would improve the
efficlency of the overseas audit process

OUR BUSINESS

CUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



52
MARKS AND SPENCER CGROUP PLC
OIRECTORS' REPORT: GOVERNANCE

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

EXTERNAL AUDITOR CONTINUED

NON-AUDIT FEES

A robust auditor engagement policy is

in place and adhered to. It is reviewed
annually and was updated during the year
to account for the tighter restrictions

on work permitted to be undertaken

by the statutory auditor introduced by
the Financial Reporting Council's (FRC)
Revised Ethical Standard 2016. The policy
is disclosed on marksandspencer.com/
thecompany. The business is committed

to maintaining non-audit fees at a tow level.
The non-audit fees to audit fees ratio for

the financial year ended 1 April 2017 was
0161, compared with the previous year's
ratic of 0171, During the year, the Company
was notified that Deloitte hadacquired crisis
management specalists Regester Larkin
{RL), which the Company has engaged,

prior Lo acquisition, to develop crisis

ranagement exercises The feesforRL
wore £32k Since the bulk of tho fees were
incurred prior to RU's acquisition by Deloitte,
it was decided Lo cormplete the project as
planned and that alternative providers
would be reviewed for future engagements,
The majority of the £0 3min non-audit fees
paidin total to Deloitte during 2016/17 were
incurred for assurance services it provided
during the year. These comprised feesin
respect of the Half Year review, turnover
certificates, the annual Euro Medium Tenm
Neote (EMTN} prograrnme renewal, reviews
of quarterly trading staterments, crisis
managemaont reviews and Overseas
engagernents. It is normal practice for such
assurance services to be provided by the
Company's statulory auditor. No additional
recurring or one-off non-audit services
were provided during the year,

The Committee s satisfied that the
Company was cormpliant during the ycar
with boththe updated UK Corporate
Governance Code and the FRC's Ethical
and Auditing Standards in respect of the
scope and maxirmum permitted level of
feesincurred for non-audit services
provided by Deloitte. Where non-audit
work is performed by Deloitte, both the
Company and Deloitte ensure adherence
torobust processes to prevent the
objectivity and independence of the
auditor from being cornpromised.

Allnon-audit work perforrmed by Deloitte
was put to the Audit Committee for
considerationand approval, regardless
of size. Further detaits o nan-audit
services provided by Deloitte canbe
foundinnote 4 onpage 102,

ASSURANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT
.

The Board assurmes ultimate responsibility
for the effoctive managemenrt of risk across
the Group, determining its risk appetite as
wellas ensuring that each business area
implernents appropriate internal controts,
The Croup's sk management systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance aganst material
missiatement or loss.

See p32-33 of the Strategic Report for
more information on our material risks

Sae p30 for further information on our
risk management processes

The key features of the Croup's internal
control and risk management systems
thal ensure the accuracy and reliability of
financial reporting include clearly defined
lines of accountability and detegation

of authority, policies and procedures that
coverfinancial planming andreporting,
preparing consolidated accounts, capital
expenditure, project governance and
information security, and the Croup's
Code of Ethics and Behaviours.

The Beard has delegatedresponsibility for
reviewing tre effectiveness of the Group's
systermns of inlernal control to the Audit
Cornmittee This covers ali materiat controls
including financial, cperational and
compliance controls and risk management
syslermns. The Commitlee is supported by
anumber of sources of internal assurance
from withinthe Groupin order to complete
these reviaws, in particutar:

1. Internal Audit The Croup’s primary Source
of inlernal assurance remains delivery of the
Internal Audit Plan, whichis structuredioalign
with the Croup's strategic priorities and key
risks andis developed by Internat Audit with
input from management. Recommenaations
frorm Internal Audit are communicatecliothe
relevant business arca forimplementation

of appropriate corrective measures, with
results reported to the Commuittee.

2. Business presentations Focusing primarily
onthe key risks identified in the Group Risk
Profile, managerment continues to provide
updates to the Commitiee onhowthese
are rmanaged inindividual business areas.
These are complemented by independent
reviews conducted by Internal Audit

3, Other control agencies Responsible

for maintaining control over crilical areas

of risk, the processes and controls of these
agoncies are tested by Internal Audit & Risk
during relevant audits Anoverview of Lhese
agencies and the manner in which they
provide assurance 1o the Committee s
incicated N the table below.

The Croup was cornpliant throughout the
yoar with the prowisions of the UK Corporate

Covernance Coderelating toirternal
controls and the FRC's revised Cuidance on
Audit Committees and Guidance on Risk
Management. Internal Controland Related
Financiat and Business Reporting No
significant failings or weaknesses were
identified during the Cemmittec's review
inrespect of the year ended 1 April 2017
and uptothe date of this Annual Report.

Where the Commitieeidentified areas
requiInng IMmprovement, processas arein
ptace to ensure that the necessaryaction
15 taken and that progress is monitored.

Further details of these processes can

be found within our detailed Corporate
Covernance Statement whichis available to
view in the Corporate Covernance section
of marksandspencer.com/thecompany.

ANDY HALFORD AUC TCOMMITTEE CH-AIRMAN

INTERNAL ASSURANCE FRAMEWQRK
)

Saurce of nformation

Frequercy/nature of reportng

Committees - Frire Health & Safety Committee Direct reporting lines
-3 Blan A Committee* to the Committee, with
. annual updates from
= Business Conbinuity Committee the relevant executive
Business Papers produced on the Formal updates
areas following subjects. presented to the
-» Information Security Committee annually
- Whistleblowing & Fraud
- Bribery AUDIT
> Codeof Ethres and Behaviours COMMITTEE
= CSCOP{Cracery Supplier
Code of Practice)
Other Internal Audt testing Updates provided
control (as approprate) inrelation to to the Committee
agencies as requested

- Food Safety & Integrity
- Ethical Audits
-3 Trading Safely & Legally

or appropriate

* Note atso reparts direCtly o the Board
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PENSIONS

COVERNANCE

The Croup operates a defined benefit
pension scheme, the Marks & Spencer

UK Pension Scheme, {the "Scherme”) for
employees with an appointment date prior
to 1 April 2002. The Scheme closed to future
accrual from 1 Apri 2017 Employeesare
now cligible tojoin and are auto-enrolled
asrequired by legislation into a defined
contribution pension scheme, Your M&S
Pension Saving Plan, whichis part of a
mastertrust arrangernent managed by
Legal& General.

The results of the trienniat actuarial
valuation of the Scheme as at 31 March 2015
revealed a surplus of £204m onatechnicat
provisions basis This represented a healthy
improvement from a deficit of £280m as at
31 March 2012 as aresult of agreed recovery
plan contributions from the Company and
outperformance of return-seeking assets
aver the period. The Schemne has alsc been
hedged against interest rate and inflation
risks and has thus beeninsulated from

the effect of fallng realinterest rates.
Scheme funding is closely and frequiently
monitored and Schemnc investment risks
are diversified.

The Scheme, the assets of which are held
under trust separately fromthose of the
Croup, is managed by the Board of the
Pension Trust ("Trustee Board™). The Trustee
Board comprises four Company-naminated
directors, including the Chairman, Craham
Cakley, three member-nominated direclors
and twoindependent directors Alldirecters
are appointed for a five-year term and may
stand for additional terms.

The Trustee Board operates a number of
commitices including Managerment and
Covernance, Investrment, and Audit to which
responsikilities are delegated. The Trustee
Board is supported by an executive Leam
which manages the governance and
operation of the Scheme

The Trustee Board has abusiness plan
against which progress is measured
periodically ina similar approach to the
Croup Board. Thereis also an annual
Trustee Board Effectliveness Roview and
both the Trustee Board and the Investment
Cormmittee hold annual strategy days which
help drive the long-term agenda and the
pusiness plan prionties fach Trustec Board
director has anindividual training plan,
whichis based onthe Pension Regulator's
Trustee Knowledge and Understanding
requirements and tailored to address any
skill gaps and specificcommittee roles.
Amajority of the Trustee Board members
hold the Pensions Managerment Institute
AwardinTrusteeship

All adwisers and suppliers are appointed
through angorous tender process, and
inrespect of investment manager
appointrents are made with advice from
the Scheme's appointed investment adviscr.
They are monitored via gquarterly reports
and periodic meetings andthereisalsoa
roling programme of both informaland
formal adwiser reviews.

Inaddition to six-monthly reports from

£Y as covenant adviser, the Trustee Board
alsoreceives presentations fromthe Chief
Finance Officer after the Group's Half Year
and Year Endresulls,

The Scheme is a signatory to the UN
Principles for Responsible Investrment

and the Financial Reporting Council’s

UK Stewardship Code. It has partnered
with a specialist engagement service,
Hermes Equity Cwnership Services (EOS),
to exercise its global equity voting rightsin
accordance with a detailed Trustee Board
policy, which addresses arange of
governance, social and environmental
issues The engagement of ECS enhances
the Trustee Board's stewardship and
governance oversight of investee
companies by cngaging with compantes
on a glclal basis Theresults of these voling
and engagement activities are published
quarterly on the Scheme’s website,

QUR BUSINESS

QUR PERFORMANCE
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REMUNERATION

OVERVIEW

Our remuneration framework is aligned with
the strategic direction of M&S and the interests
of our shareholders, with a clear focus on customer,

simplicity and teamwork.

VINDI BANGA CHAIRMAN QFTHE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Onbehalf of the Board, lam pleased to
present our 2017 Rermuneration Report

The Committee hassought to further
Improve our disclosures once again this
year to provide not only the regulatory
information we are required to disclose while
balancing against commercial sensitivities,
but also tho context surrcunding pay
arrangements. Additional context has been
provided where we believe this willhelp to
present acomplete picture of the structure
and scale of the remuneration framework,
its alignment with the business strategy and
the rest of lhe workforce, as wellas the
payments made as aresull of business
performance for this yvear

As highlighted last year, and intine with
regulations, we are now secking sharcholder
support and approval for our Remuneration
Palicy at the 2017 ACM. This year's summary
Remuneration at a Glance hughlights not
only the key elements of the payrments
made to directors this yvear but also gives an
outline of the propesed amendment s to the
Rermuneration Policy which will govern pay
arrangements Inthe next three years,

As required, this reportas split into two
further distinct sections, the first covering
our updated Remuneration Policy, and the
second covenng remunerationinaction for
the 2016/17 and 2017118 financial years. in
accordance with regutations, sharcholders
will be requested to vote separately on
these reports at our AGMin July 2017, with
this Remuneration Overview and the Annuat
Report on Remunerationbeing subject to
anadvisory vote.

REMUNERATION FRAMEWORK
CONSIDERATIONS

The Board is cornmitted to ensuring that
our remuneration framework supporis our
strategy, and provides a balance between
motivatingand challenging our senior
leaders to deliver our business priorities,
as set out by our CEO,and strong
performance while atso driving the tong-
term sustainable success of M8S. As &
result, a significant part of performance
related rewardis delivered through shares.
This ensures that our leaders have

meaningfullong-terminvestment in
our business, and that their interests are
closely atigned with our sharcholders

The Commitiee spent a considerable
armount of time this year liaising with
many of our shareholders and sharing

a wide variety of views on remuneration
generally,includingihe framework,
structures measures and targets. It
exploredanumber of options taking into
account the various perspectivesand
views and considering these against the
current framework, the current economic
and rmarket environment, the business
strategy and progress against the goals
set out last year

As we explained in the Annual Report

last year, we delayed granting the 2016
Performance Share Plan (PSP} awards untit
December 2016 Lo ensure the targets sel
were appropriately atigned to the strategic
review being undertaken by the new Lleam
following Steve Rowe's appeintment

as CEQ. As the focus of the business plan
announcedin November 2016 remains
unchangedand the tearnhas had less
than one yearlostart toimplement

much of this, the Committee considered
that the structure of the current
remynieration framework continues
tosupporithis strategy

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO
REMUNERATION POLICY

Takingallof the above inte account, the
Cammittee has therefore decided to
rmaintain the principtes of the framework
firstintroducedin 2010 and approved

by shareholdersin 2014, but to make
some miner amendments to incentive
arrangements to ensure sharper and
more relevant alignment between senior
remuneration, the strategic direction

of the Coampany, and the interests of

our shareholders.

The PSP will continue to be the primary
long-termincentive plan for executives.
We are maintaining the overatl construct of
the plan, with the typical award being 250%
of salary. However, we willbe introducinga
two-year holding pericd post vesting forall

long-termincentive awards made from
2017, to cnsure greater alignment of our
leaders remuneration with long-term
stakcholder interests.

Furthermore, we will be reducing the cash
suppternent in lieu of pension contributions
for new executive director appointments
The new threshold witll be reduced from 30%
(for the CEQ)and 25% {Tor all other directors)
toamaximum of 20% forall future executive
directors,inctuding the CEQ. Contractual
arrangerments for current executive
directors willremainunchanged at 25% This
removes any policy differential between the
CEOQ and other executive directors.

KEY ELEMENTS OF 2017/18
REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

The Annual Bonus Scheme will continue to
be based oncorporate financialtargets
(currently 70%} and individual obyectives
{currently 30%) The maximum opportunity
will rernain 200% of satary. The financial
measure will continue to be Croup PBT
before adjusted items (Group PBT). The
ndividual measures on page 69 highlight
the importance of collective and customer
focused measures to support the one
team behaviours which have the customer
at the heart of the business, inline with

the business strategy.

The PSP willbe maintained but will also
now inctude a two-year holding period
post vesting as previously outlined TSR will
bentroduced as a key measure toboth
reinfarce alignment of executive interests
with shareholders, as well as being a relative
measure of value creation TSR willreplace
cash flow as a measure, and the financial
rmeasures of EPS and ROCE willbe retained
as measures of profitable ana efficient
business performance

Each of the three measures willhave equal
weightage, thus TSR willcount for a third,
ROCE will count for a third and up from
the historical 20%; EPS will count for a third,
less than the historical 50%.

Asinthe past, the Committee will have
oversight into the quality of how the
outcormes of EPS and ROCE are delivered
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IN THIS SECTION

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AT A GLANCE p56-57

STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT OF PAY p&6
REMUNERATICN POUICY p58-65

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION p66-77

Executive directors’
remuneration policy p58

Recruitment policy p62
Termination policy p63

Non-executive directors’
remuneration policy p64

and willexercise discretionas necessary
While the Cormnmittee believes that
introducing TSR at this stage provides an
important measure of the success of the
new strategy for the executive team, the
Committee also believes that certain
strategic andnon-financial measures may
become more significant to M&S to warrant
consideration for PSP imeasurerments in
future years,

Civen the continued challenging economic
and rnarket environment, consumer
concerns over Brexit, and ongoing currency
andinflationary headwinds, the Committee
hasset the 2017/18 targets at what it
believes would represent stretching
husiness performance. For EPS and ROCE,
targets have beenincreased from those
set for the 2016 PSP award, which were
rebasedagainst the new financial plan
These increased targets reflect the plans
for the business to returnto growthin the
next three years. TSR performance willbe
measured against a bespoke group of
cormgarator companies, broadly similar

to thet adopted by other companies in

our sectorinaccordance withstandard
market practice, targets for threshold

and maximum vesting will be set at median
and upper quartile performance of the
Croup respectively.

REMUNERATION FOR 2016/17

As referenced earlior in Lhe Annual Report,
since his appointment as Chicf Executive,
Steve Rowe has set out clear and decisive
plans to accelerate the pace of change

to return the business to growth Ahuge
amount of work has alreadybegunto
implement and deliver this strategy,
ncluding the investment in Clothing &
Home pricing and the reshaping of botlh
the UK store estate and the International
business. While these plans have laid the
groundwork 1o M&S's long-termrocavery,
the necessary investment has meant that
profits delivered this year are lower than
last vear, although above consensus
expectations However, this was not
unexpected and cur financial plan for

the year reflected this,

The Remuneration Committee is satisflicd
that incentive payments for the executive
directorsreflect both the overallTinancial
parformance of the business and the hard
work undertaken by the team to achieve this

Total single figure remuneration p66
Salary and benefits pé7
Annual Bonus Scheme p&8-69

inthe challenging environment. Total
payments are around 35% of the maximum
receivable, of both fixed and variable pay
together, f all stretch targets had been
achieved This clearly demonstrates the
philosophy of the executive directors’

pay arrangements inaction,including

the ngour of target setting, maxirmum
payments witl only be payable for
exceptional performance.

As canbeenseenonpage 56, thereisa

clear and demonstrable link between
business strategy and payments for 2016/17
performance to the executive directors.
The key business pricrities arereferenced on
pages 8-11 of this report Executive director
targets were aligned with these priorities
and achievernent against the key financial
priorities are shown on pages 18-21.

ANNUAL BONUS QUTTURN

As highlghted earlier, the year has boenocne
cf considerable change for M&S When
approving payments, the Committee
considered the overall performance of

the business and of the executive directers
against this, as wellas aganst therr individual
targets. Delails of the bonus payments Lo
cach of the executive directors are outlined
onpage 68. Bonus payments ranged from
37%te 42% of maximum opportunity Bonus
payments made to directorsreflected the
large proportion of collective measures for
the year, in support of focusing on teamwork
and simplicity within the pay arrangemcents.

PSP VESTING

The PSP awards grantedin 2014 were
measured for the three-year period up to

1 April 2017 against EPS, ROCE and Revenue
targets. As the threshold targets were not
achieved, all awards held by executive
directors will lapse.

SALARY REVIEW

The Committee discussed the annual salary
review for all executive directors. Inline with
the budget satary increases for therest of
the organsation, the Committee approved
a 2% increase for all executive directors
However, as clearly disclosedin last year's
report Lhe executive directors have, for the
second year in succession, choser to not
accept thisincrease Satariesforthe
cxecutive directors will therefore remain

Performance Share Plan p70-71
Directors' share interests p72-73
Non-executive directors’ remuneration p76

Remuneration Committee p77-78

at those levels set in July 2015, apart from
Steve Rowe, whose salary changed on his
appointment to CEQin April 2016,

BOARD CHANCES

In September 2016, we announced that
Laura Wade-Cery would not be returning

to the business following her maternity
leave. Laura's remunerationterms, disclosed
at the time, werein line with the key
provisions for contract termination as per
the shareholder approved Remuneration
Policy Inaddition, details in relation to
outstanding remuneration for Marc Boiland
following his departure are also provided on
page 75.

STAKEHOLDER ENCAGEMENT

We are grateful to shareholders, shareholder
represantative bodies, regulatory bodies
and remuneration advisers for their
engagement, feedback, challenge and
view on remuneration matters over the
past year The Company has been actively
involved onthe subject of executive
remuneration and stakeholder
engagement, and earlier this year
responded to the UK Covernment’s Creen
Paper onCorporate Covernance Reform.

Stakeholder engagerment,including input
from M&S's Business Involvement Croups
are key toensuring we continue to drive the
transparency around our decisions relating
to executive pay, provide clarity and quality
of our performance targets and associated
disclosures, and ensure the relevance of our
long-term executive pay incentives and
their aignment to the performance of the
business We are grateful for this ongeoing
dizlogue Together with therest of the
Board, | look forward to hearing your views
on our remuneration arrangements and
will be available to answer any questions
you may have at the ACM,

VIND| BANGA
CHAIZMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTER
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REMUNERATION
Al A GLANCE

This overview summarises our Remuneration Policy in action and
shows the alignment between our remuneration framework, the
Company's performance and payments to directors for 2016/17.

STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT OF REMUNERATION FRAMEWORK WITH KPis

See KPIs on p18-21

2016/2017 PERFORMANCE

® @ @ @ ®
GROUP PET BEFORE CROUP RETURN ON CAPITAL ADJUSTED EARNINGS FREE CASH FLOW (PRE
ADJUSTED ITEMS REVENUE EMPLOYED PER SHARE SHAREHOLDER RETURNS}
1L & N
£613.8m £10.6bn 18.7% 30.4p £585.4m
Croup PBT was above the Periomance under all Average 3-year ROCE EPS growth was -1 9% Free rashflow performance
target set for bonus revenue metr €5 was performance of 14 5% over the three years for the yearhad no d-recr
payment s tobeqin telow the threshold uneluding 13 7% for 2016/17)  ending n 2016/17 (based impact on payments for
For executive directars, raquired for payrment was belaw the threshold an the autturn of 30 4p 201617 but willimipact PSP
169 5% oF bonus opportunity  under the 2014 PSP award, requ redfor this element for th.s year) which was payments for the next iwo
was payable as aresull resultng m this &lement ofthe 2014 PSP award below the %% growth financial years, measuredon
of this Group PBT of the awardiaps ng ‘o vest. required for vesting acumulative 3-yearbasis
performance underthe 2014 PSPaward  The 2016/17 oullurnis mare

than 1/3 of the annualised
rarget under the respective
outstanding awards



The graph opposite summanises the total
payrments made to executive directorsin
respect of the 2016/17 financial year. These
figures lustrate those detailed n the single
figure table set out laterin this report.

Fixed pay comprises salary, benefits and
pension bencfits. Further information on
payments made under the Annual Bonus
Scheme s illustrated below, with further
details provided on page 68.

Performance Share Plan awards didneot
meet the threshold performance required
for vesting this year and, as such, awards
will lapsein full on their vesting date.

Bonus payments made inrespect of
performance for the year were between
37% and 42% of maxirmum bonus
opportunity This resultedin payments
ranging from ¢ £459,000 10 ¢ £600,000,
with half of all payments being deferred
into shares for three years, subjectto
malus provisions being met.

Further detailon the performance
measures and targets and the extent
to which they were achieved are shown
onpage 68 of this report.
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See Single figure remuneration on p66

See Annual Banus Scheme below and p68

ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME 2016/17

See Annual Bonus Scheme on p68

SINGLE FIGURE REMUNERATION 2016/17
R

See PSP on p71

SUMMARY OF POLICY AND PROPQSED AMENDMENTS

Shareholders approved the Remuneration
Policy at the ACGMin 2014. As such, the
Company is required to seek approval for
the new policy at the AGM to be held on

11 July 2017.Pages 58 to 65 provide the
fult details of the proposed policy

The Committee reviewed the senior
remuneration frarmework during the year
taensure that it remains fit for purpose’,
croviding an appropriate framework to
fulfit M&S’s reward philosophy whichis, in
turn, designed to support and drive the

business strategy. Changes proposedtothe
policy are minimal as the Committee felt
the previously approved framewark rermains
broadly appropriate. For transparency, the
table below sets out an overview of the key
areas of the policy

Base salary Benefits

MAIN FEATURES OF CURRENT POLICY

Pension benefits Annual Bonus Scheme

Nen-executive directors
{including Chairman)

Performance Share Plan

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

= Increases awarded = Benefits providedat | -» Drecrorsmay = Maximum opportunity | =2 Maximum award - Feesreviewed

arenarmally inline
wirh thase elsewhere
nthe busmess
Adjustrrents in
excess of this may
be made wherethe
Commiltee deems
t appropraie

POLICY CHANGE

arate commensurate
w th the market and
currently include
acarorcash
allowance,a driver,
andlife assurance
plus other benefits
provdedtoall
ermployees, ncluding
ermployee discount

of 200% of salary

- 40% o total bonus
de‘erred into shares
far hree years

paricipate n M&S's
defined contribution
arrangement on the
sarme terms as other
employees, or receve
acash supplement
nlieuof pension
conirbutions Cash
alternative maximum
15 currently 25% 0"
salary “or other
executive directors
(30% for CEC)

- Measured aga nst
Adjusted Group PBT
{currently 70% of
award) and indvidual
abjectives

- Clawbackand malus
prov.s.cns apply

of 300% of salary.

- Performance
measured agans:
financ.al targets over
athree-year period

= Clawback and malus
provis ons apply

annually

—> Comprisebasic fee
plus addit-onal fee for
extrarespansibilty of
Board or committee
chairmanor Senor
Independent NED

~»Inaddinon, the
Charrmanmay be
enttledtothe use
of acarand driver

- Salaries w llbe
compared agamnst
appropriately-sized
l.sted cormmparies

which may be outside

ofthe MSE 25-75
detaled .nthe
previous policy.

- No change

-» For current exaecutve
drectors, ihe
mMaximum cash
allowance wllbe
limitedto 25% of
salary for all
{mncluding the CEO)

—> Naochange

= Forfuture
appontraents, the
cashamount payable
w llbe capped at 20%
of salary for all

= Atwo-year holding
per odpost
ves: ngwllbe
niroduced

= Per‘grrmance
condhit ons May
include guanzifiable
non-fnancal/
strateqic Measures,
with financ.al
Measures Comprsing
at least 50% of awards

- Fees willbe
comparedaganst
appropriately-
sized companies
which maybe cutside
ofthe FTSE 25-75
detailed inthe
pravious policy.

COVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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REMUNERATION POLICY

FICURE 1: EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY TABLE (TO BE APPROVED ON 11 JULY)

This report sets out the Company's policy
onremuneration for executive and
non-executive directors to be approved
by sharchotders at Lhe ACMon 11 July 2017,
fromwhich date the policy willapply The
policy rermains largely unchanged lrom
that approved by shareholders in 2014;
for transparency, where amendrments
have been made these are highlighted,
Onceapproved, this policy may operate
forupto three vears

As previously, the Committee has buitt in a
degree of {lexibility to ensure the practical
application of the policy over this period
Where suchdiscretionis reserved, the extent
towhichit may ke appliedis described.

The Company's policy remains toaltract,
retainand motivate tsieadersand ensure
they are focused ondelvering business
priorities withina framework designedto
promote the long-term success of M&S,
aligned with shareholder interests.

Further infermation regardingthe
implermentation of the previous remunaration
policyis set out onpages 66to 77,

KEY CHANGES TO THE POLICY
I

—> Base salar es will be
compared against major
retaillers and
approprately-sized
Lsted companies which
may be outside of those
ranked FTSE 25- /5,
Previgusly, the peer
group comprised FTSE
25-75 ranked companies.
This changereflecls
ME&S's FTSErank ng.

Base salary

= Maxomurn cash
payrments will be Lim ted
10 25% forall current
executive directors and
to 20% for all Future
execut ve directors This
reducnonbel lerreflects
pensIon arrangements
nthe wider workforce

Pension
benefits

= To further support
shareholder gignment a
two-year hold ng pericd
post vest-ngualtapply to
any awards granted to
executve dirgctorsafter
the 2017 AGM

- Perforrmance conditions
may row include
guantifizbte non-f nancial
or strategic measures
Fravipusly, performance
conditions were imitedto
financialrmeasures only
This change will ensure
strateg C abgrment of
the PSP

Performance
Share Plan

Base salary Benefits
ELEMENT
PURPOSE Toattract, retaimand metwvate To provide market-competitive benafits
AND LINK TO hugh calbre executives needed which drive ermployee engagernent
STRATECY ro deliver our strategy and drive and commitrment in our business
business performance
QPERATION -3 Payable ncash. - Directors are eligble toreceive
- Reviewed snnually by the binef‘rs in LmeL waLh our policies
Committee considenng anumber ¥ ‘Xh maymc;:: f’
of factors, ncluding - Acarorcashallowance,
- Adrwver,and
- Salaryincreasesawarded o other _ Lfeassurance
employeesnthe w der workforce
which are typically reviewed - Where appropriate, our Clobal/
annually on asimilar basis,and Dornestic Mobrlity Policy may apply
- Corrparable salariesin Th s mayinclude, but not be bmited
2ppropr ate comparator groups to, travel, relocation and tax
- Salaries reflect the experience, equabisation allowances.
responsxlity and contribution of the = Directors are offered a number of
individual and role within the Group otherpenefitsinlnewthallother
e e
- Appropriate comparator groups
mF;'; include major retailers and schemes such as Cycle2Work
similarly-sized listed companies = Directors may participate ina Save
which may be ranked outside of As You Earn Scherne and a Share
the FTSE 25-75. Incentive Plan and any other
all-employee share scherres onthe
same terms as Other errployees
MAXIMUM 2 While there is ng st maximurm, - While there 1s no set maxmum, any
OPPORTUNITY any increases are normally inline benefits will be provided at arate
with those :n the wider workForce cornmensurate with the market
= Individual adjustments in excess - Maximum participationin
of this may be made outside of this all-ernployee share scherres is
cycleat the discret:on of the nlne withlocal statutory Lmits
Comimitee whereappropriate.
Suchcircumstances can nclude
- Wheretherole scopehaschanged,
- Where comparable salares inthe
external market have changed, or
- Toapply satary progression “or
newly appointeddrectars.
PERFORMANCE N/A IR
CONDITIONS




Pension benefits
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Annual Bonus Scheme including
Deferred Share Bonus Plan (DSBP})

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Toattract andretain high calibre
executives througha comrmitrment Lo
responsible, secura retrement ‘unding
inlnew.hour Cormpany values

Todrve annual profitabilizy, strategic change and

ind vicual performance :nline w th the bus.ness plan
Torecogn se and reward individual cortr but ons to

the way we dobusness

The deferralinto shares provides al gnmen: wih sharehoiders’
{ong-term interests fallow ng the successful delvery

of shor-term targets

Measured aga nst the key financial drivers
of the bus ness plan Lo del ver susianable
value creation

To encourage long-term sharehold'ng ‘o

retain d rectors, and provide greater al gnrent
with shareholders’ nierests

2> Current drectors may partic pate
nrhe Your MAS Pens an Sav ng
Plan(a defined contribut 'on
arrangernentjoran alternal ve
pension savng vehicle that the
Company may offer, on the sarme
terms as all other ermployees or
receive 3 cash supplernent nlieu
of pension contributions into
this scheme.

—» Directorsare eligble to part cipate nths
non-contractual, d scretianary scheme

- Payments are made subject to the satisfact on
of predetermned targets set at the start of the
year,as approved by the Committee

- Not less than 50% of any bonus earned s pa:d ndeferred
sharesunder the DSBPw:th the remainder payable incash

- Deferred shares vest after aperiod of Lhree years subject (o
continued service, but no further performance conditions

-» Clawback and matus rules apply to cash and DSBP
awards respect vely, see explanatery notes (page 60}
for more nformation

- Coodleaver and change of contral provisions apply
Lo the deferred shares (see explanatory notes)

- The value of any dividends dunng Lthe deferred period
will be payable (see explanatory notes).

—» The Comm:tree retans the nght to exercise d'scretion,
bothupwards and downwards, to ensure that the level
of award payable is appropr ate and far nthe context of
the directors mdivdual performance and the Company's
overall performance Where exercised, the rationate for
this discret onwill be “ully disclosed ta shareholders n
the subsequent Annual Report.

— The Corrpany's principal long-Lerm .ncentive
scherre, approvedby shareholders .n 2015

—» Drectors are eligble to parucipate n th s
non-contracrual, discret onary plan

= Drectors rray receve an annual award
which vests after three years subject ta
predeterrmned performance cond.tons.

= Clawback and malus rules apply "o awards
{see explanatory notes)

= Cood leaver and change of control provisions
apply {see explanatory notes)

->» The value of any d vidends during "he vesting
perodwil be payable. (see explanatory notes)

CHANGE FOR 2017

— Awards granted after 11 July 2017 willbe
subject to a further two-year holding period
after the vesting date. Directors may sell
sufficient shares to satisfy the tax liability
on exercise but must retain the net number
of shares until the end of this two-year period.

= A maxirnum cash payment of 25% of

> A maximum employer contribution
of 12% of salary where the employee
contributes 6% of salary.

CHANGE FOR 2017

- The cash alternative provided to
current executive directors will
be limited to 25% of salary for all
directors. For directors appointed
to the Board after 11 July 2017,
the cash alternative will be up to
a maximum of 20% of salary for
all directors.

salary for current executive directors.

- Arraxirum annual potent al of up to 200% of salary

2 The max-mur value of shares (at grant) which
canbe made under anaward to anind vidualin
respect of a ‘inanc al year s 300% of salary

INJA

- Quant “iable one-year performance rreasures and
targets are set by the Cormrmittee sround financial
and indmidual objectives inked with the susianable
det very of thebusiness plan

- Financial performance measures comrpr se at least
50% of awards and may nctude, but not be irmited
to Croup PBT a“ter adjusted izems

= Typcally, no payrment for ndivdual objectives can
be earned unless a Lhreshold' tevel of Group PBT after
adjusted temshas beenach-eved This threshold levet
is setby the Commitiee aking .nto account the previous
year's per‘ormance and the business operating plan
for the current year,

-» Far threshold performance, up to 40% {currently 30%)
of rmax rum bonus potential may be payable for the
achieverrent of nd wvidual object ves

- Performance s measured over athree-year
penod aga nst a balanced scarecard of
approprate measures as determined by the
Caommitteeeachyear Th's currently ‘ncludes
EPS andROCE chasen as those measures which
suppart and dr ve top-line and bottom-lne
performance inlnew thbusnesssirateqy,
as well as Toral Shareholder Return {TSR)

-> The thresholdlevel of vesting s 20% oF
themax mum

= For perforrmance belween threshold and
mMaxrmum, awards vest onasiragh-line bas:s

CHANGE FOR 2017

~» Awards may be measured against
appropriate financial, non-financial andfor
strategic measures. Financial measures
comprise at least 50% of awards.

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED
|

FIGURE 2: POLICY TABLE

Executive directors may be in receipt of awards under share plans outside of the current remuneration framework detailed on pages 58
and 59, these may have been awarded upon recruitment or pricr to their appointment as an executive director While awards under these
plans do not form part of a forward-looking policy, for transparency, details of the plans are set out in the table below:

PURPOSE AND MAXIMUM PERFORMANCE
ELEMENT LINK TO STRATEGY OPERATION CPPORTUNITY CONDITIONS
Restricted Toenable therecruitrment = Restricted awards may be granted -2 White there sno - The CommitLee may
of keydirectors whoare for the recrutment of directors maximur set in the choose toapply no
Share Plan recessary to the delivery . . rules,the Committee  formalperformance
(RSP) of business strategy = Awards vest after arestricted periad, which considers the scale conditions save for
canvarybyaward butis typcally between N d
one and three years and structure continued service
of awards onan
=>Malus prov sions, good leaver and change of nchvigual basis
control prov.sions apply (see pages 60and 63)
= The value of any dividends duning
1he restricted penod will be payable
(see explanatory notes below)
Executive Measured agansithekey = Approved by shareholders and HMRC in 2015, = Avwardsarecapped > Awards vest subject
. drivers of our busness “he Committes may choose taaward share at 250% of salary in to atleast three-year
Share Option plan to deliver susta nable options to directors if appropr ate respect of any predetermined
Scheme (ESOS) value creation . h f nancial year of performance
- Malus provesions, good leaver and change of the Campany conditions.

To encourage long-term
shareholdingtoretan
directors, and prov de
greater alignment with
shareholders' interests

control provisions apply (see pages 60and 63}

- Optiens are normally exerc:sed bet ween the third
and tenth ann versares of grant, subject to the
achievernent of any performance conditions
set by the Committee

butinrecruitment
cireurstances awards
mMay be granted up
taah gherlmit of
400% of salary

EXPLANATORY NOTES

The Committee reserves thenght Lo
make any remuneration payments
notwithstanding that they are not in line
with the Policy set out above, where the
terms of the payment were agreed at
atime when the relevant individuat was
not a dircctor of the Company and, inthe
opinion of the Committee, the payment
was not in consideration of the individual
becoming a director of the Cormpany.

For these purposes, payments include the
Committee salislying awards of variable
remuneration and, inrelation to an award
over shares, the terms of the payment are
agreed at theume Lthe gwardis granted

Awards granted under the PSP DSBP and
RSP can be made inthe form of conditional
share awards, forfeitable shares, options

or rights with the same economic effect.
Inaddition, awards may boe settled in cash
Awards may incorperate the right toreceive
(in cash and shares) the value of dividends,
including any dividend tax crodit where
applicable, between grant and vesting on
the shares that vost. This amount may be
calculated ona cumulative basis, assuming
the reinvestment of dividends nto shares.

In the event of a variation of the Company’s
share capital or a demerger, special dividend
or other ovent which in the Commitiee’s
opinion may affect the price of shares, the
Committee may alter the terms of awards
and the numbcer of shares subject to them.
The terms of awards may be amendedin
accordance with the relevant planrules
(which were approved by shareholders
on 7 July 2018).

Any perforrnance conditions applicable
1o PSP and ESOS awards may be amended
by the Cormnmittee if an event occurs
which causes It to consider that the
per{ormance condition would not achieve
its oniginal purpese and the amended
performance condition s, in the opinion
of the Cornmittes noless difficult to
satisfy but for the eventin question.

CLAWBACK AND MALUS

M&Sis committed to ensuring its
remuneration arrangements motivate
participants to strive for exceptional
performance while also protecting
shareholder value from the Company
taking unnecessary risks. As such, clawback
and malus provisions apply to the executive
directors incentive arrangements Allshare
awards granted from 2013 ocnwards are
subject tomalus provisions. These provisions

allow the Committes, inits absolute
discretion, to determine at any time prior
tothe vosting of anaward toreduce the
number of shares, cancelan award or
mpose further conditions onanaward N
circumstances for which the Cormmittes
considers such action tobe appropriate.
Such circumstances may include, but not
be limited to,a material misstatement of
the Company’'s audited results.

In addition, clawback provisions were
introducedin 2015 and apply to cash
payments made under the Annual Bonus
Scherne Awards made under any of the
Company’s other executive share schemes
(including the Performance Share Plan)in
2015 and onwards wilt similarly be subject to
clawback provisions. These provisions
enable the Committee,inits absolute
discretion, to reclaim awards paidto
individuals forup to three years after the
respective vesting or payment date {orup
tolwa years in Lhe case of PSP awards)
where spoci§ied events occur. The specified
cvents include gross misconduct or where
amaterial misstatement of the Company’s
financial statements has occurrad,
Clawback may be effected, among other
means, by requiring the transfer of shares,
payment of cash or reduction of awards.
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EXPLANATORY NOTES CONTINUED

PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS AND
TARGET SETTING

REMUNERATION FRAMEWORK FOR
THE REST OF THE ORCANISATION

The Committee reviews annuzily the
measures, weightingsand targets for the
incentive arrangerments for the executive
directors. in doing so, the Committee
considers a number of factors which assist
informing a view. Theseinclude, but are not
limited to, the strategic priorities for M&S
over the short- tolong-term, shareholder
feedback, the risk profile of the business
and the macro-economic climate.

The Annual Bonus Scheme is measured
against a batance of profitabiity and

the delivery of key strategic areas of
impaortance for the business. The
profitability measure usedis Croup PBT
before adjusteditems as thisisused
internally tc report and assess business
performance by the Boarg and Qperating
Cornmittee Refertothe glossary onpages
133 to 134 for the definition of Croup PBT
before adjusteditems, and to Note | of the
financial statements for a description of
adjusted items.

The PSPis assessed against abalance of
measures identified as those most relevant
to driving both sustainable top-line and
bottem-line business performance, as
well as providing value for sharehaolders.
Thisis reflected in the EPS and ROCE
measures which focus on a balance of
profitability, cost controland the efficient
use of capitalinvestment

For 2017718, relative TSR will be introduced
to ensure focus on the value delivered to
shareholders. This is measured against a
bespoke group of retail companies which
are believed to provide a balanced portfolio
of those most likely to be alternative
nvestment choices for M&S shareholders.

Targets are set against the respective annual
and long-term operating plans taking into
account analysts' forecasts, M&5's strategic
olans, prior year performance, estimated
vest nglevels and the affordability of pay
arrangements. Targets are set to provide
asustainable balance of risk and reward

to ensure that, while being maotivational

far participants, maximum payments are
arly rmade for exceptional performance.

M&S's philosophy is to provide a fair and
consistent approach to pay. Remuneration
15 determined by level andis broadly aligned
with those of the executive directors

Base salaries are reviewed annually and
reflect the tocal labour market.

AllUK employees are eligible to participate
inthe Your M&S Pension Saving Planon

the sarme terms as the executive directors.
in addition, all UK employees are provided
with life insurance and employee discount,
andmay choose to participate nthe
Company’s all-employee share schemes
and szlary sacrifice arrangernents.

Allemployees are eligible to be considered
to participate in anannusl bonus scheme
which for the majority willbe a cash-based
payment partiatly determined by Group
PBT performance. For M&S's mast senior
executives, part of the bonus 1s deferred
intoshares for three years

Around the top 120 of M&S’s senior
executives may be invited to participate
in the PSP measured against the same
performance conditions as executive
directors Award levels granted are
determined to be aligned with market
practice and reflect an individual's levet
of seniority as well as their performance
and potential within the business.

CONSIDERATION OF WIDER
WORKFORCE PAY

The Committee monitors and reviews the
effectiveness of Lthe senior remuneration
policy and has regardtoits impact and
compatibility with remuneration policies
inthe wider workforce,

The Committee s provided throughout

the year with information detailing pay in
the wider workforce which gives additional
context for the Committee to make
informed decisions. The HR Director advises
Lthe Committee of the approach which will
be adopted with the forthcoming UK pay
roview and the Committee then considers
the executive dircctors' pay nline with
Lhose arrangement s

The HR Directer consults onall executive
director bonus objectives and advises the
Committee on how, and the extent to which,
these may be cascaded throughout the
Company Inapproving the budget for the
annualbonus, the Commuttee reviews all
bonus costs for the Company agamst the
operalting plan. The Committee also reviews
and approves any PSP awards madeto
executive directors and directors below

the Board prior to their grant

The Committee alsoreceves updates ona
variety of employee engagernent initiatives
which form part of our normal employee
engagement practices. Employees were nol
consulted on the development of Lhe policy.
The annual Your Say’ employee survey

asks employees about the fairness and
reasonableness of employee pay and
benefits. Any comments made through

this survey or through our network of
elected employee representatives via

our Business Involvement Croups are
considered. The Head of Performance &
Reward annually provides these employee
representatives with an explanation of the
Company's reward pnnciples and director
pay arrangements during the year, and s
available to answer guestions at this time.

CONSIDERATION OF
SHAREHOLDER VIEWS

The Committeeis committed toan
openandtransparent dialogue withits
shareholders on the 1ssue of executive
remuneration Where appropriate,

the Committee willactively engage
with shareholders and shareholder
representative bodies, seeking views
which may be considered when making
any decisions about changes to the
directors Remuneration Policy.

The Committee seeks the views of the
largest shareholders individually and
others through shareholder representative
bodies when considering making any
significant changes to the Remuneration
Policy; this may be done annually oronan
ad hoc bass, dependent upon theissue.
The Committee annually engagesina
process of investor consultation, which

15 typically in written format, but may

be through face-to-face meetings etc,

if considered useful The Committee
Chairmanis available to answer guestions
at the AGM and the answers to specific
questions are posted on our website

As part of cur socially responsible reporting
strategy,anannual shareholder meetingis
normally held and the consideration of
views on avariety of topics, including
executive pay,is taken into account.

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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RECRUITMENT POLICY .

Thetable below sets out the Company's Inaddition, the Committee in exceptional The rationale for any such component

policy onthe recruitment of new executive circumstances nas discretion toinclude any would be appropriately disclosed

directors Similar considerations may also other remuneration component or award Forexample, for internal promotional

apply where a director is promoted within which it feels s appropriate, considering appointments to the Board, the Committer

the Board the specific circumstances of the would honour any pre-existing contractual
individual, subject to the limit on rermuneration arrangements; these
variable remuneration set out below. arrangements may be outside of the

policy detailed on pages 5810 65 |

FIGURE 3; RECRUITMENT POLICY

ELEMENT RECRUITMENT POLICY
Salar -» The Cormmitiee will take into cansideration a nurmber of factors, including Lhe current pay for other executive directars,
y external market forces, skills and current level of pay at the previous employer, N determining the pay onrecrutmant
~> Far new appoine rents to the Board, the Comrmitree may set therate of pay at the lower end o the rate for other directors
and/or other comparable roles within the market wth the intennion of applying staged increases,
Benefits ~>» The Comrnittee will offer a package which 1s set inline with our policy te appropriately reflect the circumstances o the individuat,
Pension ~> Maximum contribulion intine with our policy for Future executive d rectors (up to 20% of salary)
benefits
Annual = Eligible 1o take part in the Annual Bonus Scheme with a maximum bonus of 200% of salary in line with our policy for
Bonus executive directors
Scheme
PSP = Anaward of up Lo 300% of salary inline with our pol cy for executive directors
B t = Where anind vidual forfeil s outstanding var able pay opportunities or contractual rghts at a previous employer a5 a result of
uy':u appointrment, the Cormmittee may ofter compeansatory payments or buy-out awsrds, dependent onthe ndmidual circumstances
AWards

of recrutment, decermined on a case-by-case basis.

-2 The Cormvntee nits judgerment normally ritends that ary such payments are made on a like-for-like basis and considers 1ssues
such as the plan ype, Lime honizons and valuation o the ‘orfeited awards The Cemmittee’s ntent.on would be to ensure that
‘he expected value awarded w Ll be no greater than the expected value forfeited by the ind:wvidual,

- Where appropr ate, the Commitlee may choose to apply performance conditions to any of these awards,

SERVICE CONTRACTS

Itis the Company’s policy that all executive directors have rolling service contracts that can be terminated by the Company giving
12 months notice and the employee giving six months' notice. The directors’ service contracts are available for shareholder inspection
at the Company's registered office.



TERMINATION POLICY

The Company may terminate the contract
of any executive director surmmarily in
accerdance with the terms of their service
agreement, on payment intieu of notice of
asumequalto salary, benefits and pension
as pertheir contractual notice entitlement
(seepage 75)

The Company can make a series of phased
payments which are paid in maonthly
instalments, subject to mitigation. This
mechanism atlows for the amount of any
phased payments tobe reducedby the
income from any alternative position
secured by the former director during

the phased payments period

Service agreerments may be terminated
without notice and without any payments

in certain circumstances, such as gross
misconduct. The Company may require the
individual to work durnng their notice period,
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TERMINATION POLICY

or may choose to place the individual on
garden leave, Such a decision would be
made to ensure the protection of the
Company's and shareholders'interests
where the individual has had access to
commercially sensitive information.

The table below sets out key provisions
for directors leaving the Company under
their service contracts and the incentive
planruies.

The Company's policy towards exit payments
atlows for a variety of circumstances
whereby a director may leave the business
Insome cases, where deerned suitable, the
Committee reserves the right to determine
exit payments, where the director leaves by
mutual agreement. In all circumstances,

the Committee does not intend to reward
failure’ and witl make decisions based on the
individual circumstances. The Committee’s
objectivais that any such agreements are

FIGURE 4: KEY PROVISIONS UPON CONTRACT TERMINATION

determnined on an individual basis and are
in the best interests of the Company and
shareholders at that time, andreflect the
director's contractual and other legal rights.

CORPORATE EVENTS

Inthe event of achange of controlor
winding-up of the Cornpany, unvested share
awards willnormally vest onthe date that
the Boardnotifies participants of suchan
event. The nurmnber of shares which may

vest under awards in these crcumstances
witl be subject to any relevant performance
conditions and, inithe case of PSP awards,
unless the Committee determines
otherwise, time pro-rating

Inthe event of a demerger, special dividend
ar other event which, in the opinion of the
Committee affects the price of shares,

the Committee may allow some or all of

an award to vest

ELEMENT TERMINATION POLICY
Salary, benefits - Payment willbe made up to the termination date inbne w th relevant contractual notice periods
*
and pension
benefits
Annual = There s no contractual entitlement te payments under the Annual Bonus Scheme, Should a directeor be under nouice ornot inact ve
service at ether the relevant year end ar on the date of paymens, there will be noc ent'tlement to any bonus paymen:, either ncash
Bonus or shares The Corrmittee may use's d'screbon as described below to rrake abonus award, wh ch s normally pro-rated for hime
Scheme worked during the refevant “inancialyear and based on performance assessed a: the end o the bonus period
Long-term = Where adirector ceases to be an officer or errployee of the Group he“ore the end of the relevant vesting penad, the treatment
. gt' ofoutstanding awards s deterrmined in accordance with the planrules.
mcentive
awards = Insome crrcumstances, where a drector teaves due toretrement, Injury, ll-health, death or the sale of the drector's employ ng

company or business out of the Group, or any ozher reason at the d scretion of the Committee and in accordance with the planrules,
DSBP awards norrmaily vest in full on cessat.on; PSP and ESOS awards which have been held for at least 12 months normally vest
when:helevel of performance has been assessed and agreed at the end o the three-year performance perniod The Cormmittee
may determine these awards vest upon cessation as perritted inthe planrules Ine ther crcurmstance any retevant perforrmance
conditions would still apply to the PSP and ESOS awards and, unless Lhe Comrrittee delerm’nes otherwise, would be time pro-rated
and subject ro the twao-year holding period post vesting.

Repatriation

-¥ Where a drector has been recru ted either to the Company or the Board frorm overseas, the Cormpany may pay for repatration

Legal
expenses and
outplacement

= The Corr pany may reimburse for reasonable legal “ees in the evenr a director leaves by murualconsent It may alsa pay for
professional outplacernent serv ces inthese circumslances
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY
‘N

The table below sots out our policy for the operation of non-executive directors fees and benefits at the Company.

Chairman’s Non-executive Additicnal Benefits
fees director basic fee fees
ELEMENT
PURPOSE Toprov de afarfeeat alevel To provide a far basic fee To provide compensation To facilitate the execut on
2?&;;%‘;70 that attracts and reta ns 3t arate that attracts and Lo non-executive direclars of respons bilities and duties
4 high-cal bre Chairrman retains high-calibre taking on addit onal Board required by the role.
non-executive directors responsibilities,
OQPERATION > Inadd tion to the annual

~» Totalfee comprised of
the non-executive drector
pasic fee and the additional
fee "or undertaking therole

= Paidd inequal monthly
instalments, may be made
incash and/or shares

~» Fees are deterrined by the
Rermuneration Commuttee

- Feesreflect the time
commitment, demands and
responsibility of the role

- Reviewed annually, taking
NtOaccount Mmarket
practice inappropnate
comparatar groups,
eg rmajorretalers,
appropriately-szed lsted
comparies, etc

CHANCGE FOR 2017

— Appropriate comparator
groups may include major
retailers and similarly-
sized listed companies
which may be ranked
outside of the FTSE 25-75.

FIGURE 6. RECRUITMENT POLICY

-» Fees are padinequal
rnonthly instalments
and may be made incash
and/or shares

-» Fees are determined by
the Chairman ang
executive directors

- The feelevelrecognises the
scope of the role and time
commitment required

- Reviewed annually taking
nto account market
pract ce nappropriate
COMParaior groups
(eg.rajorretalers,
appropriately-sized
| sted companies, etc)

- The maximum aggregate
non-execulive director
basic fees, including the
Chairman, s £750,000p 2.
assetout inthe Company's
Articles of Association

CHANCE FOR 2017

-> Appropriate comparator
groups may include major
retailers and similarly-
sized listed companies
which may be ranked
outside of the FTSE 25-75.

- Additional Fees are pard
for extraresponaib lites
undertaker by
non-executve directors
for therote of Board
Charrmman,a committeg
chairman or the Senier
Independent Director role

fee, the Charrman may be
enttledtothe useofacar
and driver,

-» Inline with other
emplayees, the Cha:rman
and non-executive
drectors recewve employee
product discount, No other
benefits are prov ded

= The Chairman and
non-executive directors
donot participate in
penson or performance-
reiated schemes

The table below sets out the recruitment policy for non-executive directors.

ELEMENT RECRUITMENT POLICY
Eees - The Committee Lakes Nto account a numbaer of factors when determinng an appropriate fee (evel for the Chairman The CEQ
andexecutve drectors determine appropr ate fee levels far the non-execut ve directors Th s consideration includes the time
cormmitmeny: andrespons b lity of the ndividual role and market pracice n appropriate comparator groups
Benefits = TheJompany may offer benefits to the Charman and non-execut ve drectors as deraled n the non-executive director policy

table above

AGREEMENTS FOR SERVICE

All non-executive directors, including the Chairman, have an agreement for service for aninitiat three-year term; these are available for
shareholder inspection at the Company's registered office The Chairman has an agreement for service which reguires six months' notice
by either party. Non-executive directors service agreements may be terminated by either party giving three months notice. In line with
the UK Corporate Governance Code, all non-executive directors are subject to annual re-election by shareholders at our AGM.

KEY CHANGES TO THE POLICY

- Fees will be compared agans: mgjor retalers and
sirmilarly-sized Listed companies which may be
ranked outs.deof the FTSE 25-/5 detailed inthe

Fees

previous policy



FIGURE 7: SUMMARY OF REMUNERATION POLICY {TO BE APPROVED ON 11 JULY 2017)
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY
]

See KPI5 on p18-21

The diagram below illustrates the balance of pay and time period of each element of the proposed remuneration policy for executive
directers which, fapproved, will take effect after the 2017 AGM The Cormmittee believes this mixture of short-and long-term incentives

fixed to performance-related pay is appropriate for M&S's strategy and nisk profile.

| ACET | Year 2 | Year 3

Year 4 Year 5

Total pay

T
Fixed Base salary

pay Benefits

Pension benefits

Annual Up to 100% salary Up to 100% salary

Bonus 1-year performance 3-year deferral period

Scheme - "
Clawback provisions No further performance conditions
apply Maius provisions apply
| | |

PSP Awarded typically 250% salary

3-year perfermance

Matus provisions apply

2-year holding period post vesting
Nao further performance conditions

Clawback provisions apply

APPLICATION OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY
L

The charts below provide anillustration of what could be received by each of the executive directors in 2017/18. These charts are illustrative
as the actual value which will ultimately be received will depend on business perfermance inthe year 2017/18 (for the cash element of the
Annual Bonus Scheme) and inthe three-year period to 2019/20 (for the PSP), as well as share price performance to the date of the vesting of
the share element of the Annual Bonus Scheme and PSP awards in 2020

FIGURE 8: REMUNERATION ILLUSTRATIONS

DIRECTORS

KEY

BASIS OF CALCULATIONS

Fixed remuneration

Includes all elernents of fixed rerruneration

- Basesalary(effect've 1 July 2017 as shown nthe table on page 67,

- Pens.onbenefits {usng the cash supplement polcy on pages 58 to 59), and

- Benefitsusing the value for 2016/17 ncluded nthe single f gure table cnpage 66

Annual Bonus Scheme (ABS)

Represents the potental value of the annual bonus for 201//18.Half of any bonus
would be deferred nto shares for three years and th's is included in the value shown
No share price growshis assumed.

PSP

PSP represents the potential value of the PSP tobe awarded in 2017, which would
vast i 2020 sukject to the parformance agains: the targets d sclosed onpage /7!
Aforards would thenbe held “ora further *wo years Noshare price growth s assumed

Fixed Ixedremuneration anly
Nowvesting under "he ABS and PSP

Target Includes the follow ng assumpt.ons
for the vesting of the incentive
camponents of the package

-ABS. 50% of max rmum, and

- PSP 20% of rrax.murm.

Maximum Includes the follow ng assurrptions
for <he vesing of the ncentive
components o the package

- ABS 100% ol maximurm, andg

- PSP 100% of rmax rmurm
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee annually ensure that not only is the framework
reviews Lhe senior rermuneration framework strategically aligned to the delivery of
and considers whether the existing incentive  business priorities, but also that payments

arrangements remain approgriately madc durng the year fairly reflect the
challenging inthe context of the business performance of the business. As illustrated
strategy, current external guigelines and on page 56, a significant proportion of the
arange of nternal factors including the pay performance measures used in the incentive
arrangements and policies throughout the schemes arcintegrated with M8S's business
rest of the organisation. Inits discussions, obyjectives andkey performance indicators
the Remuneration Cormmittee aims to detailed on pages 181c 21.

FIGURE 9;: REMUNERATION STRUCTURE 2016/17

table below (Figure 10).

The diagram below illustrates the extent
{o which each executive director achieved
the maximum epportunity under the
Companysincentive schemes asa result
of short-andiong-term performance to
the end of thereported financial year

and summarises the main clements of
the senior remuneration frarmework,
Further details of payments made during
tho year are set out inthe single figure

See KPIs on p18-21

. + + = Total pay
Fixed pay Annual bonus PSP for 2016/17
200% salary maximum 250% salary awarded
Base salary bonus opportunity in 201415
(with 50% deferral)
Measured against EPS, Total
Benefits ROCE and Revenue Largets,
Measuredagainst a Achievernent was below payments
baLgn;; OchrO]:Jp PBTand threshold against these range between
Pension benefits Individual performance. MEasures. 35% and 37%
of maximum
potential
Payments made are between
No salary increase 37% - 42% of maximum 0% of award vested
honus oppertunity
For more information see p68 For more infarmation see p71
FIGURE 10: TOTAL SINGCLE FIGURE REMUNERATION (audited)
Salary Benefits Total Total PSP Pension Total
bonus vested benefits
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Directar Year
Steve Rowe 2016/17 809 32 599 8] 202 1,642
2015416 549 34 230 56 137 1,006
Patrick Bousguet-Chavanne 2016/17 546 22 459 0 137 1,164
201516 541 38 366 40 135 1,20
Laura Wade-Cery 2015/17 35 8 Y Q 63 106
(to 12 September 2016) 2015/16 383 8 207 59 141 808
Helen Weir 2016/17 590 19 496 0 148 1,253
2018/16 530 208 620 0 148 1,566

Laura Wade-Cery left the Board on 12 Septernber 2016 and, as such, the payments above relate to those made until that date.
Further details of Laura's leaving arrangerments are detailed on page 75 of thisreport.

As disclasedin the 2015 report, for Heten Weir, benefits for 2015/16 also included £138,500, the differential value in contractual pension she

forferited to join M&S. This was paid in 12 monthly instalments

Note that the value of awards vestingin 2015/16 has been restated to reflect the actual value of dividend equivalents and share price

at the time of vesting.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION CONTINUED

The following sections detait
additicnal disclosures regarding
each of the components set out
N the previous single figure table.

SALARY (audited)

When reviewing salary levels, the
Committee takes into account anumber
of internal and external factors, including
Company performance during the year,
external market data and the salary
review principles applied to the rest

cf the orgarisation, toensurea
consistent approach

Asreportedinlast year'sreport, all
executive directors were awarded a
sataryincrease of 2% for July 2016 but,

in support of the proposed new pay
arrangernents being made elsewherein
the UK organisation, they chose to decline
thisincrease Further theyalsoindicated
that should anincrease be awarded for
July 2017, they would be similarly minded
to decline that increase.

FIGURE 11: SALARIES

The Committee noted this intention but
for completeness, discussed the executive
directors annual salary review during the
year. Allexecutive directors were eligible to
be considered for a review and after taking
into account several factors including the
average increases to be awardedtothe
wider UK workforce, the Committee
approveda 2% pay increase

All executive directors have again this year
declined theirrespective pay increases
Ther nextannual review will be effective
in July 2018.

The table below details the executive
directors salariesasat 1 April 2017
and salaries which will take effect
from | July 2017

Annualealary  Annualsalary

ELa asof Chisnge

VARt 2007 1 aly 2007 msalaty

£000 £000 % ncrosse

Steve Rowe 810 810 0

Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 546 546 Q

Helen Weir 590 580 0
BENEFITS (audited) PENSION BENEFITS {(audited)

Each executive director receives a car of
cash allowance andis offercd the benefit
of a driver The Company also provides
each director with life assurance Executive
directors receive employee product
discount and are eligible to participate

in salary sacrifice schemes suchas
Cycle2Workin line with all other employees

FIGURE 12: PENSION BENEFITS

Exccutive direclors currently all receve
a 25% cash payment inticu of participation
N an M&S pension scheme.

Steve Roweis a deferred member of the
Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme.
Details of the pensionaccrued durng the
yoar ended 1 April 2017 are shown below

Accrued Increase Transfer

pens.on Adaitional inaccrued value of

eat tement value Increase value Lofal

SNormal asar onearly naceraed (metof accrued

retirerment year enrd retirement valup inflation) pension

age £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Steve Rowe 60 148 Q 2 0 4,301

The accrued pension entitlement is the deferred pension amount that Steve Rowe would
receive at age 60if he left the Comipany on 1 April 2017 Alltransfer values have been
calculaled onthe basis of actuarial advice in accordance with the current Transfer Value
Regulations The transfer value of the accrued entittement represents the value of the
assets that the pension scheme would transfer to another pension provider ontransferring
the scheme's liability inrespect of a director’s pension benefits. It does not represent sums
payable to a director and therefore cannot be added meaningfully to annual remuneration
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ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME

ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME 2016/17
(audited)

Annual performance for 2016/17 was
measured against Croup PBT (70% of
awards)and individual performance (30% of
awards) Croup PBT s used inthe bonus as
the Croup considers this to be animportant
measure of Group performance and

15 consistent with how the business
performance is assessed internally by

the Board and Operating Committee.

Individuat performance was rmeasured
against both collectve corporate
performance and performance aligned
with the individual's specific areas of
responsbility Individual performance
measures for the year were aligned with the
key strategic business priorities identified at
the start of the year. Figure 13 provides an
overview of the key achievements against
eachexecutive director's accountabilities
over the pericd

Croup PBT outturn for the year was £613 8m
which was above the targets set to trigger
payments under both the corporate and
individual elements of the Scherme.

As shown in Figure 14 below, this meant
that executive directors were awarded
279% of maximum opportunily under the
corporate element of the Scherme and on
average ¢.70% of maxirmum for individuat
performance.

The Committee reviewed achieverment
tocnsure that tolal payments were
appropriate in the context of several factors
These mcluded M&S's overall financial
performance, the outturn of individuat
objeclves, the level of bonus payable
elsewhere inthe business, and success
towards Plan Atargets and M&S values
which underpinned the entire Scheme
again duringthe year.

See Plan A Report for more detail

The Committee was satisfied thal each
dircctor continued to ensure that the
delivery of Plan A commitments and the
behavioural ways of working supported
the delivery of the business prioritios.

As such, the Committee determinedthat
na adjustments were required against the
underpin and that the final payments
calculated were appropriate.

FICURE 13: KEY ACHIEVEMENTS OF INDIVIDUAL OBJECTIVES 2016/17

The Committec ensures that Largets set
are the relevant drivers of required annuat
performance. Consequently, some of the
2016/17 targets are too commercially
sensitive to disclose as they are not
disclosed elsewherginthe repaort.

MES remains cornmittedio transparent
reporting within the context of operating
ina highly competitive market, The
Commiitee will continue to assess the
commercial sensitivity of targets with the
aim of disclosing wherever possible, while
ensuring that any measures set are those
most appropriate to grow the business,

Figure 14below sets out the Croup PBT
largets comprising 70% of awards and
illustrates the extent to which cach director
achieved their three individuat objectives.
Total payments shown below directly
correspond tothe figureincludedinthe
single figuretable on page 66

Direcror Coliectve customer (10%) Collec tive strategic (10%) Local financiel (10%)

Steve Performance impacted by reductionin

Rowe Action taken this year to promotional and markdown activity leading to
Cust tisTacti simplify the business included below target UKLFL Clolthing & Homerevenue
thus Orher satls ag \r\?ntover the successful crganisation growth of -3.4% Asaresult, no payment was

eyearimproved Net transformationand restructure  made against this element,
Promaoter Score (NPS) which -
- ; of Headt Office. Role reductions - - - -
Patrick was the reasure for this Continued improvements in online sales

Bousquet-Chavanne

Helen
Weir
measure of 75%

element of bonus, increased
four points for Foodand for
Clothing &Horme remained
level, although improved
amongst frequent customers
andn larger stores, This led
to a payment against this

were made and there was no
overallimpact onengagament
scores for this population
Employee engagement within
the total business increased

to 81% Asaresull of this
perforrmance, including above
target restructure cost savings,
maximum payrnent was made
under this measure (10%)

conversion and successfulmarketing
campaigns to help drive store foetfall,
Target payment made as a result of
performance against these measures.

Continued to develop and strengthen a cost
control culture Necessary investmentina
rurnber of key business areas led to costs
increasing by 3.8%, broadly intine with plan,
Target payment was achieved.

FICURE 14;: ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME 2015/17

CORPORATE CROUP PBT (70%) INDIVIDUAL {30%) TOTAL PAYMENT
Target/performance Performance Achievement

Directar Min £593m Max £685m %salary £000
Steve 27.9% of max benus 58.3% of max bonus 74.0% £599
Rowe

£613.8m
Patrick 27.9% of max bonus 75.0% of max bonus 84.0%% £45%9
Bousquet-Chavanne

£613.8m
Helen 27.9% of max bonus 75.0% of max bonus 84.0% £496
Weir

£613.8m

Performance assessment koey

Below Threshicld Trresned » Tasget

Target = Strewen

Above Streteh



DEFERRED SHARE BONUS PLAN
(audited)

Currently 50% of any bonus payment

is computsorily deferred into nil-cost
options/conditional shares These awards
vest after three years subject to continued
employment as well as malus provisions.
The table opposite provides details of share
awards made during the year in respect

of bonus payments made in 2015/16
Theface value of each award reflects half
of the value shown for 2Z015/16 bonus
paymentsin the single figure table.

Asreported at the time, Laura Wade-Gery's
award vested infullon the date sheleft
the Company

ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME FOR 2017/18
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ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME CONTINUED
L _________________________________________________________ |

FICGURE 15;: DSBP AWARDS MADE IN 2015/16

Faceva.weo®

award’ Engof

Besis of award £000 deferral oer oo

Steve Rowe 50% of bonus £115 22/06/2019

Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 50% of bonus £183 22/06/2019

Laura Wade-Gery 50% of bonus £104 30/09/2016

Helen Weir 50% of bonus £310 22/06/2019
* Theface vawe of awaras s calcualated as the numberof 1 -Cosl 4pt SNE/ToT0na, snares awaraed mMulo.enoy the

average mid-market share 2'.ci ontne frve oea, ag davs prarfarne nateof grant Forthis year the snare pr oo wss
caleuatedas £3558, 00 nytheaverageshare price betwoen 5 June 207 6end 20 June 20'6

During the year, the Committee reviewed
the 2017/18 Schemg, consering Lhe drive
to continue the now strategic way forward
for M&S to grow the business. it determined
thal the structure of the 2016/17 Schermne
remained appropriate and only rminor
amendments were necessary to ensure
atignment with the delivery of the pusiness
priortics. The 2017/18 Schemeis designed
to continue to focus onputting the
customer at the heart of Lhe business

and driving the profitable growth of M&S
while supporting the onc team strategy,

as has been described to stakehoiders.

Performance willagain be partiatly
measured against collective corporate
performance as well as performance in

the individual's specific business area, As in
previous years, individual perforrnance will
continue to be measured independently of
Croup PBT performance. Howevor, to

rmairtain the mportant principle that below
a definedlevel of financial performance no
bonus will be carned, no individual element.
can beearned unless a threshold leval of
Croup PBT has becn achieved.

As shown below, 70% of awards wilonce
againbc measured against Group PET
under the corporate element. The remaining
30% of the bonus wilt be measured against
individual objectives and will be a mixture of
collective objectives and measures bespoke
to each director The individual element of
the Scheme will comprise three equally
weighted objectives identified as those key
priorities required to support the detivery of
the strategy. These will focus on LFL sales
growthimproverment, delivering financial
efficiencies, enhancing our customer
experience and satisfaction and bulding on
the benefits of Lhe customer loyalty Sparks
programme and our Plan A nitiatives,

FIGURE 16: ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME TARCETS 2017/18

The bonus performance targets for 2017/18
are deemed by the Board to be Lloo
commerciatly sensitive Lo disclose at

this time but, where possible, witlbe
disclosedin next year's report.

The Committee willcontinue Lo judge
overall performance against our ecclogical,
ethical and behavicuralachievernents to
ensure consistency with M&S's vatues and
behaviours Success towards Plan Atargets
and the M&3 values, which allemployees
including executive directors arerequired
to uphold, willunderpin the entire Scheme.
The Committee, inits absolute discration,
may useits jJudgement to adjust overall
final payments accordingly. Where any
adjustments are made, these will be fully
disclosed innext year's report

CORPORATE TARGETS INDIVIDUAL OBJECTIVES
GROUP PBT Customer Financial Stratagic
Director % bhonus % bonus % DONUS #Hoonus  Measure
Steve 70% 10% 10% 10%  Customaer satisfaction
Rowe Total UK LFL sales
Strength of leadership succession
Patrick 70% 0% 10% 10% Customer satuisfaction
Bousquet-Chavanne Sparks
PlanA
Helen 70% 10% 10% 10%  Customer salisfaction
Weir UK store estate

Cost ef ciencies
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PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN (PSP)

The Committee believes that long-term
share awards reward executives for the
delivery of long-term business goals and
sO Makes annual awards under the PSP 1o
Incentivise cxecutive directors angd M&5%'s
MOSE SeNIor Mmanagers

PSP AWARDS MADE IN 2016/17 (audited)

As was disclosed last year, PSP awards made
for 2016/17 were grantedin Decernber 2016
shortly after the announcement of the
Interim results This was to ensure that

the measures and targets were aligned

to the long-term strategic business plan
developed by Steve Rowe and his leadership
tearn As we communicated to shareholders
during this period of review, the strategy to
create a simpler, more sustainable business,
with the customer atits heart, and operating
asoneteam will require several actions.

These actions will lead to reduced profits in
the short term but will deliver a stronger,
more sustainable business in the tonger
term These include an investment inpricing
in the Clothing & Home business to ensure
market competitiveneass, reshaping Lthe

UK store estate and restructuring Lhe
International business. The revised financiat
planalso took account of the significant
currency impact which has arisen since the
EU Referendum, which will adverselyimpact
profits. Ingpproving targets, the Committee
alsoconsidered the consensus forecasts for
the three financial years over which the Plan
wouldoperate.

As shownin Figure 17 below, performance
for these awards is measured against EPS,
ROCE and curnulative free cash flow

Eachperformance condition s measured
independently over the three-year period

FIGURE 17: PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS FOR PSP AWARDS MADE IN 2016/17

The balance of measures has been
designedteo drive the profilable, efficient
growth of M&S while atsc focusing on
providing returns to shareholders

The Committee believes that the targats
set for the 2016/17 PSP award are very
strotchingin the current environment and
achievernent of these levels of performance
in 2018/19 would drive substantiat value for
shareholders. The changes made are folg
necessary to provide sufficient realignment
with the new strategic financial planto
cnsure the PSP supports and drives the
desired business performance Consistent
with previous years, for achievement of
threshold performance, 20% of the relevant
portion of the award will vest increasing

to 100% on astraight-line basis between
the achievernent of threshold and
maximum performance

Avarage ROCE Cumulative free

Ad,usted TPS (2016/17 - 20'8/19) cash flow

n2018/19' %) [20i6/ /- 2018/19)7

2016417 Award 50% of award 20% of award 30% of award
Threshold performance 284p 130% £1,350m
Maximum performance 358p '6.0% £1,650m

I Eachrneasarers detnad in the glossary onoages 13 tand 134

2 Preaw denas and shareholser returns

Figure 18 below surnmarises the award made 1o cach of the executive directors in Decernber 2016. The maximum award permitted under
the Plan s 300% of salary although the Cormnmittec typically makes awards of 250% of salary to executive directors. For 2016/17, awards of
225% of salary werc awarded Lo all execulive directors Inapproving this award level, the Committee noted that award levels for excculives
have typically been 250% of salary. Upon discussion, the Committee decided that, inrecognition of the rebased linancial plan and
associated PSP performance measures, lower awards were appropriate for this particular grant onty.

Inline with the Remuneration Policy, awards to executive directors will vest on b Decemnber 2019, three years after the date of grant, Lo the
extent that the perfermance conditions are met,

FICURE 18: PSP AWARDS MADE IN 2016/17

Face vawe Endof

ot award performance

Basisof award 000 pencd

Steve Rowe 225% of salary £1823 05/12/2019
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 225% of salary £1,229 05/12/2019
Helen Weir 225% of salary £1,328 05/12/2019

When calculating the face value of awards to be granted, the number of nil-cost options/conditional shares awarded s multiplied by the
average mid-markel share price on the five dealing days prior to the date of grant. For this year, the share price was calculaled as £3.28,
being the average share price between 28 November 2016 and 2 December 2016,
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PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN (PSP) CONTINUED
.|

FIGURE 19: PSP AWARDS VESTING IN 2016/17 {audited)

For directors inreceipt of PSP awards grantedin 2014, the awards will vest in Jurie 2017 based on three-year performance over the period to
1 April 2017 Performance has been assessed and it has been determined that the award will lapse in full

Details of performarnice against the specific targets set are shownin the table below The total vesting values shown in Figure 20 directly
correspond to the figure included in the single figure table on page 66

2016/'7 Revenue(f)

Annua.iseo
adusten £5% Average
growtn ROCE
%) (%) LK Mut -2nanne I~ternational
2014/%5 Award 50% of zward 20% of award 0% of awarss 10% of awarn 0% of award Total vesting
Threshold performance 5.0% 15.0% £8900m E1,00m £1,400m
Maximum performance 12.0% 16.5% £9,600m £1,300m £1,800m
Actual performance achieved -19% 145% £8,530m £957m £1,134m
Percentage of maximum achieved o 0 0 0 0 0.0%
1 Zxtluding multi-channel
2 Net of VAT/gross ofreturng
3 Zxciuding multi-channelincuding epublc oF reland
FIGURE 20: VESTING VALUE OF AWARDS VESTING iN 2016/17
Ongrant A:theend of peifarmance penod
Numper of %of Nurnber of Nurmber of Teotal vesting
shares granted zalary granted shares veshing shares lapsing value
Steve Rowe 300,343 250% 0 300,343 £0
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 300,343 250% 0 300,343 £0
LauraWade-Cery 315,789 250% 8] 315,789 £0

Helen Weir

- - £0

PSP AWARDS TO BE MADE IN 2017/18

During the year, the Committee roviewed
the long-termincentive framework at
M&S, assessing the extent o which it
rernained approgriate,

As part of these discussions, the Committee
deliberated onanumber of possible
structures including those outlined in the
Investment Association's Executive
Remuneration Working Group report. After
extensive consideration, it was decided that
the current structural arrangements remain
those mast appropriate to support the
delivery of the necessary development

and performance in M&S That said, the
Committee determined that during this
period, the business musL continue to
ensurea focus cnreturns to shareholders,
As such, relative Total Shareholder Return
(TSR} will for this year form one-Lhird of PSP

awards, although the Committee betieves
that, in future years, other strategic or
nen-financial measures may e more
appropriate and witl consider this for
future grants.

Relative TSR willbe measured aganst 2
bespoke group of 15 companies takenfrom
the FTSE 350 General and Food & Druig
Retailersindices and are believed to be
appropriately aligned to M&S's business
operations to reflect the vatue of
sharcholder investment in M&S over the
performance period (see Figure 22 for
details of these companies).

The rernainder of the award witl be
measured equally against EPS and ROCE.
The balance of measures has been designed
toensurc an appropnate focus onallthree
performance metrics,

FIGURE 21: PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS FOR PSP AWARDS TO BE MADE IN 2017/18

As nolodon the previous page, recognising
last year'srebased financial plan and
associated PSP porformance targots, the
Remuneration Committee reduced the
2016/2017 awards to 225% of salary from

the typicallovel of 250% However, the
Committee is mindful of the need Lo
strongly incentivise the CEG and
management team to deliver the agreed
strategy Inlight of this, and giventhat EPS
targots arereturning to a growth trajectory,
the Committec has determined that awards
in 2017 should revert Lo the previous normal
level of 250% of salary.

Performance willbe measured as shown in
Figure 21 below, with 20% of awards vesting
for threshold performance and 100% for
maximum In ling with the new policy,
awards willvest three years after the date

of grant, and must then beheldfor afurther
Llwo years

AdjusteniPS

Average ROCR
(2017/18 - 2019/20)

20920 (%) Relar v TSR
201718 Award 13 of awarn 173 of award JIotaward
Threshold performance 37p 130% Medhan
Maximum performance 387p 170% Upper quartile
FiGURE 22: TSR COMPARATOR GROUP 2017/18 AWARD
J&ainsbury B&M European Kingfisher
wm Morrisons Debenhams N Brown Group
Tesco Dixons Carphone Next
Ocado Croup Dunelm Group Sports Direct International
ASOS JD Sporls Fashion WHSMIth
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
]
FICURE 23: DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS (audited)

The table below sets out the total number of shares held at 1 April 2017 or date of retirement from the Board by each executive director
sarying on the Board during the yaar Shares owned outright include thase held by connected persons.

There have been no changes inthe current directors interest s in shares or options granted by the Company and its subsidiaries between the
end of the financial year and 23 May 2017 No directer had an interest in any of the Company’'s subsidiaries at the statutory end of the year.

Unvested

Witk Without

perfornnnce performance

congt ong conaitions
Sharas owned Partormance Seferred Share Vestedbut
outrghs Share Puan Bonus Plan  unexercised shares
Steve Rowe 253408 1116809 81932 Q
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 123,098 530,790 71,661 0
Laura Wade-Cery (3t 12 Septermber 2018) 172955 340,480 49096 125,836
Helen Weir 50,000 681,252 87,057 8]

FIGURE 24: SHAREHOLDING REQUIREMENTS (audited)

allexecutive directors are required to hold shares equivalent invatue to a minimum percentage of their salary withina five-year period from
their appaintment date For the CEG,this requirement is 250% of salary and for other executive directors the requirement is 150% of salary.
Simular guidelines of 100% of salary also apply to directors below board level.

The chart below shows the extent to which each executive director has met their target shareholding as at 1 April 2017 For Steve Rowe,
his 250% shareholding requirernent is measured from the date he was appeinted CEQ.

For the purpases of the requirements, Lthe net number of unvested share awards not subject to performance condiiens is included andis
reflected in the chart below. The CommitLeeis satisfied that the current level of shareholding reguirement provides an appropriate levei of
investment in M&S for each director. The Committee will continue Lo keep this issue under review and will amend accordingly if necessary.

EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES

ALL-EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES

{audited) DILUTION OF SHARE CAPITAL BY EMPLOYEE SHARE PLANS

Executive directors may participate in both Awards granted under the Company's under these schermes and theirimpact on
ShareSave, the Company's Save As YouEarn  Save As You EarnScheme andthe dilutionlimits. The Company’s usage of
Scheme, and ShareBuy, the Company's Executive Share Gption Scheme are shares compared to the ditutionlimits set
Share Incentive Plan, on the same basis as et by the issue of new shares when by The Invastment Associationn respect of
all other eligible emnployees Further details the options are exercised all share plans (10% in any rolling ten-year

penod)and executive share plans (5% inany
rolling ten-year period) as at 1 Apnl 2017
was as follows:

of the schernes are set cut innote 13 to the

& currently met b;
financial staternents on pages 112and 113 Allother share plans are currently met by

rmarket purchase shares. The Company
monitors the number of shares issued

FICURE 25: ALL SHARE PLANS FICURE 26: EXECUTIVE SHARE PLANS
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION CONTINUED
. ____________________________________________________ |
FIGURE 27: EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY'S SHARE SCHEMES (audited)

Mawximur
recenvaole at
Max M Awarded Exerg seq Lapsed 1 ARnl 2017
recevaple at during during during fordateof
3Apnl20la tne year the year the year rer rernent)
Steve Rowe
Performance Share Plan 861512 555640 14416 285827 1,116,809
Deferred Share Bonus Plan 110,013 32,376 50,457 a 91832
SAYE 2,222 3,461 0 o] 5,683
Total 973,747 591,477 64,873 285,927 1,214,424
Patrick Bousgquet-Chavanne
Performance Share Plan 772669 374,542 10,388 206,033 930,790
Deferred Share Bonus Plan 46,448 51,408 26,185 Q 71661
SAYE 2,227 0 8] 8] 2222
Total 821,339 425,950 36,583 206,032 1,004,673
Laura Wade-Gery
Performance Share Plan 917582 o) o) 542412 375,170
Deferred Share Bonus Plan 111,064 29,158 o 0 140,222
Total 1,028,646 29,158 0 542412 515,392
Helen Weir
Performance Share Plan 276527 404,725 o] 0 581,252
Deferred Share Bonus Plan 0 87057 0 0 87057
SAYE 2,083 3,451 o] 2,083 3.48]
Total 278,610 495,243 0 2,083 77,770

The aggregate gains of directors arising In the year from the exercise of awards granted under the PSP and DSBP totalied £303,435
The market price of the shares at the end of the financiat year was 3370p; the highest and lowest share price during the financial yvear
were 446 1p and 285.2p respectively.

Laura Wade-Gery retired from the Board on 12 Seplember 2016 and left the Company on 30 September 2016. Detaits of her leaving
arrangements are set out on page 75. Her outstanding Performance Share Plan awards were pro-rated for time held on leaving
For trangparency, these lapses are shown in the ‘lapsed during Lhe year' column.

Figure 28 shows the time herizons for cach of the exccutive director’s outstanding discretionary share awards (i e. those granted under the
Performance Share Plan, the Deferred Share Bonus Plan and, if it had been applicable, the Restricted Share Plan). As detailed earlier in Lhis
report, the 2014 PSP awards included within the totals shown in Figure 27 willlapse in fullon therr respective vesting dates. This has been
reflected below in the 2017/18 column Lo provide anaccurate and transparent overview of directors’ interests in discretionary share awards.

FICURE 28: VESTING SCHEDULE OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' OUTSTANDING DISCRETIONARY SHARE AWARDS

Max mum recaivable ar Maximum rece-vahe n
1 Ap-l2017
falldiscret onary schernes) 20178 2018/°9 201920
Sleve Rowe 1,208,741 (300,343) 320382 588,016
Patrick Bousguet-Chavannc 1,002,451 (300,343) 276,168 425950
HelenWeir 768,309 0 276,527 491,782
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION CONTINUED
L _ ]
FIGURE 29: PERFORMANCE AND CEOQ REMUNERATION COMPARISON
This graphillustrates the Company's performance against the FTSE 100 over the past eight years. The FTSE 100 has been chosenas the
appropriate comparator as M&S s a constituent of this index The catculationof TSRis inaccordance with the relevant remuneration
regulations. The table below the TSR chart sets out theremuneration data for directors undertaking the role of CEQ during each of the
last erght financial years

oo
CEQ single figure of Steve Rowe - ~ - - - - - 1,642
rernuneration (E0GO) Marc Bolland - 5998 3324 2,142 1568 2,095 2015 -
Stuart Rose 4294 269 - - - - - -
Annual bonus payment Steve Rowe - - - - - - - 3648%
% of maximurmy Marc Bolland - 4580%  3400%  4250% 0.00% 30.55% 3190% B
Stuart Rose 9700% 5740% - - - - - -
PSP vesting Steve Rowe - - - - - - - C00%
{% of maxirmum) Marc Bolland - _ 3196% 000% 760% 470% 480% -
Stuart Rose 0.00% 000% - - - - - -

1 Mare Bolland was appoinieg CEQ on ) May 2010 His single Figure for 2000411 ncludes recrurment dwards made to hum st 121 1 mefocomgpensaleh mforincentve awards forfeitenon
COs4ANION Frorm Nis previons emMplayer Stuart Rose undertock the role oF CEQ fram 31 May 200410 30 Apnl 2000

FIGURE 30: PERCENTAGE CHANCGE IN CEQ'S REMUNERATION

The table opposile sets oul the change % change 2015/16 ~ 2016/17
nthe CEO's reruncration (1Le salary, Giase salary Berefis Annualbornus
taxabile benefits and annual bonus) CEQ -169 -14 -35

compared with the change in our UK-based
employees. This group has been chosenas
the majorily of our workfarco s UK-based
The CEO comparisonis Steve Rowe (for
2016/17)to Marc Bolland (for 2015/16)

The porcentage changes for UKemployees
15 & conscquence of organisational
transformation, including reductionin
senior management roles and the business
investrment in store staffing tevels,

UK employees (average per FTE) -1 -128 87

FIGURE 31: RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

The tabte oppositeillustrates the 20°5/16 201817

. . Em £m % change
Company's expenditure onpay in
comparison to profits before tax and Totalemployee pay 14867 1,552.6 44
distributions to shareholders by way of Total returns to shareholders' 4517 3775 -16.4
dhvidend payments and share blyback. Prafit before tax and adjusted items 584.1 613.8 163
Total employee payis thetotal pay for 1 Tota.returas 7o shareholders for 2015716 mcl udes distrioution to sharenolders via share buyback For 2016717 tnisfigure s
all Croup employecs Group profit before ncus ve of spetial didend

tax and adjusted items has becnused as a
comparison as this s the key financial rmetric
which the Board considers when assessing
Corpany perforrmance
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION CONTINUED
.

FICURE 32: SERVICE ACREEMENTS

In line with our policy, directors have rolling
contracts which may be terminated by the
Company giving 12 months notice or the
director giving six months' notice

Dateof
appontment Notice perniod/unexpired term
Steve Rowe 02/04/2016 12 months/&é months
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne 10/07/2013 12 months/6 months
Helen Weir 01/04/2015 12 months/6 months

EXECUTIVE CHANGES TO THE BOARD DURING 2016/17

DIRECTORS APPOINTELD TO THE BOARD
There were no directors appointed to the
Board during the year

PAYMENTS FOR THE LOSS OF OFFICE
(audited)

Laura Wade-Cery stepped down from the
Board on 12 Septermber 2016 and left M&S
on30September 2016. Rermuneration terms
onleaving wereinline with the approved
Remuneration Policy. As was reported at
the time, Laurareceived monthly payments
of eight months salary and benefits, which
were subject to mitigation Her unvested
nil-cost options granted ynder the
Deferred Share Bonus Plan vested in full

on terrmination. Unvested nil-cost options

FIGURE 33: EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

awarded under the PSP were time pro-rated
and will vest, subject toperformance
conditions on a wait and see basis at the
normalvesting date.

As reported earlierin thisreport, PSP awards
made in 2014 willlapsein fullin June 2017
Laurz has one further unvested PSP award,
granted in 2015, This will vest next year,to
the extent that performance conditions
have been made and will be reported as
appropriate innext year's report

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS
(audited)

Marc Bolland retired from the Board on
2 April 2016.1n line with his contractual
arrangements, Marc received salary,

benefits and pension benefits until the

end of hisnotice period on 7 January 2017
Perthe approved Rernunaration Policy,

any unvested nil-cost options awarded to
Marc Bolland under the Deferred Share
Bonus Planvestedin full on leaving and may
be exercisedin accordance with the Plan
rules. He had two outstanding PSP awards
cnleaving, grantedin June 2014 and July
2015 which were pro-rated for time held
Asreportedon page 71 of thisreport, the
2014 award will lapse in full in June 2017 as
performance conditions have not been met.
Performance for the 2015 award and any
subseguent shares which will vest willbe
disclosedinnext year's report.

The Company recognises that exccutive
directors may be invited to become
non-executive directors of other companies
and that these appeointment s canbroaden
their knowledge and expericnco to the
benefit of the Company The policy is for

the individual director toretainany fee.

The table cpposite sets out the details for
these fees earned for the period 3 April 2016
to 1 Aprit 2017,

Fees for Laura Wade-Gery's appointment
at British Land Company are reporied until
12 September 2016.the date sheleft the
M&S Board.

Fees for Helen Weir's appoiniment at
SABMIller are to 7 October 2016, the date
at which the company was acquired by
Anheuser-Busch InBew.,

Fee

Direstor Company [29]8]
Patrick Bousquet-Chavanne Brown-Forman $283
Laura Wade-Gery {to 12 September 2016) British Land Company £30

SABMiller £61
Helen Weir Ruaby Football Union £3]
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
|
FIGURE 34: NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' TOTAL SINGLE FIGURE REMUNERATION {audited)

Non-executive directorsreceive fees

reflecting the time commitrnent, Basic fees  Additional fees Benefits Total
demands and responsibilities of the Drector Year £000 £900 £a00 £oa0
rotg The table opposite details the fees Robert Swannell 2016/17 70 380 71 an
paid to the non-executive directors for )
2016/17 and 2015/16 2015/16 70 380 20 470
. Vindi Banga 2016/17 70 30 0 100
Inrecognitionand support of the proposed et 9 /
new pay arrangements which were made 2015/16 70 36 o 190
in the UK organisation during the year, the Alison Brittain 2016417 70 o] 0 70
Chairrnan and the non-executive directors 2015%/16 70 & 0 70
declined Lo accept any increase intheir fees. Miranda Curtis 2016/17 70 o o 70
2015/16 70 o] o] 70
Andrew Fisher 201617 70 0 0 70
2015/16 23 0 ] 23
Andy Halford 2006/17 70 15 0 85
2015/16 70 15 0 85
Richard Solomons  2016/17 70 ¢} O 70
2015/16 58 o] 8] 68
FIGURE 35: NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS (audited)
The non-executive directors are not The table opposite details the shareholding Director Nurnber of shares held
permitted to participate in any of the of the non-executive directors who Robert Swanneil 169,298
Company’s ncentive arrangements. served on the Board during the yearas at Vindi Banga 93700
All non-executive directors are required 1 Apnl 2017 (or upon their date of retiring v Brittai 5005
to build and maintain a sharetwolding of from the Board), ncluding those held by Al .1500‘\ m a||:\ :
at least 2,000 shares in the Company connected persons Miranda Curtis 5,500
rgttmg B’;Z:Qomhs of their appointment There have been no changesin the current Andrew Fisher 3,536
non-executive directors' interests inshares Andy Halford 21,000
N the Company and its subsidiaries Richard Solomons 5,000

betweenthe end of the financial year
and 23 May 2017

FIGURE 36: NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' AGREEMENTS FOR SERVICE

Non-executive directors have an agreement
forservice for am initial three-year term
which can be terminated by either party
giving three months notice (six months’

for the Chairman).

The table opposite sets out these terms
for all current members of the Board

Dureclor Date of appointment Notice periodiunexo red terrn
Robert Swannell 23/08/2010 6 months/3 manths
Vindi Banga 01/09/201 Imonths/3 months
Alison Brittain ai/oN2014 3 months/3 manths
Miranda Curtis 01/02/2012 3 maonths/3 manths
Andrew Fisher 01/12/2015 3 months/3 manths
Andy Halford 0i/01/2013 3 months/3 months
Richard Solomons 13/04/2015 3Imonths/3 manths

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CHANGES TO THE BOARD DURING 2016/17

DIRECTORS APPOINTED TO THE BOARD
There wore no changes to the Board during
the year

DIRECTCRS RETIRING FROM THE BOARD
No directors retired from the Board during
tha year.

CHANGES TO THE BOARD DURING 2017/18
Robert Swannellwillretire fromthe

Board on 1 September 2017. There will be
nopayrments for loss of office payable
toRobert.

Miranda Curtis will retire from the Board on
1 February 2018. There will be no payments
forloss of office payable to Miranda,

Archie Norman will join the Board as
Chairmanon 1 September 2017, upon
Robert Swannell's retirement fromthe
business. Inline with the policy set out on
page 64, Archie will receiwve the standard
non-executive direclor fee plus an
additional fee as the Board Chairman.
Archie's total annual fee will be £600,000.



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REMIT

The role of the Remuneration Committee
is to make recommendations regarding
the senior remuneration strategy and
framework to the Board tc ensure

the executive directors and senior
rmanagement are appropriately rewarded
for their contribution to the Company’s
performance, taking into account the
financiatand commercial position of

the Company.

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

-» Setting a strategy that ensures the
most talented lbeaders are recruited,
retained and rmotivated to detiver results.

-3 Reviewing the effectiveness of the senior
remuneration framework with regardto
its impact.

- Considerng the appropriateness of
the senior remuncration framewaork
when reviewed against arrangements
throughout the rest of the organisalion

- Determining Lhe terms of employrmeant
and remuneration for executive
directors and senior managers,
including recruitment and termination
arrangements.

- Approving the design, targets and
payments for allannualincentive :
schemes that include executive
directors and senior managers.

- Agreeing the design, targets and annual.
awards made for all share incentive plans
requiring sharcholder approval.

- Assessing the apprepriateness
and subseguent achievement of
performance targets relating to
any share incentive plan.

In line withits remit, the Committee
considered a number of key matters
during the year
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AGENDA
FOR 2016/17

RECULAR ITEMS

Pay arrangements

= Annualreview of allexecutive directors’
and senior managers' base salaries and
benefits in line with Company policies
and approval of any salary increase

- Review of andagreement to,
remuneration packages for new
Senior managers.

Annual Bonus Scheme (ABS)
- Review of achievement of ABS
Croup PBT against targets.

= Review of achievement of executive
directors’'individual cbjectives for
2016/17.

- Review of the structural design,
measures and approachto targets
forthe 2017/18 ABS

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

- Review and approval of allawards made
under the PSP, taking into account the
totalvalue of atl awards made under
this plan

- Half year and year endrevicw of all
planperformance against targets

-» Approval of the vesting tevelof the
2014/15 PSP awards

-» Approval of the measures and targets
forthe 2016/17 and 2017/18 PSP awards.

- Consideration of the approach to be
takenfor the 2017/18 PSP awards

- Clear articulation of the Committee’s
reasoning and consideration for
vesting and payment levels to
executive directors

- Consideration and debate of the senior
remuneration frameworkin the context
of external guidance and views on
long-termincentives for the future.

FIGURE 37: REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The following independent non-executive directors were members

of the Commuttee during 2016/17:

MEMBER MAXIMUM NUMBER OF % OF

SINCE POSSIBLE MEETINGS MEETINGS
MEMEER MEETINGS ATTENDED ATTENDED
Vindi Banga 1 September 2011 8 8 100
{Chairman)
Robert Swannell 1 March 2015 8 8 100
Miranda Curtis 1 February 2012 3 8 100
Richard Solomons 271 July 2015 8 8 100

Governance and external market

= Approvalof the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for 2016/17 and review of the
ACMvoting cutcome forthe 2015/16
Report.

- Review of Committee performance
in 2016/17

- Review of Committee Terms of
Reference.

- Significant consideration of institutional
investors current guidelines on
executive compensation.

- Consideration of externat market
developments and best practice
inremuneration

> Assessment of the external
envirenment surrounding the
Company's current remuneration
arrangements

- Consideration of remuneration
arrangements for the wider workforce,

Note: The full Terms of Reference
for the Committee can be found

on the Company’s website at
marksandspencer.com/thecompany.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ACTION
PLAN 2017/18

- Ensure the continued strategic
alignrent of the directors incentive
arrangements.

- Debate and agree the appropriateness
of the senior remuneration framework
in the context of the rest of the
organisation and external governance

- Ensure aformalt annual review of the
wider workforce reward framewaork

- Review the effectiveness and
transparency of remuneration reporting

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



78
MARKS &ND SPENCER CROUPPLC
DIRECTORS' REPORT: COVERNANCE

REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE CONTINUED
L |

COMMITTEE ADVISERS

In carrying out its responsibilities, the
Committee is independently advised by
externaladvisers The Committee was
advised by PwC dunng the year PwCis
afounding member of the Remuneration
Consultants Croup and voluntarily operates
under the code of conduct in relation to
executive remuneration consultingin the
UK The code of conduct ¢an be foundat
remunerationconsultantsgroup.com.

The Committee has not explicitly
conaidered the ndependence of the advice
it receives, atthough it regularty reflects

on the guality and objectivity of this advice,
The Committee is satisfied that any conflicts
are appropriately managed

PwC was appoirted by the Committee as
its ndependent advisers in 2014 following
angorous and competitive tender process
PwC provides independent cornmentary
onmatters under consideration by the
Commuttee and updates on legislative
requirements, best practice andmarket
practice. PwC's fees are typically charged on
an hourly basis with costs for work agreed
inadvance. During the vear, PwC charged
£116,200 for Rernuneration Committee
matters Thisis based onanagreed fee for
business as usual support with additional
work charged at hourly rates PwC has
provided tax, consultancy and risk
consulting services to the Groupin the
financial year.

The Cormnmittee also seeksinternal
support from the CEQ, Croup Secrotary,
HR Director and Head of Performance &
Reward as necessary. Allmay attend the
Committee meetings by invitationbut are
not present for any discussions that relate
directly to thewr own remuneration.

The Committee alsoreviews external survey
and bespoke benchmarking data including
that published by New Bridge Street (the
trading name of Aon Hewitt Limited),

KPMG, PwC and Willis Towers Watson

REMUNERATICN COMMITTEE
STAKEHOLDER ENGACEMENT

The Committee is comrnitted to ensuring
that executive pay remains competitive,
appropriate and fair in the context of the
external market, Company performance
and the pay arrangerments of the wider
workforce In collaboration with the

Head of Performance & Reward, the
Committee gives employees, through
employee representatives, the opportunity
to raise questions or concerns regarding the
remuneration of the executive directors
During the year, employee representatives
were given the opportunity to discuss in
detail the directors’ pay arrangements.
Details of the directors pay arrangements
were discussedin the context of the

reward framework for the rest of the
organisation and external factors,

NG concerns were raised

FICURE 38: VOTING OUTCOMES FOR 2015/16 REMUNERATION REPORT

SHAREHCLDER CONSULTATION

The Committeeis committedtoa
continuous, open and transparent
dialogue with shareholders on the issue of
executive remuneration. The Commitiee
was represented at the Company's annual
Caovernance Event, held in June 2016, at
which major institutionalinvestors and
representative bodies were provided with
the opportunity ta review and debate
remuneration with the Committee
Chairman, Vindi Banga.

SHAREHOLDER SUPPORT FOR
THE 2015/16 DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION REPORT

Al the Annual General Meeting on

12 July 2006,98.02% of shareholders
votedinfavour of approving the Directors’
Remunieration Report for 2015/16. The
Committee believes Lhis illustrates the
strong level of shareholder support for
the senior rermuneration framework,

The table below shows full detaits of the
voting outcomes for the 2015/16 Directors’
Remuneration Report.

Votes withheld
1,979,099

% votes for

98.02

Votes agamst

19,885,063

% Votes against

198

Yotes for

986,080,026

Remuneration Report

FIGURE 3% VOTING OUTCOMES FOR REMUNERATION POLICY (for 2013/14 when the policy was approved)
%Votes for
98.27

Vores wrhbeld

9,040,797

Vores for

1,012,468,256

Votas aganst
17,840,854

5 WOTRS agaINs!

173

Remuneration Policy

APPROVED BY THE BOARD

VINDI BANGA THAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMM TTPF
Lonaon, 23 May 2017

Tn s Romuneration Poucy and these remaneranon -eport s have been prepared n accoraance with therelevant prov s onof the Companes Act 2006 and on the basis prascrieain the
carge and Medum-s.zed Compan es and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regalations 2013 { the Reglations) Whererequireq, datanas been auchted by Dewotte
andthisisindicatea aporopnately
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OlHER

DISCLOSURES

DIRECTORS REPORT

Marks and Spencer Group pic (the
‘Company’)is the holding company of the
Marks & Spencer Croup of companies (the
*Group™). With our rich heritage, M&S is one
of the most recognisable brandsinthe UK
retail sector andisregularly voted as one
ofits most trusted. Our business is driven
by adesire toinspire and innovate, to act
with integrity and to stay in touch with our
customers, shareholders and employees
alike. These are cur corporate values and
they underpin everything we do. They are
what make the M&S difference across the
55 territories inwhich we operate.

The Directors' Report (whichis also the
Management Report for the purpose of
Disclosure and Transparency Rule (DTR)
418R)for the year ended 1 April 2017,
comprises pages 34 to 83 andpages 135 to
136 of this report, together with the sections
of the Annual Report incorperated by
reference. As permitted by legislation,
some of the mattersrequired te be included
inthe Directors Report have instead been
includedin the Strategic Report onpages 2
to 33,as the Board considers them te be of
strategicimportance Specifically, these are-

- Future business developments
(throughout the Strategic Report).

-> Research and development on p12-17.
- Risk management on p30-33.

- Details of branches operated by
the Company on p23-24.

Information relating to financialinstruments
canbefoundonpages 118tc 123

For information on cur approach to social,
environmental and ethicalmatters, please
refer to our Plan A Report, available online
at marksandspencercom/plana2017.

Other information tobe disclosedinthe
Directors Report is given in this section.

Boththe Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report have been drawn up and presented
in accordance with andin reliance upon
applicable English company law, and the
liabilities of the directors in connection

with those reports shall be subject to the
lirmitations and restrictions provided by
such law

INFORMATION TO BE
DISCLOSED UNDER LR 9.8.4R

Sage

Cisting Rue Jeta. “eference
S8AR(1) (2}

(5-14) () {B) Not applicable N/A

S84R(4) 56-65

Long-term and

incentive schemes £69-71

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The memicership of the Board and
bicgraphical details of the directors

are givenonpages 36and 37 andare
incorporated nto this report by reference
Changes tothe directors during the year
anduptothe date of thisreport are set out
below. Details of directors' beneficial and
non-beneficialinterests inthe shares of the
Company are shown on pages 73 and 76.
Options granted to directors under the
Save As You Farn (SAYE) and Exacutive
Share Option Schemes are shown on

page 73. Furtherinformationregarding
employee share option schemes is given
innote 13 te the financial statcments.

C¥ective date of
aosparntment/

Name Role retirement
Laura Executive Retired
Wade- Directeor, 12 Septernber
Cery Mutti-channel 2016
Reliring
Robert 1 Septermnber
Swannell Chairman 2017
Retiring
Miranda Non-Executive 1 February
Curtis Director 2018
Proposed Appointment
tffective
Archie 1 September
Norman Chairman 207

The appointment and replacement of
directorsis governed by the Company's
Articles of Association (the "Articles”) tho UK
Corporate Governance Code (the "Code™},
the Companigs Act 2006 and related
tegislation The Articles may be amended by
a special resolution of the shareholders.
Subyject to the Articles, the Companies Act
2006 and any directions given by spacial
resolution, the business of the Company
will be managed by the Board who may
exercise all the powers of the Company

The Company may, by ardinary resolution,
declare dwvidends not exceeding the
amount recommended by the Board
Subject to the Companios Act 2006, the

Board may pay interim dividends and
also any fixed rate dividend, whenever the
financial posilion of the Company, in the
opinion of Lhe Board, justifies its payment

The directors may fromtime totime
appoint one or more drectors. The Beard
may appeint any person Lo be a director
(solongas the total number of direclors
does not exceed the limit prescribedin
the Articles). Under Lthe Articles, any such
director shatl hold off ce only untit the
next ACMand shall then be eligible for
election. The current Articles also require
that at each ACM at least cne-third of the
current directors should retire as directors
by rotation, allthose dircctors who have
beer i office at the time of thetwo previous
ACMs andwho didnot retire at either of
therm must reure. In addition, a director may
atany AGM retire from of hice and stand for
re-election. However, in line with the Code
and the Company's current practice, the
proposed new Articles will require atl
directors to stand for annual election

(see resolution 24) All current directors will
standforre-clection at the 2017 ACM

DIRECTORS' CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Company has procedures in place for
managing conflicts of interest. Should a
director become aware that they, orany
of their connected parties, have aninterest
inan existing or proposed transaction
with Marks & Spencer, they should notify
the Boardin writing or at the next Board
meeting. Internal controls arein place to
ensure that any related party transactions
involving diractors, or their connected
parties, are conducted onanarm's length
basis Directors have acontinuing duty to
update any changes tc these conflicts

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Tha Company maintains directors and
officers ability insurance which gives
appropriate cover for legalaction brought
against its directors The Company has also
grantedindemnities to each of its directors
and the Croup Secretary to the extent
permitted by law Qualifying third parly
indemnity provisions (as defined by Section
234 of the Companics Act 2006} werein
force during the year ended 1 April 2017
andromaininforceinrelationtocertain
losses and lizbilities which the directors

(or Group Secretary) may incur to third
partiesinthe course of acting as directors
or Croup Secretary or ernployees of the
Company or of any associated company.
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Quabifying pension scheme indemnity
provisions (as defined by Seclion 235 of the
Companies Act 2006) were inforce during
the course of the financial year ended 1 April
2017 for the benef it of Lhe Trustees of the
Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme, both
inthe UK and the Republic of Ireland

PROFIT AND DIVIDENDS

Thie profit for the financial year, after
taxation, amounts to £115.7m (last year
£404 4rm) The directors have declared
dividends as follows.

Crdinary shares £m
Special dividend

of 4.6p per share

Paid 15 July 2016

Paid interim dividend

of 6.8p per share

(lasl year 6.8p per share)
Proposed final dividend

of 11.9p per share

(last year 119p per share)
Total dividend of

18.7p per share for 2016/17
(last year 18 7p per share)

£75m

£1103m

£193.3m

£303.6m

Subject to shareholder approvalat this
year's ACM, the final ordinary dividend

will be paid on 14 July 2017 to shareholders
whose names were on the Register of
Members al Lhe close of business on

2 June 2007

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company'sissued ordinary share
capitalas at 1 April 2017 comprised a single
class of ordinary share tach share carries
the nght Lo one vote at general meetings
of the Company.

During the perioad, 1,763,039 ordinary shares
inthe Company wereissued under the
terms of the United Kingdom Employees’
Save As You Farn Share Option Scheme
atprices between 258pand 432p.

Details of movements in the Company's
issued share capital can be found on page
125 Innote 24 to the financial statemants.

RESTRICTIONS ON
TRANSFER OF SECURITIES

There are no specilic restrictions onthe
transfer of securities in the Company, which
1s governed by its Articles of Association
and prevailing legislation The Company

15 not aware of any agreernents between
holders of securities that rmay resull in
restrictions on the transfer of sccurities

or Lhat may result inrestrictions on

voting rights.

VARIATION OF RIGHTS

Subiect to applicable statutes, rights
attached to any class of share may be varied
with the written consent of the holders of at
least three-quarters in nominal value of the
issued shares of that class, or by a special
resolution passed at a separate general
rneeting of the shareholders
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RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS ATTACHING
TO SHARES

Subject to the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006, any resolution passed by the
Company under the Companies Act 2006
and other shareholders' rights, shares may
be issued with such rights and restrictions
as the Campgany may by ardinary resolution
decide, or (if there is no such resolution
orsofaras it does not make specific
provision) as the Board (s definedin

the Articles) may decide. Subject to the
Articles, the Companies Act 2006 and
other shareholders' rights, unissued

shares are at the disposal of the Board.

POWERS FOR THE COMPANY ISSUING
OR BUYING BACK ITS OWN SHARES

The Company was authonsed by
sharehotders at the 2016 ACM to purchase
in the market up to 10% of the Company's
1ssued share capital, as porenitted under

the Company’s Articles. No shares were
bought back under this authority during the
yearended [ Apnl 2017,

This stangdard authority is renewable
annually; the directors will seck torenew
this authority at the 2017 AGM 1t isthe
Company's present intenticn Lo cancel
any shares it buys back, rather thanhold
themintreasury

The directors were granted authonty at the
2016 ACM to atlot relevant securities up

Lo anominalamount of £135,313,863.This
authonty will apply until the conciusion

of the 2017 ACM. AL this year's AGM,
shareholders will be asked to grant an
authority to allot relevant securities

(i} uptoanominalamount of £135,394136
and (i) comprising equity securities up to

& norminal amount of £270,788,271 (after
deducting from such limit any retevant
securities allottedunder (), in connection
wth an offer of arightsissue (the Section
551 amount), such Secticn 551 amount to
apply until the conclusion of the ACM tobe
heldin 2018 or,ifearlier,on 1 Oclober 2018,

Aspecialresolution will also be proposed
torenew the directors’ powers to make

non pre-emptive issues for cashin
connection with rights issues and otherwise
up to anominat amount of £20,309,120
Aspecialresolutionwill also be proposed
toronew the directors’ autherity to
repurchase the Company's ordinary shares
inthe market, The authority will be limited
toamaximum of 162 million ordinary shares
and sets the minimum and maximum prices
which will be paidt.

DEADUINES FOR EXERCISING
VOTING RIGHTS

Votes are exercisable at a general meeting
of the Company inrespect of which the
business being voted upon s being neard,
Votes may be exercisedin person, by proxy,
or,inrelation to corparate members, by
corporate representatives, The Articles
provide a deadune for subrmission of proxy
forms of not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for the holding of the
meeting or adjourned meeting However,
when calculating the 48-hour period,

the directors can, and have, decided not
totake account of any part of aday thatis
not a working day.

INTERESTS IN VOTING RIGHTS
e

Information provided to the Company
pursuant to the Financial Conduct
Authority's (FCA) Disclosure and
Transparency Rules (OTRs) s published
ona Regulatory iInformation Service and
onthe Company's website. Asat 1 April
2017 the following information has been
received, inaccordance with DTR 5, from
holders of notfableinterestsin the
Company's issued share capital

The information provided below was
correct at the date of notification; howaver,
the dale received may not have been
within the current financial year. it should
be noted that these holdings are likety
tohave changed since the Company was
notified. However, notification of any
change is not required until the next
nolifiable thresholdis crossed.

Ordinary % of capital
Notifiable interests shares usclosed  Nature of holding as per thsclosure
Blackrock, Inc. 90,664,081 558 Indircct Interest (4.85%),
Securities lending (0 65%) &
CFD (006%)
Armeriprise Financial, Inc. 82,524,463 5079 Indirect Interest {5 054%),
and its group Direct (0.025%)
The Wallcome Trust 47464282 301 Direct Interest

Subsequent to year end, Majedic Assel Managerment Limited notified the Company in
accordance with OTRS of an indirect holding of 81,569,767 ordinary shares, representing

502% of the Company's issued share capital.



SIGNIFICANT ACREEMENTS -
CHANGE OF CONTROL

Thereare a number of agreements to which
the Company s party that take effect, alter
or terminate upon a change of control of the
Cornpany following a takeover bid Details
of the significant agreements of this kind
are as fotlows:

-> The £400rm Medium Term Notes 1issued
by the Company cn 30 Novernber 2009,
the £300m Medium Term Notes 1ssued
by the Company on & December 2011,
the £400m Medium Term Notes issued by
the Company on 12 Decernber 2012 and
the £300m Medium Term Notes issued by
the Company on 8 December 2016 to
various institutions (MTNYand under the
Croup's £3bn euroMedium Term Note
(EMTN) programme contain
an option such that, upon achange of
control event, combined with a ¢redit
ratings downgrade to below sub-
investment level, any holder of
an MTN may reguire the Company to
prepay the principalamount of that MTIN,

-3 The $500m US Notes issued by the
Company to vartous institutions on
6 December 2007 under Section 1443
of the US Secunties Act contain an option
such that, upon a change of control
event, combined with a credit ratings
downgrade to below sub-investment
level, any holder of sucha US Note may
require the Company to prepay the
principalamount of that US Note.

-» The $300m US Notes issued by the
Company to various institutions on
& Decernber 2007 under Section 144a
of the US Securities Act contain an option
such that, upona change of control
event,combined with a credit ratings
downgrade to below sub-investment
level, any holder of such a US Note may
reguire the Company to prepay the
principalamount of that US Note.

- The amended and restated £1.1bn
Credit Agreement dated 16 March 2016
(originally dated 28 September 2011)
between the Company and various
banks contains a provision such that,
uponachange of controlevent, unless
new terms are agreed within 60 days,
the facility under this agreement will
be cancelled with all outstanding
amounts becoming immediately
payable withinterest.

- The amended and restated Relationship
Agreement dated 6 October 2014
{onginally dated 9 Novembper 2004 as
amendead on 1 March 2005), between
HSBC and the Company and relating to
M&S Bank, contains certain provisions
which address a change of controlof the
Company Upona change of control the
existingrights and obligations of the
parties inrespect of M&S Bank continue
and MSBC gains certain imited additional
rightsin respect of existing customers

81

ANNUAL REOCORT AND F NANCIAL STATCMENTS 2077

of the new controller of the Company
Where athird party arrangament isin
place for the supply of financial services
products to existing custorners of the
new controller, the Company is required
toprocure the termination of such
arrangement 35 500N as reasonably
practicable {while not being required

to do anything that would breach

any contract in place inrespect of
sucharrangement).

Where a thirdparty arrangement 1s so
terminated, or does not exist, HSBC gains
certan exclusivity rights inrespect of the
sale of financial services products to the
existing customaers of the new controller,
Where the Company undertakes a
re-pranding exercise with the new controller
following a change of control (which
inciudes using any M&S brand inrespect
of the new controller's business or vice
versa), HSBC gains certaintermination
rights (exercisable atits electiom)in
respect of the Relationship Agreerment.

The Company does nol have agreement s
with any director or employee that would
provide compensation for loss of office

or employment resulting from a takeover
except that provisions of the Company’s
share schemes and plans may cause
options and awards granted to employeoes
under such schemes and plans to vest
ona takeover.

EMPLOYEE iINVOLVEMENT

We remain committed to employee
involvernent throughout the busmess.
Ermployees are kept well informed of

the performance and strategy of the
Croup through personal briefings, regular
meetings, emails and broadcasts by the
Chief Executive andmembers of the Board
These take place at key pointsinthe year to
all Head Office, distribution centre and store
management employees. In addition, store
colleagues can also hear business briefings
by telephone and there are quarterly CEQ/
CFO trading updates broadcast by Skype
to our store management teams. These
communications are supplemented by
various empleyee publications including
M&S World magazine, Plan A updates and
DVD presentations

QOur Making Every Moment Special
employee engagement programme was
launched last summer with twa hours of
training to empower store colleaguesto
put customers at the heart of the business
and to make decisions based on customers’
specific needs The programme engaged
with 70,000 employees through 75 regional
loadershipevents and 1,500 store events,
taking ideas fromn colleagues from across
the business and has had tremendous
results.

More than 3 500 employees from across
every store, distribution centre and Head
Office tocation are clected to our Business

Involverent Croups (BIG) to represent
colleagues in two-way communication and
consultation with the Company These
representatives have continued to play a
key role ina number of business changes
Lhis year The National BIC Chair meets with
the Croup Chairman and CECQ regularly, as
wellas providing updates to and attending
Board meetings annually Inaddition,
directors and senior management regularly
attend the National BIC meetings Theyalso
visit stores and discuss matters of interest
and concern to both employees andthe
business through meetings with local BIC
representatives, listening groups and
informaldiscussions.

The 22ndmeeting of the European Works
Council {(EWC) (estzblished in 1995) will
take place in Novemiber 2017 The EWC
provides an additional forum for informing,
consulting and involvingemployee
representatives from the countrics inthe
Europcan\ Economic Area. The EWC has the
opportunily to be addressed by the Chief
Executive, International Director and other
senior marnbars of the Company on issucs
that affect the European business.

Share schemes are along-established and
successiulpart of colleagues total reward
packages, encouraging and supporting
employee share ownership. The Company
operatesboth an allemployee Save As

You Earn Scherne and Share Incentive Plan.
Approximately 25,000 employees currently
participate in ShareSave, the Company's
Save As You Earn Scheme. Full detaits of all
schemesare givenonpages 112 and 113

There are websites for both pension
schemes -the defined contribution
Schome (Your M&S Pensicn Saving Plan}
and the defined bencfit scherne (the M&S
Pension Scherme) —which are fully accessible
te employees and former employees

who haveretained benefits in either
scheme. Employees are updated as

needed with any pertinent information
entheir pension savings.

In Aprit 2016, the business taunched a
campaignwhich engaged allemployees
inputting forward their ideas for how

M&S could drive down costsandreduce
inefficioncy. The Crunch Costs campaign
received an overwhelming response with
colleagues subrmitting 1,300 ideas from
stores and offices So far, the implemented
ideas have generated savings of £20m,
which has enabled the business to add

over 3,000 colleagues Lo our stores. By
rocogrising and celebrating employee idcas
and contributions, the Company has driven
high levels of engagement and motivation
from employees The most recent results of
the Your Say employec survey show that the
employec engagement scora hasincreased
by three percentage points on the previous
yoar, and currently sits at 81%.
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Over 1,500 emgloyees took part in
Wellbeing Goals,a new initiative launched
1o Inspire people to take a more holistic
ook at their overall wellbeing and follow
simple steps each week to improve what
matters tothem, whether froma physical,
mental social or financial perspective. The
business has alsotaken steps to connect
the two important agendas of Diversity
and Inclusion with Welloeingin abold
two-week campaigninviting people to

Be Yourself at work. This was supported
by hosted events and colleague videos
onwhat it means to be yourself al work
and how inclusivity at work positively
impacts wellbeing

The Company continued to promoteits
free service provided by a confidential
team of mental wellbeing specialists,
LiveWellWorkwell, by distriouting wallet
cards with details of the service across all
stores and business areas. The Company
alsoinvestedin supporting the Buddy
Network, a pear-to-peor support group,
to provide colleagues with a way

to share experiences and support each
other in managing physical or mental
health conditions alongside work.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Croupis committed to an active equal
opportunities policy from recruitment and
selection, through training and developrment,
performance reviews and promeotion
toretirerment The Company’s policy is

to promote an envirenment free from
discrimination, harassment and victimisation,
where everyone wilk recewe equal treatment
regardless of gender, colour, ethnic or
nationalorigin, disability age, marital or

cwvil partner status, sexual orientation or
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religion. All decisions relating to employment
praclices will be objective, free from bias and
hased solely upon work criteria and individual
rnerit. The Company isresponsive to the
necds of its employees, customersand the
community at large M&S is an organisation
whichuses everyone's talents andabilities
and whore diversity is valued

M&S was onc of the first major companics
toremove the default rebirement agein
2007 and has continued to see an ncrease
inemployees wanting to work past the state
reurement age. Our oldest employee s

9Q years old and joined the business at

age 80.

In April 2017, the Company once again
featuredin The Times Top b0 Employers
for Women, highlighting how equat
oppertunities are available for allat M&S.

Ernployee-led diversity networks givea voice
to under-represented groups, provide peer-
to-peer support and heip to influencethe
Company to become more inclusive, These
networks cover gender, ethnicity, disability,
parents and sexual onentation/gender
identity, Each network has support from

a senicr sponsor Throughout the year
employees have beeninvolvedin celebrating
International Women's Day, Pride, Black
History Month and the International Day

of Persons with Disabilities

EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES

The Company is Clear inits policy that
people with disabilities should have full
andfair consideration for all vacancies.

ME&S has continued to demonstrate its
commitment to nterviewing those people
with disabilities who fulfil the minimum
critens, and endeavouring Lo retain

TOTAL CLOBAL M&S GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 2016/17

employeesin the workforceif they become
disabled during employment. M&S will
actively retrain and adjust employees’
environments where possitle 1o allow

them to maximise theirr potentialand will
conbinue to work with external crganisations
to provide workplace opportunities through
our innovative Marks & Start scheme and

by working closely with Jobcentre Plus,

The Marks & Start scheme was introduced
into the distribution centre at Castle
Doningtonin 2012713, working with Remploy
to support people with disabilities and
health conditions into work,

GROCERIES SUPPLY CODE
OF PRACTICE

The Grocerias (Supply Chain Practices)
Market Investigation Order 2009 {the Crder)
and The Croceries Supply Code of Practice
(CSCOP)impose ebligations on M&S
relating to relaticnships with its suppliers of
groceries Under the Order and GSCOP M&S
is required to submit an annual compliance
report to the Audit Cornmittee forapproval
and then to the Competition and Markets
Authority and Groceries Code Adjudicator,

M&S submitted its report, covering the
period from 3 April 2016 to 1 April 2017,

to the Audit Committee on 18 May 2017
Inaccordance with the Order, a summary
of that compliance report is set out below:

M&S believes that it has compliedin fult
with GSCOP and the Order during the
relevant period. No formal disputes have
arisen during the reporting period Two
allegations regarding potential breaches
of GSCCP wereraised by suppliers during
the relevant period. Nefther is being
pursuedand bothare considered closed
oy M&S.

The disclosures required by law and additional information relating to the Group's greenhouse gas ermissions are included in the table below.
For full details of calculations and performance against our 2006/07 voluntary baseline, see the 2017 Plan A Report.

2016/17 201314 %

000 tonnes 000 tonnes change

Direct emissions (scope 1) 185 168 +10
Indirect emissicns from energy (scope 2) 293 340 -14
Total statutory emissions (scope 1 and 2) 478 508 -6
Transport, energy T&D, waste and travel ermissions (scope 3) 48 59 -19
Total gross/location-based emissions 526 567 -7
Carbon intensity measure (per 1,000 sq ft of salesfloor) 26 30 -13
Creen tariffs and bio-methane procured 305 302 +]
Remaining market-based emissions 221 265 -17
Carbon offsets 221 265 -17
Total net operational emissions ] ] Level

Ernissions are from operationally controlled activities in accordance with WRIYWBCSD CHC Reporting Protocols (Revised editionjand
2014 Scope 2 Cuidance using 2015 DEFRA/DECC conversion factors. 2013/14 is the mandatory baseline year. As these emissions account
for less thar 10% of M&S's total carbon footprint, we also engage with suppliers and customers to address the most significant sources.



POLITICAL DONATIONS

The Company did not make any political
donations or incur any political expenditure
during the year ended 1 April 2017 M&S has
a policy of not making danations te political
crganisations or ndependent election
candidates or incurring political expenditure
anywhere in the world as defined in the
Political Parties, Elections and Referendums
Act 2000

GOING CONCERN

in adopting Lhe going concern basis for
preparing the financial statements, the
directors have considered the business
activities as set cut onpages 2to 25as
wellas the Group's principal risks and
uncertainties as setout onpages 32 and 33
Based onthe Croup's cash flow forecasts
and projections, the Boardis satisfied that
the Croup will be able to operate within
the level of its facilities for the foresesable
future For this reason the Board considers
it appropriate for the Croup to adopt

the going concern basis in preparingits
financial statements.

See note 20 to the Financial 5tatements
for more information on our Facilities

LONG-TERM VIABILITY STATEMENT

The directors have assessed the prospects
of the Company over a three-year period
to 28 March 2020 This has takeninto
account the business model strategic
airns, risk appetite, and principal risks and
uncertanties, along with the Company’s
current financial position. Based on this
assessment, the directors have areasonable
expectation that the Company willbe
able tocontinuein operation and meet

its liakilities as they fall due cverthe
three-year period under review.

See gur approach to assessing long-term
viability on p31

AUDITOR

Resolutions toreappoint Deloitte LLP as
auditor of the Company and to authorise
the Audit Committee to determinc its
remuneration willbe proposed at the
2017 ACGM.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The ACM of Marks and Spencer Group plc
will be hetd at Wembley Stadium, Wembley,
Londonon 11 July 2017 at Vlam The
Notice of Meeting is given, together with
explanatory notes, in the Performance
Overview booklet which accompanies

this report

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board s of the view that the Annual
Report should be truly representative of
the year and provide shareholders with the
nformation necessary 1o assess the Group's
position, performance, business model and
strategy This cannol be achicved by merely
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reviewing the final document at the end

of the preparation process The Board
ensuredthat its requirements were clearty
communicated from the outset to each of
the departments involvedin the production
of the Annual Report.

The Board has advised that the narrative
reports should contain the key information
needed by investors and other users of the
report and should avoid being promotional
innature. Furlthermore, the narrativereports
in the front and the accounting infermation
inthe back of the report shouldbe
consistent and the teams involvedinits
production work closely together to achieve
this. For anindependent opinion, the Board
alsoreguested the Audit Commitieereview
the Annual Report and provide feedback
The Committee’s opinion onwhether the
report s fair, batanced and understandable
is on page 50.

The directors are alsoresponsible for
preparing the AnnualReport, the
Remuneration Report and Policy and the
financial staternents in accordance with
appticable law and regulations. Company
law requires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law, the directors have prepared
the Croup and Company financial
staternents in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)as
adopted by the EU. Under company law, the
direclors must not approve the financial
staterments unless they are satished that
they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and the Company and
of the profit or loss of the Group and the
Company for that perod. In preparing these
financial statements, the directors are
requiredto.

-» Select suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently.

-» Make judgements and accounting
ostimates that are reasonable
and prudent.

- State whether appiicable IFRSs
{as adopted by the EUYhave been
followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained
inthe financial statements,

- Prepare the financial staterments on
agoing concern basis unless it is
nappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping
adeguate accounting records that are
sufficient te show and explainthe
Company's transactions and disclose,

at any time and with reasonable accuracy,
the financial position of the Company and
the Croup and tc enabte them Lo cnsure
that the financial staternents and the
Rernuncration Report comply with the
Cormpanies Act 2006 and,asregards the
Croup financial statements, Article 4 of the
|AS Regulation They are alsoresponsible for

safeguardingthe assets of the Croup and
the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detectionof fraud and other irregularities
The directors are responsible for the
mantenance andintegrity of the
Cormpany's website. Legislationin the

UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial staterments may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Eachof the current directors, whose names
and functions are listed on pages 36and 37
of the AnnuatReport, confirms that, to the
best of thar knowledge:

= The Croup financial statements, prepared
in accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, gve atrug and
fair view of Lhe assets, labdities, financial
position and profit or less of the Company
and the undertakings includedinthe
consolidationtakenas awhole

- The Management Report inctudes
a fair review of the development
and perfermance of the business
and the position of the Company and the
undertakings includedinthe
consolidation taken as awhole, together
with a description of the principal nsks
anduncertainties that they face.

= The Annual Reporl, Laken as a whole,
is fair, balanced and understandable,
and provides the necessary information
for shareholders to assess the Croup’s
gosilion, performance, business model
and strategy.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
TO AUDITORS

Each of the persons who are Directors at the
tirme when this Directors' Report is approved
confirms that, so far as he/sheis aware, there
is no relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditors are unaware and that
he/fshe has takenall the steps that

he/she ought to have taken as a director to
make himself/ herself aware of any relevant
audit informaticn and to establish that

the Company's auditors are aware of

that information.

The Directors’ Report was approved by a
duly authorised committee of the Board
of Directors on 23 May 2017 and signed
on its behalf by

AMANDA MELLOR CROURSZCRETARY
Landar, 23 May 2017

OUR BUSINESS

QUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR'S REPORT

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC

IN QUR OPINION:

the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of the Group’s and
of the parent Company’s affairs as at

1 April 2017 and of the Group's profit
for the 52 weeks then ended;

the Group financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union;

the parent Company financial statements
have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by

the Eurcpean Union and as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006; and

the financial statements have heen
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation.

The financial statemoents comprise
> the Consoldated Income Statement,

= the Consolidated Statement of
Comprenensive Income,

->the Consolidated and Company
Staternents of Financial Position,

- the Consolidated and Company
Statements of Changes in Equitly,

- the Consolidated and Company
Statements of Cash Flows,

-» the reconciliation of net cash flow
to movement in net debt note, and the
rolated notes 110 28 and C1 to CB.

The fingncial reporting framework that
has been applied in the preparation of the
financial staterents is applicable law and
IFRS a3 adopted by the Eurcpean Union
and, as regards Lhe parent company
Ninancial statements, as appliedin
accordance with the provisions of

the Companies Act 2006,

SUMMARY OF QUR AUDIT APPROACH

KEY RISKS

MATERIALITY

The key risks that we identified in the
current year were:

- Accounting for exit costs of certain
of the wholly owned international
businesses

= Presentation of adjusted performance
measures of the financial statements

= Impairment of UK store assets
- UK Clothing & Home inventory provision
- Retirement benefits

- Manual adjustrments to reported
revenue

= Accounting for supplicr repates

The description of risks betow should be
read in conunction with the significant
issues considered by the Audit Commitilec
discussed on pages 50 and 51. These
matters were addressed in the context

of our audit of the financial statements

a5 a whote, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do nat provide a separate
opInion on these matters

Within this report, any new risks are

identified with , any risks which are

the sarme as the prior year identified with
and any risks which have increased

compared with the prior year are identified

with

WYe determined materiality for the Group
to be £24.5 midtion (2016, £30 million),
based on a calcutation of 5% of profit
before tax adjusted for certain adjusted
itermns due to the nature and significance
of these adjusted items.

SCOPING

We performed a full scope audit on six
components of the business representing
97% of the Group's revenue, 89% of the
Group's profit before tax and 85% of the
Croup's net assets.

SICNIFICANT CHANGES IN QUR
APPROACH

Qur audit approach is consistent with
the previous year, with the exception of

- We have included an additional risk
in respoct of the accounting for the exit
costs of certain of the wholly owned
international businesses, given the
significance of the charge incurred
during the year and the level of
estimation uncertainty; and

- Specific audit procediures were performed
on certain significant batances for China
and analytical review procedures were
compieted for Greece, in the previous
year these components were subject
to full audits

SEPARATE OPINION IN RELATION TO IFRS AS ISSUED BY THE 1ASB

As explainedin note 1 to the financial staterments, in addition to complying with its legal
obligation te apply IFRS as adopted by the European Union, the Croup has also applied
IFRS as isswed by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

in our opinion the Croup financial statements comiply with IFRS as issued by the IASS.
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GOING CONCERN AND THE DIRECTORS’ ASSESSMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL RISKS
THAT WOULD THREATEN THE SOLVENCY OR LIQUIDITY OF THE GROUP

As required by the Listing Rules we have
reviewed the directors’ staterment regarding
the appropriatcness of the going concern
basis of accounting contained within

note 1 to the financial staterments and the
directors' statement onthe longer-term
viability of the Croup contained within the
“Cther disclosures” section on page 31

We have nothing material to add or draw
attention to in relation to:

- the directors’ confirmation on page 30
that they have carrnied out a rebust
assessment of the principal nisks facing
the Group, including those that would
threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liqudity,

- the disclosures on pages 32-33 that
describe those risks and exptain how
they are being managed or mitigated,

- the directors stalement innote 1 to the
financial statements about whether they
considered it appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in
preparing them and their identif ication of
any matcral uncertainties to the group’s
ability to continue te do so over a period
of at least twetve months from the dale
of approval of the financial statements;

= the directors explanation on page 31 as
to how they have assessed the prospects
of the Group, over what period they
have done so and why they consider

that periot to be appropnate, and ther
statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the group
will be able to continue in operation
and meet its liabilities as they fall due
over the period of their assessment,
including any related disclosures
drawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or assurnptions.

We agreed with the directors adoption
of the going concern basis of accounting
and we did not identify any such material
uncertainties However, because not all
future events or conditions can be
predicted, this stalerment 1s not a
guarantee as Lo the group's ability to
conlinue as a going concern.

OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

RISK

ACCOUNTING FOR THE EXIT COSTS OF CERTAIN OF THE
WHOLLY OWNED INTERNATIONAL BUSINESSES

RISK DESCRIPTION

1

As set out on page 10 of the Strategic
Report, management announced their
proposal Lo close 53 stores across 10
international markets over the pericd
from November 2016 1o October 2017
The Group has recognised a cost of
£131 millionin the year inrespect of
exit costs, which s reported as an
adusted itemin the Croup's alternative
performance measures

When calculating the exit costs, management has estimated future settlement and
exit costs where these are not yol known. The costs recognised in the pernied primarily

relate to:

- Property exit costs: estmation
uncertainty arises in management’s
assessment of likely exit costs where
these may ddfer from the contracted
future obligations under tease
agreements

- Staff restructuring costs:in cortan
territories, estimation uncertainty
anses in Lhe apphcation of local staff
restructuring and redundancy laws
where there are a range of possible
outcomes dependent on faclors
outside the group's control

HOW THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT RESPONDED TO THE RiSK

Further detall of these estimates are
included in the sources of estimation
uncertainty disclosure in note 1

Given the magnitude of the exit costs
and the level of estimation uncertainty,
we have directed a significant level of
our senior audit resource Lo assessing
the vatuation of the costs recorded
during the year

Wo have evaluated the assumplions applied in calculating the charge for the year and, where possible, agreed inputs to the cost

calculations to supporting factual evidence.

Our audit effort was focussed on the two key sources of estimation uncertainty described above.

- Property exit costs: we obtanad an
understanding of management’s
assumptions in deriving estimated exit
cosls for a sample of properties that
arc being closed, assessing these in
the context of the possible maximum
obligations under the various lease
arrangements. This included meeting
with internal property experts,
reviewing lease agreements and
any correspondence with landlords,
consulting with our own property
experts in certan local markets, and
reviewing the actual settlements for
stores where the exit negotiations
had concluded.

- Staff restructuring costs: we evaluated
the calculations for redundancy
payments, agreeing the methodology
applied to local laws and regulations for
all significant countrnics We tested the
accuracy of the underlying data in these
calculations on a sampic basis Where
a range of possible outcomes exists, we
performed a sensitivity analysis on the
key inputs Lo the valuation moedel and
consulted wilh our local experts inthose
countries to validate key assumptions.

Key observations

The outcome of future exit negotiattons
and ather future events gives nse to

a source of estimation uncertamnty.

We consider Lthe restructunng charge
recorded in the year to have been
appropriately calculated We have
reviewed the disclosure mnete b and
consider it to be appropriate

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT CONTINUED

OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERJAL MISSTATEMENT CONTINUED

RISK

PRESENTATION OF ADJUSTED
PERFORMANCE METRICS

RISK DESCRIPTION

The presentation of income and costs
withwn adjusted measures (to derive
‘adjusted profit before tax’) under IFRS is
judgernental, with IFRS only requiring the
separate presentation of matenal items
Judgement is exercised by management
in deterrmining the classification of items
as adjusted

Inthe Croup's reported results, significant
adjustments have been made 1o statutory
profit before tax of £176 million to derve
adjusted profit before tax of £614 million
Explanations of each adjustment are

set out in notes 1 and 5 to the financiat
staternents, and are summarised in the
graphic to the right

In calculating the reported adjusted measures, there are two risks which may result
in the adjusted profit measure being misstated and therefore not being reliable to

users of the financial statements:

> items may be included in the adjustments inappropriately, distorting the reported

adjusled earnings; and

-3 tems may be omitted from the adjustmaents which are significant in nature and/or
guantum to the reported adjusted earnings.

HOW THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT RESPONDED TO THE RISK

We evaluated the appropriateness of the
inclusion of items, both Individually and
N aQgregate, within adjusted items,
inclugding assessing the consistency of
items included year on year and ensuring
adherence Lo IFRS requirements and
latest Financial Reporting Council ('FRC™)
guidance We also agreed these itermns

to supporting evidence.

RISK

We assessed allitems, either highlighted
by managerment or identified through the
course of our audit, which were regarded
as significant In nature and/or quantum,
but included within adjusted profit to
ensure that these are not material either
indrvidually or in aggregate. For all
adjustments recorded in calculating
profits before adjusted items, we

discussed the appropriateness of the
item with the Audit Committee and any
disclosure considerations.

Key observations

Ve are satisficd that the items excluded
from profil before adjusted items and the
related disclosure of these iterms in the
financial statements are appropriate.

IMPAIRMENT OF UK STORE ASSETS

RISK DESCRIPTION

3

On 8 November 2016, the Group
announced that a full review of the UK store
estate was to be performed. As a result, we
consider the nsk of impairrment of UK store
assets has increased due to the impact of
decisions resulting from the store review

In addition, continuing economic
uncertainty, depreciation of sterling,
increases in business rates, the intreduction
of the National Living Wage and the cost of
the Apprenticeship Levy impact the trading
performance of the UK store estate

As described in the Accounting Poticies

in note 1 and in note 15 to the Financial
Staternents, the Croup held £4,838 million
(2016, £5,027 millior) of property, plant and
equiprment at 1 April 2017 Included within
this value are assets which relate to UK
Stores and in lght of the UK store portfolic
review and trading performance in certain
stores, there is a risk that the assets held
", and associated with, each store are not
recaverable Management has performed

a full impairment assessment for all stores,
other than those within ther shelter period
(see below), to determine if the carrying
value of these UK assets is supported

This assessment has included, where
appropriate, the Groug's ongoing strategic
review of the UK store estate, as described
on page 10 of the Strategic Reportl. As
aresult, a total charge of £101 million

has been recorded inrespect of
impairments and closure provisions

When areview for impairment is
conducted, the recoverable amount

s determined based on value in use
calculations which rely on the directors’
assumptions and estimates of future
trading performance.

The key assumptions applied by the
directors in the impairment reviews are;

- forecast periods in the context of
strategic decisions made to exit
alocation;

-» future revenue growth,
= discount rates,
- gross margin; and

- store costs, including the impact
of the National Living Wage.

The directors consider that each retall
store constitutes its own cash generating
unit {CGU"), with the exception of the
outlet stores which are used to clear old
season Clothing & Home inventories at a
discount, The outlet stores are considered
to represent one COU in aggregate and
strategic stores are evaluated as part of

a country-wide impairment review.

The group's accounting pelicy sets out
3 relevant shelter period for new stores
to be taken into account when assessing
indicators of impairment during initial
years of trading to enable the store to
establish itself in the market.
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OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT CONTINUED

RISK

IMPAIRMENT OF UK STORE ASSETS
CONTINUED

HOW THE SCCPE OF OUR AUDIT RESPONDED TO THE RISK

3

We considered the appropriateness of the
methodology applied by the girectorsin
calculating the impairment charges, and
the judgements applied in determining
the CCUs of the business. In addition, we
assessed the design and mplementation
of controls in respect of the impairment
review process, and considered the
adeguacy of disclosures made in the
financial statements

RISK

We assessed the impairment models and calculations by:

- checking the mechanical accuracy of
the iImpairment models;

- assessing the discount rates applied to
the impairment reviews with support
from our internat valuations specialist,
and comparing the rates to our Internat
benchmark data,

- comparing forecast growth rates to
economic data; and

- evaluating the information includedin
the impairment madels through cur
knowledge of the business ganed
through reviewing trading plans,
strategic initiatives, minutes of property
board and investment commitice
mectings, and meeling with regional
store managers and senior trading
managers from key product categories
and our retallindustry knowledge

We assessed the appropriateness of the
shietler period for cach store opened within
that tme frame, and compared the original
investment case for the store againstits
current trading performance Where stores
were trading significantly below the
original case, we considered the evidence
avallable to support future improvements
in performance, specifically by assessing
the trading ptans and actions being taken
on anindividual store basis.

Key observations

\We assessed the level of impairment
recordedinrespect of the UK business
and are satisficd that the jJudgements
appled by management and the level
of imparments recorded in the year
are appropriate.

UK CLOTHING & HOME INVENTORY
PROVISION

RISK DESCRIPTION

4

AL April 2017, the Croup held UK Clothing
& Home inventories of £541 million

(2016 £583 million). As described inthe
Accounting Policies innote 1 tothe
Financizl Statement s, inventories are
carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value As a result, the directors

apply jJudgement in determining the
appropriate provisions for obsolete stock
based upon a detaled analysis of old
seascn inventory, net realisable vatue
pelow cost based upon plans for inventory
to gointo sale and stock loss based upon
the runrate fromrecent inventory counts

HOW THE SCOPE OF CUR AUDIT RESPONDED TO THE RISK

We consider the assessment of inventory
pravisions within UK Clothing & Home Lo
require the most judgement based on
the level of iInventory held and recent
trading performance

We obtained assurance over the
appropriateness of management’s
assumptions applied in calculating the
value of the inventory provisions by:

- checking the effectiveness of key
inventory controls operating across
the UK business, including those at 12
distribution centres and 13 retail stores;

- attending inventory counts at 12
distribution centres and 13 retail stores,

- chacking for a sample of individual
products that invoiced costs have been
correctly recorded and that the
allocation of directly attributable costs
has been correctly calculated;

- comparing the net realisable value,
obtained through a detailed review of
sales subseguent to the year-end using
audit analytics, to the cost price of
inventories to check for completeness
of the associated provision;

- performing audit analytics on stock
holding and movernent data to identify
product tines with indicators of low
stock turn or significant levels of aged
stock; and

- meeting with buyers to validate the
assumptions applied by management
compared to the current purchasing
strategy and ranging plans.

We evaluated consumer trends identified
through benchmarking and external
market data to challenge the assurmptions
underlying sales forecasts by category to
assess the completeness of provisions for
obsolescence.

Key observations

The results of our testing were satisfactory
and we concur that the level of UK
Inventory provisions is appropriate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT CONTINUED

OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT CONTINUED

RISK

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

RISK DESCRIPTION

5

As described in the Accounting Policies
nnote 1 and nnote N to the Financial
Statements the Group has a defined
benefit pension plan for its UK employees,
which is closed to new entrants, and a
funded defined heneafit pension scheme
inthe Republic of ireland, where no new
benefits have accrued since 31 October
2013, therefore the key risk retates to the
UK scheme only.

At 1 April 2017, the Croup recerded a

net retirement benefit asset of £702
rmitlion (2016, £833 million), being the

net of scheme assets of £10,135 million
(2016 £8 515 mullion}, scheme Liabilities of

£6433 million (2016. £7,682 million) and
unfunded retiremnent benefits of £9
mitlion (2016; £9 million) The Croup

net retiremnent benefit asset has shown
significant volatility, as the valuation is
sensitive to changes in key assumptions
such as the discount rate, inflation

and mortality estimates. in addition,
curtailment charges have been
recognised inrelation to the closure

of the defined benefit pension scheme,
which occurred during the year, to
future accrual.

HOW THE SCOPE OF QUR AUDIT RESPONDED TO THE RISK

The setting of these assumptions is
complex and an area of significant
judgement; changes in any of these
assumptions can lead to a material
movement in the net surplus The
increase/(decrease) in scheme surplus
caused by a change in each of the key
assurnptions is set out below:

2017 2006
£im m

Adecrease n the discount
rate ol D25% (70} (90
& decrease nrhe nflation
rate of D25% {20) 20
Adecrease in the average fe
expectancy of one year 370 300

We evaluated the directors' assagsment of
the assurmptions made in Lhe valuation of
the scheme tiabilities, and evatuated the
information contained within the actuarial
valuation reports for each scheme. We
assessed the design and implementation
of controls inrespect of the pension
scheme valuation process.

We tested the membership census data
used in the vatuation of the schemes
and, wilh support from our own actuarial

R1SK

specialists, we considered the process
applied by the Group's actuanes, the scope
of the valuation performed and the key
assurmptions applied and evaluated their
expertise. We benchmarked and performed
a sensilivity analysis on the key variables

in the valuation model, including

- inflation rates,
- mortality rates, and

> discount rates

We assessed the accounting treatment
applied to 1he scheme's closure Lo
future accruat and the resulting
curtailment charge.

Key ohservations

We are satisfied that all assumpticns
applied n respect of the valuation

of the scheme assets and labiuties are
appropriate.

MANUAL ADJUSTMENTS TO REPORTED REVENUE

RISK DESCRIPTION

As described inthe Accounting Policies in
note 1 teo the Financial Statements, the
group's revenue recognition policies
require the directors Lo make a number of
adjustments and eslimates in determining
the reported revenue for the period.

The most significant adjustments arer

- gift cards, vouchers and loyalty schemes
- the directors apply an expected
redemption rate Lo the total value of gift
cards, vouchers and loyally points in
155uC based on historic trends.

2 returrs - customers are entitled to
rotura most products up Lo 35 days
after purchase, giving rise to arisk that
sales recognised during the period will
be reversed in the next financial period.

HOW THE SCOPE OF GUR AUDIT RESPONDED TO THE RISK

The directors apply judgement in
determining the provision required for
returns based on aclual sales data and
recent product return rates. Returns
from online sales are commonly at

a higher level than traditional slore
reLailing, resulting in this judgement
bacoming more significant in
determining the level of provision
required.

We considered each revenue-impacting
manual adjustment individually, and
assessad the appropriateness of the
assumptions and judgements applied

to each We assessed the design and
implementation of controls inrespect of
these revenue judgermnents, in addition to
testing the effectiveness of key revenue
controts operating across the UK business

For the key assumptions used in the gift
card and voucher, and loyally scheme
provisions, we assessed the historic rates
of redemption and compared these to the
direclors judgements,

We assessed the appropnatenass
of the methodology and Inputs used n
calculating the returns provision.

Key observations

We are satisfied that the key assumptions
applied in calculating the returns, gift
card, voucher and loyalty scheme
provisions are appropriate
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OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT CONTINUED

RISK

ACCOUNTING FOR SUPPLIER REBATES

RISK DESCREIPTION

As described in the Accounting Policies
nnote 1 and note 17 to the Financiat
Staterments, the Group recognises a
reduction in cost of sales as a result of
amounts receivabte from suppliers,
primarily comprising contributions in
relation to promotions in the Food
business, strategic volume moves and

some annual volume-based rebates.

The majority of these contributions tend
to be smallin unit value but high in volume
and span relatively short periods of ime,
although these can be across the financial
year end. There are a small number of
larger arrangements, which relate to
rnulti-year periods

HOW THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT RESPONDED TO THE RISK

Judgement is required in determining

the pericd over which the reduction in cost
of sales should be recognised, requiring
both a detalled understanding of the
contractual arrangements themselves
aswell as cornplete and accurate source
data to apply the arrangements to.

We tested that amounts recognised were
accurate andrecorded in the correct
period based on the contractual
performance obligations by agreeing a
sample to individual supplicr agrecments.
We also conducted interviews with a
range of buyers and trading managers.

In addition, we circulansed a sample of

15 suppliers to test whether the
arrangements recorded were complete.

We performed revenue and margin
analysis to understand detlailed trends
by product category in order to identify
apparent anomalies which may indicate
potential rebate income errors. Such
anomalies were investigated to assess
whether they were indicative of a mis-
application of contractual terms or
other calculation errors.

We also tested a sample of rebates
recognised pre and post-year end to test
the completeness and accuracy of
accrued supplier income at 1 April 2017,

OQUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY

Key observations

The results of our testing were satisfactory
We consider the disciosure given around
suppler rebates to provide an accurate
understanding of the types of rebate
income receved and the impact on

the statement of Minancial position as

at 1 Apnl 2017

We determined materiality for the
group to be £24.5 million.

We reported all audit differences in
excess of £1m.

We define materiality as the magnitude of
misstaternent in the financial statements
that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
person would be changed or influenced.
We use materiality both in planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the resulls of our work.

We determined materiality for the Group
to be £24.5 million {2016 £30 million), based
on a catculation of 5% of profit before Lax
adjusted for certain adjusted items due to
the nature and significance of those items.

The adjusted profit used in our determination
of materiality was £479 millien, whichis
£301 million higher than statutory profit
before tax of £176 million. The items we
oxcluded from our determination are listed
below, and explained furlher in note 5

to the financial statements:

- Changes to pay and pensions —
£156 million

= International store closures and
impairments ~ £131 rmillicn

- Strategic programmes - UK organisation
and logistics - £14 miltion

The materiality applied by the component
auditors (see below) ranged from

£2.5 milion to £22.5 mitlion {2016 £2 mullion
tc £27 million), depending on the scale of
the component’s operations and our
assessment of risks specific to each
location.

MATERIALITY

We agreed with the Audit Committee that
we would report o the Committee all audit
differences in excess of £1 miltion (2016:

£1 million) as well as d fferences below that
threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting
on qualitative grounds. We also report to
the Audit Committee on disclosure matters
1hat we identified when assessing the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
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AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT
|,

We performed a full scope audit on six
components representing 97% of the
Group's revenue, 89% of the Group’s
profit before tax and 85% of the Group’s
net assets.

We continue to adopt a rotational
approach to visiting the significant
lecations of the Group’s activities.

Cur Group audit was scoped by obtaining
an understanding of the Croup and 1ts
environment, including Group-wide
contrels, and assessing the risks of
material misstaternent at the group level

A summary of the Croup's retail operations
15 set out below (including the UK business).

Nurnbers of countres 20¥%7 2008
Wwhally owned rerail bus nesses 12 1/
Retal joint ventures 2 2
Reta | franchise aperations® 31 33
Websv:e only terrirories ’ 7 7
Toual 52 59

fMC UGes Two CauntT 85 where wholly owned Businesses
alspoperate

Based on our assessment we focused our
Croup audit scope primarily on the audit
work at six wholly cwned locations: Unitea
Kingdom, Republic of Ireland, Czech
Republic, France, China and Hong Kong, and
the joint venture in India All of these were
subject to a full audit, with the exception of
China where specific audit procedures were
performed on certain significant balances
In the pnor year, Creece was subject toa
full audit; however is subject to analytical
review procedures in the current year
following changes to the Croup's

international strategy. Analytical review
procedures were completed for the current
year for those locations not subject to full
audit procedures

These components were selected ta
provide an appropriate basis for undertaking
audit work to address the risks of material
misstaternent identified above. All other
whaolly owned and joint venture businesses
were subject to analytical review procedures
Whilst we audit the revenues received by
the Group from franchise operations, which
account for 3% (2016 3%) of the Groug’s revenue,
we do not audit the underlying franchise
operations as part of our Group audit

At the parent entity level we also tested
the consolidation process and carried out
analytical procedures to confirm our
conclusion that there were na significant
risks of material misstatement of the
aggregated financal information of the
remaining components not subject to

a full audit

Profit
Before Ner
Reveanue Tax  Assets
Fullaudt 97% 89% 85%%
Specific audit
procedures 2% 7% 8%
Analytical procedures 1% 4% 7%

The most significant component of the
Croup s its retail business in the United
Kingdom, which accounts for 89% (2016
90%) of the Croup's reported revenue of
£10,622 million, and generates operating
profit of £293 million (2016 £627 million)
which s offset by operating losses frorm the
international segment resulting in a Group
operating profit of £253 million (2016 £584
milion) The Group audit team performs
the audit of the UK business without the
nvolvernent of a component team. During
the course of our audit, the Group audit
team, conducted 12 distribution centre and
13 retail store visits in the UK to understand
the current trading performance and, at
certain locations, performed tests of
internal controls and validated tevels

of inventory held.

We operate a programme of planned visits
to significant locations so that a senior
member of the Croup audit team visits
each of the cormponents subject to a full
audit or specific audit procedures at least
once every two years, and the most
significant of them at least once a year

Inaddition to our orogramme of planned
visits, we send detailed instructions to our
component audit teams, include them in
our team briefings, discuss ther risk
assessment, attend closing meetings,
and review their audit working papers.

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
b

In our opinion, based on the work
undertaken inthe course of the audit:

- the part of the Directors’ Rermuneration
Report 1o be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006;

> the information given in the Strategic
Repart and the Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the financial
statement s are prepared is consistent
with the financial statements; and

- the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report have been prepared inaccordance
with applicable legal requirernents.

> inthe lght of the knowledge and
understanding of the group and the
company and their environment
obtainedin the course of the aUdd,
we have not identified any material
misstalemonts in the Strategic Report
or the Directors Report.
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MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION
__________________________________________________________________]

ADEQUACY OF EXPLANATIONS
RECEIVED AND ACCOUNTING RECQRDS

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are
required to report to you if, in our opinion:

- we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit; or

= adegquate accounting records have not
been ket by the parent Company, or
returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited
by us; or

S the parent Company financial statements
are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect
of these matters.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also
required to reportif in our opmion certain
disclosures of directors rermuneration have
rot been made or the part of the Directors’
Rermuneration Report to be audited s not in
agreerment with the accounting records and
returns We have nothing to report arising
from these matters.

INDEPENDENCE
|

We are required to comply with the Financial
Reporting Council's Ethical Standards

for Auditors and we confirm that we are
independent of the Croup and we have
fulfilled our other cthical responsipilities in
accordance with those standards We atso
confirm we have not provided any of the
prohibited non-audit scrvices referred to
inthose standards.

1AN WALLER (SENIOR STATUTORY ALIDITOR]

SORAND ONBEHALFQF DELOTTELLP
CHARTERZD ACCOUNTANTS ANG STATUTORY AUDITOR
LONDON UN TED RINSDOM

23 May 2017

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Under the Listing Rules we are also required
to review part of the Corporate Covernance
Statement relating to the company's
compliance with certain provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code We have
nothingto report arising from our review.

OUR DUTY TO READ OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

Under Internaticnal Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland}, we are reguired to report
to you if, in our opinion, information in the
Annual Report is;

- materially inconsistent with the
information in the audited financial
staternents, or

- apparently materially incorrect based
on, or materially mconsistent with, our
knowledge of the Croup acquired in
the course of performing our audit, or

- otherwise misteading

In particular, we are required to consider
whether we have identified any inconsistencies
between our knowledge acquired during
the audit and the directors’ statement

that they consider the Annual Repaort is fair,
balanced and understandable and whether
the Annual Report appropriately discloses
those matters that we communicated

to the Audit Committee which we consider
should have been disclosed We confirm
that we have not identified any such
inconsistencies or misleading statements.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES
OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR
L

As cxplained mere fully in the Directors’
Responsibilities Staterment, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the
financial staternents and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view Qur
responsibility is to audit and express an
opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing

{UK and Ireland}. We also comply with
International Standard on Quality Control 1
(UK and treland) Our audit methodology
and tools aim to ensure that cur quatity
control procedures are effective,
understood and applied. Our guality
controls and systems include our dedicated
professional standards review tearm and
independent parlner reviews,

This report is made solely to the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Cur audit work has been undertaken
50 that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to
state to them inan auditor's report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume respensibility to anyone other than
the Company and the Company's membors
as a body, for cur audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1

An audit involves abtaining evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the fimancial
statermments sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statemaents are
free frorn matenat misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of.

- whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Croups and the Company’s
circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed,

-» the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the
diractors; and

->the overall presentation of the financial
statements

In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial information n the Annual
Report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that is apparently
matenally ncorrect based on, or matenially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired
by us in the course of performing the audit.
If we become aware of any apparent
material misstaternents or inconsistencios
we consider the implications for our report

OUR BUSINESS

OUR PERFORMANCE

COVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

52 weeks ended 1 April 2017

53 weeks enged 2 Apnl 2016

Befare Befora
adjusted items Adjusted items Total agusted irems Adjusted items Total
Motes £m £m £m £rn £m £m
Revenue 2,3 10,622.0 - 10,622.0 10,5554 - 10,555.4
Operating profit 2,3,5 690.6 (437.4) 253.2 7849 {2008) 584 )
Financeincome 6 36.2 - 36.2 211 - 211
Finance costs 6 {(113.0) - {13.0) (164 - (116.4)
Profit before tax 45 613.8 (437.4) 176.4 68956 (200 8) 488.8
Income tax expense 7 (122.4) 61.7 (60.7) 18.8) 344 (84.4)
Profit for the year 491.4 (375.7) 115.7 570.8 {166.4) 404.4
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 492.8 {375.7) nn 573.3 (166.4) 4069
Non-cantroling interests {1.4) - (1.4) (25) - (2.5
491.4 (375.7) 115.7 570.8 (166.4) 4044
Basic earnings per share 8 30.4p 7.2p 350p 249p
Diluted earnings per share 8 30.2p 12p 349p 24.8p

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
L

52 weeks ended 53 wecks ended

1 April 2017 ZApril 2018
Notes Em fm
Profit for the year 115.7 404 4
Other comprehensive income:
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes 13 {68.9) 346.2
Tax charge/(credit) oniterns that willnot bereclassified 25.3 (45 6)
{42.6) 3006
Iltems that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign currency transtation differences 3.0 73
Cash flow hedges and net investrment hedges
- fair value movements recagrusedin other comprehensive income 56.1 (300
-reclassified andreported in profit or loss (72.4) (2210
- amaodurntt recognised in inventaries {20.1) 5%
Tax credit on cash flow hedges and net investment hedges 41 65
{1.3} {32.5)
Other cormnprehensive (expense)income for the year, net of tax (44.9) 2681
Total comprehensive income for the year 70.8 672.5
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 72.2 675.0
Non-controlling intarests (1.4} {2.5}

70.8 6725
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CONSOL!DATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
L .

As at Agat
1 April 2017 2Ap7 7006
Notes £Em £
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 14 709.0 8028
Property plant and equipment 15 4,837.8 50271
Investment properly 15.5 155
investrment in joint ventures 7.0 69
Other financial assets 16 3.0 30
Retirerment benefit asset 11 706.0 8510
Trade and other receivables 17 2341 2347
Derivative financialinstruments 21 56.8 74.0
Deferred tax assets 23 - -
6,569.2 70150
Current assets
Inventaries 758.5 7999
Otherfinancial assets 16 145 191
Trade and other recevables 17 3186 3211
Derivative financial instruments 21 163.1 721
Current tax assets - 16
Cashand cash equivalents 18 468.6 2476
1,723.3 1,461.4
Total assets 8,292.5 84764
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 1,653.8 16177
Partnarship liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scherne 12 71.9 718
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 20 518.0 2975
Derivative financialinstruments 21 10.5 285
Provisions 22 147.2 140
Currenit tax liabilities 666 752
2,368.0 21048
Non-current liabilities
Retirerment benefit defici 1 13.2 269
Trade and other pavables 19 328.5 3530
Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Schermne 12 324.6 3838
Borrowings and ather financial lizbilities 20 1,711.7 17747
Denvative financial instruments 21 0.8 0.2
Provisions 22 113.5 520
Deferred tax liabilities 23 281.8 3376
2,774.1 29282
Total Liabilities 5,142.1 50330
Net assets 3,150.4 34434
Equity
Issued share capitat 24 406.2 405.8
Share premium account 416.4 13
Capitalredemplion reserve 2,210.5 2,2105
Hedgingreserve 12.3 323
Cther roserve {6,542.2) (6,542.2)
Retained earnings 6,648.1 69275
Tetal shareholders’ equity 3,156.3 3,445.2
Non-controlling interests in equity (5.9) {1.8)
Total equity 3,150.4 34434

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 23 May 2017. The financial staternents also comprise the

noles onpages 9610 127

Steve Rowe Chief Executive Officer
Helen Weir Chief Finance Officer

OUR BUSINESS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
s

Ordinary Share Captal Toregn Norn-
share prermium redemotion s ledg ng Qrrer exchange  Retanco cantro.ung
capital account TESErve  reserve resecve’ fgserve’  @arnngs Tora. nrErest Totat
fm m Em Em £rm £ fm Fm f£rm im
As at 29 March 2015 4120 3924 22026 643 (65422) (126) 66831 3,996 (08) 3,1988
Profitfitoss) for the year - - - - - - 406%H 4089 (25) 4044
Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
Foreign currency translation - - - (Q.5) - 78 — 73 - 73
Remeasurements of retirement benefit schemes - - - - - - 3462 3462 - 3482
Tax charge onitems that will not be reclassified - - ~ - - (4586) (456) - (450)
Cash {low hedges and net investment hedges
-fair value movement recognisedin other
comprehensive mcome - - - (218 - - (83) (301) - (300
-reclassified and reported m profit ortoss? - - - (221) - - - (221) - (221}
-amount recognised innventories - - - 59 - - - 58 - 59
Tax on cash flow hedges and net
investrment hedges - - - 65 - - - 65 - 65
Other comprehensive income/{expense) E - - {320) B 78 2923 268) - 268)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) - - - (320 - 78 6922 6750 (25) 6725
Transactions with owners.
Dividends - - - - - - (3017) (3017} - (301.7)
Transactions with non-controtling sharenolders - - - - - - - - 15 15
Shares issued on exercise of emplayee
share options % 189 - - - - - 206 - 206
Purchase of own shares held by employee trusts - - - - - - (109) (109) - (10.9}
Shares purchased in buy back (79) - 79 - - - (1507) (1507) - {1507)
Crodit for share-based payments - - - - - - 172 172 - 172
Deferredtax on share schemes - - - - - - (39) 29 - (3.9)
As at 2 Aprit 2016 4058 4113 22105 323 (6,5422) (4.8) 69323 34452 {18} 34434
As at 3 Aprit 2016 4058 4113 2,2105 323 (6542.2) (4.8)6,932.3 3,445.2 (1.8)3,343.4
Profitfloss) for the year - - - - - LA YA n7.1 (1.4) 157
Qther comprenensive (expensa)/income:
Foreign currency translation - - - {43) - 353 - 1.0 - 31.0
Remeasurements of retirement beneafit schemes - - - - - - (689} (68.9) -  {68.9)
Tax credil anitems that will not be reclassified - - - - - - 253 253 - 253
Cash flow hedges and net investment hedges
- fair value rmoverment recognisedin other
comprehensive Income - - - 717 - -  {21.6) 56 - 56.1
-reclassified and reported in profit or loss? - - ~ (72.4) - - - (72.4) - (72.4)
-amount recognisedin inventories - - ~  (20) - - - {200) - (200)
Tax on cash flow hedges and net
investment hedges - - - 41 - - - 4.1 - 43
Other comprehensive incorme/{expense) - - ~ {15.0) - 353 ({652) {449 - (449
Tolal comprehensive incomo/(expense) - - ~ (15.0) - 35.3 51.9 72.2 (1.4) 708
Transactions with owners,
Diwvidends - - ~ - - -~ {377.5) (377.5) - (3715)
Transactions with non-controlling shareholders - - - - - ~ - - {2.7) (2.7)
Sharesissuedon exercise of employee
share options 0.4 5.1 - - - ~ - 5.5 - 5.5
Purchase of own shares held by employee trusts - - - - - - - - - -
Credit for share-based payments - - - - - - 135 13.5 ~ 135
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - - (26) (2.6) - (2.6)
As at 1 April 2017 406.2 4164 2,2105 173 ({6542.2} 305 6,617.6 3,156.3 (5.9) 3,150.4

™

The'Qther reserve was origmna:ly created as part of the caprtal restructuring that took place in 2002 Itrepresents the dit“erence between the nominat value of the shares issued pnor
to the capital reduction by the Cempany (oeing the carmying value of the nvesiment in Marks and Spencer plo) and the share capital, shara preruum and capntal redemptionreserve

of Marks ano Spencer ple at the date of the Transachion

Armaounts recassified and reported in profit o loss ing) .ces the reva.uatios of the Sross CUrrercy twaps “ftsetting the revaluation of the US daollar hedged ponds wirin finance gosts
Intne prioryear financial statements. the foregn exchange reserve was presentedwithin Retaineq earrngs
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

52 weeks ended

53 weex<senuad

1 April 2017 2 AR, 2006
Notes Em tr
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 26 1,165.7 1313
Income tax paid (98.0} (99.3)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,067.7 12120
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds cn property disposals 27.0 306
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (309.1) (363.3)
Purchase of intangible assets (101.1) (186 8)
Reduction/(curchase} of current financial assets 4.6 (72)
Interest received 6.6 68
Acquisition of subsidiary - (56.2)
Net cash used in investing activities {372.0} (5761)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid' (111.2) (1135)
Cash (cutflow)/inflow from borrowings (32.7) 31
Repayment of syndicated loannotes {215.3) (199)
Issuance of medium-term notes 300.0 -
Decrease in obligations under finance leases {2.0) (24
Payment of liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (57.9) (56.0)
Equity dividends paid (377.5} {301 7)
Shares issued on exercise of employee share oplions 5.5 206
Purchase of own shares by employee trust - (109)
Share buy back - (150.7)
Net cash used in financing activities (491.1) {631 4)
Net cash inflow from activities 204.6 45
Effects of exchange rate changes 5.6 37
Opening net cash 196.0 1878
Closing net cash 27 406.2 1950
1 Includes interast onthe patrersh plability to the Marks & Soencer U< 2ensian Srheme
52 weeks ended S3weens ended
T April 2017 7 AR, 2006
~Notes Em m
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Opening net debt {2,138.3) (2,2232)
Net cashinflow from activities 204.6 45
{Decrease)/increasein current financial assets (4.6) 7.2
Decrease in debt financing 7.9 752
Exchange and other non-cash movements (4.3) 2.0)
Movement in net debt 2036 849
Closing net debt 27 (1,934.7) {2,138 3}
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
L |

1 ACCQUNTING POLICIES

General information

The current financial statements are prepared for the 52-week
period ended 1 April 2017, whereas the prior financial period was the
53 weeks ended 2 April 2016

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been preparedin accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and IFRS
Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) interpretations, as adopted by
the European Union, and with those parts of the Companies Act
2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

Inadopting the going concern basis for preparing the financial
statements, the directors have considerad the business activities
asset outonpages | to 33 including the Croup's principal risks and
uncertainties as set out on pages 30 to 33. Based on the Croup’s
cash flow forecasts and projections, the Board is satisfied that the
Greup will be able to operate within the level of its bank facilities
for the foreseeable future, For this reason, the Croup continues to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial staternents

The Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership has taken an
exemptionunder paragraph 7 of the Partnership (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 for the requirement to prepare and deliver
financial statements in accordance with the Companies Act.

New accounting standards adopted by the Group

There have been no significant changes to accounting under IFRS
which have affected the Group's results for the current financial
vear. The only changes to the IFRS, IFRS IC interpretations and
amendments that are effective for the first time in this financiat year,
and are applicable for the Group, are the Annuallmprovements to
IFRSs. 2012-2014 cycle These have not had a materialimpact on

the Group.

New accounting standards in issue but not yet effective
The following IFRS have besnissued but are not yet effective:

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments' replaces all phases of the financiat
instrurents project and 1AS 39 Financial instruments
Recognitionand Measurement’ The standard s effective from
pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and introduces

-new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets and fimancial liabitities;

- anew model for recognising provisions based an expected
credit losses; and

-simplified hedge accounting by aligning hedge accounting
more closely with an entities risk ranagement methodology.

Workis under way to assess the necessary changes to existing

IT systerns that willbe reguired to aid the Croup's implementation
of the standard. The adoption of IFRS 9is unlikely to have a
materialimpact on the consolidated results of the Croup. Any
potentialimpact of IFRS 9 will be gquantifiedin the Annual Report
and Financial Staterments for the yearending 31 March 2018

-3 IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Custorners'is effective
for periods beginning onor after | January 2018.The standard
establishes a principles based approach for revenue recognition
and s based onthe concept of recognising revenue for
obligations only when they are satisfied and the control of
goods or services s transferred (tapples toall contracts with
customers, except those in the scope of other standards
it replaces the separate models for goods, services and
construction contracts under the current accounting standards.
The Group has completed an assessment on the impact of IFRS 15
and it is expected adoption witl not have a raterialimpact cnany
of the Croup's revenue streams.

> |FRS 16 'Leases was 1ssued on 13 January 2016 and is effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption 1s
permitted if IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
has also been applied IFRS 1615 not yet endorsed by the ELL

The standard represents a significant change in the acccunting
and reporting of leases for lessees as it provides a single lessee
accounting model. As such it requires lessees to recognise assets
and liabitities for all leases unless the underlying asset has a low
value or thelease termis 12 months or less. The standard may
alsorequire the capitalisation of a lease elerment of contracts
held by the Croup which under the existing accounting standard
would not be considereda lease Accounting reguirements for
lessors are substantially unchanged from 1AS 17,

The Group has established a working group to assess theimpact
of the new standard. Work performed includes assessing the
accountingimpacts of the change, the process of collecting

the required data from across the business and the necessary
changes tosysterns and processes. From work performedto
date, it is expectedimplementation of the new standard willhave
asignificant impact on the consolidated results of the Group
Onadoption,lease agreements will give rise to both a nght

of use asset and a lease liability for future lease payables
Depreciation of theright of use asset will be recognisedin

the income statement on a straight-line basis, with interest
recognised on the lease liability. This will result ina change

to the profile of the net charge taken to the income statement
over thelife of the lease. These charges will reptace the lease
costs currently charged to the income statement.

The Croup continues to assess the fullimpact of IFRS 16, however,
the impact will greatly depend on the facts and circumstances

at the time of adoption and upon transition choices adopted.

Itis therefore not yet practicable to provide a reliable estimate

of the financialimpact on the Croup's consolidated results

Alternative Performance Measures

inreporting financial information, the Croup presents alternative
performance measures, APMs” which are not defined or specified
under the requirements of IFRS,

The Croup believes that these APMs, which are not considered to be
a substitute for or superior to IFRS measures, provide stakeholdars
with additional hepfulinfermation cn the performance of the
business The APMs are consistent with how the business
performanceis planned and reported within the internal
management reporting to the Board and Operating Committee,
Some of these measures are also used for the purpose of setting
remuneration targets.

The key APMs that the Croup uses includer tike-for-like sales; gross
margin; profit before taxand adjusteditems, adjusted earnings
pershare; net debet, free cash flow, and return on capital employed.
Each of these APMs, and others used by the Group, are set out In
the Clossary on pages 133 and 134 including explanations of how
they are calculated and how they can be reconciled to a statutory
measure where relevant,

The Croup reports some financial measures, primarily International
szles, onbothareported and constant currency basis. The constant
currency basis, whichis an APM retranslates the previous year
revenues at the average actual periodic exchange rates used in

the current financial year. This measureis presented asameans of
eliminating the effects of exchange rate fluctuations on the year-
on-year reparted results

The Croup makes certainadjustments to the statutory profit
measures in order to derve many of these APMs, The Croup's policy
is to exclude iterns that are considered to be significantin both
nature andfor quantum and where treatrment as an adjusted item
provides stakeholders with additional usefulinformation to assess
the year-on-year trading performance of the Group. On this basis,
the following items were included within adjusted iterns for the
52-week period ended 1 April 2017:

- Significant pension charges arising as a resutt of changes to the
defined benefit scheme’s rutes and practices
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
]

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

- Significant restructuring costs and other associated costs arising
from significant strategy changes that are not considered by the
Croup to be part of the normat operating costs of the business.

-SNet gains and losses onthe disposal of properties or
impairments of properties where a commitment to close
has been demenstrated.

= Impairment charges and provisions that are considered to be
significant in nature and/or value to the trading performance
of the busmess.

- Adjustments taincorne from M&S Bank due to a provision
recognised by M&S Bank for the cost of providing redress to
customers in respect of possible mis-selling of M&S Bank
financial products.

- Various legal settlements that zre significant in value to the
results of the Group or toa segment

Refertcnote S for a summary of the adjusted items

Asurnmary of the Company’s and the Croup’s accounting policies
is givertbelow

Accounting convention

The financial statements are drawn up on the historical cost basis

of accounting, as modified by financial assets and financial labilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit andloss

Basis of consolidation

The Croup financial statements Incorporate the financiat
statements of Marks and Spencer Group plc andallits subsidiaries
made up to the period end date. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidianes to bring the
accounting policies usedin line with those used by the Croup.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiary undertakings are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Croup has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies This power is generally accompanied by the
Group having a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. Subsidiary undertakings acquired during the year are
recorded using the acquisiticnmethod of accounting and their
results are included from the date of acquisition.

The separable net assets, including property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets, of the newly acquired subsidiary undertakings
are incorporatedinte the consolidated financial statements onthe
basis of the fair value as at the effective date of control

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated.

Revenue

Revenue comprises sales of goods to custorners outside the Group
less anappropriate deduction for actual and expected returns,
discounts and loyalty scheme vouchers, and is stated net of value
added tax and other sales taxes Revenueis recognised when goods
are delivered to our franchise partners or the custorner and the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred

to the buyer.

Supplier income

in line with industry practice, the Group enters into agreements
with suppliers to share the costs and benefits of promaotional
activity and volume growth. The Croup receives incorme fromits
suppliers based on specific agreements in place This supplier
income received is recognised as a deduction from cost of sales
based cnthe entitlement that has been earned up to the balance
sheet date for each relevant supplier agreement. Marketing
contributions, equiprnent hire and other non-judgemental
fixed rate supplier charges are not included inthe Croup’s
definition of supplicr income

The types of supplierincome recognised by the Croup and the
associated recognition policies are:

A.Promotional contribution includes supplier contricutions
to promotional giveaways and pre-agreed contributions to annual
‘spend and save activity

Income is recognised as a deduction to cost of sales overthe
relevant promotional period.

Income is calculated and inveiced at the end of the promotional
period based on actual sales or according to fixed contribution
arrangements. Contributions earned but not invoiced are accrued
at the end of the relevant period

B. Volume-based rebates Includes annual growth incentives,
seasonal contributions and contributions to share economies of
scale resulting from moving product supply.

Annual growth incentives are calculated andinvoiced at the end

of the financial year, once earned, based on fixed percentage
growth targets agreedfor each supplier at the beginning of the year.
They are recognised as a reduction in cost of sales in the year to
which they relate Other volume-based rebates are agreed with the
supplier and spread over the relevant season/contract period to
which they relate Contributions earned but notinvaicedare
accruedat the end of the relevant pericd.

Uncollected supplier income at the balance sheet date is classified
within the financial statements as follows:

A. Trade and other payables The majority of income due from
suppliersis netted against amounts owed to that supplier as
the Croup has the night to offset these balances. As such, the
outstanding supplier income withintrade and other payables at
year end s immatenal.

B, Trade and other receivables Supplier income that has been
earned but not nvoiced at the balance sheet date s recognisedin
trade and other receivables and primarily relates to volume-based
rebates that run up to the periodend.

In arder to provide users of the accounts with greater understanding
N this area, additioral balance sheet disclosure is provided nnote 17
to the financial statements.

Dividends

Finaldividends are recorded in the financiat statement s in the
periodinwhich they are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
Interim dividends are recordedinthe periodinwhich they are
approved and paid.

Pensions
Funded pension plans are in place for the Croup’s UK employees
and sorne employees overseas

For defined benefit pension schames, the difference between the
fair value of the assets and the present value of the defined benefit
obligation is recognised as an asset or liabitity in the statement of
financial position The defined benefit obligation is actuarnially
calculated using the projected unit credit method

The service cost of providing retirermnent benefits to employees
during the year, together with the cost of any curtailment, is charged
to operating profit inthe year.

The net interest cost on the net retirement benefit asset/liability is
calculated by applying the discount rate, measured at the beginning
of the year, 1o the net defined benefit asset/liability andis included
asasingle net amaunt in finance income

Remeasurements, being actuarial gains and losses, together with
the difference between actual investment returns and the return
implied by the net interest cost, are recognised immediately in the
staterment of comprehensiveincome.

Payrments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are chargedas anexpense onanaccruatsbasis
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Intangible assets

A. Coodwill Coodwill ansing on consolidation represents the
excess of the consideration paid and the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acguiree over the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabiities (including intangible assets) of
the acquired entity at the date of the acquisition Goodwiitis
recognised as an asset andassessed for impairment annually or
as triggering events occur, Any impairment in value 1s recognised
within the incorne statement

B. Brands Acquired brand values are held on the staterment of
financial position initially at cost. Definite life intangibles are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Indefinite life intangibles are tested for impairment annually or as
triggering events occur. Any impairment in value is recognised
within the income statement.

C. Software intangibles Where computer software is not an
integral part of a related item of computer hardware, the software
is treated asan intangible asset Capitalised software costs include
external direct costs of goods and services, as well as internal
payroll-related costs for employees who are directly associated
with the project

Capitalised scftware development costs are amortisedona
straight-line basis over their expected economic lives, normally
between three and ten years. Computer software under
develocpment is held at cost less any recognised impairment less.
Any impairment in value is recognised within the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment
The Craups policy is to state property, plant and equipment st cost

less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment Loss.

Property s not revalued for accounting purposes Assetsinthe
course of construction are held at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for gqualifying
assets, borrowing costs.

Depreciation s provided to wr te off the cost of tangible non-
current assets (including investrment properties), less estimated
residuatvalues onastraight line basis as follows

-» Freehold land - not depreciated.

- Freehold and leasehold buildings with a remaining tease term
over 50 years —depreciated to their residual value over their
estimated remaining econormic lives.

= Leasehold buildings with a remaining lease term of less than
50 years - depreciated over the remaiming period of the lease

- Fixtures, fittings and equipment - 3 to 25 years according to
the estimated economic life of the asset

Residual values and usefuleconomic lives arereviewed annually
Depreciation 1s charged on all additions to, or disposals of,
depreciating assets in the year of purchase or disposal

Any tmpairment in value is recognised within the income statement.

Leasing

Where assets ara financed by leasing agreements and the nsks and
rewards are substantially transferred to the Group (finance leases)
the assets are treated as if they had been purchasedoutright, and
the corresponding liability to the leasing company is included as an
abligation under finance leases. Depreciation onleased assets is
charged to the income statement on the same basis as owned
assets, unless the termof thelease is shorter Leasing payments are
treated as consisting of capital and interest elements and the
interest is chargedto the income statement

All other leases are operating leases and the costs inrespect of
operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the
lease tarm The value of any (ease incentive received to take on
anoperating lease (for example, a rent-free period)is recognised
as deferred income and s released over the life of the lease.

Leasehold prepayments

Payrments made to acquire leasehold land and buildings are
includedin prepayrents at cost and are amaortised over the tife
of the lease

Cash and cash equivalents

Cashand cash equivalents includes short-term deposits with banks
and other financial nstitutions, with an initial maturity of three
months or less and credit card payments received within 48 hours

Inventories

inventories are valued ona weighted average cost basis and carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costincludes all direct
expenditure and other attnibutable costs incurred in bringing
inventories to their present location and condition Atlinventories
are finished gocds. Certain purchases of inventories may be subject
ta cash flow hedges for foreign exchange risk The Group applies a
basis adjustrment for those purchases ina way that the costis initially
established by reference to the hedged exchange rate and not the
spot rate at the day of purchase

Provisions

Provisions are recognisedwhen the Group has a present obligation
as aresult of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be
requiredto settle that oblgation. Provisions are measured at the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settie the obligation at
the end of the reporting period, and are discounted to present value
where the effect is material.

Share-based payments

The Croup issues equity-settled share-based payments to certan
employaes. A fair value for the equity-settled share awards is
measured at the date of grant The Group measures the fair value
of each award using the Black-Scholes model where appropriate.

The fair value of each awardis recognised as an expense over the
vesting period on a straight-line basis, after allowing for an estimate
of the share awards that will eventually vest The level of vesting is
reviewed at eachreporting period and the charge is adjusted to
reflect actuatand estimated levels of vesting,

Foreign currencies

The results of overseas subsidiaries are translated at the weighted
average of monthly exchange rates for revenue and profits.

The statements of financial position of overseas subsidiaries are
translated at year end exchange rates. The resulting exchange
differences are booked into reserves and reported in the
consclidated staterment of cormprehensiveincome.

Transactions denominatedin foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rate af the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting
period are translated at the closing balance sheetrate. The resulting
exchange gain or lessis recognised within the income statement,
except when deferred in ather comprehensive income as qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net nvestment hedges.

Taxation

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax Taxis recognised in
the income statement, except to the extent it relates toitems
recognised mnother comprehensive income or directly nequity,in
which case the related taxis recognised in other comprehiensive
income or directly in eguity.

Provision is made for uncertain tax positions when it s considered
probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax
authority. The provision is calculated using the single best estimate
where that outcome is more likely than not and a weighted average
probability in other circumstances. The positionis reviewed onan
ongoing basis, Lo ensure appropriate provision is made for each
known tax risk,
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Deferredtaxis accounted for using a temporary difference
approach,and is the tax expected to be payable or recoverabte on
temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
Liabilities in the statement of financial positionand the
corresponding tax bases usedin the computation of taxable profit
Deferredtaxis calculated based on the expected rmanner

of realisation or settiement of the carrying amount of assets and
lizbilities, applying tax rates and taws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting pericd.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recogrised forall taxable
temparary differences Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except where the reversal
of the temporary cifference can be controlled by the Croup and itis
probable that the difference will not reversein the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax labilities are not recogrised on temporary differences
that arise from goodwill which is not deductible for tax purposes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of
deferredtaxassets isreviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of

the asset to be recovered

Ceferred tax assets and labilities are not recognisedin respect of
temporary differences that arise on inttial recognition of assets
and Lizbilities acquired other thanin abusiness cormbination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognisedin the Group's
statemnent of financial position when the Croup becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument

A. Trade and other receivables Trade receivables are recorded
initially at fair value and subseguently measured at amortised cost,
Subseguently, this results in their recognition at nominal value less
any allowance for any doubtful debts.

B. Other financial assets Other financial assets consist of
investments in debt and equity securities and short-term
investments and are classified as either available-for-sale’ or fair
value through profit and loss' Available-for-sale financial assets are
initially measured at fair value, including transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Financial assets
held at fair value through profit and loss are initially recognised at
fair value and transaction costs are expensed.

Where securities are designated as fair value through profitand
loss', gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included
in the income statement for the period.For ‘available-for-sale’
nvestments, gains or losses arising frorm changes in fair value are
recognisedin other comprehensive ncome, until the security

15 disposed of oris determined to be impaired, at which time

the cumulative gain or loss previcusly recognised in other
comprehensive incomeis included in the income staternent for
the pernicd, Eguity investments that do not have aquoted market
priceinan active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured by other means are held at cost

C. Classification of financial Liabilities and equity Financiat
liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. Anequity
nstrument is any contract that evidences aresidualinterest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its Liabilities.

D. Bank borrowings Interest-bearing bank leans and overdrafts are
intially recorded at fair value, which equals the proceedsreceived,
net of direct issue costs They are subsequentty held at amortised
cost. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement

orredemption and direct issue costs,are accounted for using an
effective interest rate method and are added to the carrying
amount of the nstrument to the extent that they are not settled
inthe period in which they arise

E. Loan notes Long-term loans are inttially measured at fair value
net of directissue costs and are subsequently held st amaortized
costuniess the loanis designatedin a hedge relationship, in which
case hedge accounting treatrment will apply

F. Trade payables Trade payaioles are recorded initially at fair value
and subseguently measured at amortised cost. Cenerally this
results in their recognition at therr nominal value,

G, Equity instruments Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the considerationreceived, net of direct issue costs

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Creup primarily uses interest rate swaps, Cross-currency swaps
and forward foreign currency contracts to manage its exposures
to fluctuations innterest rates and foreign exchange rates These
instruments are initally recognised at fair value on the trade date
and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value at the end of
the repaorting pericd The methed of recognising the resulting gain
or loss s dependent on whether the derivativeis designated as
ahedging instrument and the nature of the item being hedged

The Croup designates certain hedging derivatives as either.

- Ahedge of a highly probable forecast transaction or change in
the cash flows of a recognised asset or lisbility (a cash flow hedge)

-» Ahedge of the exposure to change in the fair value of
a recognised asset or liability {a fair value hedge).

- Ahedge of the exposure onthe translation of net investments
Inforeign entities (a net investment hedge).

At the inception of a hedging relationship, the hedginginstrument
andthe hedgeditern are documented, along with therisk
managerment objectives and strategy for undertaking vanous
hedge transactions and prospectve effectiveness testing is
performed During the life of the hedging relationship, prospective
andretrospective effectiveness testing is perforrmed to ensure
the instrument remains an efective hedge of the transaction.
Changes in the fair value of derivative financialinstruments that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognisedin the income
staternent as they arise,

A. Cash flow hedges Changes inthefair value of derivative
financialinstrurments that are designated and effective as hedges
of future cash flows are recognisedin other comprehensive income
inthe hedaing reserve and any ine“fective portionis recognised
immediately in the income statement. If the firm commitment or
forecast transaction that is the subject of a cash flow hedge results
inthe recognition of a non-financial asset or liability, then, at the
time the asset or liability is recognised, the associated gains or
losses onthe derivative that had previously beenrecogrised in
comprehensive income are included in the initial measurement

of the asset or liability.

For hedges that do not result in the recognition of anasset ora
liability,amounts deferred in other comprehensive income are
recognised in the income statement inthe same period in which
the hecged tems affect net profit orloss

B. Fair value hedges Changesin the fair value of a derivative
instrument designated in a fair value hedge, or, for non-derivatives
the foreign currency component of carrying value, are recognised
inthe income statement The hedgeditem 1s adjusted for

changes in fair value attributable to the risk being hedged

with the corresponding entry in the income staternent
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

C. Net investment hedges Changes in the far value of derivative
or non-derivative financialinstruments that are designated and
effective as hedges of net invastments are recognisedin other
comprehensive ncome nthe hedging reserve and any ineffective
portionis recognised immediately in the income statement,

Changes inthe farr value of denvative fimancial instruments that
do not gualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income
staterment as they anse.

D. Discontinuance of hedge accounting Hedge accounting s
discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, the haedge relationship no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting, the forecast transactionis no
longer expectied to occur or the Croup de-designates the
hedge relationship.

When a cash flow hedgeis discontinued, any cumulative gain or Loss
onthe hedging instrument recognised in other comprehensive
income s retainedin equity until the forecast transaction occurs.
Subseguent changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments
when the forecast transactionis no longer highly probable but is
still expectedto occur, are recognised in the income statement.

ifa hedged transaction s no longer expected to occur, the net
cumutative gain or loss recogrised in comprehensive income is
transferred to the income statement for the period

When a fair value hedge s discontinued, the fair value adjustment
to the carrying armount of the hedged itemn arising from the hedged
risk 15 amortised to the income statement from that date

When a net nvestment hedge is discontinued, the subsequent
changesin fair value of a derivative (or foreign exchange gains/
losses onrecognised financial liabilities) are recognised inthe
ncome statement. The gain or loss on the hedginginstrument
recognised in other comprehensive incorme is reclassified to the
ngome statement only ondisposal of the net investment.

The Croup does not use derivatives to hedge income statement
translation exposures.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embaddead in other financial instruments or other host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not carried at fair value, with unreatised
gains orlosses reportedin theincome statement Embedded
derivatives are carried in the staternent of financial position &t fair
value from the inception of the host contract.

Changes in fair value are recognised within Lhe income statement
during the periodin which they arise

Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation
uncertainty

The preparation of consclidated financial statements requires
the Croup te make estimates and .udgements that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts.

Critical judgerments represent key decisions made by management
in the application af the Group acceunting policies. Where 2
sigruficant risk of materiatly different outcomes exists due to
management assumptions or seurces of estimation uncertainty,
this will represent a critical accounting estirmate. Estimates and
Jjudgermnents are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may differ fromthese estimates.

The estimates and judgements which have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustrnent to the carryingamount of assets
and tiabilities are discussed below

Critical accounting judgements

Adjusted items The directors believe that the adjusted profit

and earnings per share measures provide additional useful
information for shareholders on the performance of the business.

These measures are consistent with how business performance
ismeasuredinternally by the Board and Cperating Committee,
The adjusted profit before tax measureis not arecognised

profit measure under IFRS and may not be directly comparable
with adjusted profit measures used by other companies. The
classification of adjusted items requires significant managerment
Judgement after considering the nature and intentions of
atransaction

Note 5 provides further details on current year adjusted items and
their adherence to Croup policy.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment Depreciation is provided to write down the cost of
property, plant and equipment to their estimated residual values
overtheir estimated usefullives, as set out above. The seiection
of the residual values and useful lives givesrise to estirnation
uncertainty The Croupis undertaking a strategic multi-year
programme in relation to the UK store estate which will result

in future store closuras. The timing of these closures and the
identificationof the specific stores that will be impacted are not
yet known, giving rise to additional estimation uncertainty when
assessing the residual values and useful lives as at 1 April 2017,
The usefullives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
py management annually. See note 15 for further details.

impairment of property, plant and equipment Property, plant
and equipment are reviewed for impairment if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amaount may not

be recoverable. When a review forimpairment is conducted,

the recoverable amount is determined based onvalue inuse
calculations. This method requires the Croup to determine the
appropriate period over which to assess future cash flows and
discount rate assumptions. See notes 14 and 15 for further details
on the Group's assumptions and associated sensitivities

Post-retirement benefits The determination of the pension cost
and defined benefit obligation of the Group's defined benefit
pension schemes depends on the selection of certain assumptions
whichinclude the discount rate, inflation rate, salary growth,
mortality and expected return on scheme assets. Differences
arising from actual experiences or future changes in assurnptions
will be reflectedin subsequent pericds. The fair value of unguoted
investments within total plan assets s determined using fair value
estimates provided by the manager of the investment or fund.
Seenote 11 for further details on the impact of changesinthe key
assumptions and estimates and note 12 for critical judgements
associated with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme interest
inthe Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership.

Revenue recognition Accruals for sales returns, deferred income
inrelationtoloyalty scheme redemptions and oift card and credit
voucher redemptions are estimated on the basis of histerical
returns and redemptions. Thase are recorded so as to be allocated
against revenue in the same pericd as that in which the originat
revenue s recorded These balances are reviewed regularly and
updated toreflect management’s latest best estimales However,
actualreturns and redemptions could vary from those estimates.

international closure costs During the year the Croup announced
its strategy for the International business resulting in the planned
exit from owned stores in ten international markets The Croup will
incur significant closure cost s associated with the exits which gives
rise to estimation uncertainty at 1 Aprit 2017, most notably inrespect
of the expected costs to exit leases and the expected redundancy
costs Seencte 5 for further details.

Inventory provisioning Inventory provisions are recognised where
the net realisable value from the sale of inventory is estimated to be
lower than its carrying value, requiring estimnation of the expected
future sale price. The estimation includes judgement on anumber
of factors including historic sales patterns, expected sales profiles,
potential obsclescence and shrinkage.
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2 SEGMENTAL INFORMATICN
IFRS 8 requires operating segrments to be identified on the basis of internal reporting on components of the Croup that are regularly

reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance,

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Operating Committee The Operating Committee reviews the Croup'sinternal
reporting in order to assess performance and sllocate resources across each operating segment. The gperating segments are UKand
International which are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reperting to the Operating Comenittee.

The UK segment consists of the UK retail business and UK franchise operations The Internationat segment consists of Marks & Spencer
owned businesses in Europe and Asia, together with international franchise operations

The Cperating Committee assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a measure of operating profit This

rmeasurernent basis excluaes the effects of adjusted items from the operating segrments. The Operating Committee also monitors

revenue within the segment s and gross profit within the UK segment. Toincrease transparency, the Group has decided to include an

additional voluntary disclosure analysing revenue within the recortable segments by sub-category and gross profit within the UK

segrment by sub-category

The following is an analysis of the Croup's revenue and results by reportable segment-

52 weeks ended 1 April 2017

S3wecks endeo 2 Apr 2016

Logistics Adjusted L0Qg shcs Ad,Jsted
Management adjustment’ items? Statutory  “aragerioent adisrment! tems” Statutory
£m £m £m £m £r £ £m £m
Clething & Home revenue 3,792.7 - - 3,792.7 38613 - - 358613
Food revenue 5,649.0 - - 5,649.0 5,6095 - - 55095
UK revenue 9.441.7 - - 9,441.7 94708 - - 94708
Franchise 314.0 - - 114.0 3297 - - 3297
Qwned 866.3 - - 866.3 7549 - - 7549
International revenue 1,180.3 - - 1,180.3 10846 - - 10846
Group revenue 10,622.0 - - 10,622.0 10,5554 - - 10,5654
Clothing & Home gross profit 21287 21807
Food gross profit 1,837.7 1,806 2
UK gross profit 3,966.4 {360.5) - 3,605.9 39869 (3009} - 36860
UK operating costs {3,390.4) 360.5 (254.5) (3,284.4) (3,2201) 3009 (49.1} (3,068 3)
MA&S Bank 50.2 - (44.1) 6.1 599 - (50.3} S6
UK operating profit 626.2 - {298.6} 3276 7267 - (99.4) 6273
International operating profit 64.4 - (138.8} (74.4) 58.2 - (104 (43 2)
Croup operating profit 690.6 - (437.4) 253.2 7849 - {200.8} 584.1
Finance income 36.2 - - 36.2 211 - - 211
Finance costs (113.0) - - {113.0) (116 4) - - e
Profit before tax 613.8 - (437.4) 176.4 6896 - (2008} 483838

i Management gross profit farthe UK segment excludes certaexpenses osulting manad,usiment between cast of saies and sell ng and admimistratve expenses of £3605m

{135t year F3009m) Updates 1o the methodolngy have been miade rmthe carrent vear tonclude dearesiat oniaf theelevant Distriounon Cearres wthin gross marg Thisis to ensure
consistent treatment with e under.ying warensusing costs The prior yedr compara: ves have not been restated
2 Managernent profit exciudes tne agiusted items income or charges) made Lo reported orofit before tax that are sigrificont nvalae anofor nature {see note §) Please refertothe Clussary
21 pages 133and 134 for the detivition of these nems

Other segmental information

2017 2016

UK International Total LI internationa. Tota.

£m £m £m £m £m Em
Additions to property, plant and cquipment and intangible
assets {excluding goodwill) 374.1 12.2 386.2 6249 200 6449
Depreciation and amaortisation 5491 291 578.2 5319 309 562 8
Imparrment and asse? write-offs 727 31.2 103.9 608 988 1596
Totalassets 7,973 375.2 8,292.5 80623 4141 834764
Non-current assets 6,324.4 2448 6,569.2 57519 2631 70150
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3 EXPENSE ANALYSIS

207 2016
Total Total
£m frn
Revenue 10,622.0 105554
Cost of sales (6,534.2) (6.4270)
Gross profit 4,087.8 41284
Selling ana admiristrative expenses {3,460.4} (34129}
Other operating income 63.2 69.4
Operating profit before adjusted items 690.6 7849
Adjusted nems (seenote 5) {437.4) (200.8)
Operating profit 253.2 5841
The selling and administrative expenses are further analysed below:
2017 206
Total Total
£m £
Ernployee costs' 1,491.4 1,435.7
Ceeupancy costs 757.2 7232
Repairs, renewals and maintenance of property 95.1 995
Depreciation, amortisation and asset mpairments and write-offs before adjusted items 589.5 576.8
Qther costs 527.2 5777
Selling and administrative expenses 3,460.4 34129

¢ Thercisanadaiticnal F6) 2milast vear £5) On) of employee costs recarded wit i Cost of sales These costs are noluded withnthe aggregalé remuneral on oisclnsures note 104

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
The following iterms have beenincluded in arrving at profit before taxation:

2017 2016

£m £m
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses (0.2) €69
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 5,776.1 57786
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 234.9 2397
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment
—owned assets 410.3 4127
- under finance leases 0.5 14
Amortisation of intangible assets 167.4 1487
frofit on property disposals - (0.6)
Impairments and write-offs of assels 103.9 1596
Qperating lease rentals payable
—property 350 3371
- fixtures, fittings and equipment 4.3 35

Included in administrative expenses is the auditor's remuneration, ncluding expenses for audit and non-audit services, payableto
the Company’'s auditor Deloitte LL P and its associates as follows:

2m7 2016

£m £m

Annual audit of the Company and the consolidaled financial statements 09 07
Audit of subsidiary companies 0.7 07
Audit-reiatedassurance services a.3 0.2
Total audit and audit-related assurance services fees 1.9 16
- Q.1

Other services
Totat other services - 0l
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5 ADJUSTED ITEMS

Tne total adjusted itermns reported for the %2-week period ended 1 April 2017 is anet charge of £437.4m The adjustrments made to reported
profit before tax to arrive at adjusted profit are

2017 2016
Notes £m £
Strategic programmes:
- changes to pay and pensions 22 (156.0) -
-UKorganisation 15,22 {24.0) -
-UKstore estate 15,22 (51.6) (370)
~International store closures and impairments 15,22 (132.5) (316)
UK storeimparments and onerous iease charges 15,22 (48.8) -
M&S Bank charges incurred in relation to the insurance mis-selling provision (44.1) (503}
UK logistics 15,22 9.8 9.2
Legal settlements 9.8 -
Ctherimpairments’ - (94.5)
{AS 39 fair value movernent of embedded derivative - (20}
Net gain on acquisilion of joint venture helding Bradford warehouse - 54
Adjustments to profit before tax {437.4) (z00.8)

1 Otherimpairments iniMe prigr year nciuced the mparment of Czech ana Hungary goodwil (£19 |m), the M&S Moude brana (£32 4m), anenterprise management systemused by tne
Internat onal business of (F 19 3m) and impa rment cost s of (F23 7mM)reisted tothe Clothing & Fome buy ing and merchand sing sysems

Changes to pay and pensions (£156.0m)

On 25 May 2016, the Croup announced proposals for a fairer simpler and more consistent approach to pay and prernia as well s proposals
to close the UK defined benefit (DB) pension scheme to future accrua effective from 1 April 2017 The consultation with employees on these
changes completedon 2 Septermber 2016

The closure of the UK DB pension scheme to future accrual has resulted in a curtaiment charge of £127.0m. As all remaining active members
of the scheme have transitioned to deferred status, sll future pensionable increases will be in line with inflation {CPI) as opposed to the lower
1% salary cap applied to active members. Other costs of £5.4mdirectly associated with the closure, primarily in relation to third party
advisory costs,have also beenincurred

The Group considers the curtailment cost and directly associated costs to be an adjusted item on the basis that they relate to a significant
costirmpacting the Group results.

Foilowing the completion of the consultation inrespect of pay and premia, the Group has committed to transition payments of £23 6m
irrespect of the removal of premia. The fullamount of £23 6m has beenrecognised as a liability at 1 April 2017 as the criteria for recognition
under IAS 37 have been met at this date.

The Group anticipates making further transition payments to impacted employees in relation to the closure of the UK DB scheme, expected
to be ¢. £25mintotal over the next three years. These amounts willbe recognised w thinadjusted iterns in future years as incurred

The premia buyout costs are considered to be an adjusted item as they represent costs that are significant in value to the results of
the Group

Strategic pregrammes — UK organisation (£24.0m)

During the year, the Group announced the results of awide-ranging strategic review across anumber of areas of the business ncluding
custorner,brand, UK organisation, UK store estate and International The completion of this review has resulted in the Group incurring
anumber of significant charges.

On & Septermber 2016, faliowing completion of a detalled review of the UK organisation, the Croup announced changes to the UK Head Office
structure. The changes have resulted i a net reduction of ¢ 590 Head Office roles achieved through a cormbination of fewer contractors,
natural attrition and redundancies and resultedin costs of £15.4m inclusive of fees.

Cn 2 March 2017, 85 part of the ongoing strategic programme, the Croup announced an 18-month programme to centrabise its London
Head Office functions into one building The Croup has recognised a net charge of £8 6m associated with this rationalisation, inclusive of
the impairment and write-off of assets upon exit of vacated bulldings, an expected net sub-lot shortfalland the costs of relocation.

These costs are considered to be an adjusted itemas they are significant in value and relate to a strategic initiative As aresult, they are not
considered to be normal operating costs of the business.

Strategic programmes - UK store estate (£51.6m)

The Croup has revised Its previously announced strategic programme in relation to the UK store estate. As part of this programme, ten UK
stores were approved for closure in the period, resutting in closure costs of £47 3mrelating to dilapidations, sul-let shortfalls, accelerated
depreciation of fixtures and fittings and impairment of assets. The balance of the charges of £4 3min the period relate to the ongeing review
of assumptions associated with previously closed stores,

Whilst costs associated with the closure and re-configuration of the UK store estate will recur acress financial years, the Croup considers
that they should be treated as an adjusted item given they are part of a strategic programme and are significant in value to the results of
the Croup.
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Strategic programmes ~ International store closures and impairments (£132.5m)

The Group has announced its intention to close Its owned stores inten international markets, resulting in the recognition of a cost of £130.5m
inthe peried The expected closure costs primarily relate to redundancy, lease exit and property dilapidations. The closure programmes

are ongoing in all markets, with the exception of China, where the final store was closed on 1 April 2017 The costs are considered tobe an
adjusteditem as they are part of a strategic programme and are significant in both value and nature Lo the results of the Croup

International store impairment testing during the year identified a nurmnber of stores where current and anticipated future performance
does not support the carrying value of the stores, with a resutting impairment charge of £9 0m being incurred, which is considered
significant invalue to the results of the international segment Refer to note 15 for further details of these irnpairments

Offsetting these store impairments are credits of £70m relating to the reversal of historic impairments against five stores and the release of
unutilised provisions on completion of the exit from the Balkans. This impairment reversaland release are considered to be adjustediterns,
consistent with treatment in previous periods when the original charges were recognised as adjustediterns.

UK store impairments and onerous lease charges (£48.8m)

The UK storeimpairment testing during the year has identified a number of stores where the current and anticipated future performance
does not support the carrying value of the stores. As aresult, acharge of £39 4rm has beenincurredin respect of the impairment of assets
associated with these stores Afuture charge of £9 4m has been incurred nrespect of onerous lease provisions associated with some of
these stores. Refer to note 15 for further details of these impairments.

The charges associated with the impairment of stores and associated onerous leases have been classified as an adjusteditern on the basis
of the significant value of the charge in the year to the results of the Croup

M&S Bank charges incurred in relation to the insurance mis-selling provision (£44.1my}

The Croup hasan economic interest in M&S Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC, by way of a Relationship Agreement that entitles the
Croup toa 50% share of the profits of M&S Bank after appropriate deductions The Croup does not share in any losses of M&S Bank and is not
obliged to refund any profit share received from HSBC, although future income may e impacted by significant deductions.

Since the year ended 31 December 2010, M&S Bank has recagrised inits audited financial statements an estimated liabitity for redress to
customers in respect of possible mis-selling of financial products The Croup's iIncorme from M&S Bank has been reduced by the deduction
of our share of the estimated Uability in both the current and prior years The deductioninthe periodis £44.1m

The Croup considers this cost to be an adjusted itemn, despite its recurring nature, as the charges are significant in nature and value in each
pernadtothe results of the Group

UK logistics (£9.8m credit)

Anet credit of £8.8m has been recognised in the year relating to an updated view of the estimated closure costs of legacy logistics sites
associated with the transition to a single tier distribution network. This credit Largely arises following a decision to retain two logistics
warehouses within the network which had previoustly been identified for closure. This net credit is considered to be an adjusted item,
consistent with treatment in previous periods when the criginal charges were recognised as an adjusted item.

Legal settlements (£9.8m credit}
During the year, the Group has reached various legat settlements resulting in a net credit to the income staterment of £9.8m No further
detailis provided inrespect of these legal settlerments due to the requirement to comply with canfidentiality clauses withir the agreements.

The settlements are considered to be adjusteditems as they are significant in value to the results of the Croup er to the segment.

6 FINANCE INCOME/COSTS
2017 panit=y
£m £m
Bank and other interest receivable 6.6 58
Urwind of discount on financial instruments 0.3 -
Pension net finance income (see note 11) 28.3 153
Finance income 36.2 211
Interest on bank borrowings (2.8) (3.6)
Interest payable on syndicated bank facility (4.3) {5.5)
Interest payable on medium-termnotes {91.2) {899)
Interest payable on finance leases (1.9) 19
Unwind of discount on financial instruments - 04
Urwind of discount on provisions (0.2) {0.4)
Unwinding of discount on partnership lability (o the Marks & Spencer UK Pensicn Scheme (see note 12) (12.5) {14.7])
Finance costs (113.0) 64

Net finance costs (76.8) 95.3)
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7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

A._Taxation charge

2017 206
£m £n
Current tax
UK corporationtax on prafits for the year at 20% (last year 20%)
—~current year 93.3 Mme
- adjustments inrespect of prior years {17.4) 56)
UK current tax 809 1060
Overseas current taxation
~current year 8.9 12.4
—adjustments inrespect of prior years 73 {05)
Total current taxation 97.1 1179
Deferred tax
—orngination andreversal of ternporary differences (48.3) (28.3)
- adjustments in respect of prior years 1.5 26
—changesintaxrate 0.4 (78)
Total deferred tax (see note 23) (36.4) (335)
Total income tax expense 60.7 844
B. Taxation reconciliation
The effective taxrate was 34 4% (last year 17.3%}and isreconciled below
2017 206
£m Frm
Profit before tax 176.4 488.8
Notional taxation at standard UK corporation tax rate of 20% (last year 20%) 353 978
Depreciation and other amounts in relation to fixed assets that do not qualify for tax relief 4.7 23
Other income and expenses that are not taxable or allowable for tax purposes {0.7) (9.6)
Retranslation of deferred tax balances due to the change In statutory UK tax rates {3.9) (7.8)
Owverseas profits taxed at rates different to those of the UK {2.3) (43)
Overseas tax losses where there is no relief anticipated in the foreseeable future 0.5 37
Adjustments to the current and deferred tax charges in respect of pricr periods 1.4 (3.5)
Adjusteditems:
- depreciation and other amounts in relation to fixed assets that do not qualfy for tax relief - 26
- UK storeimpairments and strategic programmes — UK store estate where no taxrelief i1s available 7.7 -
- International store closures and mpairments where no tax relief is available 26.0 153
- strategic programmes — UK organisation and logistics income and expenses that are not taxable
or allowable for tax purposes {1.7) -
- profits andlosses onproperty disposals - 1%
-acquisition of Lima (Bradford) Sarl - (54
—retranslation of deferred tax balances due to the change in statutory UK tax rates 4.3 -
—overseas profits taxed at rates different to those of the UK (10.6) (52)
Total income tax expense 60.7 B44

After excluding adjusted items, ~he adjusted ef‘ective tax rate was 19.9% (last year 17.2%)

On 15 September 2016, the Finance Bill receved Royal Assent to enact the previously announced reductions in the rate of corporation tax
to 19% from 1 April 2017 and 17% from 1 April 2020. The Croup has remeasured its UK deferred tax assets and Liabilities at the end of the
reporting period at the rates of 19% and 17% based on an expectation of when those balances are expected to unwind. This has resulted in
the recognition of a deferred tax charge of £0.4min the income staternent and the recognition of a deferred tax credit of £11 0min other

comprehensive income.
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7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE CONTINUED
B. Taxation reconciliation continued

2017 2016
£Em £m
Profit before taxation 176.4 4888
Notonal taxation at standard UK corporation tax rate of 20% (last year 20%) 353 978
Disallowable accounting depreciztion and other simitar items 90.2 85.4
Deductible capital allowances {67.2} {71.5)
Allowable deductions for employce share schemes 1.0 34)
Allowable deductions for employee pension schemes {11.7) (134
Overseas profits taxed at rates different to those of the UK (2.3) (4.3}
Overseas tax losses where thereis no immediate relief 0.5 37
Otherincome and expenses that are not taxable or allowable 38 76
Adjusteditems
-UK storeimpairments and strategic programmes - UK stere estate where no taxreliefis available 17.3 210
— International store closures and impairments where no tax relief is available 27.3 -
-strategic programmes - UK organisation and logistics income and expenses thal are not taxable
or allowable for Lax purposes (1.8) -
—pay and pensions where tax reliefis dueinthe future 254 -
- profits and lossas on property disposals - 05
- UK property and investrment deductions where no tax reliefis avallable - 75
- Lima {(Bradford) S.arlacquisition accounting - (5.4)
-embedded dervative - 4.7
—overseas profits taxed at rates different to those of the UK {10.6) 52
Current year current tax charge 107.2 1240
Represented by:
UK current year current tax 98.3 111.6
Overseas current year current tax 8.2 124
107.2 1240
UK adjustrments in respect of prior years (17.4) {5.6)
Qverseas adiustments nrespect of prior years 7.3 (0.5}

Total current taxation (note 7A) 97.1 179
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8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per ordinary shareis based on earmings after tax and the weighted average number of crdinary shares inissue
during the year.

The adjusted earnings per share figures have also been calculated based on earnings before adjusted items that are significant in nature
and/or value (see note 5), These have been presented to provide shareholders with an additional measure of the Croup's year-on-year
performance

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average nurnber of ordinary shares inissue s adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares The Croup has four types of dilutive potential ordinary shares being: those share options granted to employees
where the exercise price is less than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares dunng the year, unvested shares

granted under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan; unvested shares granted under the Restricted Share Plan; and unvested shares within

the Perfarmance Share Plan that have met the relevant performance conditions at the end of the reporting period

Details of the adjusted earnings per share are set out below:

2017 2016

Em £mM
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 117.1 4069
Add/(less) (net of tax);
Strategic prograrmmes:
-changes to pay and pensions 128.6 -
- UK organisation 20.3 -
- UK store estate 46.5 305
—International store closures and impairments 120.8 252
UK store impairments and onerous lease charges 41.3 -
M&S Bank charges incurredinrelation to the insurance mis-selling provision 353 402
UK logistics (9.2) (73)
Legalsettiements (7.9) -
Other Impairments - 855
IAS 39 fair value movement of embedded derivative - 1.6
Net gain onacquisition of joint venture holding Bradford warehouse - Q7
Profit befare adjusted items attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 492.8 5733
Million Milion
Weighted average number of ordinary shares inissug 1,623.1 16359
Potentially dilutive share options under the Croup's share option schemes 8.0 63
Weighted average number of diluted ordinary shares 1,631.1 1,642.2
Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share 7.2 249
Diluted earnings per share 1.2 243
Adjusted basic earnings per share 304 350
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 30.2 349
9 DIVIDENDS
2017 016 2017 2010
per share nershare £Em £m
Dividends on equity ordinary shares
Paid final dividend 11.9p 116p 192.7 190.8
Special dividend 4.6p - 74.5 -
Paid interim dividend 6.8p 6.8p 110.3 1109
23.3p 18 4p 3775 3017

The directors have proposed a finat dividend nrespect of the year ended 1 April 2017 of 119p per share (Last year 11.9p), amountingtoa
dividend of £193 3m{last year £192 7m). This payment is subject to approval of shareholders at the Annual Ceneral Meeting (AGM), to be
heldon 11 July 2017

A dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP} is available to shareholders who would prefer to invest their dividends in the shares of the Campany.
The shares will go ex-dividend on 1 June 2017 For those shareholders electing to receive the DRIP. the last date for receipt of a new election
15 23 June 2017,
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10 EMPLOYEES

A. Aggregate remuneration
The aggregate remuneration and associated costs of Croup ernployees (including the Operating Committee) were:

2017 2006

Total Total

£m Freny

Wages and salanes 1,333.8 1,2788
Secial security costs 89.7 806
Pension costs 100.3 1020
Share-based payments (see note 13) 10.6 16.0
Employee welfare and other personnel costs 471 467
Capital:sed staffing costs (28.9) (374}
Total aggregate remuneration' 1,552.6 1,4867

Excludes amaounts recognised within adiusted irems (see nate 5)sucn as the transihion payments the Srouo has commutted tein respect of remaovel of orermia and redundancy costs
assuoatedwith the UK and Intesnatonal sirafegic prograrmmes

Details of key managerment compensationare givanin note 28,

B. Average monthly number of employees

2017 206
UK stores

- managemeant and supervisory categories 5617 5,696
-other 66,385 63,733
UK head office

-management and supervisory categories 3172 3,191
-other 862 g8l
UK operations

-management and supervisory categories 191 257
—other 1,267 1127
Qverseas 7,445 8,063
Total average number of employees 84,939 82,043

If the number of hours worked was converted an the bases of a normal working week, the equivalent average number of full-time employees
would have been 59,764 (Last year 58,895).

11 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Croup provides pension arrangements for the benefit of its UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme
(a defined cenefit (DB} arrangement) and Your M&S Pension Saving Plan (a defined contribution (DC) arrangerment).

The UK DB pension scheme operated on a final salary basis and s governaed by & Trustee beard which is independent of the Group.

On closure of the UK DB pension scheme, all remaining active members moved to deferred status which resultedin a curtailment charge
of £1270rn. There will be no future service charge relating to the scherme and no future monthly emplayer contributions for current service
At vear end the UK DB pension scheme had no active members (last year 11176), 62 655 deferred members (last year 53,589 and 51,198
pensioners (last year 51,047)

The most recent actuarial valuation of the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scherme was carried out as at 31 March 2015 and showed a funding
surplus of £204m Dunng the year the Croup paid the final contribution of £28m, as agreed at the 2012 actuarial valuation, in respect of
benefits already accrued by merbers. in addition, the UK DB pension scheme will continue to receive income from the Scottish Limited
Partnership See Note 12 for further details.

The DC plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays contributions to an independently administered fund. Such contributions are
based upon a fixed percentage of employees’ pay. The Croup has no legat or constructive obligations to pay further contributions to the
fund cnce the contributions have been paid. Members' benefits are determined by the amount of contnibutions paid by the Group and the
member, together with the investrnent returns earned on the contributions arising fror the performance of each individual's investrents
and how each member chooses to receive their retirement benefits. As aresult, actuarial risk (that benefits will be lower than expected)
and investment risk (that assets invested in will not perform inline with expectations) fall on the employee. At the year end, the defined
contricution arrangement had some 53661 active members {last year 40,712)and some 12,866 deferred members (last year 8,823),

The Croup atso operates @ srmall funded DB pension scheme in the Republic of irelana. This scheme closed to futureaccrualon
31 October 2013 Other retirement benefits also include a UK post-retirement healthcare scheme and unfunded retirement banefits.

The total Croup retirerment benefit cost was £ 198 4 (last year £86 7Tm) OF this, £1480m (last year £41 O relates to the UK DB pertsion
scherneincluding curtalment charges, £45.m {last year £40 3m) to the UK DC planand £5.3m (last year £5.4m) to other retirement
penefit schemes
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By funding its DB pension schemes, the Group is exposed to the risk that the cost of meetingits obligations is higher than anticipated
This could occur for several reasons, for example:

= Investment returns on the schemes assets may be lower than anticipated, especially if falls in asset vaiues aré not matched by simidar
faltsinthe value of the schemes liabilities

-» The level of price inflation may be higher than that assumed, resutting inhigher payments from the schemes

- Scheme members may live longer than assumed for example due to advances inhealthcare Mermbers may also exercise (or not exercise)
options in a way that lead to increases in the schemes' lizbilities, for example through early retirement or commutation of pension
for cash

- Legislative changes could atso lead to an increase in the schemes' liabilities.

Inaddition, the Croup is exposed to additional risks through its obtigation to the UK DE pension scheme via its nterest in the Scottish
Limited Partnership (see note 12). In particular,under the legal terms of the Partnership, a default by the Group on the rental payments
to the Partnership or a future change in legislation could trigger earlier or higher payments to the pension schemie, oranincreaseinthe
collateral to be provided by the Croup

A. Pensions and other post-retirement Liabilities

207 04
£m frn
Total market value of assets 10,135.1 85153
Present value of scheme liabitities (9,433.3) (7.6823)
Net funded pension plan asset 701.8 8330
Unfunded retirement benefits {1.0) [{ok8)]
Post-retirement healthcare (8.0) 80)
Net retirement benefit surplus 692.8 8241
Analysedin the statement of financial position as
Retirement benefit asset 706.0 8510
Retirement bencfit deficit (13.2) (269)
Net retirement benefit surplus 692.8 824

Inthe event of a plan wind-up, the pension scheme rules provide M&S with an unconditional right to a refund of surplus assetsassuming
the full settlernent of plan liabilities. In the ordinary course of business, the Trustees have nerights to wind up or change the benefils due
to members of the scheme, As a result, any net surplus in the UK DB pension scheme is recognised in full

B. Financial assumptions

The financial assumptions for the LUK DB pension scheme and the most recent actuarial valuations of the other post-retirement schemes
have been updated by independent qualified actuaries to take account of the requirements of 1A5 19 'Employec Benefits'in order to assess
the liabilities of the schemes and are as follows:

2017 2016

% %

Rate of increase in salaries N/A! 10
Rate of increase in pensions in payment for service 2.0-3.2 19-30
Discount rate 2.55 340
Inflationrate 3.20 295
Long-term healthcare cosl increases 7.20 695

I Rate of nereasein salar esis nolanger anpicable as tne UK DB penson schemie s closed to future accrual
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C. Demographic assumpticns
The UK demographic assurngtions are in line with those adopted for the last formal actuarial valuation of the scheme performed as at
3i March 2015 The UK post-retirement mortality assumptions are based on ananalysis of the pensioner mortality trends under the
scheme for the period ta March 2015. The specific mortality rates used are based on the VITA lite tables Thelife expectancies underlying
the valuation are as follows'

2017 2006

Current pensioners (at age 65) -males 23.2 23
—female 24.7 246

Future pensioncrs - currently in active status (@t age 65) - males N/A! 236
~female N/A 26.2

Future pensioners — currently in geferred status (al age 63) - males 24.7 24,
- femate 271 76.4

T Nofuture rensoness curmently M an act viz status Al emiglayeat i e UK DE pensian scheme ane i deferred status due to the deds G io C.ase Tha scheme to futyre acorual tram
1 ApriL 2017

D. Sensitivity analysis
The table below summanses the estimatedimpact of changes in the principat actuarial assumptions on the UK DB pension scheme surplus:

2017 2016

£m £rn

Decreasc inscheme surplus caused by a decreasc in the discount rate of 0256% {70.0) {900}
Decreasein scheme surplus caused by a decrease in theinflation rate of 0 25% (20.0) 200
Increase in scheme surplus causad by a decrease inthe average bfe expectancy of one year 370.0 3000

The sensitivity analysis above is based on a change in one assumption while hotding all others constant Therefore interdependencies
between the assumptions have not been Laken into account within the analysis.

E. Analysis of assets

The investment strategy of the UK DB pension scheme is drniven by its liability profile, including its inflation-linked pension benefits
Inaddition toits interest in the Scottish Limited Partnership (see note 12), the scheme invests n different types of bonds {(including
corporate bonds and gilts) and derivative instruments (including inflation, interest rate, cross-currency and total return swaps)in order
to align movernentsin the value of its assets with moverments inits liabilities arising from changes in market conditions. Broadly, the
scheme has hedging that covers 92% of interest rate movements and 0% of inflation movements, as measured on the Trustees funding
assumptions which use a discount rate derived from gilt yields.

The fair value of the total plan assets at the end of the reporting period for cach category s as follows:

2017 2016
im £
Debt investrments
- government bonds net of repurchase agreements’ 5219.7 41657
~corporate bonds 901.9 1,058.2
—asset-backed securitics and structured debt 5479 4590
Scottish Limited Partnership interest (see note 12) 412.1 4695
Equity investrments - quoted 1,504.0 10475
Equity investments - unquoted 3158 2367
Property 509.3 4207
Derivatives
—interest and inflation rate swap contracts {28.9) (101.5)
~foreign exchange contracts and other derivatives 204.2 1420
Hedge and reinsurance funds 3220 3179
Cashandcash cquivalents 158.3 1965
Other 69.5 109
10,1351 85153

i Repurcnaseagreemeants were £1,3339m {last year £1,333 Om)

All pension assels have quoted prices inan active market with Lhe exceplion of £1,444 9m (last year £1,2181m) of unguoted assets, Thefair
values of the above equity and debt investments are based on publicly avallable market prices wherever available Unguoted investments,
hedge funds and rensurance funds are stated at fair value estimates provided by the manager of the investrment or fund. Property includes
both quated and unguoled investment s, The fair value of the Scottish Limited Partnership interest is basedonthe expected cash flows and
benchmark asset-backed credit spreads 1Lis the policy of the scheme to hedge a proportion of interest rate andinflation risk. The scheme
reducesits foreign currency exposure using forward foreign exchange contracts

At year end, the UK schemes (UK DB pension scherne and post-retirerment healthcare)indirectly held 193,506 (last year 169,509) ordinary
shares in the Company Lhrough its investment in UK Equity Index Funds.
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F. Analysis of amounts charged against profits
Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of retirement benefit plans are as follows:

207 2n
£m £m
Current service cost 26.5 9380
Administration costs 3.2 30
Pasl service costs — curtalment charge 128.0 10
Net interest income (29.3) (15.3}
Total 198.4 867
Rermeasurement on the net defined benefit surplus:
—actualreturn on scheme assets excluding amountsincludedin net interest income (1,543.8) 1563
- actuarnial gain - experience (1.5) (164 8)
-actuarialloss —demographic assumplions - 1008
-actuarial {gain)/loss - financial assumptions 1,614.2 (43895)
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in other comprehensive income 68.9 (346 2)
C. Scheme assets
Changesinthe farr value of the scheme assets are as follows:
007 2006
£m £rm
Fair value of schermne assets at start of year §,515.2 85865
Interest inCome based on discount rate 284.9 2624
Actualreturn on scheme assets excluding amounts included in net interest income! 1,543.8 (156 3)
Employer contributions 137.0 1184
Benefits paid (347.7) 317
Administration costs (3.0 (30)
Exchange movement 4.8 gaQ
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 10,1353 85153
' Theactuadireturnonscheme assets wasaganal £1 828 /m(last year ganc! £061m)
H. Pensions and other post-retirement liabilities
Changes inthe present value of relirement benefit obligations are as follows:
2017 2016
£m Fm
Present value of obligation at start of year 7,691.2 81475
Current service cost 96.5 980
Administration costs 0.2 -
Curtailment charge 128.0 10
Interest cost 255.6 2471
Benefits paid (347.7) {3117)
Actuarial gain—experience (1.5) (164.8)
Actuarialloss - demographic assumptions - 1008
Actuanalless/{gain) - financial assumptions 1,614.2 (4385)
Exchange mavernent 5.8 s
Present value of obligation at end of year 9,442.3 76912
Analysed as:
Present value of pension scheme liabilities 9,433.3 76823
Unfunded pension plans 1.0 09
Post-retirernent healthcare 8.0 80
Present value of obligation at end of year 9,442.3 76912

The average duration of the defined benefit obligationat 1 Apnl 2017 is 19 years (last year 18 years)
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L. |
12 MARKS AND SPENCER SCOTTISH LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Marks and Spencer plcis a general partner and the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scherme is a limited partner of the Marks and Spencer
Scottish Limited Partnership (the Partnership) Under the partnership agreement, the limited partners have noinvolverment in the
maanagement of the business and shall not take any part in the control of the partnership. The general partner is responsibte for the
management and control of the partnership and as such, the Partnership s conselidated into the results of the Group.

The Partnership holds £1.6bn {last year £1.6bn) of properties which have been leased back to Marks and Spencer plc at market rates The
Croup retains control over these properties, including the flexibility to substitute alternative properties into the Partnership The first Umited
partnership interest (held by the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme), entitles the Pension Scheme to recelve anannual distribution of
£719muntil 2022 from the Partnership. The second partnership interest {also held by the Marks and Spencer UK Pension Scheme), entitles
the Pension Scheme toreceive a further £36.4m annually from 2017 until 2031

The partnerstip ligbdity in relation to the first interest of £396 5m {last year £455.7myis vatued at the net present value of the future
expected distributions frorm the Partnership. Dunng the year to 1 April 2017 an interest charge of £12 6m (tast year £14 7m) was recognised
N theincome statement representing the unwind of the discount included in this obligation

The first limited partnership interest of the Pension Scheme 1s included within the UX DB Pension Scheme assels, valuedat £412.1m

(last year £469.5m) it 1s also included as a liability on the Croup's statement of financial position as it is a transferable financial instrument
The second partnership interest is not a transferable financial instrument and therefore is not included as a plan asset in accordance
with A5 18 The associated tiability is eliminated on consotidation.

13 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

This year a charge of £10.6m was recognised for share-based payments (last year charge of £16.0m) Of the total share-based payments
charge, £109m (last year £9.5m] retates to the Save As You Earn Scheme and a credit of £3.6m (last year charge of £1.1mjrelates Lo the
Performance Share Flan The remaining charge of £33m (last year £5 4m)is spread over the other share plans. An additional charge of £1.3m
was recognisedin relation to the Annuat Bonus Scheme for 2016/17 under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan Further details of the operation
of the Croup share plans are provided in the Remuneration Report on pages 6610 78,

A. Save As You Earn Scheme

The SAYE Scheme was last approved by shareholders in 2007 and shareholder approvalis being sought at the 2017 AGM to renew the
schieme fora further ten years Under the terms of tne scheme, the Board may offer options to purchase ordinary shares in the Cornpany
oncein each financial year to those employees who enter into an Her Majesty's Revenue & Customs (HMRC) approved SAYE savings
contracl. The Company has chosen to cap the maximum monthly saving smount at £250 whichis below the £500 per month allowed
under HMRC approved schemes The price at which options may be offered is 80% of the average mid-rmarket price for three consecutive
dealing days preceding the offer date The options may normally be exercised during Lhe six-month period after the completion of the
SAYE contract

2017 206

Number of Weighted average Numberof  Weighteaaverage

options axercise price opt ons exercise prce

Qutstanding at beginning of the year 30,154,547 3931.3p 29,530,523 3576p
Granted 28,166 455 26Q0.0p 10,437,215 432.0p
Exercised (1,763,039) 312.8p (6,645,922) 30Z6p
Forfeited {12,881,484) 391.8p (2,967,697) 3825p
Expired {382,385) 355.2p (199,572 317.2p
Oulstanding at end of year 43,294,094 310.6p 30,154,547 393.3p
Exercisable at end of year 4,928,971 403.5p 1,936,860 31530

For SAYE share options exercised during the period, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 3874p (last year 4439p)

The fair values of the options granted during the year have been calculaled using the Black-Scholes model assuming the inputs shown below:

2007 2017 2017 2016
3-year plan 2016 3-year plan 2015

3-year plan madified” maodified 3-year plan

Crant date Nov 16 Nov 16 Nov 16 Nov 15
Share price atl grant date 335p 335p 335p 520p
Exercise price 260p 432p 369p 432p
Optionlife in years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years
Risk-frearate 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 09%
Expected volatility 28.5% 28.5% 28.5% 23.4%
Expected dividend yield 5.6% 5.6% 5.6% 37%
Fair value of option 66p 12p 30p 96p
Incremental fair value of option N/A a7p 36p -

I tnthe current yearn there has boen a modficaton (o the 201 7 schame rel atmg to empiogyess cancellng awards Fom previaus years m sulisicatGn for awaras grantedunder the 2007
sehierne The far value of the modifled awsrds wi be amorises based on Lne mcremental ta r valug Thencrementalfar vawe s the difference betweenthefarvalue of twe 2017 options,
beng bEp, ana the tair value of repriced previous awards, calcuiated using 201/ award as5UmMpLONS keeping the nitat exercise pr ce consistent The farr value of the moaified ootons,
beng gpfor 2008 moafiod 0ot ons and 306 for 2015 mod fad osarans, § atready recogn sed it ogerating profit
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Volatility has been estimated by taking the historic volatility inthe Company's share price over a three-year period,

The resulting fair vatue is expensed over the service period of three years on the assumption that 10% {last year 10%) of opticns will lepse
over the service period as employees leave the Group.

Outstanding options granted under the UK Employees SAYE Scheme are as follows:

Weighted Jverage “emia nng

Number of opt ons contractuallfa (years)

Options granted 2m7 2016 2017 2036 Optonprce
January 2013 - 1,917,252 - 02 3iZp
January 2014 4,854,749 5918,608 0.2 1.2 405p
January 2015 6,280,741 12,334,645 1.2 22 369p
January 2016 4,676,198 9984,042 2.2 32 432p
January 2017 27,482,406 - 3.2 - 260p

43,294,094 30,154,547 2.5 23 31p

B. Performance Share Plan*

The Performance Share Planis the primary long-termincentive plan for approxirmately 120 of the most senior rmanagers withinthe Group.
It was first approved by shareholders at the 2005 ACM and again at the 2015 AGM Under the plan, annuatawards, based on a percentage of
salary, may be offered. The extent to which an award vests is measured over a three-year period against financiel targets which for 2016/17
included Adjusted Earnings Per Share, Return on Capital Employed and free cash flow. The value of any dividends earned on the vested
shares during the three years will also be paid on vesting Further details are set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 78

Awards under this plan have been made in each year since 2005

During the year, 7569,499 shares {last year 5 850,134} were awarded under the plan. The weighted average far value of the shares awarded
was 328.0p (last year 533 2p). Asat 1 April 2017, there were 14,816,764 shares {last year 15,749,605) outstanding under the ptan

C. Deferred Share Bonus Plan*

The Deferred Share Bonus Plan was introduced in 2005/06 as part of the Annual Bonus Scheme for approximately 500 of the most senior
managers within the Group. As part of the Scheme, the managers are required to defer a proportion of any bonus paid into shares which
will be held for three years There are no further performance conditions on these shares, other than continued employment within the
Group and the value of any dividends earned on the vested shares during the deferred period will also be paid on vesting.

During the year, 1,563,439 shares (last year 1,044,961} have beenawarded under the planinrelation to the annual bonus. The fair value of
the shares awarded was 355.8p (last year 548 3p) As at 1 April 2017, there were 3,033,709 shares (last year 2,586,096) cutstanding under
the plan.

D. Restricted Share Plan*

The Restricted Share Plan was established in 2000 as part of the reward strategy for retention and recruitment of senicr managers who are
vitalto the success of the business. The plan operates for senior managers below executive director level Awards vest at theend of the
restricted period (typically between one and three years) subject to the participant still bemngin the employment of the Company onthe
relevant vesting date. Tha value of any dividends earned on the vested shares during the restricted period willalso be paid on vesting.

During the year, 321,229 shares (last year 221,681) have been awarded under the plan. The waighted average fair value of the shares awarded
was 326 6p (last year 454.4p) As at 1 April 2017, there were 888,027 shares (last year 1,285,666) outstanding under the plan

E. Republic of Ireland Save As You Earn Scheme

Sharesave, the Company’s SAYE Scheme was introduced in 2005 to all employees in the Republic of Ireland for a ten-year period, after
approval by shareholders at the 2009 AGM. The scheme is subbject to Irish Revenue rules which timit the maximum monthly saving to

€500 per month The Comparty ¢chose In 2009 to set armenthly savings cap of £320 per month to al gn the maximurm savings amount to
that allowed withn the UK scheme. The price at which options may be offered is 80% of the average mid-market price for three consecutive
dealing days preceding the offer date. The options may normally be exercised during the six-month penod after the complation of the
SAYE contract.

During the year, 324,768 options (last vear 160,113} were granted, at  fair value of 66 3p (last year 95 6p) As at 1 April 2017, there were
521,837 options (last year 312,826) cutstanding under the scheme.

F. Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust

The Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust (the Trust) holds 2,173,101 (last year 4 087,837) shares with abook value of £107m (last year
£206m) and a market value of £73m (last year £16 6m) These shares were acquired by the Trust inthe market and are shown as a reduction
in retained earnings in the consolidated statermnent of financial position Awards are granted to employees at the discration of Marks and
Spencer ple and the Trust agrees to satisfy the awards in accordance with the wishes of Marks and Spencer plc under senior executive share
plans descriped above. Dividends are waived on atl of these shares.

C. ShareBuy

ShareBuy, the Company's Share Incentive Plan enables the participants to buy shares directly from their gross salary. This scheme does not
altract anlFRS 2 charge.

* Nileost opt-ons For the purposes of calculatng the number of shares swaraed, the share prce usad s the average of tne mea-market price tor the five consecutive deasbng days
preceaingthe grantidate
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Computer saftware

Caomputer under
Soodw ll Brands software development Total
£i7 rm Em +m [l
At 28 March 2015
Cost or valuation 1297 125 1,087.7 866 14165
Accumulated amortisation and irmpairment s 344 (55 8) (466.9) (1.2 (558.3)
Net book value 95.3 867 6208 85.4 8582
Year ended 2 April 2016
Opening net book value 95.3 56.7 6208 854 8582
Additions 6.2 - 929 939 1930
Transicrs - - 91.2 (91.2} -
Asset impairments (1o (32.5) (22.1) - (73.7)
Asset wr te-offs - - {11.9) (14.5) (26.4)
Armortisation charge - 15.3) (143 4) - {(148.7}
Exchange aifference 03 0.2) 0.2 oAl 04
Closing net book value 827 187 6277 737 302.8
At 2 April 2016
Cosl or valuation 136.2 1123 1,2720 894 1,6099
Accurnulated amortisation, impair ments and write-offs (535) (936) (644.3) (15.7) (8071)
Net book value 82.7 18.7 627.7 737 8028
Year ended 1 April 2017
Opening net book value 82.7 18.7 627.7 737 802.8
Additions - - 0.3 100.8 1011
Transfers ~ - 95.8 (107.6) {11.8)
Asset impairments - - 6.) (5.1) 1.0
Assetwrte-offs - - (9.6) (2.9) (12.5)
Amortisation charge - (5.3) (162.1) - (167.4)
Other’ {5.5) - - - (5.5}
Exchange difference 1.2 - 0.2 {0.7) 1.3
Closing net book value 78.4 13.4 558.4 58.8 709.0
At 1 April 2017
Cost orvaluation 137.4 12.3 1,368.3 82.5 1,700.5
Accumulated amortisation, imparrments and write-offs (59.0) (98.9) (809.9} (23.7) (991.5)
Net book value 78.4 13.4 558.4 58.8 709.0
Coodwillrelates to the following.
per una India UK Total goodwiil
£m £m £m £m
Net bookvalue at 2 Aprii 2006 /9.5 7.0 6.2 B2.7
Exchange cifference - 1.2 - 1.2
Other - - {5.5) (5.5}
Net book value at 1 April 2017 69,5 8.2 0.7 78.4

1 Orner adjustrments relate to the adjust ment of provision vawes fol business como nanons related tothe acquisition of Lima(Bradfare) Sarlinthe prior vear
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14 INTANCIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

Impairment testing

Coodwillis not amortised but tested annually for impairment with the recoverable amount being determined from value in use calculations
Coodwillhas beenallocated for impairment testing purposes to groups of cash-generating units (CCUs) which include the combined retait

and wholesale businesses for each location

The costs i relation to the per una brand are £80.0m (net book value £13.4m). The per una brandis a definite life intangible zsset amortised

ona straighit-line basis over a period of 15 years and 15 only assessed for impairment where such indicators exist.

The value in use calculations are based on the Croup's Latest budget and forecast cash flows, covering a three-year period, which have
regard to historic performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Croup's views on the future achievable growth
and the impact of committed cash flows. The cash flows include ongoing capital expenditure required to maintain the store network, but
exclude any growth capitalinitiatives not committed Cash flows beyond this three-year period are extrapolated using a flat long-term
growthrate for the UK and with reference to forecast COP growth for India These growth rates do not exceed the long-term growthrates

forthe Group's retail businesses in these territories.

White management believes the assumptions used are realistic, it is possible that a furtherimpairment could be identified for per ung,
Bradford or India if any of the above key assurnptions were changed significantly A sensitivity aralysis has been performed on each of
these key assumptions with other variables held constant. Management has concluded that there are no reasonably possible changes

i any key assumptions that would cause the carrying amount of goodwill or brands to exceed the value in use

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Assetsinthe
Fixtures filt.ngs courseof
Landandounoings andequipment LONstructon Toral
£m E~ £m £n

At 28 March 2015
Cost 28551 70664 1333 100548
Accamulated depreciation, impairments and write-offs (3398) (4672 3) {11.6) (5,0237)
Net book value 25153 2,394 1217 5031
Year ended 2 April 2016
Opening net book value 25153 2,394 1217 50311
Additions 152 2046 1383 4581
Transfers 17 1868 (188.5) -
Disposals (50) (06) - (56)
Assetimpairments (304) (243) {19) (566)
Asset write-offs - (29) - (29)
Depreciation charge (13.3) {400.8) - 49147)
Exchange dffercnce 14 59 ©2) 171
Closing net book value 25945 2,362.8 694 5,027
At 2 April 2016
Cost 29816 74763 829 10,5408
AccJdmulated depreciation, impairments and write-offs (386.7) (5,1135) (135) (5513.7)
Net book value 25949 23628 69.4 50271
Year ended 1 April 2017
Opening net book value 2,5949 2,362.8 69.4 5,027.1
Additions - 76.2 209.0 285.2
Transfers 17.4 189.6 {196.2) 10.8
Disposals (0.6) (1.0) - {1.6)
Asset impairments (11.6) (63.6) (1.9) (82.1)
Asset write-offs (6.0) {1.8) {2.5) (10.3)
Deprecialion charge (16.3) {394.5) - (410.8)
Exchange difference 10.0 9.2 0.3 19.5
Closing net book value 2,582.8 21719 78.1 48378
At 1 April 2017
Cost 3,008.4 7,750.3 56.0 10,854.7
Accumulated depreciation, mparments and write-offs {420.6) {5,578.4) (17.9) {6,016.9)
Net book value 2,587.8 21719 781 48378

The net hook value above includes land and buitdings of £42.1m{last year £42 6m) and equipment of il {last year £0.2m) where the Group is

alessee under afinance lease.

Additions te property, plant and equipment during the year amounting to £nil {last year £ril} were financed by finance leases
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Impairment of property, plant and eguipment
For irnpairment testing purposes, the Croup has determined that each store is a separate CCU with the exception of outlet stores whichare
considered together as one COU.Each CCU s tested for impairment at the balance sheet date if any indicators of imparrment have been
dentified. The recoverable value of each CCU is determined to be the higher of valug in use and fair value less costs to sell.

The value in use of each COU s calculated based on the Croug's latest budget and forecast cash Flows, covering a three-year geriod, which
have regard to historic performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Croup's views on the future achievable growth
and the impact of committed initiatives. The cash flows include ongoing capital expenditure required to maintain the store network, but
exclude any growth capitat nitiatives not committed Cash flows beyond this three-year period are extrapolated using a fiat long-term
growthrate for UK stores and with reference to forecast CDP growth for other territories These growthrates do not exceed the long-term
growth rate for the Croup’s retail businesses inthese territories,

The key assumptionsin the value in use calculations are the growthrates of sales and gross profit margins, changes in the operating cost
base, long-term growth rates and the risk-agjusted pre-tax discount rate. The pre-tax discount rates are derived from the Group’s weighted
average cost of capital, taking into account the cost of capital and borrowings, to which specific market-related premium adjustments are
made for each territory. The pre-tax discount rates range from 7% to 21% (1ast year 7% tc 24%)

Where appropriate, fair value less cost to sellis determined with regard to the expected rent and yietd for each property and reflect the
specific characteristics relevant to each property and the location in which it 1s based. The fair values have been determined with the
assistance of independent, professional valuers

During the year the Group has recogrised a net imparrment charge of £43.4m (gross impairment charge of £475m offset by animpairment
reversal of £4 1) as aresult of store impairment testing. The gross impairment charge relates primarily to stores inthe UK and Hong Kong,
with the reversal of imparment relating to storas inreland due largely to the movement inthe Sterling to Euro currency rate. These
impairments, iIncluding the reversal, have been recognised within adjusted itemns (see Note 5}

The Croup has performed a sensitivity analysis onthe impairment tests for its UK store portfolio using various reasonably possible
scenarios Anincrease of one percentage pointin the post-tax discount rate would have resulted inan increase to the impairment charge
of £6.5m Neither a 2% reduction in year ene sales growth nor a 20bps reduction in total UK margin would result ina significant ncrease to
the impairment charge

In addition the Croup has recognised additionalimpairment charges of £27.3m associated with stores approved for closure during the year,
E13 1m associated with the exit frorm owned storesin ten international markets and £5.7m associated with the rationalisation of UK Head

OFf ces Offsetting these charges were impairment reversals of £74m following an updated view of the logistics strategy. These net charges
have been recognised within adjustediterns (see Note 5).

16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

2017 2016
Em £

Non-current

Unlisted investments 30 30

Current

Short-terminvestments' 14.5 19.1

1 Includes £5 Im(last vear £ 3 6rmyof money market depos the.d by Marks and Spencer plc i an e5Crow accoJnt

Non-current unlisted investments are carred as available-for-sale assets. Other financial assets are measured at fair value with changes in
their value takento the income staternent

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017 2018
£m £m
Non-current
Other recovables 15.1 129
Propayments and accrued income 219.0 2218
234.1 2347
Current
Trade receivables 111.0 1165
Less: provision for impairment of receivables (1.7) (0.7}
Trade receivables - net 109.3 115.8
Other receivables 28.5 504
Prepayments and accrucd ncorme 180.8 154.9
318.6 3211

Trade and ather receivables that were past due but nol impaired amounted to £20.8m (last year £19.6m) andare mainly stering
gdenominated. The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value. Inciuded in
prepayments and accruedincomeis £31.5m (last year £19.4m) of accrued supplierincome relating torebates which h‘ave been earr_wed but
not yet invoiced. Supplier income that has beer nvoiced but not yet settled against future trade creditor balances is included within trade
creditors where there is a right to offset. The remaining amount is immaterial.
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents are £468.6m (Last year £247.6m). The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits is 0 21% (last year 0.51%). These deposits have an average maturity of eight days
(last year 48 days).

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2017 05
£m £
Current
Trade and other payables 9675 10219
Socral security and other taxes 55.0 498
Accruals and deferred income 531.3 5460
1,553.8 16177
Non-current
Other payables,accruals and deferred incorme 3285 3530
20 BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
2017 200,
£m £m
Current
Bank loans and overdrafts’ 70.3 2971
Finance lease labilities 0.4 04
6.250% USE500m medium-term notes 201754 3281 -
Interest accrued on medium-term notes® 46.4 -
Revaluation of medium-termnotes” 72.8 -
518.0 2975
Non-current
Bank loans - 02
6.250% USE500m medium-lerm notes 20177 - 3279
6.125% £400m medium-term notes 2019 400.2 3993
6.125% £ 300m madium-term notes 20214 297.8 2973
3.00% £300m medium-term notes 20232 296.3 -
4750% £400m medium-term notes 2025%° 3971 3968
7125% US$300m medium-term notes 203744 191.9 191.8
Interest accrued on medium-term notes? - 422
Revaluation of medium-term notes® 80,1 710
Finance lease liabilities 48.3 482
1,711.7 1,774.7
Total 2,229.7 20722

Banx loans and overdrafis include 3 5 0m (last year £5 0rmloanfrom the Hedge End Bark L ruten jont venture
. Thesenotes aretssued under Varks and Spencer ple's £307 Eurapesn medium-term note pragrarime and ali pay imterest annually
Interest onthese bonds s payable seTi-annyaily
USE500m 3na US$ID0M medium-tarmnotes exposare swappedto sterling (xoa-to-fixed cross-currency Nterest rate swaps)
The Croup 0CCasienally enters Into nterest swans tomanage interest rate exoosure At year end FA25mi{last year £425m}was swapoed [rom fed o float ngrate
The priar year comar at ves have been splt to show the rerest accrued on medium-termnates and revalua® onof medium-termaotes onmdiy dua ineiterns tobe inbine with the
format ofthe current your note disclosure

[ NETE R

Finance leases

The minimumtease payments under finance leases fall due as shown in the table on the following page. Itis the Group's policy to lease
certain propertias and equipment under finance leases The weighted average lease term for equipment is three years (last year four years)
and 95 years (last year 96 years) for property Interest rates are fixed at the contractrate. All leases are cn a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent payments The Croup’s obligations under finance teases are secured by the lessors’
charges over the leased assets
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Treasury policy
The Group operates 3 centralised treasury function ta manage the Group's funding requirements and financial risks in Line with the Board
approvedtreasury policies and procedures, and thar delegated authorities.

The CGroup's financial instruments, other than dervatives, comprise borrowings, cash and liguid resources and various itermns, such as trade
receivables and trade payables that arise directly fromits operations. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the
Croup's operations

The Croup treasury function also enters into derivative transactions, principally interest rate swaps, cross-currency swaps and forward
currency contracts The purpose of these transactions is to manage the interest rate and foreign currency risks arising from the Croup’s
operations and financing.

ltremains the Group's policy not te hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes, except where financial constraints necessitate the
liguidation of any outstanding investrnents. The treasury function is managed as a cost centre and does not engage in specutative trading

Financial risk management
The principal financial risks faced by the Group are Lquidity and funding, counterparty, foreign currency and interest rate risks. The policies
and strategies for managing these risks are summarised on the following pages:

(a) Liquidity and funding risk
The risk that the Group could be unable to settle or meet its obligations at a reasonzble price as they falldue

= The Croup's funding strategy ensures a mix of funding sources offering sufficient headroom, maturity and flexibility and cost
effectiveness to match the requirements of the Group

- Marks and Spencer plcis financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings, mediurm-termnotes and comrmitted
syndicated bank facilities.

- Operating subsidiaries are financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings and intercormnpany loans

At the year end, the Group had a committed syndicated bank revolving credit facility of £1.1bn set to mature on 15 April 2022 During the
current financial year, the Croup extended the facility by one year This facility contains only one financial covenant, being the ratic of
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rents payable, to interest plus rents payable The covenant is measured semi-
annually The Croup alsc has 2 number of undrawn uncommitted facilities available to it. At the year end, these armounted to £150m (last
year £100m), all of which are due to be reviewed within a year At the balance sheet date, a sterling equivalent of £nil (tast year £205m) was
drawn under the cormmitted facilities and £nil (last year £30m)was drawn under the uncormmitted facitities.

inagdition to the existing borrowings, the Group has a Euro Medium Term Note pregramme of £3bn, of which £1.4bn (last year £1.1bnwas in
issuance as at the balance sheet date. A new £300m bond, set to mature in 2023, wasissued under the Euro Medium Term Note programme
during the financial year

The contractual maturity of the Croup's non-derivative financial iabitities (exciuding trade and other payables (See note 19) and derivatves,
15 as follows

Partaership

Labitity tathe Tota,
Marks & Borowings Total
3ank.0ans Spencer UK andothar dervati
and Synchiated Medum-terrn Finance lease pension financial Derwvat ve Dervative assetsand
overarafts  bankfacility nates Labilities (nate 12} Labilities assers' uap lities' uabilities
£rm £rn £m fm £m tm fm Em £m
Timing of cash flows
Within one year 92.2) (2051) {98.6) 24) (719 (470.2) 1175 (62.8) 54.7
Bolweeon cne and two years - - (4481) (26) (719) (522.6) 3993 (362.6) 36.7
Between two andfive years - - {605.9) n 2156) (8286) 614 4.2 202
More than five years - - {13293} (176 9) {1437)  (1,6499) 465.6 (A270) 386
922) (205 1) (2,4819) (1890Q) (503 1) (3.471.3) 10438 (393.6) 1502
Effect of discounting - - 7556 1404 474 943 .4
At 2 April 2016 (92.2) (205.0) (1,726 3) (48.6) (455.7) (2,5279)
Timing of cash flows
Within one year (70.3) - (514.2) {2.5) (71.9) (6589) 5436 {373.4) 170.2
Between one and Lwo years - - (88.0) (2.6) {71.9) {162.5) 26.7 (14.5) 12.2
Betwaen two and five years - - (215.0) (7.3) {215.6) (1,138.0) 63.9 (41.2) 22.7
More than five years - - (1,309.0) (176.0) (71.9) (1,556.9) 519.5 (413.2) 106.3
(70.3) - (2,826.3) {188.4) (431.3) (3,516.3) 1,153.7 (842.3) 311.4
Effect of discounting - - 715.6 139.7 34.8 890.1
A1 April 2017 (70.3) - @nom (487) (396.5) (2,626.2)

1 Der yar verasnlows are duaclGaepd basad on actual settlement A gerneat ves are seltled net except for currency swaps
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Financial risk management continued
(a) Liquidity and funding risk continued

The present value of finance legse tiabilties is as follows:

2017 206

£fm Fra

Within one year (0.9) (04
tater than one year and not Later than five years {1.6) (16)
Later than five vears 46.7) (46 6)
Total (48.7) (486)

(b) Counterparty risk
Countercar Ly risk exists where the Group can suffer financial loss through defauit or non-performance by financialinstitutions with whom
it transacts.

Exposures are managed in accordance with the Croup’s treasury policy which limits the value that can be placed with each approved
counterparty to mirimise the risk of Loss, The minimum tong-terrrating for all counterpartics is long-term Standard & Poor's (A-)/Moody's
(A3} ((BRB+/Baal "or commtted lending banks) Inthe event of arating by one agency being different to the other, reference will be made
to Fitch to determine the casting vote of the rating group. Inthe absence of a Fitchrating, the lower rating will prevail Limits are roviewed
regularly by senior management The cradit risk of these financiatinstruments is estimated as the fair value of the assels resulting from
the contracts.

The table below analyses the Group's short-term investments and dernvative assels by credit exposure excluding bank balances, store cash
andcashintransit.

Credit rating of counterparty

ARAM AnS AA Ab- A A A- 888+ Total

£m £mM Em fm Fm £m [l £m Fr

Short term investments - - - 251 606 635 - - 1492
Derivative assets? - - - 426 333 234 - 18.2 1175
AL 2 April2016 - - ~ 677 939 8649 - 182 2667
AAAM AAA AA AR A A A BBB+ Total

£m £m £m £m £m Em £m im im

Short-term investments' - - - 17.4 149.3 185.0 - - 351.7
Derivative assets? - - - 62.8 841 19.0 - 41.0 206.9
AL April 2017 - - - 80.2 233.4 204.0 - 4.0 558.6

1 Inciudes cashon deposit andmoney market funds held by Marks & Spencer Scotbish Limited Partnership, Macks and Spencer plc and Marks ang Spencer CeneralInsurance Excluaes cash
athandand intransit GF F1169m (last year £98 4mj
? Srandsrd 8 Poor's eguwvalent raning shown as reference to the major ty credit rating of the counterpacty fom either Srandard & Poor's, Moody's or Fitch where spplicable

The Group has very low retal credit risk due to lransactions being principalty of a high volume, low value and short maturity.

The maximum exposure ta credit risk at the balance sheet date was as follows: trade receivabkiles £111m (last yvear £114m), other receivables
£44m (last year £63m), cash and cash equivalents £469m (Last year £248m) and derivatives £220m (last year £146m).
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Financial risk management continued

{c) Foreign currency risk

Transactional foreign currency exposures arise primarily from the import of goods sourced from overseas suppliersand also from the
export of goods from the UK to overseas subsidiaries, The most significant exposure is to the US doltar incurred in the sourcing of clothing
and horme products from Asia

Croup Treasury hedges these exposures principally using forward foreign exchange contracts progressively based on dynamic forecasts
fromn the business. Hedging begins around 15 months ahead of the start of the season andis between 80% and 100% hedged nine months
before the start of the season.

Other exposures from the export of goods to overseas subsidiaries are also hedged progressively over the course of the year before
they are incurred As at the balance sheet date, the gross notional value in sterling terms of forward foreign exchange sell or buy contracts
amounted to £2,023m (last year £1,640m}with a weighted average maturity date of six rmonths {last year five months)

Gains and losses ineguity on forward foreign exchange contracts designated in cash flow hedge relationships as at 1 Aprl 2017 will be
released tothe ncome statement at various dates over the following 17 months (last year 15 months) from the balance sheet date

The Croup also holds a number of cross-currency swaps Lo designate its fixed rate US dollar debt to fixed rate sterling debt. These are
reported as cash flow hedges.

The Group uses a combination of foreign currency debt and derivatives ta hedge balance sheet translation exposures As at the balance
sheet date €26m last year €nil) and HK$150m {iast vear HK$1,245m) of derivatives were hedging cverseas net assets

The Croup also hedges foreign currency intercompany loans where these exist. Forward foreign exchange contracts inrelation to the
hedging of the Group's foreign currency intercompany toans are designated as held for trading with fair value movements being recognised
in theincome staterment. The corresponding fair value movement of the intercompany loan balance resulted ina £2 3m gain (last year £nil)
in the income staterment. As at the balance sheet date, the gross notional value of intercompany loan hedges was £367m (Last year £289m)

After taking Into account the hedging derivatives entered into by the Croup, the currency and interest rate exposure of the Group’s financial
Labilities, excluding short-term payables and the Liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme, is set out below:

2017 2016

Fixed rate Floating rate Total Fimed rate Floating rate Total
£m m £m £rm fm fm

Currency
Sterling 1,727.8 492.3 2,220.1 13437 7167 20604
Euro 6.6 0.7 7.3 62 08 70
Other Al 2.2 2.3 o1 47 4.8
1,734.5 495.2 2,229.7 1,3500 7222 20722

The floating rate sterling and euro borrowings are Unked to interest rates related to LIBOR These rates are for periods between one and
s mMonths

As at the balance sheet date and excluding finance leases, the fixed rate sterling borrowings are at anaverage rate of 5 0% (last year 5 3%)
and the weighted average time for which the rate s fixed is six years (last year seéven yoars),

(d) Interest rate risk
The Croupis exposedtoinlerast rate riskin relation to sterling, US gollar and euro vanable rate financial assets and Liabilitics.

The Group's policy is to use dervative contracts where necessary to maintain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings to manage this risk.
The structure and maturity of these derivatives correspond to the underlying borrowings and are accounrted for as fair value or cash flow
hedges as appropriate

At the balance sheet date, fixedrate borrowings amounted to £1,734.5m (last year £1,350.0m) representing the public bondissues and
finance leases, amounting to 78% (last year 65%) of the Croup's gross berrowings.

The effoctive interest rates al the balance sheet date were as follows;

2017 2016

% %
Committed and uncommitted borrowings 0.3 10
Madium-termnotes 5.0 53

Finance leases 4.3 43
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Financial risk management continued
(d) Interest rate risk continued

Derivative financial instruments

2017 2016
Assets Liabilities Assats Labiites
im im £m £m
Current

Cross-currency swaps -cashflow hedges 726 - - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 89.1 (9.0} 697 (267)
-held for trading 0.7 (1.5} 6 (1.8
~net investment hedges 0.7 - 08 -
163.1 (10.5) 721 (285)

Non-current
Cross-currency swaps - cash flow hedges 14.0 ~ 273 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts —cash flow hedges 1.3 (0.B) 5.4 0.2)
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedges 41.5 - 43 -
56.8 {0.8) 740 (0.2)

The Croup holds a2 number of interest rate swaps ta re-designate its sterting fixed debt to floating debt. These are reported as fair value
hedges The ineffective portion recognised in the profit ortoss that arises from fair value hedges amounts to £0 3m (last year £0 2m} as the
loss onthe hedgeditemns was £0.3m {last year £30m loss) and the gain on the hedging instrurments was £nil {last year £2.8m gain). The Croup
also holds a number of cross-currency swaps to re-designate its fixed rate US dollar debot to flixed rate sterling debt. Thesc are reported as
cash flow hedges.

Sensitivity analysis

Thetable below illustrates the estimated impact on the inceme statement and eguity as a result of market movements in foreign exchange
andinterest rates in relation to the Group's financial instruments. The directors consider that a 2%+/- (last year 2%) movement ininterest and
a 20% +/- (Last year 20%) weakening in sterling against the relevant currency represents a reasonably possible change. However, this analysis

i1s for illustrative purposes only.

The table excludes financial Instruments that expose the Group to interest rate and foraign exchange risk where such risk is fully hedged
with another financialinstrurnent. Also excluded are trade receivables and payables as these are either sterling denominated or the foreign
exchangeriskis hedged.

interest rates: the impact in the income statement due to changes ininterest rates reflects the effect on the Croup's floaling rate debt as at
the balance sheet date. The impact inequity reflects the fair value movementinrelation to the Croup's transactionat foreign exchange cash
flow hedges and the net investment hedges at the balance sheet date The Impact in equity reflocts the farr value movement in relationto
the Croup's Cross-currency swaps.

Foreign exchange; the impact from foreign exchange movements reflects the changein Lhe far value of the Croup's transactional foreign
exchange cash flow hedges and the net investment hedges at the balance sheet date. The equity impact shown for foreign exchange
sensitivity relates Lo derivative and non-derivative financiat instruments hedging net investments. "his value s expected to be fuily offset
by the re-translation of the hedged foreign currency nel assets leaving a net equity impact of zero.

hdenreasen ?%increase.n 20%weakoring  20% strengrheung
nterest rates nterest rates Insteriing Insterling
Frm fn £ Frn
At 2 April 2016
Impact on income statement: gain/loss) 492z {arn - -
Impact on other comprehensive income: (lessygain 0.8) 10 136.0 907)
At April 2017
Impact onincome statement. gainf{loss) 7.8 (P R))] - -
Impact on other comprehensive income: (lossygain (2.2) 0.3 2464 (164.3)
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Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

The following tables set out the financial assets and financial liabilities which are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements Amounts which are set off against financial assets and lizbilities in the Croup's balance sheet are
set out below For trade and other receivables and trade a~d other payables, amounts not offset in the balance sheet but which could be
offset under certain circumstances are also set out

Netfinancia.  Relatedamounts

Crassfinancial  assetsf{liabilities) neteet Sffin
Cross inanoal {abu pesy perstaternent of the statement of
assets{-anl bies) aszerssot off  financialpos t.on financial postion Net
Em £m £m £m £
At 2 April 2006
Trade and other receivables 216 (205) 21 - 2
Dorivative financial assets 1461 - 1461 (28.7) n74
Cashandcash eguivalents 393 (393) - - -
2170 (68 8) 148.2 (28.7) g5
Trade and other payables (2593) 295 (229.8) - (229.8)
Derivative financial Labititios (28.7) - (287) 28.7 -
Bank loans and overdralts (90.8) 393 (515) - {515)
(378.8) 68.8 (310.0) 287 (281.3)

Met financial Related amounts

Gross financial  assets/(liabilities) not set oft in
Gross financial {liabilities)f  per statement of  the statement of
assetsf{liabilities) assets set off  financial pasition  Fnancial pasition Net
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2017
Trade and otherreceivables 251 (22.8) 23 - 2.3
Derwvative financial assets 2199 - 219.9 (11.3) 208.6
Cashandcash equivalents 42.4 (41.6) 0.8 - 0.8
287.4 (64.4) 2230 (1.3 217
Trade and other payables {279.2) 22.8 (256.4) - (256.4)
Derivative financial liabilities {11.3) - (11.3) 1.3 -
Bank loans and overdrafts (103.9) 41.6 (62.3) - (62.3)
(394.4) - (320.0) 1.3 (318.7)

The gross finencial assets and Labilities set off in the balance sheet primarily relate to cash pooling arrangements with banks. Amounts
which do not meet the critera for offsetting on the staterment of financial position but could be settled net in certain circumstances
principally relate to derivative transaclions under ISDA (International Swaps and Derivatives Associalionyagreement s wherc @ach party
has the option 1o settle amounts on a net basis in the event of defautt of the other party.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The Croup uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financiatinstruments by valuation technique:

- Level I'quoted (unadjusted] prices in aclive markets for identical assets and tiabitities.

-5 Level 2:not traded in an active market but the fair values are based on guoted market prices or alternative pricing sources with reasonable
levels of price transparency The Croup's Level 2 financial instruments include interest rate and foreign exchange derivatives. Fair value s
calculated using discounted cash flow methodology, future cash flows arc eslimated based on forward exchange rates andinterest rates
(from observable market curves)and contract rates, discounted at arate that reflects the credit nisk of the various counterparties for
those with a long maturity.

- Level 3 techniques which use inpuls which have a significant effect onthe recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data.
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Fair Value Hierarchy continued
At the end of the reporting period, the Group held the following financial instruments at fair value

o7 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total eve Lave. 2 evel 3 Total
£m Em £m £m frm Fm Em £m

Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at fair value
through profit orloss
-trading derivatives - 07 - 0.7 - 1.4 - !
Dervatives Used for hedging - 219.2 - 219.2 - 1447 - 1447
Short-terminvestments - 14.5 - 14.5 ~ 191 - 191
Liabilities measured at fair value
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit orloss
—trading derivatives - (1.5) - (1.5} - (18) - (1.8)
Derivatives used for hedging - (9.8) - (9.8) ~ (26.9) - {26.9)

The Marks & Spencer DB Pension Schemes holds a number of financialinstruments which make up the pension asset of £10,135 1m {last year
£8,515 3m) Level ! and Level 2 financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive incorme amounted to £8,690.2m (last
year £7,296.2m) Additionally, the pension scheme assetsinclude £1,444 9m {last year £1,219 1m) of Level 3 financial assets See note 11 for
information on the Group's retirement benefits.

There were nG transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy. In addition te the above, the Croup has £3.0m {last year £30m)
inunlisted equity securities measured at cost (see note 16)

The following table represents the changes in Level 3 instruments hetd by the Pension Schemes

2017 2016

£m £m

Opening balance 1,2191 10936
Fair value gain recognised in other comprehensive income 100.6 703
Additionalinvestment/{derecognition) 125.2 552
Closingbalance 1,444.9 1,219,

In the pricr year the Croup purchased Lima {Bradford) S.arl This resulted in the derecognition of the embedded derivative as the lease
contract was between subsidiaries of the Croup. Gains recognised in the prior year income statement related to the valuation of the
ermbedded derivative in the lease contract up until the acquisition date. The fair value moverment of the embedded derivative of £2 Om
loss and subsequent derecognition of the asset (£21.7m) was treated as an adjustment to reported profit in the prior year (see note b).

Fair value of financial instruments

With the exception of the Croup’s fixed rate bond debt and the Partnership bability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme, there were
no material differences between the carrying value of non-derivative financial assets and financiallizbilities and their fair values as at the
batance sheet date,

The carrying vatue of the Group's fixed rate bond debt (Level 1 equivalent) was £2,110.7m (last year £1,726 4m}; the fair value of this debt
was £2,236.7m (last year £1,868.3m).

Capital policy
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order te provide optimal returns
for sharehoiders and to mantain an efficient capital structure toreduce the cost of capital.

Indoing 56, the Group's strategy is to maintaina capitat structure commensurate with an investment grade credit ratingand to retain
appropriate levels of liquidity headroom to ensure financial stability and flexibility To achieve this strategy the Group regularly monitors
key credit metrics such as the gearing ratio, cash flow to net debt (see note 27} and fixed charge cover to maintain this position In addition,
the Group ensures a combination of appropriate committed short-term Liquidity headroom with a diverse and balanced long-term debt
maturity profile. As at the batance sheet date, the Croup's average debt maturity profile was seven years (last year eight years). During the
year, the Group maintained an investrent grade credit rating of Baa3 (stable} with Moody's and BEB- (stable) with Standard & Poor's

Incrder to maintain or realign the capital structure, the Group may adjust the number of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets toreduce debt,
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22 PROVISIONS

Property Restructuring Other 20017 2016
£m £m £m £m £rm
At 2 April 2016 52.4 9.8 3.8 66.0 783
Provided inthe year 104.5 116.8 24.7 246.0 400
Released inthe year (19.4) (5.8} (1.1) (26.3) (315)
Uulised during the year {2.4) (20.9} LA {30.2) (216)
Exchange differences 0.4 2.9 A 3.4 04
Discount rate unwind 0.2 - ~ 0.2 04
Reclassification from trade and other payables - {1.2} 2.8 1.6 -
At 1 April 2017 128.7 101.6 30.4 260.7 66.0
Analysed as:
Current 147.2 140
Non-current 1135 520

Property provisions relate to onerous lease contracts and dilapidations primarily arising as a result of the closure of stores in the UK, as part
of the UK stare estate strategic programme, together with the centralisation of the London Head Office functions mto one central London
location. These provisions are expecled Lo be utilised over the period to the end of each specific lease.

Restructuring provisions primarily relate to the estimated costs associated with the Internationalexil strategy which include (ease exit costs.
These provisions are expected to be utilised within the nexl year.

Other provisions include £23 6m of transition payments due following comptetion of the consultation in respect of pay and premia

Please see note 51or further information on these provisions.

23 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred taxis provided under the balance sheet liability method using the tax rate at which the balances are expected to unwind of
19% and 7% (last year 20%, 19% and 18%) for UK differences and local Lax rates for overseas differences. Details of the changes to the
UK corporation tax rate and the impact on the Group are describedin note 7.

The movements in deferred tax assels andliabilibies (after the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction as permitted by
IAS 12 ‘Incorne Taxes') during the year are shown below

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities):

cangandbataings  Caoita, g lowances Bengian  Qther snort-tesm
termporary MAKCESS 1erMporary TeMporary Total UK Overseas
dfierences of depreciation chfferences alfferences deferedrax geferredlax Toral
i £ £n £rm frm £rm £

At 28 March 2015 (470 (106 0} (154 8) (3.1) 3109) (32) (314 1)

Credited/(charged)

toincome statement 6.4 259 Q7 30 360 25) 335

Credited/(charged)

tc equity/other

comprehensive InCome - - (51.4) {18) (53.2) 24 (50.8)

Other balance

sheet moverment 62} - - - 6.2) - ®2)
At 2 April 2016 (46.8) [C:1eR))] (205.5) 1.9 (334.3) (3.3) (3376)
At 3 April 2016 {46.8) (80.1) (205.5) {1.9) (334.3) (3.2) (337.6)

Credited/(charged)

toincome sltatement 35 1.7 14.5 14 a7 {0.7) 364

Credited/charged)

toequity/other

cormprehensive income - - 21.6 4.8 26.4 (5.2) 21.2

Otherbalance

sheet moverment - - - {1.6} (1.6) {0.2) (1.8)
At 1 April 2017 {43.3) (62.4) (169.4) 27 (272.4) (2.4) (281.8)

{3ther short-term temporary differences relale mainly to employee share options and financial instrumaents

Other batance sheatl movernents, categonised as olber short-term Lemporary differences, include £1.4m in relation to recognition of
a deferred tax lability on the acguisition of the remaiming 50% stalke in Lima (Bradford) Sarl

The deferred tax liability on land and buildings temporary differences is reduced by the benefit of capitallosses witha gross value of
£254 5m {last year £249.5m) and a tax value of £48.4m (last year £499rm).
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23 DEFERRED TAX CONTINUED
Due to uncertainty over therr future use, no benefit has been recognised in respect of trading losses carried forward in overseas jurisdictions
with a gross value of £1479m (last year £106 6m) and a tax value of £34 2m(last year £22.3my}

Nodeferred tax is recognisedin respect of undistricuted earnings of overseas subsidiaries and joint ventures unless a material liability 1s
expected to arise on an anticipated distribution of these earnings under applicable tax tegislation Undistributed earmings with a gross value
of £38.2m (last year £30 6m) and a potential tax liability of £9 0m (last year £7.2m) have not been recognised on the kasis that the distribution
can be contralled by the Group

24 ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

2017 2006
Shares £im Shaves £
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p each
At start of year 1,622,964,807 4058 1647814,745 4120
Sharesissued on exercise of share options 1,763,039 0.4 6,797,209 1.7
Shares cancelled through share buy back - - (31,647148) {79)
At end of year 1,624,727.846 406.2 1622964,807 4058

Issue of new shares
1,763,039 (last year 6,797,209) ordinary shares having a norminal value of £0.4m (last year £1 7m) were allotted during the year under the terms
of the Company's schemes which are described in note 13. The aggregate consideration received was £5.5m (last year £20.6m).

Share buy back
Last year 31,647,148 ordinary shares having a nominal value of £79m were bought back and subsequently cancelled during the year,
The aggregate consideration paid, including directly attriculable costs was £150.7m. There was no buyback programme in the current year

25 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
A. Capital commitments

017 20086

£m £m

Commitments inrespect of properties in the course of construction 156.4 1292
Software capital commitments 1.0 171
167.4 1463

B. Other material contracts

Inthe event of a material change in the trading arrangements with certain warehouse operaters, the Croup has a commitment to purchase
property, plant and eguiprment which are currently owned and operated by the warehouse operatars on the Group's behalf (st values
ranging from historical net bock value to market value)

See note 12 (or detaits on the Partnership arrangement with the Marks & Spencer UK DB Pension Scheme,

C. Commitments under operating leases
The Croup leases various stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have
varying terms, escatation clauses and renewalrights

2017 206
£m fm

Total future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases arc as follows
Within one year 342.0 3113
— Later than one year andnot later than five years 1,115.9 1108.4
- Laterthanfive years and not later thanton years 964.1 1,0594
—Laterthantenyears and not laler than 15 years 4219 54238
—Later than 15 years and not later than 20 years 285.3 3519
- Later than 20 years and not Later than 25 years 166.8 2258
- Laterthan 25 years 1,069.5 9703
Total 4,365.5 460592

The tolalnon-cancellable future sub-lease payments to be received are £34.6m (last year £36.1m)

Ofthetotal commitments under operating leases disclosed above, £70mare already provided for on the balance sheet with regards to
expected lease oxil costs arising from the Internalional strategic programme.
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26 ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS GIVEN IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Cash flows from operating activities

2017 2006

£m fm
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 115.7 404.4
Incomc tax expense 60.7 844
Finance costs 113.0 1164
Finance income (36.2) (21.1)
Operating profit 253.2 5841
Depreciation, amortisat-on and asset imparrments andwrite-offs before adjusted tems 589.5 £76.8
Share-based payments charge 10.6 160
Pension costs charged against operating profit 100.3 1020
Adjusted profititems 4374 200.8
Decreasefincrease) ininventories 539 (225}
{Increase)/decreaseinreceivables (9.9} 33
(Decrease)/increase in payables (53.1} 324
Adjusteditems cash outflows {36.8) (129}
Adjusted items non-cash (44.1) (50.3)
Cash contributions to pension schemoes (135.3) {118 4)
Cash generated from operations 1,165.7 13113

Adjusted items cash outflows relate to the utibisation of the provisions for internaticnal store closures, strategic programme costs
associated with the UK store estate, UK organisation and UK logistics and legal settlements. Adjusted itemns non-cashrelate to the
reduction in M&S Bank income for the impact of the financial product mis-selling provision.

27 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT
A. Reconciliation of movement in net debt

Zxchange and

Af 3 Apnl otmernon-cash A1 April
2016 Cashf.ow movements 2017
£m £m Ern im
Net cash
Bank loans, overdrafts and syndicated bank facility (see note 20} (297.3) 2372 (10.2) {70.3)
Less:amounts treated as financing (see below) 2457 (248.0) 102 79
(51.6) (10.8) - (62.4)
Cash andcash equivalents (see note 18) 2476 2154 56 468.6
Net cash per statement of cash flows 196.0 2046 5.5 406.2
Current financial assets (see note 16) 181 46) - 14.5
Debt financing
Bank loans, and overdrafts treated as financing (see above) (2457) 2480 (10.2) (7.9}
Medium-terrm notes (sec note 20) (1,613.8) {3000) 24 (1,911.4)
Finance lease liabilities (see note 20) (48.6) 20 {2.1) (48.7)
Partnership liabill y to the Marks & Sponcer UK Pension Scherme (see note 12) 445 3) 579 - (387.4)
Debt financing (2,353.4) 79 (99) {2,355.4)

Net debt (2,138.3) 2079 43 (1,934.7)
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27 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT CONTINUED
B. Reconciliation of net debt to statement of financial position

2017 2016
£m £
Statement of financial position and related notes
Cashand cash eguivalents (see note 18) 468.6 2476
Current financial assets (see note 16) 14.5 191
Rank oans and overdrafts (see note 20) (70.3) (2973)
Medium-term notes —net of hedging derivatives (1,957.8) (1,056.1)
Finance tease liabilities (see note 20) (48.7} (486)
Partnership liability Lo the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (see notes 12 and 21) {396.5) (4557)
{1,990.2) (2.1910)
Interest payable included within related borrowing and the Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer
UK Pensgion Scheme 55.5 527
Total net debt (1,934.7) (21383

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A. Subsidiaries
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed In this note. Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are disciosed in the Company’s separate financial statements

B. Hedge End joint venture
Aloanof £5 0mwas received from the joint venture on @ October 2002, It is repayable on five business days notice and was renewed on
1 January 2015 Interest was charged on the loan at 2.0% until 31 December 2009 and 0 5% thereafter.

C. Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme
Details of other transactians and balances held with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme are set out innotes 11 and 12

D. Key management compensation

The Group has determined that the key management personnel constitute the Board for the whole year and the members of the
Operating Comm ttee with effect from November 2016, when the terms of reference of the Operating Commitiec were ratified
For the whole of the prior year the Croup had determined that only members of the Board were key managemaent persennel.

2017 2006

£m £m

Salaries and short-term bonefits 8.1 75
Share-based paymenils - 03
Total 81 78

E. Other related party transactions

There were norelated party transactions during the year to 1 April 2017, Last year, supplier transactions occurred between the Groupand a
company controlled by Martha Lane Fox's partner Martha was a non-executive director of the Group, retiring from the Board on 2 April 2016.
These transactions amounted to £2.6m during the year with an cutstanding trace payable of £0.2mat 2 April 2016.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
'

As at Asar
1 April 2017 2Aprl 2006
Neofes £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
lnvestrments in subsidiary undertakings Cé 9,249.3 Q2358
Total assets 9,249.3 92358
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Amount s owed to subsidiary undertakings 2,552.2 256592
Total Liabilities 2,552.2 25592
Net assets 6,697.1 65,0766
Equity
Ordinary share capitat 406.2 4058
Share premium account 416.4 411.3
Capilalredemplionreserve 2,210.5 22105
Merger reserve 1,397.3 1,3973
Retained earnings 2,266.7 22517
Total equity 65,6971 66766

The Company's profit for the year was £379.0m (last year £302.1m)

The Company financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 23 May 2017 The financial staterments alsc
comprise the notes onpages 129to 131

Steve Rowe Chief Executive Officer  Helen Weir Chief Finance Officer

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
C..___________________________________________________________________________ |

Ordnary  Sharegremium Capitairedemption Merger Retained
sharecapital accaunt TEsServe reseqve |earangs Total
fm £m £m £m £ Fm
At 29 March 2015 4120 3924 22026 1,397.3 2,3926 65,7969
ProfiL for the year - - - - 3021 3021
Dividends - - - - (301.7) (301.7)
Capital contribution for share-based payments ~ - - - 94 94
Shares purchased inbuy-back (79} - 79 - {1507) {150.7)
Sharesissued on exercise of employee share options 17 189 - - - 206
At 2 April 2016 405.8 411.3 2,210.5 1,397.3 2,251.7 6,676.6
At 3 April 2016 405.8 411.3 2,210.5 1,397.3 2,251.7 6,676.6
Profit for the year - - - - 379.0 379.0
Dividends - - - - {377.5) (377.5)
Capital contribution for share-based payments - - - - 13.5 13.5
Sharesissued on exercise of employee share options 0.4 5.1 - - - 55
At 1 April 2017 406.2 416.4 2,210.5 1,397.3 2,266.7 6,697.1

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
I

52 weeks ended 53 weaks enced

1 April 2017 7 Apnl 206
£m £m

Cash flow from investing activities
Dividends received 379.0 302
Net cash generated from investing activities 379.0 302
Cash flows from financing activities
Shares issued on exercise of employee share options 5.5 206
Shares purchased inbuy-back - (150.7)
Repayment of ntercompany loan {7.0) 1297
Equily dividends paid {377.5) (301.7)
Net cash used in financing activities (379.0) {302.1)

Net cash inflow from activities - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning and end of year - -
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- - |
C1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Company's accounting policies are the same as those set out in note 1 of the Croup financial statements, except as noted below

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment. The Company grants share-based
payrments to the employees of subsidiary companies. Each period, the fair value of the employee services received by the subsidiary as
a capital contribution from the Company is reflected as an addition to investments in subsidiaries.

Loans from other Group undertakings and all other payables are initially recorded at fair value, which is generally the proceeds received.
They are then subsequently carried at amortised cost. The loans are non-interest bearing andrepayable on dermand

The Company's financial risk 1s managed as part of the Group's strategy and policies as discussedin note 21 of the Group financial statements.

In accerdance with the exermnption allowed by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has nct presentedits own income
statement or statement of comprehensive income

C2 EMPLOYEES

The Compary had no employees during the current or prior year, Directors received emoluments in respect of thelr services Lo the
Company during Lhe year of £936,000 (last year £956,000). The Company did nol operate any pension schemes during the current of
preceding year.

C3 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Auditor's remunerationin respect of the Company's annuat audit has been borne by its subsidiary Marks and Spencer plc and has been
disclosed ona consolidated basis n the Company’s consolidated financial statemenrts as required by Section 434(4)(a) of the Companies
Act 2006

C4 DIVIDENDS

2007 2018 2017 2018
per share per snare £m £m

Dividends on equity ordinary shares
Paid final dvidend 11.9p 116p 192.7 1908
Specialdividend 4.6p - 74.5 -
Paidinterm dividend 6.8p 6.8p 110.3 1109
23.3p 184p 3775 3017

The directors have propesed a final dividend in respect of the year ended 1 April 2017 of 119p per share {last yoar 11.9p), armnounting to a
dividend of £193 3m (last year £192.7m) This payment is subject to approval of sharehotders at the AnnualGeneral Mecting, to be held on
11 July 2017,

Adividend reinvestment plan (DRIP) s avallable to shareholders who would prefer to invest their dividends in the shares of the Company.
The shares will go ex-dividend on 1 June 2017 For those shareholders electing to receive Lhe DRIP the last date forreceipt of a new election
i 23 June 2017,

C5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company has received dividends from Marks and Spencer ple of £379.0m (last year £302.1m) and decreasedits loan
from Marks and Spencer plc by £70m (Last year increased by £129.7m). The outstanding balance was £2,552 2m (last year £2,559.2m) and
is non-interest bearing. There were no other related party transactions.

C6 INVESTMENTS
A. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

2007 2014

£m £m

Beginning of the year 9,235.8 92264
Additionalinvestment in subsidiary undertakings relating to share-based payments 13.5 9.4
End of the year 9,249.3 92358

Shares in subsidiary undertakings represent the Company's investment in Marks and Spencer plc The directors beliove that the carrying
value of the investments is supported by thoir underlying net assets.
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
L

€6 INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

B Related undertakings

Inaccordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a full list of related undertakings, the country of incorporation and the effective
percentage of equity owned,as at 1 Aprit 2017 is disclosed below.

Subsidiary undertakings registered in the UK®

Propartion Proport on

Proportion Proporoon

ofsnares  ofshares ofshares  of shares
held by the held by ned by the held by
Company  suosdiary Caompany  subsidiary
Nime Share Class %) (%) Narme Share Class (%) (%)
Amethyst Leaging (Holdings) Limited £ Crorary ) 100 Marks and Spencer Fensian Trust £ Ornary 0 Wi
Investments Limited
Hedge End Pack Limited £ Orarary o 50
Regeoered L fize 33-oiare  oroor FCSK2HI Marks and Spencer Pension Trust Limited™ L Adrairary 100 il
MES Limited £ Ay 0 ae £ drorary [§ [
Manford (Textiles) Limited £ Oinrary Q i) £3 0O ary 4 [
Marks & Spencer Company Archive CIC t Cnanrsry Q W Marks and Spencer plc ES 25 Mr0uary Als] [
Marks & Spenger Qutlet Limited rOraracy Q 100 Marks and Spencer Property Develgpments Limited  £1 Orowary 4 190
Markz & Spenceor Simply Foads Limited B Orarary Q 00 Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership™ Partrersbipintargst 4 190
Reqisceren Office 2-28 St Nikotas Straet,
Marks and Sparks Limited ElDrarary o o ;.\D%meer\,.!m'ﬂ 16U
Marks and Spancer (Northern Iraland) Limited £l Drorary 0 co Marks and Spencer $hared Services Limited vl Cromary o 00
Registerad 2Mice & Lagorbarck Roao, Belfast, BT ILR
— Minterton Sarvices Limited £1 Crorary o 100
Marks and Spencer (Property Investments) Limited  £1 Orerany 4] 160
B Marks and Spencer (Bradfard) Limited £1 Crounany o 00
Marks and Spencer Chester Limited El Croray [ 10 0! ! ) ALY
Ruby Properties (Enfigld) Limited F1 Orumar, 0 100
Marks and Spencer France Limited 1 Crerary o 1o Y “ron { ) ¥
5t. Michael {Textiles) Limited £1 Oromary Q 100
Marks and Spencer Guernsey Investments LLP £1 Orowrare ¢ 100
St. Michaul Finance ple £1 Oromary Q 100
Marks and Spencer Interaational Holdings Limited L1 Crorary o 100 Pl it

UK registered subsidiaries exempt from audit
The following UK subsidiaries willlake advantage of the audit exermnption set out wilhin section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 for the year
ended | April 2017, Unless otherwise stated, the undertakings sted below are registered at Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road, London,
W2 INW, United Kingdom, and all have a single class of ordinary share with a nominal value of £1.

Proparticn
of shares

Progartianof helaby

Praparton
of shares

Propart onof he:d by

sharesheldby the subsidary  Company shares held bythe subsiciary  Company
Name Company (%) (%) Number Name Company (%) (%) Number
Amethyst Leaging (Properties) Limited [ 103 04246934 Marks and Spencer 2005 u 100 UBS0585
— — {Parman House Kingstan Store) Limited
Busyexport Limitod [ sy 04311320
A Marks and Spencer 2005 (Pudsey Stare) Limited o 100 5502544
00 o $C315365
Marks and Spencer 2005 o 100 05502502
{Warrington Gemini Store) Limited
Marks and Spencer (Property Ventures) Limited ¥} 106 0u502513 Marks and Spencer Hungary Limited a 100 08540784
Marks and SRpencer 2005 (Brooklands Stare) Limited ¢ 100 05502608 Marks and Spencer Investments ] W 0450306
Marks and Spencer 2005 0 160 08502519 Marks and Spencer Property Holdings Limited 1] LN} 02100781
[Choster Satelj imif N N
( Uite Store) Limited Ruby Properties (Cumbernauld) Limited o 60 Gen27198
rk jmil 550254
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Chester Store) Limited ol [45] QRRE254) Ruby Praparties (Hardwick) Limited o cC DaT16018
Marks and Sfencer 2005 Q [als] DELOZ548 - .
(Fife Road Kingston Store] Limited Ruby Properties (Long Eaton) Limited [¢] 1c0 04118031
Marks and Spencer 2005 c 100 05502546 Ruby Propertias (Thorncliffe} Limited 0 00 04TI11G
{Glasgow Sauchiehall Store) Limited Ruby Properties (Tunbridge) Limited 0 00 4716032
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Hedge End Store) Limited  C 190 0RE0Z518 Simply Food (Property Investments) a 100 05503543
Marks and Spencer 2005 (Kensington Stare) Limited 0 100 oetzdre Simply Food (Property Ventures) Limited Q 100 02239799
Marks and Spencer 2005 L e Q550,523
({Kingston-on-Thames Satellite Store] Limited
Marks and Spencer 2005 [ 0o 05862520

{Kingston-on_Thames Store} Limited

The Company will quarantee the donts and sabilities of the above UK subs diary unclertaxings at the balance sheet date of £6 3min accordance w thsection 479C of the Companies Act 2006
The Company nas assessed the probabul ty of oss under the guarantee as remote

(YAl comparies registered at Watarsiae House, 34 NarthWhart Rosd, condon, W2 TNW Urited Lingaom, unless otherwise stated

(1} Inaccorgancew th the arvcles of associat onof Marks and Spencer Pens.on Trust o

mitee,the holders uf B ana C Ordmary shares are bothdreciors ot tnat company

(nyMarksandSpencer [ mtall PYLimeted ana Marks ana Spencer PensionTrust him teg are the Lmited partmecs; Marks and Spencer plc isthe General Pariner
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P
C6 INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

B Related undertakings continued
International subsidiary undertakings®

Proportion Procorticn

of shares of shares
neld by neln by
subs diany Sbsid ary
Name Registered Address Country Snare Cass %) Name Rng stered Address Country Smare (.ass (5}
Marks arg Saencer AuroraPlace, 88 PRillp Streat,  Australiz Aol Oy e Marks and Spencer boerauk e Street wrawl SIETarary a0
{Australia) Pty Limited Sydney.NSW 2000, Australia (lsrael) Limited TULAY Y ERLDS el
Marks and Spencer Sterngasse 13 V.enna, Austna  Ausina B 0O g r oy e Per Una Italia SRL WG Ol 5. SE 00 haty ¥ Juata H)
GmbH in Liqu. {in Uquidation) Seato Mal,
iry Liguid i ~
fin Urguidation) Marks and Spencer FliBtareaklace e [ e ary 0o
Marks and Spencer 4t Floor, 97 Rue Royale, Balgu— €1 Trdrary co (Jersey) Limited Bath Streer ot Hu er
(Belgium} sPRL 1000 Brussels, Balgivr: MSF Latvia SIA o 3R YN a7 rdray o
Marks & Spencer apwellngton Row, Samt John  Canaaa CaD Comman 120 (in liguidation} . i
Canada &
anadalncarporated  NBEZL 453.Coratia CADNPY 100 UABMSFLithoamia  feoim tone 20 Ly S € R Crdruny o
Lt .ame
CAD 1 Pret 160
N o Marks and Spencer OB refet Clehal Lirmiten Vorrereqro < Crdinary FO0
Marks & Spencer 40Wellngton Row Saint John Canana CAD " Commar 00 fries 15 Suet, Petra
Holdings Canada NBE2L 453.Canada 10K Padgorica Cetrsrog 3100 Fougone
incorporated Feoters e {under liguidation)  Mc-terego
M2 5 Mode O rs Berrbgrapler 200, “ether oricly €100 Sroinary 00

OUR BUSINESS

Marks & Spencer inc.

40 Wellingtor Row, Saint John  Carada
NBE2L 453, Carada

Cali Cormmon

Internaticnal B.V.

1097 B Arnsterenm,
Pugtherigec:

Marks and Spencer

2z Barrbargpenr 200 1097 Netheranas

£4500rcarary

QOUR PERFORMANCE

Marks and Spencer Unit 03-04,6/F ECO City 1788, Chira Qpaisteraa
(Shanghay Limited 1788 West Nan.Jing Roso, caetal (Nederland) BV. -B.Amitergsry Netr e.aras
Shanghai,China Marks and Spencer BY  Pr-s Berrkaraplerr 1587 J5 Nethenargs €00 Trainary
Marks ang Spencer 863 Narjing Roac West, Chira Registersn Amsteianm Nell eriard.
Commertial Jis A District, Shangbal, China Coprtal Marks and Spenter Mockpeps 1o D0 WR Sothetar gy Coontre Ticdnary
{Shenghai) Ltd Nederland (Retail} BN, Arontergm Nerhos oo
Marks and Spencer  DeaShovicewaLl 8210000, Crontn HRK Doy Marks and Spencar  Fres Bersbaraglenn A7 1682 Netber ards €450 rcingry
Croatia d o.0. Zagref, Croatia Stores BY. A er i, Neraraneg
(in liquidation)
- - - - Marks and $pencer WMo zatkowska 0122, Polang EN-LR WY
Marks and Spencer Proha 4, Michte, Vyskocilova  Creshkeputilic CZ4 1,000 10 Poland Spz 0.6 00-C 1 warszawa, Folara Ororary
Czrach Republic a.s 148144, Czech Republic Qrerary
i N Marks & Spencer Ao ermnagna cbercane 749 Soriugal Eliironary non
C4K 100000 a0 {Portugal) Lda. 1259-" 43, Lishor Borwga
Qeon ary
- — Marks and Spencer NO 7h7 Trrusosra Bou devara Rerrasia RCIN 1830 100
CZK 1000000 a3 Romania $A A< ctor Plaza Ira- loo Oretiraey
Qrairary premuses 38-1 &b District
Marks and Spencer Vyskarilovs 148179, 12000 Cracr Reputyic Registerea 00 B.charesh Ryrmaria
Services SRO Praha 4, My ble, Czech Repibue Crotal Marks and Spencer Doo Patnsa Lurnumibs ~a 70 Zerlun RSD CvLatas [od]
Ol MSF Estonia Pald skimrt 162 Talirr, Cstora Reqistersa 100 Beograd (in liguidation) 11000 Belgraoe
V3527 Fsioma saptal Marks and Spencer 77 Rabirsar Reaa #'3-00 Sirgagore MoFarvalue  NoParvalue
Andis SARL 48 Rue oe la Chavssea-c'Art o, Frarce &1 060 Srdinary 1K) (Singapore) InvestmentsRobir sor 27 S gaoore DESERE Orarary Qredirary
75008 Pans Frarce Pte. itd. Sirgapare
Marks & Spencer 3308 Ermio Street. Abmers ~eece £ rorary MSF Slovakia $.R.0 I'van‘skacezta\ﬁ‘arat slava 8215kraakoa Regsterea
Marinopuutos Greece 34 Slovakia capital
Greece 54 Marks ang Spencer Woo warths “ouse, 51 Sou btk Africy TAR T Oroirary
Ignazia Limited Mer tage ! lall Le Marchart Caerreey £ e rary {SA) {PLy) Limited +orgmatker 5{"{’“‘ Cave Tews
Stres St Peter Port 00, Sout Anca
GY1 aJH Guarreey M&S (Spain) S.L. Callei Lercarral N 19 plenn CoIMe
Marks and Spancor Linwooo, Alies o Feas, Cuerr oy £ romary ZB010. Maguw Hpar

(Alderney) Limited

Algorroy

Teranis Limited

Hentage Hail, Le Marc-ant
Street, St Peter Port
CY1AHY Suerrsay

Trerrsey

JRRSIETERTY

Marks and Spencer
{Asia Pacific) Limited

Sute 1003 10T, Yomer 6,
The Gateway 9 Cantan Reaa,
Kowloor, Horg Karg.

Farg Koy

KD Cirar iy

Marks and Spencer
{Hong Xang)
Investments Limited

SLte 1009 10T, Tpwer 6
TheLatewiw, @ Cartor Foan
Kowloon, Horgg £arg

Harc Korg

HRLST Orgerary

Marks and Spencer
(Hungary) Kft

Fekervar LESC 52,1117
Bucapest Hurgary

Hornary

HLI 2840, 500,00
Quata

Marks and Spencer
(nlia) put Limited

Tower C RMZM Uanig, 4t Towr, 'roa
Lakewirg #1 Mursky Roao
Bargalore, 560008, Ircia

INRIGCre.rary

Marks and Spencer
Reliance Inclia Pvt Ltd

Atk Moor, Sourt H 0 Inoia
Lokmarya Tilak Mg, Srok
Taloo, Murebar 400002, Inaia

INRIC Crans A
NRIGClass B

INR1OClazs C

Supreme Tradelinks
Private Limited

First Firee, Arara Bhawar Irans
Sa~wan Charara Rnae, mpur,
302001, Ircha

INRAG Cranrary

Aprell Limited 24-7amary Street Irelard £1 25 Crainary
Butle 1 0rela~a

Marks and Spenter 24 37 beary Streat lietars €125 Orarary

{Iretand) Limited Bt 1, leelar

Marks and Spencer
Pension Tryst
{Ireland) Limited!

2 e ary Street relars
Sk 1 irelar o

Litrutea by
Quarartes

Marks and Spencer
(Thailand) Limited

1010 Supaaisirara o Tl el
294 Tagr Rare 33 Poaa,

Kwacrg Chorgraors arer
Yoerawn, B ks,

1010, Tt lara

THE 100
Crow ary

Marks and Spencer
Clothing Textile
Trading L.L.C

Havalar €arsensznsaul iurkey
Dy rya Ticaret Mersezr A3 Blok

Kat'1 fesilkoy, Bak rkoy,
lerarb, |7 ey

TRL2ZEOD
rairary

Marks & Spencer
Services Inc.

2711 Certeryille Roaa Su te
AQ0 Wl aton GE 19808,
Urited Sratas

Uritec States

JE0 T Cormar

Marks & Spenter
Ventures Finance LLC

271 Certery e Hoaa, buite
400, Falmi- gtor DE 19:08,
Uriten States

Uriteo Stlates

JEG 1 Corrmon

NOTF A aumber of the compan eeLsregare [0Gacy Compan o5 which no:anges serve any GReLas Ona, PUCooss

{ ) The sharos o~ atlinternational sunsidiry artde Tahdigs 876 hed by comaan es with i the Group o* or that the Camoany (Marks and Spencer Grong 0.0}
CMNR O Class Cshares O0% owned by JV pariner
fm] NG share camitalas e comoany < Um teo by Juarantee
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GROUP FINANCIAL RECORD
L ]

2007 2016 201 204 2013
52 weeks 53weaks 52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks
£m frn fm fm £m
Income statement
Revenue’
UK 9,441.7 9,470.8 G,2231 G 15657 89514
International 1,180.3 10846 10883 11540 1,075.4
10,622.0 10,555.4 103114 103097 10,026.8
Operating profit/(loss)’
UK 3276 6273 6406 6003 6328
International (74.4) (43.2) 60.7 942 1202
Total operating profit 253.2 5841 7013 5945 7530
Net interest payable {106.7) (110.6) (111.8} (125 8) (2129)
Pension finance income 29.3 153 105 nz 71
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 176.4 488.8 600.0 580.4 547.2
Analysed between:
Profit before tax and adjusted items 613.8 6896 661.2 6229 6481
Adjustments to reported profit (a37.4) (2008) 61.2) 42.5) (100.9)
Income tax expense (60.7} (34.4} {118.3) (74.4) (102 4)
Profit after taxation 115.7 404 4 4817 506.0 4448
2017 2016 20°5 2014 2013
52 weeks 63 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks
Basic earnings per share’ Profit after tax/
Welghted average
ordinary sharesinissue T.2p 249p 28.7p 325p 283p
Adjustedbasic carnings Adjusted profit after tax/
per share' Weighted average ordinary
sharesinissue 20.4p 35.0p 331p 322p 319p
Crvidend per share declared
inrespect of the year? 18.7p 1870 180p 17.0p 170D
Bividend cover Adjusted basic earnings per
share/Dividend per share 1.6x 19x% 1.8x 1.9x 19x
Retal fixed charge cover Qperatingprofit before
depreciation and operating
lease charges/Fixed charges 3.4x 3.7x 36x 3.4x 3.5x
Statement of financial position
Net assets (Em) 3,150.4 34434 3,1988 27067 25195
Net debt? (£m) 1,934.7 2383 22232 24636 256143
Capitalexpenditure (Em) 331.2 5251 526.6 7100 8213
Stores and space
UK stores 979 gi4 852 798 766
UK selling space (m sq ft) 170 168 166 6.4
International stores 454 468 480 455 418
International selling space (m sq ft) 5.9 6.] 6.0 58 54
Staffing (full-time equivalent)
UK 53,562 52388 52,247 54,678 51,835
International 6,202 6,507 6,849 6,498 5683

1 Basedoncononang operatans
2 Excludes accroedinzeres!
3 Crcludes spec ardinend
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GLOSSARY

APM

Reconciling
Closest equivalent items to statutory
statutery measure measure

Definition and purpose

Income Statement Measures

Like-for-like
revenue growth

Movernent in
revenue per the
Income Statement

for-like stores

Sales from non like-The period on period change in revenue excluding VAT) from stores which

have been trading and where there has been no significant change in footage
for at least 52 weeks and online sales. The measure is used widely in the retait
industry as an indicator of sales performance. it excludes the impact of new
stores, closed stores or stores with significant foctage change.

FY 16/17 FY 1516
£m £m %

UK Revenue
Like-for-Like 90392 92130 -19%
Net space change 4025 1m.7

Total 9,441.7 9,324.7 1.3%
Week 53 - 1461
Statutory 9,441.7 9,470.8

-0.3%

M&S comirevenue/
Onlinerovenus

None Not applicable

Total revenue through the Croup’s online platforms. These revenues

are reported within the relevant UK and International segrment results.

The growth inrevenues on a year-on-year 52sis is a good indicator of the
performance of the online channeland is a measure used within the Croup's
incentive plans Refer to the Remuneration Report for explanation of why
this measure s used within incentive plans

Revenue growth at
constant currency

None Not applicable

The period on period change inrevenue retransiating the previous year
revenue at the average actual periodic exchangerates usedin the current
financial year. This measure iz presented asa means of eliminating the effects
of exchange rate fluctuations on the pericd-on-period reported results

FY 16/17  FY15/16
£m £m %

International Revenue

At reported currency 11803 10663 07%
Impact of FX translation - 115.2

At constant currency 1,803 11,1815 -01%

Cross margin

Certain
downstream
logistics costs
(see Note 2)

Cross profit
marginy'

Where referred to throughcout Lhe Annual Report, gross margin s calculated
as gross profit before adjusted iterms ona management basis divided by
revenue. The gross profit used in this calculation is based onan internal
rmeasure of margin rather than the statutory rmargin, which excludes certain
downstream logistics costs Thisis a key internal management metric for
assessing category performance.

Adjusteditems

None Naot applicable

Those iterns which the Croup excludes fromils adjusted profit metricsin
order to present a further rmeasure of the Group's performance. Each of
these items {costs or incomes)is considered to be significant in nature
and/or value. Excluding these items from profit metrics provides readers
with helpful additionalinformation on the performance of the business
across periods because it is consistent with how the business performance
is reported to the Board and the Operating Committee.

EBIT before
adjusteditems

EBIT: Adjusteditems
{See Note 5}

Calculated as profit before the impact of adjusted items, net finance costs
and tax This measureis used in calculating the Return on Capital Employed
forthe Croup

Profit before tax
and adjusteditermns

Profit. before Lax
Neote 5)

Adjusteditems (see Profit before Lhe impact of adjusted tems and tax. The Croup considers this

tobe animportant measure of Group performance and is consistent with
how the business performance s reporied o and assessed by the Board
and the Opcrating Committee

This1s a measure used within the Croup's incentive plans Refer tothe
Remuneration Report for explanation of why Lhis measure is used within
incentive plans

Adjusted earnings
per share

Earnings per share Adjusted iterns (secProfit after tax atinbutable to owners of the parent and before theimpact of

Note 5}

adjusteditems, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
inissue during the financial year

This is a measure used within the Croup’s incentive plans. Refertothe
Rermuneration Report for explanation of why this measureis used within
incentive plans,
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MARKS AND SPINCIR CROURPPLC

GLOSSARY CONTINUED
L |

Reconciting
items to statutory
measure

Definition and purpose

Income Statement Measures continued

Adjusted diluted

Dilutedcarnings  Adjusteditems

Profit after tax attributable to owners of the parent and before the impact of

earnings per share per share (See Note5) adjusted iterns, divided by the woighted average number of ordinary shares
inissue during the financial yvear adiusted for the effects of any potentially
dilutive options.
Effective tax rate Effective taxrate Adusteditermnsand Totalincome tax charge for the Croup excluding the tax impact of adjusted
before adjusted iterns their taximpact iterms divided by the profit before tax and adjusteditems.
See Note 5 . o .
¢ ’ This measureis anindicator of the ongoing tax rate for the Group.
h2-week 53-week Resultsforthe Every 6 years an additional week is included within the statutory period to
pericd ended perncod ended 53rd week n ensure that the year end date stays intine with the end of March, The prior
26 March 2016 2 Aprl 2016 the statutory year statutory financial measures were based on such a 53 week reporting
reporting period
pencd ended . . . ! . . )
2 April 2016 In order to provide a meaningful comparison with this vear's 52 week period,

all financial movements in commentary relative to the prior year are provided
ona 52 week basis and exclude the 53rd week, unless otherwise noted The
Croup considers that presentation of comparatives on this basis enables
stakeholders to more appropriately compare the perfermance of the
business year onyear.

The 52 week pericd for the prior year has been used for management
incentive purposes.

Balance Sheet Measures

Net debt None Reconciliation Net debt comprises total borrowings (ank, bonds and finance lease
of net debt liabilities net of accrued interest), net derivative financialinstrumenits that
(see note 27) hedge the borrowings and the Scoltish Limited Partnership Uability to
the UK pension scheme less cash, cash equivalents and unlisted and
short-terminvestments
This measure 15 a good indication of tha strength of the Croup's balance
sheet position and is widely used by credit rating agencies.
Capitalempioyed Net assels Refertodefinition  The net total of assets and liabiities as reported inthe annuat financial

statermont excluding assels and liabilities inrelation to investment property,
nct retirement benefit position, derivatives, current and deferred tax
liabitities, Scottish Lirmded Partnerstup liability, non-current borrowings

and provisions inrespect of adjusted itams.

This measure s used inthe calculation of Returnon Capital Employed.

Cash Flow Measures

Free cash flow

Net cash inflow
from cperating
activities

See Financial
Review

The cash generated from the Croup's operating activities less capital
expenditure and interest paid.

This measure shows the cashretained by the Group inthe year.

Free cash flow
pre-shareholder

Net cashinflow
fromoperating

See Financial
Rewview

Calculated as the cash generated from the Group's operating activities less
capital expenditure and interest paid excluding returns to shareholders

returns activitics {dividends and share buyback)
This measure shows the cash generated by the Croup during the year that
is available for returning to shareholders and is used within the Group's
incentive plans,

Other Measures

Capital expenditure  None Refer to definition  Calculatedas the purchase of property, plant and equipment, investrment
property andintangible assets during the year less proceeds of asset
disposals excluding any assets acquired as part of a business cormbination.

Return on Capital None Not applicabie Calculated as EBIT before adjusted items divided by the average of opening

Employed

and closing capital cmployed.

This measure is used within the Croup's incentive plans. Referto the
Rernuneration Report for explanation of why this measure is used within
incentive plans,

Cross profit Marginis nog aefinec within IFRS Tt 15 3 widely accepted profit measure oeng aenved fram revenue less cost of sales div aedby revenue
2 TEITs not defined withun IFRS but 15 a widely accepted profit measdare being earnings pefore nterest and tax
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SHARERHOLDER
INFORMATION

ANALYSIS OF SHARE REGISTER

Ordinary shares

Asat 1 April 2017, the Company had 166,083 registered holders of ordinary shares. Therr shareholdings are analysed below. It should be
noted that many of our private investors hold their shares through nominee companies; therefore the actualnumber of shares held

privately is estimated to be around 30% higher thanindicated

Nurmber of Balance ss at
Range of sharehiplding ho.dings % 1 Apnl20°7 %
1--500 87,113 5245 16,514,336 102
501-1000 31960 19.24 23920,8%6 147
1,001 -2,000 24,254 1460 34,835,186 214
2,001 ~5000 16,132 97 49,329,942 304
5,001 10000 4119 248 28,449793 175
10,001 - 100,000 1941 117 45,369,711 279
100,001 - 1,600,600 407 0.25 141,605,826 872
1,000,001 -Highest 157 010  1,284702146 7907
Total 166,083 100.00 1,624,727,846 100.00

Percentage Nurper of Percentlage

MNurnaber of of romal orginary of ssuen
Categoryof shareholoer snarenoldery snareholoess shates sharg capta.
Private 161,053 9697 185,490,855 1142
Institutionaland corporate 5030 303 143923699 88.58
Total 166,083 100.00 1,624,727,846 100.00
2017/18 FINANCIAL CALENDAR AND KEY DATES
1 June 2017 Ex-dividend date ~ Final dividend
2June 2017 Record date te be eligible for the final dividend
1 July 2017 Results - Quarter 1 Trading update!
11 July 2017 Annual Cencral Meeting (11am)
14 July 2017 Final dividend payment date for the year to 1 Apnl 2017
8 November 2017+ Results — Half Yeart
16 November 2017* Ex-dividend date - interim dividend
i7 November 2017 Record date to be eligible for the intenm dvidend
January 2018+ Results - Quarter 3 Trading update!
12 January 2018* Interim dividend payment date

t Those whao have registered for electronic commun ca'. o @7 news alerts at marksandspencer.com/thecompany w lirecaive not ficaion oy ema whenth s nava latle

* Provisionaloales

MANAGING YOUR SHARES ONLINE

DIVIDENDS

Shareheoldears can manage their holdings - Have dividends paidinto their
online by registering with Shareview, the bank account

internet-based platform provided by
Equiniti Registrationis a straightforward
process and allows shareholders tor

= Vote inadvance of Company
general meetings.

M&S encourages shareholders to sign up for
slectronic cornmunication as the reduction
inprinting costs and paper usage makes

- Recewetrading updates by email a valuable contribution to our Plan A
commitments. Itis also beneficial to
shareholders, who can be notified by email

= Signup for electronic shareholder
communication

- View all of their shareholdings in

one place. whenever we release trading updates to
- Update their records fellowing the London Stock Exchange, which are not
achangs of address rmailed ta shareholders.

For moreinformation about the services
offered by Shareview and to register,
please visit shareview.co.uk

Dividends are paid in January and July each
year, subject tothe relevant Board and
shareholder approvals These can be paid
quickly and securely directly into your bank
account Youmay also choose to have your
dividends irvested in further M&S shares
through cur dividend reinvestment plan
(DRIP) (terms and conditions apply) To
arrange either of these options, simply call
Equiniti on the numbers provided onthe
following page. Alternatively, you can
manage your dividend payment choices
by registering with shareview.co.uk
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION CONTINUED

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2017

CHANGING YOUR ADDRESS

This year's AGM will be held at Wembley
Stadium, Wembley, London HA9 OWS
onTuesday 1] July 2017 The meeting will
start at Namandregistration willbe open
from 9 30am

DUPLICATE DOCUMENTS

Many shareholders have morethanone
account onthe shareregister and receive
duplicate documentation from us as
aresult If you fallinto this group, please
contact Equinitito combine your accounts,

CORPOQRATE WEBSITE

You can access the corporate website at
marksandspencer.com/fthecompany.

The M&S corporate website provides

a wealth of usefulinfarmation for
shareholders and shouldbe your first port
of call for general queriesrelating to the
Company andits shares Through the
website you can alsoregister Lo receive
news alerts by email; simply ciick on‘alerts’
N the top right corner and enter your details

The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the financial
information on our website. This information
has been prepared under the relevant
accounting standards and legislation.

You should inform Eguiniti of your new
address as soonas possible to aveid missing
important correspondence relating to your
shareholding. If you hold 2,500 shares or
fewer and reside in the UK, this can be done
quickly over the telephone. Holdings of
more than 2,500 shares will require a written
instruction quoting your full name, 11-digit
shareholder reference number (if known)
and both your previous and new addresses.

SHAREGIFT

If you have a very small sharehelding that
Is uneconomical ta sell, youmay want

to consider donating it to ShareGift
{registered charity no. 1052686) a chanty
that specislises inthe donation of srmall,
unwanted shareholdings to good causes.
Find out more by visiting sharegift.org
or by calling +44 (0)207 9303737

CAPITAL GAINS TAX

For the purpose of Capital Cains Tax (CCT),
the price of an ordinary share on 31 March
1982 was 153.5p, which when adjusted for the

1 for 1 scripissue in 1984, gives a figure of
76.75p. Following the capital reorganisation
in March 2002, HMRC has confirmed that the
base cost for CCT purposes was 372.35p
(81.43%) for an ordinary share and 68750
{18.75%) for a B share.

USEFUL CONTACTS

SHAREHOLDER QUERIES

The Company's share register is maintained
by our registrar, Equiniti. Shareholders with
quenesrelating to their shareholding should
contact Equiniti directly using one of

the methods listed below. For more general
queries, sharehalders should consult the
Investors' section of our corporate website

AMERICAN DEPOSITARY
RECEIPTS {(ADRS)

The Cormpany has a sponsored Level 1

ADR programme with Deutsche Bank

This enables USinvestors to purchase
Marks & Spencer American Depositary
Shares (ADSyinUS dollars ‘over the counter’
The Company has chosentohave the
ADRs guoted on the OTC market's highest
tier, International Prermier(QX,

For information on OTCQX go to otegx.com.

For Deutsche Bank, emait;
DB@astfinancial.com

ADR website: adrdb.com
Tolt-free calters withun the US.

1 860 249 2593

For those calling outside the US:
+1(718)921 8137

M&S Registered Office
Waterside House

35 North Wharf Road

London W2 TNW

Urited Kingdom

Telephone. +44 (0)20 7935 4422
Registeredin England and Wales
{(No 4256886)

General queries

Custormer queries: 0345 302 1234
Alternatively, emarl us at
chairman@marks-and-spencercom

Registrar/Shareholder queries

Eguniti Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex BNS9 6DA

United Kingdom

Telephone: 0345 6020810

If calling from outside the UK

+44(0) 121 415 7071

Online: help.shareview.co.uk {from here,
you will be able Lo email Equiniti securely
with your enguiry),

Students
Plegse note, students are advisedto
source information from our website.

SHAREHOLDER SECURITY

Additional documents
Aninteractive version of our 2016/17
Annual Report is available online at
marksandspencer.com/
annuatreport2017.

Additionally, both the Annual Report
and Strategic Report are availlable

for downloadin pdf format at
marksandspencer.com/thecompany.
Alternatively, callO800 591 697

Group Secretary and Head
of Corporate Governance
Amanda Mellor

Anincreasing nurmber of shareholders
have beon contacting us toreport
unsolicited and suspicious phone calls
received from purported brokers who
offor to buy their shares at a price farin
excess of their market vatue. itis untikely
that firrns authorised by the Financial
Conduct Authority (FCA) will contact you
with offers lke this. As such, we believe
these calis are part of a scarm, commonly
referredtoas a boiler roorm. The callers

obtain your details from publicly available
sources of information, including the
Company’s share register, and can be
extremely persistent and persuasive.

Shareholders are cautioned Lo be very
wary of any unsolicited advice, offers to
buy shares at a discount, sell your shares
at a prermium or requests to complete
confidentiality agreements with the callers
Remember, if it sounds too good to

be true, it probably is!

Maore detalledinformation and guidance

15 available on the shareholder information
pages of our corporate website. We also
encourage sharecholderstoreadthe

FCA's guidance onhow to avoid scams

at fca.org.uk/consumers/scams.
Anoverview of current common

scarns can be found onthe Action

Fraud website actionfraud.police.uk.
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